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Global Yatirim Holding Grubu

Global Yatirim Holding Grubu'nun istirakleri ve ilgili
alanlardaki baslica faaliyetler asagida gosterilmistir.
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LIMAN ALTYAPISI ENERJi
Global Liman isletmeleri Global Eneriji
Ege Ports (Kusadasi) Naturelgaz
Port Akdeniz (Antalya) Madencilik Operasyonlari
Bodrum Yolcu Limani Tres Enerji
Port of Bar (Bar, Karadag) Sirnak Termik Santrali
Creuers del Port de Barcelona Diger Eneriji Projeleri
A5

GAYRIMENKUL FINANS
Pera GYO Global Menkul Degerler
Denizli Siimerpark AZ Global

Van AVM ve Otel Gelisim Projesi
Vakifhan No. 6

Salipazari Global Binasi

Aqua Dolce Resort
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KONSOLIDE FINANSAL GOSTERGELER

2013 yilinda Global Yatirim Holding Gurubu’'nun toplam
aktifleri1.977,6 milyon TLye ulasmstir.
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Asagidaki grafikler, Global Yatirrm Holding Grubu'nun
371 Aralik 2012 ve 31 Aralik 2013 tarihlerinde sona eren
mali yillara ait brit cirosunun dagilimini gostermektedir.
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YONETIM KURULU BASKANI'NIN MESAJI

Bir donusum yili

2013, Global Yatirim Holding icin onemli ortakliklar
ve yeni basarilar yili oldu.

1992 yilindan bu

yana ilk kez, iki ayri
kredi degerlendirme
kurumu Turkiye'nin
yabanci para cinsinden
uzun vadelinotunu
"yatirim yapilabilir”
diizeyine yukseltti.

Degerli Paydaslarimiz,

2013, hem Turkiye'de hem de tuim diinyada zorlu bir yil oldu. En
gelismis Ulkeler bile kiiresel ekonomik krizin yaralarini sarmaya
baslamisken, bu kez gelismekte olan piyasalar potansiyellerinin altinda
bliyume performansi sergiledi.

Rakamlar, ytiz yuze oldugumuz durumun ardinda yatan nedenleri
gostermek yerine yalnizca sonucu yansitiyor. Bu nedenle, size sayisal
sonuclari sunmadan 8nce dinyanin icinde bulundugumuz kisminda
neler olup bittigini elimden geldigince ozetlemek isterim.

Duinyanin dogal kaynaklarinin tam kesisme noktasinda yer aliyoruz.
“Stan" Ulkeleri, Rusya ve Irak, Kiirdistan Bolgesel Yonetimi ve kaynak
bakimindan zengin diger komsularimiz bir yandan bliyik petrol ve
gaz rezervlerinin tizerinde yer alirken dte yandan kisi basina diisen
ulusal gelirlerini artirabilmek icin bily Uik bir miicadele veriyorlar.
Maalesef, bu alanda bugtine dek basarili olamadilar ve gortinen o ki
zengin dogal kaynaklara dayali ekonomilerini hichir zaman ttimuyle
cesitlendiremeyecekler.

Dunyanin diger ucunda ise stirekli olarak gelisen ve ilerleyen ABD
yer aliyor. ABD, petrol ve gazda net ihracatci olmayi ve sonuc olarak
tretimin Uzak Dogu, Avrupa ve Cin'den kitlesel bir bicimde yeniden
kendi kiyilarina kaydiriimasiniamachyor. Bana kalirsa, ABD'nin kaya
gazi kullanimi yoluyla ekonomisini yeniden canlandirmasi, meselenin
0zunU olusturmakta ve ontimuzdeki yillarda dikkatle izlemeyi
gerektirmektedir.

Ote yandan, teknoloji cagi bilytik bir hizlalerliyor. Bugiin her birimiz
ulkemizdeki ve diinyadaki gelismeleri gercek zamanli izleyebiliyor,
tzerinde konusup tartisabiliyoruz. Ancak, teknolojide yasanan bu
mucizevi gelisme herhangi bir konuya yonelik dikkatimizin stire
araligini hizla kisaltirken, ayni zamanda hosgori ve makul yargilama
potansiyelimizi dtstrtyor. Tum bu gelismeler, sonuc olarak bireyler,
ulkeler ve hatta diinyanin farkli bolgeleri arasindaki mesafenin giderek
aclimasina neden oluyor.
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Mehmet KU
Yonetim Kur

Diinyanin dogal

Yirmi yilraskin bir stiredir "Stan" tlkelerinin durgun bir gelisme egilimi kaynaklarinin
izleyen piyasalarinda ve Rusya'da is yapan biri olarak, dogrudan kesisme noktasinda
gbzleme dayall bir bilgi aktariminda bulunmak isterim. Bu tilkelerle yer alan stratejik
kiyaslandiginda Turkiye, gliclt kilttrel dokusu ve demokrasi konumuyla Trkiye,

avantajlarini cok iyi

gelenegiyle kolayca ayrismaktadir. Bu ayrismaya neden olan unsurlar, - X -
degerlendirmelidir.

aynizamanda yaraticiligimizi ve ticari sezgilerimizi ciddi bir bicimde
artirmis, girisimci yanimizi gliclendirmistir.

Henlz bulunmasi gereken yerde olmasa da Turkiye kesinlikle dogru bir
yondeilerlemekte; bu stirecte, bolgedeki jeopolitik ve ticari avantajlarini
gecmise kiyasla cok daha verimli bir bicimde degerlendirmektedir.
Egitim, gelir dlizeyindeki esitsizligin giderilmesinde ve Ulkenin
gelisiminde gercekten de anahtar unsurdur. Ancak bu, gerceklesmesi
en az on yIl, belki daha da fazla bir stire gerektiren, uzun vadeli bir
hedeftir.

Yakin gelecek icinse, diinyanin dogal kaynaklarinin kesisme noktasinda
yer alan stratejik konumuyla Turkiye, giiclli yanlarini su temeller tizerine
kurmalidir:

israildeki Leviathan petrol bolgesinden Turkiye'ye dogal gaz boru
hattidosenmesi,

Kibris'tan Turkiye'ye dogal gaz boru hatti dosenmesi,

Yurt ici enerji harcamalarini diistirmek amaciyla Kiirdistan Bolgesel
Yonetimi'nden petrol ve gaz akisinin baslatiimasi,

Kibris meselesinin coztime kavusturulmasticin calismalarin
strdtrtlmesi,

Anayasanin degistirilmesi ve demokratik yapinin gliclendirilmesi,



Yonetim Kurulu
Baskani'nin Mesaji

%4

Turkiye, ortalamanin
altinda bir performans
kaydederek yil %4
blytmeyle tamamladi.

%49

Global Yatirm
Holding'in cirosu
oncekiyilakiyasla %49
artis gosterdi.

Avrupa Birligiile parasal birlige dayanmayan, kendiicinde hem
amac hem de arac rolli Ustlenen ortak bir yapilasmaya gidilmesi.
Eger TUrkiye, enerji koridoru olusturan konumuna dayanarak
elini dogru oynarsa Avrupa Birligi'ndeki Uyeligini onemli dlctide
genisletmeyibasaracaktir. Ayni sekilde, AB Uyeligi, Turkiye'ye
demokratik 6zlemleri dogrultusunda yol almak icin buytik bir hiz
kazandiracaktir.

Simdirakamlara donersek, 2013 yilinda diinya ekonomisi %2,4
oraninda buytdu. Bu donemde nihayet finansal krizin olumsuz etkilerini
Uzerinden atmaya baslayan ABD ekonomisiise %1,8 blylme kaydetti.
Yilin ikinci yarisinda Avro Bolgesi ekonomisi de, 18 ay stiren uzun

bir durgunlugun ardindan yeniden pozitif bliylime sUrecine girmeyi
basardr.

Buna karsin, Mayis ayinda ABD Merkez Bankasi FED'in, yilinileri
doneminde bono alimini azaltmaya baslayacaginaliskin beklenmeyen
aciklamasi, ytikselen pazar ekonomilerini olumsuz yonde etkiledi. Bu
tlkelere yonelik sermaye girisindeki azalmaya paralel olarak faiz oranlari
yukselmeye basladi; hisse senedi fiyatlari hizla diserken ulusal paralar
onemli olctide deger kaybina ugradi.

Bu gelismelerin bir sonucu olarak, kliresel ekonominin itici gtictinti
olusturan Cin'in bliytme hizi 2013 yilinda, son 14 yilin en diistik
dlizeyine gerileyerek %7,7 dlizeyinde gerceklesti. Genel olarak
gelismekte olan ulkeler ise yilsonu itibariyla %4,8 oraninda bir buytme
performansi sergiledi.

Kuresel ekonomik gortinUmdeki bu gelgitlere paralel olarak Turkiye
ekonomisi de yil boyunca ytikselip alcalan, dalgali bir seyir izledi.

Turkiye ilk ceyrekte %2,9, Ulke kredi notunun yiikseldigi ikinci ceyrekte
ise beklenenin Uzerinde bir performansla 7%4,4 oraninda by tdu. Bu
sayede, 1992 yilindan bu yanailk kez, iki ayri kredi degerlendirme
kurumu Turkiye'nin yabanci para cinsinden uzun vadelinotunu "yatirim
yapilabilir' diizeyine yikseltti. Buna karsin, kisa sure icinde bir yandan
FED'Iin politika degisikligi, 6te yandan yurt icindeki politik gerginlikler
nedeniyle ekonomi yon degistirdi. Sonuc olarak, kriz sonrasi donemde
dusts egilimine giren issizlik diizeyi yeniden ylkselmeye basladi.
Cariacik onceki yila kiyasla 12 milyar ABD dolari artarken Tirkiye'ye
yabanci sermaye girisi 38 milyar ABD dolarindan 17 milyar ABD

dolari diizeyine duserek hem faiz oranlarinin hem de doviz kurlarinin
ylkselmesine neden oldu. Bir yilicinde nominal olarak neredeyse %20
oraninda deger kaybeden Turk lirasi, 2013 enflasyon oranini da yukari,
%7,3 dizeyine cekti. Sonuc olarak, Turkiye, ortalamanin altinda bir
performans kaydederek yili %4 oraninda bir bliyumeyle tamamladi.
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Bu stirecte Global Yatirim Holding gliclli sermaye yapisi sayesinde
istikrarli bir bliytime sergiledi ve 2013 yilindaki ekonomik sarsintidan
etkilenmemeyibasardi. Sirket'in cirosu onceki yila kiyasla %49
artisla 247,3 milyon TLye yukseldi; net karise 29,1 milyon TL olarak
gerceklesti.

2013 yilinda Global Yatirim Holding 13.365.000 TL briit temettl

dagitti. Daha once yasal kisitlamalar

nedeniyle ertelenen temett

dagitimi, 2012 yilinin sonlarina 2 01 3 y I | I n d a ' G | O b a |

dogru soz konusu kisitlamalarin .

ortadan kalkmasiyla yeniden Y t m H |d

baslatildi; onumtizdeki yillarda a I rl O I n

da yatinma beklentilerini 1 L

karsllamak Uizere devam ettirilmesi 1 3 3 | T L b t
2 MIyon ru

ongortiltyor.

e tE@MeEttd dagittl,

Olagan Genel Kurul toplantisinda

onaylanan Hisse Geri Alim Programi 11 Kasim 2013 itibariyla
tamamlandi. Bu program kapsaminda Sirket'in 6denmis sermayesinin
%9,24'Unt temsil eden 20.791.765 milyon TL nominal degerli
20.791.765 hisse 29.985.687,33 TL bedelle satin alindi. Sonug
olarak, 2013 yilinda Sirket, yatirmcilarina 8dedigi 0,05940 TL/hisse
temettilye ek olarak, hisse basi 0,144 3 TL nakit dagitimi gerceklestirdi.

blyume kaydedilmesine ragmen konsolide ciroya en buytik katkiyi
liman ve enerji operasyonlari yapti. Toplam is hacmimizin 6nemli bir
kismini olusturan liman faaliyetlerinden elde ettigimiz gelir, 2013
yllinda onceki doneme kiyasla %17 oraninda artis gostererek 143,5
milyon TL'ye ulasti.

Bu siirecte, limanlarin normallestirilmis (tek seferlik proje giderlerinden
arindirlmis) FAVOK tutariise 2012 yilindaki 80,2 milyon TL diizeyinden
2013 yilinda, 93,9 milyon Tlye ytikseldi.

2013 yilinda Global Liman Isletmeleri, yatirmlarini planlandigi gibi, tam
hizla stirdirdi. Yurt disindaki bilytime hedefleri dogrultusunda GLI,
ozellestirme yoluyla Karadag'in Bar Limani'nin %62 oranindaki hissesini
portfoyline katti. 30 milyon avro bedelliihaleyle ilk kez bir Turk sirketi
yurt disindaki bir liman isletmesinin cogunluk hissesini satin almis oldu.

GYH'nin bagl ortakligi olan Global Liman isletmelerinin yurt disindaki
yatirimlari Bar Limani'yla sinirl kalmadi. Sirket, 1,8 milyon yolcu
kapasitesiyle Avrupa'nin en buytik kruvaziyer limani olan Barselona
Limani'niisleten Creuers del Port de Barcelona'nin %4 3 hissesini de
satin aldi. Creuers del Port de Barcelona aynizamanda Malaga Yolcu



Yonetim Kurulu
Baskani'nin Mesaji

%15

2013 yilinda Straton
Maden'in %75 hissesini
satin alan Global Enerfji,
madencilik alaninda da
faaliyet gostermeye
baslad.

Limanr'nda cogunluk, Singapur Yolcu Limani'ndaise azinlik hisselerine
sahiptir.

Bir yandan Creuers del Port de Barcelona'da cogunluk hissedariolma
yoninde calismalarini siirdiiren Global Liman isletmeleri, ayni zamanda
yurt disinda baska yatinmlar da stirdurtyor. Sirket, Royal Carribean
Cruises Ltd,, Creuers del Port de Barcelona, S.A. ve Grupo Sousa -
Investimentos SGPS, LDA'dan olusan konsorsiyumun bir parcasi
olarak Lizbon Liman idaresi'nin yap-islet-devret (YD) kontratiicin
tercih edilenihale katiimaisi olma hakkini kazandi. S6zlesme, Lizbon
Yolcu Terminali'nde kruvaziyer terminaliinsaatini ve kamu hizmeti
imtiyazi esasliolarak 35 yilliginaisletiimesiniiceriyor. Gerekliizinlerin
alinmasinin ardindan imtiyaz anlasmasiimzalanacak.

2013 yilinda enerji alanindaki faaliyet gelirimiz 63,3 milyon TL olarak
gerceklesti; FAVOK'timuz ise hizli bir artisla 3,1 milyon Tl'den 53,1
milyon TLye ulastl. Bu artista yilicinde gerceklestirdigimiz satin alma
islemlerinden kaynaklanan serefiye kazanclari by ik dlctide etkili oldu.

Naturelgaz, dogal gazi yeni kullanim alanlarina ulastirarak sektorde
cok Onemli bir katma deger yaratt. Turkiye'nin en ylksek kapasite
agina, en yaygin CNG ulasim ve dagitim filosuna ve en btiytuk CNG
depolama altyapisina sahip olan Sirket, sektordeki bu konumuyla
ovlnc kaynagimizdir. Naturelgaz, yalnizca Turkiye'nin degil, bolgenin
lider oyuncusu olma hedefiyle buyumesini ve istasyon agini
yayginlastirmayi strdtruyor.

2013 yilindaistasyon sayisini 11'e cikaran Naturelgaz, 2014 yilsonu

itibariyla 15 istasyona sahip olmayi planlyor. Bu surecte, 2014 yilinin
Mayis basinda Sirket, Karadeniz'de diinyanin en bliytik kapasiteli CNG
istasyonu olan Rize Dolum Tesisi'nin acilisini yapti.

Ayrica, 2013 yilinda Straton Maden'in %75 hissesini satin alan Global
Eneriji, bdylece madencilik alaninda da faaliyet gostermeye basladi. Bu
yeniyatirimla Sirket, cevreye zarar vermeksizin daha kaliteli feldspati
daha verimli bir yontemle tretmeyi amacliyor. Global Enerji'nin
madendilik alaninda yapacag) bilgi, beceri ve ileri teknoloji yatirimlari
hem uretim hem de istihdam yaratma bakimindan tilke ekonomisine
onemli dlctide katkida bulunacaktir.

Toplam 20,7 milyon ton olan dinya feldspat tretiminin %24'Unu
gerceklestiren Turkiye, bu pazarda dunya lideridir. Sektortin en biiytik
bes madencilik sirketi arasinda yer alan Straton Maden, yilda yaklasik
250.000 ton feldspat tretimi gerceklestirmekte, bunun %80'iniise
ihrac etmektedir.

Son olarak, 2012 yilinin sonunda kurulan Tres Enerjiise 2013 yilinda
miisteri portfGytind yayginlastirmayi basardi. Enerji coztimleri Ureten
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bu sirket, endUstriyel ve ticari musterileriicin mikro elektrik tiretim
tesisleri kurmaktadir. Sirket'in 2015 sonuna dek gerceklestirecegi
sozlesmelerle halen 17 MW olan is hacmini 70 MW'a cikarmasini
ongoruyoruz.

Global Yatinm Holding, 201 3'te gayrimenkul alaninda da guiclu
bir performans sergiledi. Pera

Gayrimenkul Yatirim Ortakligrnin lG | O b a | L i m a n

Stmerpark Evleri kalkinma projesi,

i N i i ]
ekes ot ok ve astanesiyle | S letmeleri, 2013
Devn‘izli‘Ke?nt peyzajwlnlkdkF.enl B
o seeen yilinda yatirimilarinig

ile 15 yillik bir finansal kiralama

planlandigi gibi, tam
pecoramene 17| sUrdurdd,

kutuphanesi, spor salonu, ytizme

havuzu, konferans ve toplanti odalariyla 2014-15 dgretim yilinda
aciimasi ve 1.000 civarinda dgrenciye egitim vermesi planlaniyor.

2013 yilinin ekonomik belirsizlik kosullarinda, gliclti sermaye yapisi
ve degerliinsan kaynaklari sayesinde Global Menkul Kiymetler oncli
ve yenilikci pazar konumunu korumustur. Sirket bu dénemde Global
Yatirim Holding'in genel hedefleri ve stratejisi dogrultusunda cnemli
ortakliklar kurmus ve bircok yenibasari elde etmistir.

Yilboyunca gosterdigi yogun cabanin sonucunda fonlari yuksek bir
satis performansi sergileyen AZ Global Portfoy Yonetimi, 2013 yilinda
Turkiye'nin en biylk bagimsiz varlik yoneticileri arasinda ikinci sirayi
almistir. Bu stirecte, Global Menkul Degerler ise Portekiz'de kurulu
yatinim bankasi Espirito Santo ile bir stratejik ortaklik anlasmasi
imzalamistir.

Bugtinkti konumumuza ulasmada buytik katkisi olan paydaslarimiza ve
tlim Global ailesine ylrekten tesekkir ederim.

Mehmet Kutman
Yonetim Kurulu Baskani



Kisaca

Global Yatirim Holding Grubu

Hedeflerimize
ulasiyoruz

Grubun is birimleri ve istirakleri faaliyetlerini bliyuk olctide
bagimsiz bir bicimde yurtiturken, Global Yatirim Holding
genel stratejik ve risk yonetimi ilkeleri cercevesinde
kurumsal ve finansal stratejilerini belirlemektedir.

%70

2013'te liman varliklarinin
FAVOK marji

1990 yilinda kurulan Global Yatirim Holding, kisa stireicinde
Turkiye'nin lider bagimsiz araci kurumu ve yatirim bankacilig|
sirketine dontismustiir. Ulkemizdeki bircok isletmenin ilk kez
uluslararasi kurumlarla tanismasina vesile olan Sirket, Turkiye
sermaye piyasalarinin gelisiminde énemli bir rol oynamistir.
Global Yatinim Holding, gliclti yatinm bankaciligi deneyimi ve
yatinm istahi sayesinde 2004 yilinda genis bir yatirim portfoyu
olusturmustur. Global Yatinm Holding, gelismekte olan sektorlere
ve geleneksel bankacilik disi finansal hizmet saglayici kurumlara
yonelik ilgisiyle dinamik bir yatirim aracina dontismuistur.

Global Yatirm Holding hisseleri Borsa istanbul'da GLYHO.IS
sembollyleislem gbrmektedir.

Halen, Global Yatirim Holding Grubu dort ana is kolunda faaliyet
yurttmektedir:

Liman Altyapisi: kruvaziyer ve ticarilimanisletme faaliyetleri;
Eneriji: Skistirimis dogal gaz satisi ve dagitimi, enerji verimliligi,
yenilenebilir eneriji tretimi, madencilik ve blyuk olcekli eneriji
Uretimi;

Gayrimenkul: Ticari gayrimenkul projelerinin gelistiriimesi ve
isletmesi;

Finans: Aracilik, danismanlik ve varlik yonetimi gibi bankacilik disi
finansal hizmetler.
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Liman altyapisi, Global Liman isletmeleri catisi altinda toplanan
kruvaziyer ve ticariliman yatirnmlarindan olusmaktadir. GUclu talep
potansiyeli ve mtikemmel hinterlant erisimi, bugtin Turkiye ve
Avrupa'da stratejik konuma sahip bes ticaret ve yolcu limanindan
olusan bir is hacmine sahip olan Global Liman isletmeleri'ne cok
blyUk bir olanak sunmaktadir. Stratejik hedefi uluslararasi bir liman
isletmecisi haline gelmek olan Global Liman isletmeleri, bir yandan
Turkiye'deki portfoyunu genisletme firsatlarini degerlendirirken
Ote yandan basta Akdeniz olmak Uzere Turkiye disindaki bolgelerde
de yenilimanlar satin almayr amaclamaktadir.

Global Enerji, istiraki Naturelgaz araciliglyla sikistirimis dogal gaz
satisi ve dagitiminin yani sira termal, solar ve dogal gaz enerji
Uretimi alaninda mikro ve blyuk Glcekli projelere odaklanmistir.
Grup, hizla bliytyen enerji verimliligi ve madencilik sektorlerine
yonelik yatinmlarla dailgilenmektedir.

Gayrimenkul alaninda Grup temel faaliyetlerini ticari gayrimenkul
projeleri gelistirme ve isletme alaninda yogunlastirmistir.

Finansal sektor yatinmlari, aracilik, finansal danismanlik ve varlik
yOnetiminden olusmaktadir. Stratejik ortaklarin Uriin yelpazesi ve
deneyimi musteri tabaninin gelisimine ve Grubun itibarina onemli
Olcude katkida bulunmaktadir.

1



Kisaca Global Yatirim
Holding Grubu

2013 yilindaki CNG
istasyon sayisi

Gelecege yatinnm yapmak

Global Yatirnm Holding, 2004 yili sonunda gerceklestirdigi yeniden
yapllanma stirecinin ardindan Turkiye ekonomisinin hizla bulytiyen
sektorlerindeki yatirm firsatlarinibasaril bir bicimde tespit
etmistir. Grup, gelecege dontk bliyume potansiyeli tasiyan
sektorleri ve gelisimlerinin hentiz basinda olanis alanlarini
hedeflemektedir. Koklu yatirim deneyimi ve uluslararasi is
cevreleriyle givenliiliskileri sayesinde Sirket, yatirim hedeflerini
belirlemede ve yeni alanlarailiskin risk degerlendirmede dnemli bir
rekabet UstUnltigline sahiptir. Grubun esnek yapisi ve kulttrtinin
yani sira etkinrisk degerlendirme surecleri sayesinde Global Yatirim
Holding bircok yatirima basaril bir bicimde 6nculik etmistir.

Geleneksel holding sirketlerinden
tiimiiyle farkh bir yatirim portfoyii.

Yatirim kararlarinda hicbir cografi ya da sektorel kisiti olmayan Grup,

bu ozelligiyle belirli bir is alanina yogunlasan diger holding sirketleri ve
topluluklarindan ayrilmaktadir. Portfoyunt bu anlayisla gelistiren sirket,
basarili bir performans cizgisi izlemektedir.

Sirket'in yaklasimi, hissedarlariicin yarattigi degeri ve getiriyi azamiye
cikarmaktir. Bu amacla, yuksek buytme ve getiri potansiyeline sahip
olan, aynizamanda cografi, teknik, “ilk giren olmak" gibi engeller
nedeniyle rekabet UstUnltgU taslyan sektdrlerde, cesitlilik iceren bir
yatirim portfoyu olusturmaktadir. Olasiis firsatlarini degerlendirirken
Sirket oncelikle gelecege donuk bliylme potansiyelini ve cazip getiri
oranini gzetmektedir. Bu strateji sayesinde mevcut yatirim portfoyt
acisindan ancak kisa vadede anlamli olan cesitli yatirmlarda kari
maksimize etmeyi basarabilmektedir.

Sirket, bir yatinmdan dogru zamanda cikma basarisinin, hissedarlar icin
yaratilan degeri artirmanin ayrilimaz bir parcasi olduguna inanmaktadir.
Bu yaklasimla, yatinm portfoyunu stirekli izleyerek yatirimikismen ya
da tumduyle realize etmenin dogru zamanini belirlemektedir.
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is atmosferinin siirekli degisen kosullarina
gecikmeksizin uyum saglamak ve
operasyonel verimliligi korumak, yonetim
yaklasiminin temel taslarini olusturmaktadir.

Grup her diizeyde karar alma sureclerini kolaylastirarak en iyi kurumsal pratikleri
hayata gecirmekte; hem operasyonel diizeyde hem de grup diizeyinde bagimsiz ve
yalin bir organizasyon yapisini tesvik etmektedir. Bu yalin yapi tist yonetime Grup
capinda operasyonel performansi ve is atmosferinin strekli degisen kosullarini
yakindan izleme ve etkin bir bicimde mtdahale etme olanag| saglamaktadir.

is birimleri ve istirakler faaliyetlerini, Global Yatirim Holding Grubu'nun genel stratejik
ve risk yonetimiilkeleriile kurumsal ve finansal stratejileri dogrultusunda, buy Uk
olclde bagimsiz bir bicimde yurutmektedir. Grup icindeki tlim operasyonlar,
sektorlerin 6zgiin kosullarini, dinamiklerini ve zorluklarini degerlendirme yetisine
sahip, vasifli ve deneyimli yoneticilerden olusan profesyonel yonetici ekipler
tarafindan yuruttlmektedir.
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Kisaca Global Yatirim
Holding Grubu

.. .isse geriallim prgral

Global Yatirim Holding Yonetim Kurulu 3 Mart 2014'te "Hisse
2013 yilinda toplam Gerialim Programi (2012)"'nin 1.1 Kasim 201.3'te tamamlandigini

aktiflerdeki artis. ve 18 aylik geri alim déneminin bittigini belirlemistir, Hisse Gerialim

Programi (2012) kapsaminda 6denmis sermayenin %9,24'inti
temsileden 20.791.765 hisse satin alinmistir. Sonuc olarak, 2013
yilinda Global Yatirim Holding, yatirmcilarina hisse basina odedigi
0,05940TL temettlye ek olarak, hisse basina 0,144 3 TL nakit
dagitimi gerceklestirmistir.

Yonetim Kurulu daha sonra geri alinan hisselerin sermaye indirimi
yoluyla iptaline, boylece Sirket'in denmis sermayesinin
20.791.765 TL azaltilarak 204.211.922,45 Tlye indirimesine
karar vermistir. Yonetim Kurulu'nun bu karari 1 Temmuz 2014 'te
Genel Kurul'un onayina sunulacaktir.
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BASLICA FINANSAL GOSTERGELER

Yuksek buyume
potansiyell

Global Yatirim Holding Grubu 2013 yilinda 247,7
milyon TL ciro ve 129,3 milyon TL briit faaliyet kari
gerceklestirmistir.

Konsolide Bilanco (milyon TL)

2013 2012
Donen Varliklar 386,4 259,2
Duran Varliklar 1.591,2 1.047,7
Toplam Varliklar 19776 1.339,9
Kisa Vadeli YukUmlUltkler 4233 3054
Uzun Vadeli Yukumlultkler 828,4 2911
Ozkaynaklar 7259 7373
Toplam Pasif Kaynaklar 19776 1.3399
Konsolide Gelir Tablosu (milyon TL)

2013 2012
Ciro 2474 166,4
Brit Kar 95,7 759
Brit Faaliyet Kari 190,0 208,3
Vergi Oncesi Kar/(Zarar) 29,7 104,7
Net Donem Kari /(Zarar) 291 108,7
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Yonetim Kurulu

Mehmet Kutman/Baskan

Global Yatirm Holding'in kurucu ortaklari
arasinda yer alan Mehmet Kutman, Yonetim
Kurulu Baskani ve Genel MUdUr olarak gorev
yapmaktadir. Sirket dlizeyinde is gelistirme
faaliyetlerine aktif bicimde katilan Kutman, Global
Yatirim Holding'in bagli kurulus ve istiraklerinin
bircogunda Yonetim Kurulu tyesi olarak hizmet
vermektedir.

Kutman, ayrica Borsa Istanbul'da islem giren
grup disindaki baska sirketlerin yonetim
kurullarinda da gGrev yapmaktadir. Kutman ayni
zamanda TUSIAD ve DEIK tiyesidir.

Kutman, 1990 yilinda Sirket'i kurmadan

once, 1989-1990 yillari arasinda turizm ve
gayrimenkul sektorlerinde faaliyet gdsteren bir
Turk sirketler grubu olan Net Holding A.S.'nin

Ust yonetiminde gorev almistir. Kutman ayrica,
1984 ile 1989 yillari arasinda, North Carolina
National Bank, Sexton Roses Inc. ve Philip Bush &
Associates'te Baskan Yardimcisi olarak yapmistir.
Mehmet Kutman, Bogazici Universitesi'nden
lisans (onur), Texas Universitesi'nden MBA
derecelerine sahiptir.
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Erol Goker/Baskan Vekili
Kurucu ortaklardan olan Erol Goker,

kurulusundan bu yana Global Yatinm Holding'in
Finans BAlUmu Baskani olarak hizmet
vermektedir. Cesitli Grup sirketlerinin yonetim
kurullarinda ve Borsa istanbul'a bagl onemli
komitelerde Ustlendigi gorevlerin yani sira
Goker'in TUSIAD tiyeligi de bulunmaktadir.

Global Yatirim Holding'in kuruldugu 1990 yilindan
once Goker, Net Holding A.S.'de Sermaye
Piyasasi Bolum Baskani olarak calismistir.
Oncesinde, Sermaye Piyasasi Kurulu'nda dort

yil ve Maliye Bakanligr'nin Vergi Teftis Kurulu'nda
dort yil hizmet vermistir. Erol Goker, Ankara
Universitesi'nden siyaset bilimi alaninda lisans

ve ekonomi alaninda yuksek lisans derecelerine
sahiptir,



Aysegiil Bensel/icraci Olmayan Uye
Aysegll Bensel, Yonetim Kurulu'na 1999
tarihinde katilmistir; ayni zamanda cesitli
istiraklerin yonetim kurullarinda da hizmet
vermektedir.

Mart 2007'deki satisina kadar Global Hayat
Sigorta A.S.'de Yonetim Kurulu Baskani olarak
hizmet veren Bensel, ayrica 2005 yilindan
itibaren kurulusun Genel Mudur'u olarak gorev
yapmistir. Bensel, Global Menkul Degerler A.S.
blnyesinde 1998-1999 arasinda Arastirma
Bolumu Direktorti ve 1993-1998 arasinda
Arastirma Bolumu Direktor Yardimciigl gorevlerini
Ustlenmistir. 1991 yilinda Gruba Menkul
Degerler Analisti olarak katiimadan once Bensel,
Tlrk bankacilik sektortinde doviz alim satimi
alaninda yoneticilik yapmistir. Aysegul Bensel,
Hacettepe Universitesi'nden isletme alaninda
lisans derecesine sahiptir.

Serdar Kirmaz/Uye

Serdar Kirmaz, Yonetim Kurulu'na 2010 tarihinde
katilmistir; aynizamanda cesitliistiraklerin
yonetim kurullarinda da hizmet vermektedir.

Serdar Kirmaz, 2007-2010 arasinda Dogan
Gurubu'nda, 2005-2007 arasinda GYH'de

ve 1999-2005 arasinda STFA Gurubu'nda
Finansman Grup Baskani ve Yonetim Kurulu Uyesi
olarak gorev Ustlenmistir. Serdar Kirmaz, 1988
yilrbasinda katildigi PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PWC") Turkiye'ye 1996 yilinda Sorumlu Ortak
olmus, 1997-1999 yillari arasindaise cesitli Ttrk
sirketlerine danismanlik hizmetleri vermistir.
Kirmaz, Orta Dogu Teknik Universitesi'nden
isletme lisans derecesiile mezun olmustur.
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Yonetim Kurulu

Adnan Nas/lcraci Olmayan Uye

Adnan Nas, Yonetim Kurulu'na 2011 tarihinde
katilmistir; aynizamanda cesitliistiraklerin
yonetim kurullarinda da hizmet vermektedir.

Adnan Nas, Global Yatinm Holding'e katiimadan
once uzun yillar, 1995'te kurucusu oldugu
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC) Yeminli Mali
Musavirlik firmasinin Yonetim Kurulu Baskan
olarak gorev yapmistir. PWC'den dnce 0zel
sektorde Ust duzey yoneticilik ve Yonetim
Kurulu Uyeligi yapan Nas, kariyerine Maliye
Bakanlig’'nda baslamis, Maliye Basmiifettisligi ve
Maliye ve GUmrik Bakanligl Teftis Kurulu Baskan
Yardimailigl gorevlerinde bulunmustur.

Adnan Nas YASED Baskan Vekili, TUSIAD
Uluslararasi Yuritme Kurulu tyesi, Am-Cham
Turkey eski Yonetim Kurulu Baskani, Vergi
Konseyi icra Kurulu Uyesi, Turkiye Finans
Yoneticileri Vakfi (Finans Kultip) Baskan Vekili

ve DEIK Tiirk-Amerikan Is Konseyi Uyesidir. Nas
aynizamanda Galatasaray Spor Kulibl Yonetim
Kurulu Uyesidir.

Cok sayida yayimlanmis bilimsel arastirma

ve makalesi bulunan Nas, Ankara Universitesi
Siyasal Bilgiler Fakliltesi ve istanbul Universitesi
Hukuk Fakdltesi mezunudur.
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Jéréme Bayle/Bagimsiz Uye

Jerome Bayle, Global Yatirim Holding'de 2009
yilindan bu yana bagimsiz Yonetim Kurulu
Uyesidir.

1974-2005 yillari arasinda Tetra Pak Makine
Ticaret ve Servis A.S.'de idari Direktor olarak
hizmet vermis ve cesitli pozisyonlarda
bulunmustur. Tetra Pak'tan emekli olmasini
takiben Bayle, Orta Dogu bolgesindeki buy Uk
uluslararasi sirketlere, insan kaynaklari ve
organizasyonel strrec ve gelisim basta olmak
Uzere mentorluk ve danismanlik hizmetleri sunan
Magnetic North Danismanlik A.S. adll yonetim
danismanlik firmasini kurmustur. Universite
Paris Dauphine’den (Paris IX) isletme ve finans
alaninda yuksek lisans derecesi sahibi olan
Jerdbme Bayle, profesyonel kariyeri boyunca pek
cok ddule layik gbriilmus ve gerek Sirket gerek
sosyal drgutlere katkilari takdir toplamistir.



Oguz Satici/ Bagimsiz Uye
Oguz Saticl, Global Yatirm Holding'de 2012
yllindan bu yana bagimsiz Yonetim Kurulu Uyesidir.

Saticl, is hayatina tekstil sektdriinde faaliyet
gOsteren aile sirketinde baslamis ve basarili bir
bicimde sirketi biiytitmiistiir. 1990'da istanbul
Ticaret Odasr'nda (iTO) en genc Meclis Uyesi
olmustur. 1996-1998 yillarinda iktisadi Kalkinma
Vakfi'nda (IKV) Yonetim Kurulu tiyeligi, 1999~
2001 arasinda Istanbul Tekstil ve Hammaddeleri
ihracatcilar Birligi (ITHIB) Yonetim Kurulu Baskanhig
yapmistir. 2001-2008 yillari arasinda art arda

tic dsnem Turkiye Ihracatcilar Meclisi (TiM)
Baskanhgi'ni tstlenmistir. Baskanlik yaptigi
donemde Turkiye ihracati tam %500 artmistir.

Bu alanda Satic'nin katkilari is diinyasi ve politik
camiada blyuk bir takdirle karsilanmaktadir. Oguz
Saticl, aynizamanda 2001-2008 yillari arasinda
Turkiye Yatinm Ortami lyilestirme Koordinasyon
Kurumu (YOIKK) tyeligi yapmis, 2004-2009
yillarinda Turkiye Yatirm Danisma Konsey (YDK)
Uyesi olmustur.

Turk Eximbank Yonetim Kurulu Uyesi de olan Oguz
Satia, Washington International University'den
isletme lisansina sahiptir.
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umenAtp= - Global Liman Isletmeleri

Portfoyune
iKi veniliman
ekledi

Global Liman isletmeleri (GLi), 1,73 milyon ton
genel ve dokme yik ticari operasyonlardan olmak
tzere 2013 yilinda 217.384 TEU briit is hacmi
gerceklestirmistir.

Kruvaziyer operasyonlarinda 27.195.583 briit gemi tonaji (GRT)
Q.—GLOBAI' Limanlar ulkelerin yalnizca emtialarina degil, ayni zamanda
ekonomilerine de hareket kazandirir; ticaret ve sanayiyi gelistirirken
istihdam olanag) yaratarak yerel ve bolgesel gelisime dnemli dictide
katkida bulunur. Liman sehirleri, deniz ya da nehir kiyisinda olmayan
bdlgelere kiyasla her zaman daha avantajl kabul edilir.

S LIiMAN iSLETMELERI

Global Yatirim Holding, liman altyapisi sektdriinde, 2004 yilinda

kurulan istiraki Global Liman Isletmeleri (“GLI") kanaliyla yat limanlarini
ve denizcilikle ilgili diger tesisleri gelistirip isletmektedir. Sirket'in bu
alandaki faaliyetleri 6ncelikle konteyner, ddkme yuk ve genel kargo
ellecleme olmak tizere ticariliman isletmeciligini; ayni zamanda,
kruvaziyer hatlar, feribot, yat ve mega yatlara hizmet sunan kruvaziyer
operasyonlarinricermektedir.

79,1

Global Yatirim Holding'in liman yatirimlari Ege Ports — Kusadasi
Liman’'nda %72,5, Bodrum Yolcu Limani'nda %60, Port Akdeniz-Antalya
Liman’'nda %100, Karadag Bar Limani'nda %62,1 ve Barselona Limani'ni
isleten Creuers del Port de Barcelona'da %4 3 oraninda sahip oldugu
hisseleri kapsamaktadir. Creuers del Port de Barcelona aynizamanda
Malaga Yolcu Limani'nda cogunluk Singapur Yolcu Limani'nda ise azinlik
hisselerine sahiptir.

2013 yilsonu itibariyla GLI'nin ticari imancilik operasyonlari yaklasik
500.000 TEU briit kapasiteye ve 5 milyon ton genel ve dokme yik
kapasitesine sahiptir. Global Liman isletmeleri (GLI) 2013 yilinda 1,73
milyon ton genel ve dokme yikdi ticari operasyonlardan, 27.195.583
GRT kruvaziyer operasyonlarindan olmak Uzere toplam 217.384 TEU
briit is hacmi gerceklestirmistir. 2013 yilinda Grup, 657 kruvaziyer
seferini, 979 feribot seferini, 780.338 kruvaziyer ve 150.662 feribot
yolcusunu agrlamistir.

Net Kar (milyon TL)
2013
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Global Liman isletmeleri, operasyonlarini yayginlastirmaya ve karliigini

artirmaya odaklanarak,

- Enson teknolojiyi kullanan tesislere yatirim yaparak ve etkin yonetim
sistemleriuygulayarak Turkiye'de ve yurt disinda ihracatin ve turizmin
hizli gelisimine katkida bulunmayi,

Yan liman faaliyetlerini artirmayi ve daha ytiksek kargo marjlari
olusturmayi,

Tesislerdekinakit yaratma potansiyelini optimum dlizeye getirmeyi,
Turkiye'de ve cevresindeki genis bir bolgede ticariliman ve
kruvaziyer limani 8zellestirme ve devralmalarini yakindan izlemeyi
planlamaktadir.

Global Liman isletmeleri 2013 yilinda cabalarini, yurt icinde kazandig)
deneyimi uluslararasi pazarlarda degerlendirmede yogunlastirmistir.
Bu konuda, Turkiye'nin Akdeniz kiyisindaki karma kullanim amacli
ticaret ve kruvaziyer limani olan Port Akdeniz - Antalya Limani'ni ve
Ege kiyisindakiiki kruvaziyer limani olan Ege Ports-Kusadasi Limani
ve Bodrum Yolcu Limani'niisleterek kazandigl yurt ici deneyiminden
yararlanmistir. GLI, 2013 yili Aralik ayinda Karadag Bar Limani
hisselerinin %62,1'ini ve RCCL (Royal Caribbean Cruise) ile kurdugu
ortaklik cercevesinde Barcelona Limani'niisleten Creuers del Port de
Barcelona'nin %4 3'lnd satin alma islemini tamamlamistir.

Toplam Ciro (milyon TL)
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Liman Altyapis Global Liman isletmeleri

GLI, Tuirkiye-Avrupa kamyon trafiginin bir kismini Bar
Limani'na kaydiracak; liman, komsu Avrupa llkelerine de
hizmet verecektir.

6 . Creuers del Port de Barcelona, ispanya:
m"yon ton 2013 Kasim ayinda GLI, Barselona Liman Isletmeleri (Barcelona
Bar Limanr'nin kapasitesi Port Investments — BPI) araciligyla ve dinyanin 6nde gelen

kruvaziyer isletmecileri arasinda yer alan Royal Caribbean Cruises
Ltd. ile ortaklik icinde, Barselona Limani'niisleten Creuers del Port
de Barcelona S.A. (Creuers) sirketinin %23 hissesini satin almistir.
BPI, 2013 yilinda Creuers del Port de Barcelona sirketinde ek
yuzde 20 hisseyidevralarak payini %43'e yukseltmistir. Creuers
del Port de Barcelona, 1,8 milyon yolcu kapasitesiyle Avrupa'nin en
bliyuk kruvaziyer limani olan Barselona Limani'niisletmenin yani
sira Malaga Yolcu Limani'nda cogunluk, Singapur Yolcu Limani'nda
ise azinlik hisselerine sahiptir.

Bar Limani, Karadag:

30 Aralik 201.3'te Global Liman Isletmeleri, Karadag Bar Limanrnin
%62 oranindaki hissesini satin alma islemini tamamlamistir.

Toplam 8 milyon avro bedel karsiliginda gerceklestirilen buislem,
aktif alimi ve verimlilik artisina yonelik 21 milyon avro tutarinda
sermaye artisi taahhtdu icermektedir. Liman, 30 yillik bir s6zlesme
cercevesinde Karadag'in Bar sehrinde bulunan genel yik ve kargo
terminalinin onarim, finansman, isletme ve bakim hakkini elinde
bulundurmaktadir.
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Bar Limani, 1 milyon konteyner ve 6 milyon ton genel kargo Creuers del Port de
kapasitesine sahiptir. Ancak, demiryolu aginin verimli bir bicimde Barcelona, 1,8 milyon yolcu
kullanilamamasi ve altyapinin yetersizligi nedeniyle liman halen kapasitesiyle Avrupa'nin
tam kapasite ile isletilememektedir. Gectigimiz yil, Bar Limani'nin en blytik kruvaziyer limani
is hacmi, 520.000 m? bir alan icinde 31.000 konteyner diizeyinde olan Barselona Limant

e ) o isletmenin yani sira Malaga
olmustur. GLI, limanin kullanimini, dolayisiyla is hacmini artirmak Yolcu Limanr'nda cogunluk

amaciyla Sirbistan trafigini yeniden buraya yonlendirmeyi Singapur Yolcu Limani'nda
amaclamaktadir. Sirket, ayni zamanda komsu Avrupa Ulkelerine ise azinlik hisselerine
de hizmet vermeyi ve Turkiye-Avrupa kamyon trafiginin bir sahiptir.

kismini Bar Limani'na kaydirmay hedeflemektedir. Son olarak, Bar
Limani'nin yolcu gemileriicin yeni bir ugrak yeri olma potansiyelini
dikkate alan GLI, buraya bir kruvaziyer iskelesiinsa etmeyi
planlamaktadir.

Yunanistan’da marina ve turist limanlar:

GLI, Yunanistan'da bazi marina ve turist limanlarinin inalesine
girebilmekicin, Ulkenin 0zellestirme fonu Yunanistan Cumhuriyeti
Varlik Gelistirme Fonu'nun (Hellenic Republic Assets Development
Funds - HRADF) 6n onayini almistir. Buihale, Alimos, Nea
Epidaurus, Hydra ve Poros'un da dahil oldugu bir grup limanin 40
yilboyunca yonetimini, isletmesini ve ilgili varliklarin kullanimini
kapsamaktadir.

Lizbon Yolcu Terminali:

GLi, 17 Ocak 2014'te Royal Carribean Cruises Ltd., Creuers del Port
de Barcelona, S.A. ve Grupo Sousa - Investimentos SGPS, LDA'dan
olusan konsorsiyumun bir parcasi olarak Lizbon Liman idaresinin
yap-islet-devret (YD) kontratiicin tercih edilen ihale katilimcisi
olma hakkinikazanmistir. S6zlesme, Lizbon Yolcu Terminali'nde
kruvaziyer terminaliinsaatini ve kamu hizmetiimtiyazi esasli olarak
35 yiliginaisletiimesiniicermektedir. Rekabet Kurulu'ndan gerekli
izinlerin alinmasinin ardindan imtiyaz anlasmasiimzalanacaktir.

Lizbon Liman idaresi, yeni yapilacak terminal sayesinde gelen gemi
ve yolcu sayisiniartirmayi ve orta vadede, yillik bazda 550.000
yolcudan olusan mevcut liman trafigini iki katina clkarmayi
hedeflemektedir. 2015 yilinin sonunda tamamlanmasi planlanan
ve toplam yatinm maliyetinin yaklasik 24 milyon avro olmasi
beklenen yeni Lizbon Yolcu Terminali'nin insaatina 2014 yilinda
baslanacaktir. Limana tahminen 1,8 milyon yolcu kazandirmasi
beklenen yeni terminalin ayni zamanda cevredekiis hacminin
blyUmesini destekleyerek bolgesel turizm ve ekonomiye olumlu
yOBnde katkida bulunmasi beklenmektedir.
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Liman Altyapis Global Liman isletmeleri

Turkiye'nin Uilke notuyla baglantili olarak Sirket'in
uzun vadeli uluslararasi yabanci para notu BBB-
olarak teyit edilmistir.

Global Liman isletmeleri Grubu'nun hedefi, miikemmel hizmet
BB B— duzeyini yakalayarak benchmark olusturmak ve kendi alaninda,

kazandigl odullerle anilan bir kurum olmaktir. Gectigimiz 10
GLI'nin 2013 yili kredi notu yll boyunca, Global Liman Isletmeleri, kruvaziyer sektoriinin

en onemli uluslararasi etkinligi olan Cruise Shipping Miami
konferansina katilarak Turkiye'yi temsil etmistir. ABD'nin Florida
eyaletinde duizenlenen bu konferansta Port Akdeniz -Antalya
2012 yilinda “En lyi Gelisme GBsteren Terminal Tesisleri" 6diltine
lay ik gbrilmustir. Global Liman Isletmeleri CLIA (Cruise Lines
International Association), ECC (European Cruise Council) ve
Medcruise Mediterranean Cruise Ports gibi 6nde gelen sektorel
orgtitlere tiyedir. GLI, Medcruise diizeyinde Akdeniz'deki 70 lye
ve 100 limani temsil etmekte ve icra kurulu Uyesi olarak hizmet
vermektedir. Ayrica, Ulkemizle daha yakin ve kalicriliskiler ve
yeni stratejiler gelistirmeyi amaclayan Florida-Caribbean Cruise
Association (FCCA), Turkiye kruvaziyer sektoriine onciiliik eden
calismalarinedeniyle GLI'ye Uyelik teklifinde bulunmustur.,

Tuirkiye'nin Ulke notuyla baglantili olarak Sirket'in uzun vadeli
uluslararasi yabanc para notu BBB- olarak teyit edilmistir. Bu not,
mevcut ekonomik kosullarin yarattigi riskler ve firsatlar dikkate
alinarak, Sirket'in yurt icinde fon yaratma kapasitesi, bilanco
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kompozisyonu, is yapisi, grup sinerjisi, pazara erisimi, yabanci
kurumlara yonelik giderek artanilgisi, hem yurt icinde hem de
uluslararasi capta organik ve inorganik blytime potansiyeli,
yabanci para cinsinden gelir yaratma kapasitesi, uzun vadeli
kaynaklara erisim olanaklarinin degerlendiriimesi sonucunda
belirlenmistir. Ayrica, JCR Eurasia Rating, uzun vadeli ulusal duzeyde
“stabil" goriintimle yliksek derecede yatirim yapilabilir "A- (Trk)"
notu belirlemistir. Hissedarlarin kurumu destekleme istegini ve
Sirket'in finansal gliclini, “sponsor destek’ kategorisinde (2)
olarak degerlendirmistir. Ote yandan, Sirket'in Ustlendigi riski kendi
olanaklariyla yonetme becerisi, "bagimsiz" kategorisinde (AB)
olarak degerlendiriimistir. Buna gore, JCR Eurasia'nin degerlendirme
kriterleri acisindan "bagimsiz” kategorisinde (AB) notu, Sirket'in
disaridan destek almaksizin yukumlultklerini yerine getirmede
“ileri" bir dlizeyde olduguna isaret ederken, finansal giic acisindan
(2) notuise yeterince dis destege sahip oldugunu gbstermektedir.

2011 Temmuz'unda italyan Palladio Finanziaria Group'a bagli

bir yatirim sirketi olan VEI Capital SpA, GLI'nin %22,1 hissesini
devralmistir. 2012 Aralik'inda VEI'yle yapilan bir anlasma
dogrultusunda, Subat 2013'te Global Yatinm Holding GLi'nin %22,1
hissesini VEI'den geri almis, boylece GLI'deki hisse oranini %100'e
cikarmistir,

Global Liman Isletmeleri
Grubu'nun hedefi,
miikemmel hizmet
diizeyini yakalayarak
benchmark olusturmak ve
kendi alaninda, kazandigi
adiillerle anilan bir kurum
olmaktir. Global Liman
Isletmeleri 10 yildir
kruvaziyer sektoriiniin en
onemli uluslararasi etkinligi
olan Cruise Shipping
Miami konferansina
katilarak Tiirkiye'yi temsil
etmektedir.

2/



Liman Altyapisi

Turkiye'de Ticaret ve
Kruvaziyer Limani Sektorleri

Modern ve iyi
donanimli liman

2013 yilinda 780.338 yolcu tasiyan 655 gemi GLI
limanlarini ziyaret etmistir; bu surecte Turkiye'nin
bitun limanlarindan 1.572 kruvaziyer gemisiyle
toplam 2,3 milyon yolcu gecmistir.

Son yillarda 6nemli

bir biiyiime kaydeden
denizcilik sanayi,
Tiirkiye'nin gelisime en acik
sektorlerinden biri olarak
degerlendirilmektedir.

Turkiye, Marmara, Akdeniz, Ege ve Karadeniz kiyilariboyunca cok
saylda modern ve iyi donanimli limana sahiptir. Cografi konumu
sayesinde Turkiye, Cebelitarik Uzerinden Atlantik Okyanusu'na,
Sliveys Kanali yoluyla Arap Yarimadasl ve Hint Okyanusu'na ve
Turkiye'deki Bogazlar Uizerinden Karadeniz, Ege Denizi, Akdeniz
ve Avrasya'ya ulasabimektedir. Ozellestirme calismalari ve
ekonomidekibliylimeye paralel olarak Turkiye liman sanayi son
yillarda hizla buytimektedir; ancak, hentiz potansiyelini timduyle
kullanabilecek diizeye gelmemistir. Turkiye, Ucu Turkiye Denizcilik
isletmeleri (TDI), ikisi Turkiye Cumhuriyeti Devlet Demir Yollari
(TCDD), geri kalaniise 6zel sektor tarafindan isletiimekte olan
toplam 160 liman ve iskeleye sahiptir.

Son yillarda 6nemli bir bliylime kaydeden denizcilik sanayi,
Turkiye'nin gelisime en acik sektdrlerinden biri olarak
degerlendirilmektedir. Gectigimiz son 10 yilda, Turk denizcilik
sanayi ekonomideki gelisime paralel olarak kapasitesini birkac kat
artirmistir. TUIK verilerine gore, Turkiye, dis ticaret hacminin %90'ini
deniz tasimaciliglyla gerceklestirmektedir. Bu, 6zellikle Turkiye'nin
cimento ve insaat malzemesi acisindan dnemli bir inracatc
konumunda oldugu insaat sektdru icin dogrudur. Turkiye Cimento
Mustahsilleri Birligi verilerine gore, 201 3 yili basinda ylikselen bir
egilim gosteren Turkiye cimento sanayi, toplam is hacminde %12
oraninda bliylUme kaydetmistir. Turkiye cimento sektorU, Uretim
hacmibakimindan Avrupa'da birinci, dlinyada besinci siradadir.
Cimento ihracatibakimindanise 201 3 yiliitibariyla diinyada ikinci
sirada yer almistir. Gectigimiz yil, ana ihracat pazari olan Afrika'daki
politik karisikliklara ragmen Turkiye, 14 milyon ton ve 0,9 milyar
ABD dolarinin tizerinde cimento ihracati gerceklestirmistir.
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Tiirkiye’deki Kruvaziyer Limanlan o
Dort farkli denizle cevrili, olaganusti mekanlara ve dogal /01 o

glzelliklere sahip ucsuz bucaksiz bir tlke olan Turkiye, dunyanin

en cok tercih edilenilk 1.0 turizm destinasyonu arasinda yer Kruvaziyer turizminde yillik
almaktadir. Turkiye'ye gelen yabanci turist sayisi 2012'de 31,7 bliytme

milyon duzeyinden 2013 yilinda %10,1 artisla 34,9 milyona

ckmistir.

Turkiye piyasasinin en dnemli kruvaziyer limanlari Ege Ports,
istanbul Salipazari Limani ve Izmir Limani'dir. Denizcilik Miistesarlig
verilerine gore, bu limanlar 2013 yilinda toplam seferlerin

% 71,20'sini ve toplam yolcularin %81,79'unu agirlamistir. Yerli

ve yabanci turist talebinin surekli arttigl bolgelerden biri olan
Turkiye, kruvaziyer turlarinin giderek daha fazla ilgi gosterdigi
kuresel destinasyonlar arasinda yer almakta; hem yurtici

hem de uluslararasi kruvaziyer operatorleri arasinda uUlkenin
popularitesi giderek artmaktadir. Turkiye'nin turizm alanindaki
yukselisine paralel olarak kruvaziyer turizmide yillik %210 blyume
kaydetmektedir. 2003 yilinda Turkiye'ye gelen 887 kruvaziyer
gemisi 582.000 yolcu tasirken 201 3'te Turk limanlarina
demirleyen 1.542 gemi 2,3 milyon yolcu tasimistir.
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Liman Altyapisi EG E PORTS .
(KUSADASI LIMANI)

En cok ziyaret
edilen liman

Ege Ports, CLIA (Cruise Lines International
Association) ve ECC (European Cruise Council)
diizeyinde icra Kurulu tiyesi olarak hizmet veren ilk
Turk liman operatoruddir.

2013'te 10'uncu yilinrkutlayan Ege Ports, Turkiye'nin en cok
ziyaret edilen limanidir ve tlim Akdeniz'de 16'nci sirada yer
almaktadir. Liman, 2013 yilinda 583.459 kruvaziyer yolcusu ve
62.263 feribot yolcusu agirlamistir.

Hareketli tatil yasaminin antik kalintilarin stikunetiyle bulusmasinin
yarattigl tezat, Kusadasi'na son derece 6zgun bir atmosfer
kazandirmaktadir, Turkiye'nin bati kiyisinda, izmir'in 90 km
giineyinde yer alan Kusadasi, en 6nemli tarihsel yerlere yakinlig|
nedeniyle buglin Ege'nin en cok tercih edilen beldelerinden biridir.
Kusadasi'na yalnizca 20 dakika uzaklikta olan Efes, bereketli
topraklari ve doguyla bati arasindaki ticarete acilan bir kapi
konumunda olusu nedeniyle antik donemin en dnemli sehirlerinden
biri olmus; yuzyillar boyunca bu konumunu korumustur. Gegcmiste,
deniz ticareti dogrudan Efes limanina ugrayan ticaret gemileriyle
yaplliyordu. Ancak, o giinden bu yana kiyi batiya dogru kaydi.
Sonuc olarak buglin, kruvaziyer gemilerinin en hareketli ugrak

yeri ve popliler bir plaj beldesi olan Kusadasi, tum Akdeniz'de en
cok ziyaret edilen antik kentlerden biri olan Efes'e acilan bir kapi
konumundadir. Ayrica, sicak yazlardan ve iliman kislardan olusan
tipik Akdeniz iklimi sayesinde Kusadasi, uzun bir turizm mevsimine
sahiptir. Sehir, yiin 300 glind glines almaktadir. Uzun kumsallari,
tertemiz suyu ve onemli tarihsel beldelere yakinligiyla mtikemmel
bir dinlenme bdlgesi ve Turkiye'nin en geliskin tatil merkezlerinden
biri olan Kusadasi, bugtin glivenli tesisleriyle ultra modern Ege
Ports'a ev sahipligi yapmaktadir. G.P. Wild International verilerine
gOre Akdeniz'in en cok ziyaret edilen 16'ncilimani olan Ege Ports,
2013 yiinda 583.459 kruvaziyer yolcusu ve 62.263 feribot
yolcusu agirlamistir.
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Ege Liman isletmeleri A.S. tarafindan isletilen Ege Ports, aynianda
dort blyuk gemi ya da dort kuicuk ve iki bliyuk geminin yanasma
kapasitesine sahiptir. Ayrica, feribot trafigine hizmet vermekicin
iki adet indirme/bindirme rampasi ile bir rihtim bulunmaktadir.
Terminal binasinda Scala Nuova alisveris kompleksi, gumriikstiz

Ege Ports 2013

=
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alisveris alani ve ilk yardim alaninin yani sira internet ve diger iletisim
olanaklarina sahip bir murettebat merkezi bulunmaktadir. Binada
ayrica kruvaziyer ve gemi operatdrleriile tur acenteleriicin cesitli
ofisler yer almaktadir.

Ege Liman Isletmeleri A.S. tarafindan isletilen Ege Ports, GLI'nin
devraldigrilk limandir. 2003 yilinda, Ege Ports'un 30 yillik isletme
hakki, Global Liman Isletmelerinin %7 2,5 ve diinyanin ikinci by ik
kruvaziyer operatort Miami merkezli Royal Caribbean Cruise Lines
Ltd. sirketinin %27,5 paya sahip oldugu bir konsorsiyum tarafindan
devralinmistir.

Grubun Ege Ports'u devralmasinin ardindan gerceklestirdigi bily tik
capl yatinmlar sayesinde o glinden bu yana gelen yolcu sayisi %138
oraninda artis gostermistir.

Kruvaziyer limani ve feribot operasyonlari, gimruksuz alisveris ve
Scala Nuova kompleksindeki magazalardan elde edilen kira gelirleri Ege
Ports'un baslica gelir kaynaklarini olusturmaktadir.

Yolcu sayisindaki artis ve perakende faaliyetlerinin glicll performansi
sonucunda, Ege Ports'un 2013 yilinet geliri 16,4 milyon ABD dolarina,
FAVOK'U ise 12,7 milyon ABD dolarina ulasmistir.

1.

Ege Ports, Turkiye'nin
en cok ziyaret edilen
limanidir
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Liman Altyapisi Ege Ports

Ege Ports, altyapiyi daha da gelistirmek amaciyla
limanda bircok yatirim yapmaktadir.

Global Liman isletmeleri, Temmuz 2003 tarihindeki devirden bu
645 7 yana Ege Ports - Kusadasi Limani'ndaki denizcilik ve sivil glivenlige
, her zaman blyuk onem vermistir. Ege Ports, Turkiye'de ISPS
bin (Uluslararasi Gemi ve Liman Glivenligi) Kodu almaya hak kazanan ilk

kruvaziyer limani olmustur.

2013'te Ege Ports'u ziyaret

eden toplam yolcu Ege Ports, altyapiyi daha da gelistirmek amaciyla limanda
bircok yatinm yapmaktadir. Bu hamlesi kapsaminda, limandaki
usturmacalar degistirilerek yerine %70 oraninda daha fazla
esneklige, dolayisiyla daha geliskin bir performansa sahip olan koni
seklindeki Japon Sumitamo, Hom—Hyper Omega tipi usturmacalar
konmustur,

Kruvaziyer turizminin dunya turizmiicindeki yerinin hizla artmasi,
Ege Ports kruvaziyer yolcu trafigindeki artista cok onemli bir rol
oynamistir. Ege ve Akdeniz kruvaziyer destinasyonlarinin giderek
daha poptiler hale gelmesi ve daha yliksek yolcu kapasiteli biytik
kruvaziyer gemilerinin hizmete baslamasi, limandaki kruvaziyer
yolcu trafiginde istikrarli bir bicimde artisa yol acan diger
unsurlardir. Ege Ports'un diizenli bir bicimde Disney Kruvaziyer
Gemisi'ne ev sahipligi yapmasi buna bir ornektir. Bu gemi, ilk kez
12 glinltik seyahat programina Kusadasi'ni eklemistir. Disney
Kruvaziyer Hatti, cocuklarla yetiskinlerin "Disney" deneyimi
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yasayabilecekleribir aile ortami sunmaktadir.
2007 yiindan bu yana, Ege Ports asagidakiler de dahil olmak tizere pek
cok Gvgl ve ddule layik gorulmustdr:

935

2007'de, uluslararasi seyahat ve turizm profesyonelleribirligi Skal tzoogélfgf;fmts agelen

tarafindan Yilin En lyi Ttrk Limani secilmistir.

2007'de ISPS (Uluslararasi Gemi ve Liman Guivenligi) standartlarina

tamuyanilk Turk limani olmus ve CLIA tarafindan Emniyet ve

Guvenlik Hizmetleri alaninda sektortin en iyi limanlarindan biri

secilmistir.

2007'de Lloyd's Cruise International Magazine tarafindan en hizli

biytyen limanlardan biri olarak gosterilmistir.

2008'de Lloyd's Tirk Tasimacilik Odlilleri'nde Yilin Kruvaziyer

Terminali secilmistir.

2010'da, G.P. Wild International Ltd. tarafindan Avrupa'nin 6nde

gelen 30 kruvaziyer limani arasinda 15'inci sirada yer almistir.

2010'da World Travel Group tarafindan dlizenlenen Diinya Seyahat

Odullerinde Dunyanin En lyi Kruvaziyer Limani secilmistir,

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Kruvaziyer Yolcusu (bin) 5681 4917 662,7 564,5 5835
Feribot Yolcusu (bin) 673 62,8 62.0 58,9 62,3
Toplam Yolcu (bin) 636 554 724 623 646
Kruvaziyer Seferi 616 536 574 487 451
Feribot Seferi 714 680 607 484 484
Toplam Sefer 1.330 1.216 1181 971 935
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Liman Altyapisi PORT AKDE NlZ
(ANTALYA LIMANI)

Hizmet

kalitesinde artis

Karma kullanim amacli bir tesis olan Port Akdeniz, toplam
136.000 m?'lik bir alan tizerine kuruludur. GLI, 2006 yilinda
Port Akdeniz'in %40'inI satin almis, ardindan hisse oranini
Temmuz 2010 itibariyla %100’e cikarmistir.

—
7~7

PORT AKDENIZ

— ANTALYA

Bugiin karma kullanim amach bir tesis olan Port Akdeniz, toplam
136.000 m?'lik bir alan iizerine kuruludur.

Antalya, Turkiye'nin en hizli buytiyen sehirlerinden biridir; dtinyanin
her yerinden gelen turistler burada birbirinden glizel kumsallari ve
geleneksel Turk mutfagini kesfetmektedir. Turk Riviyerasi olarak
bilinen Antalya ve cevresihem heyecan dozu yiiksek aktiviteler
hem de yaz tatiliicin ideal bir ortam sunmaktadir. 2013 yilinda
sehir 11 milyon turist tarafindan ziyaret edilmistir. Bu yogun

ilgiyi olusturan temel unsurlar arasinda efsanevi Turk hamamlari,
Akdeniz mutfagl, rengarenk diikkanlar, keyif icindeki turistlerin
doldurdugu eglenceli sokaklar ve barlar, Hellenistik, Roma, Bizans
ya da Osmanlidonemine ait yapilardan yansiyan tarihsel izler ve
Antalya festivalleri sayilabilir.

ideal bir konuma sahip karma kullanim amach bir tesis olan Port
Akdeniz, bircok alanda rekor kirmaktadir.

Port Akdeniz hem Antalya Uluslararasi Havaalani'na hem de cok
sayida turistik ve tarihsel beldeye yakindir. GLI, ticari ve yolcu
gemisi faaliyetlerindekiistikrarl bliytime egilimini koruyabilmek
icin liman kapasitesini artirmaya yonelik bliytik capli yatirmlar
yapmistir. Baslangicta ticari bir liman olarak isletilen Port Akdeniz
zaman icinde karma kullanim amacli bir tesise donismuistur ve
toplam 136.000 m?'lik bir alan Uzerine kuruludur. GLI 2006 yilinda
Port Akdeniz'in %40'ini satin almis, ardindan hisse oranini Temmuz
2010 itibaryla %100'e cikarmistir,

Limanda dokme yUk, genel yuk, konteyner ve kruvaziyer
gemilerine hizmet verebilecek 10 iskele bulunmaktadir. Tesis ayrica
250 yanasma yerive 150 yati kuru havuzlama kapasitesi olan bir
yat limanina sahiptir. Cimento, klinker, komur, altiminyum, mermer,
madencilik, kimya ve tarim sektdrlerinde faaliyette bulunan
sirketlere ticariliman olarak hizmet sunan Port Akdeniz, mevcut
kuru dokme yuk ve genel yUk ellecleme ve konteyner ellecleme
kapasitesini artirmayi amaclamaktadir. 2009'dan bu yana Port
Akdeniz'in konteyner ylk hacmi yillik bilesik %38,3 oraninda artis
gostermistir.
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2013 Port Akdeniz icin rekorlar yilrolmustur. Liman, Ocak ayinda
kargo trafigini iki katina ¢ikararak rekor kirmis; son bes yilicinde
ise kruvaziyer yolcu trafigini 10 kat artirmistir, 2013 Mayis'inda
22.000 TEU'yu asan bir kapasiteye ulasan Port Akdeniz, boylece
daha once ulastigl en yliksek aylik konteyner hacmirekorunu
kirmistir. Ayrica liman, 2013 yilinda 217.384 TEU konteyner
hacmine ulasarak tarihinde bir baska rekor daha kirmistir. 2013
yilinda Port Akdeniz'in toplam gelirleri onceki yila kiyasla %22
artarak 56,5 milyon ABD dolari diizeyine ulasmistir,

Port Akdeniz “En lyi Gelisme Gosteren Terminal Tesisi” oldu.
Dream World Cruise Destinations Magazine, 2010 yiliicin
duzenledigi anketle, kruvaziyer sektorinin 6nde gelen
yoneticilerinin yiizlerce liman ve destinasyon hakkindaki
gorUslerini 15 kategori altinda degerlendirmis ve Mart 2011'de
Port Akdeniz'i “En lyi Gelisme G&steren Terminal Tesisleri” diliine
layik gbrmistlr. Port Akdeniz bu 6dulti liman isletmeciligi ve
yonetimi alaninda kisa stirede gerceklestirdigi iyilestirmeler
sayesinde almistir.

Seatrade Insider Cruise Awards, kruvaziyer sektorlinde verilen en
prestijli 6duller arasinda yer almaktadir. Akdeniz Limani, sektorun
onde gelen uzmanlari tarafindan Turkiye'den aday gosterilen tek
limandir. Port Akdeniz, giderek artan hizmet kalitesi ve basarili
performansi sayesinde Diinya Segmentinde "Yilin Limani"
kategorisinde finalist olmustur.

217.384

Port Akdeniz 217.384
TEU konteyner hacmine
ulasmistir.
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Liman Altyapisi

Port Akdeniz (Antalya Limani)

2013 Port Akdeniz icin rekorlar yil olmustur. Liman,
Ocak ayinda kargo trafigini iki katina cikararak rekor
kirmis; son bes yilicinde ise kruvaziyer yolcu trafigini

10 kat artirmistir.

2012 yilinda GLI, Antalyal
ciftci ve ihracatcilarin
pazara erisimini artirmak
amaciyla meyve sebze
tasimacihidgricin Antalya
Limantile Rusya'yi birbirine
baglayan ilk dogrudan
deniz hattinin acilisina
onctiliik etmistir.

Port Akdeniz 2009-2013

Port Akdeniz’in kablosuz teknoloji ve taze iiriin ihracatinda dikkat
ceken basarisi

Yeni teknoloji, gemilerin yikleme-bosaltma ve konteynerlerin
tasimaislemlerinde son derece verimli bir koordinasyon
saglamaktadir. Port Akdeniz glinltk liman operasyonlarinda

yeni kablosuz erisim teknolojisini kullanmaya baslamistir. Bu

ileri teknoloji hem liman operatdrleri arasinda hem de operasyon
merkezindeki ana yaziima gercek zamanli erisim saglamakta ve
yatirnmin getirisini nemli dlclide artirmaktadir. Her turlu bilgi akisi
ve iletisim kablosuz araclarla yapildigindan gercek zamanliiletisim
onemli 6lcude kirtasiye isini de ortadan kaldirmaktadir. Tum bu
Ustunlukler sayesinde liman, musterilerine yonelik hizmet kalitesini
artirarak hedeflerine ulasma yolunda daha hizliilerlemektedir.

2012 yilinda GLI, Antalyali ciftci ve ihracatcilarin pazara erisimini
artirmak amaciyla meyve sebze tasimaciligl icin Antalya Limani

ile Rusya'yi birbirine baglayan ilk dogrudan deniz hattinin acilisina
onctiltik etmistir. Ozel olarak tasarlanan araclarda gerceklestirilen
bu hizmet, karayolu tasimaciligini bulytik dlctide azaltarak akaryakit
maliyetlerini ve emisyon dlizeyini diistirecek, bylece cevrenin
korunmasina olumlu yonde katkida bulunacaktir.

Toplam Hacimler 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Genel Yik (bin ton) 1.603 1.544 1.243 1.340 1111
Kuru Dokme Yiik (bin ton) 1237 1574 1116 1.089 617
Konteyner (bin TEU) 63 125 169 186 217
Kruvaziyer Seferi 25 61 77 60 70
Kruvaziyer Yolcusu (bin) 13 138 139 159 168
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Liman Altyapisi Bodrum YOlCU Limanl

En cok tercih
edilen liman

Toplam 22.000 m? alana sahip olan Bodrum Yolcu
Limani, rihtiminda iki biytik kruvaziyer gemisini ya
da daha kiictik dort kruvaziyer gemisini barindirma
kapasitesine sahiptir.

—~— Kruvaziyer gemileri Bodrum'a yanasirken yolculari bircok glizelligin
yani sira buttin kdrfeze hakim olan St. Peter Kalesikarsilar. Giderek
poptilerlesmesine ragmen hala yeni bir destinasyon olan Bodrum,
BODRUM cazip bir turistik beldedir. Antik diinyanin yedi harikasindan biri
CRUISE PORT olan Halikarnas Mozolesi'nin yikintilari, Turkiye kiyilarinda, limanin
tam arkasindadir. Son zamanlarda Bodrum yalnizca tarihin babasi
Heredot'un dogum yeriolarak degil, ayni zamanda Turkiye'de gece
hayatinin en dnemli merkezlerinden biri olarak tUin kazanmistir.
Cesitli uluslardan farkli dallarda sanatcilar Bodrum kalesinde,
amfitiyatroda ya da Bizans doneminden kalma antik mekanlarda
performanslar sergileyip konserler vermektedir. Bodrum Yolcu
Limani, 2008 yilinda dzellestirimesinden bu yana Bodrum
Yarimadasi civarinda ve Turkiye ile Yunanistan'in Istankdy Adasi
(Kos) arasinda kruvaziyer gemilerine, feribotlara ve mega yat
trafigine hizmet vermektedir.

Toplam 22.000 m? alan tizerinde kurulu olan Bodrum Yolcu Limani,
rihtiminda iki by Uk kruvaziyer gemisini ya da daha kiictik dort
kruvaziyer gemisini barindirma kapasitesine sahiptir. Liman
Ozellikle super ve mega yatlar icin populer bir ugrak noktasidir.
Kiiclk feribotlar icin ise iskelelere ek olarak ti¢c adet feribot indirme-
bindirme rampasiicermektedir. Terminal binasinda bir gimrikstiz
alisveris alani, banka, doviz burosu, seyahat acentesi, arac kiralama
ofisi, restoranlar ve bekleme salonu bulunmaktadir. Liman, daha
blylk gemilerin yanasmasina imkan vermek icin iskele genisletme
projesini tamamlayarak parmak iskelenin uzunlugunu 240
metreden 350 metreye cikarmistir. 2013 yilricinde liman, 29.085
yolcu taslyan 136 kruvaziyer gemisi seferi ve 88.399 yolcu tasiyan
495 feribot seferini agirlamis, toplam geliriise 2,5 milyon ABD
dolari diizeyinde gerceklesmistir.

Bodrum Yolcu Limanricinilk olarak Eyltil 2003 tarihinde
Demiryollar Limanlar ve Hava Meydanlariinsaati Genel Mudurltigi
tarafindan 13 yillik bir yap-islet-devret ihalesi dlizenlenmistir.
Nisan 2007'de GLI, Bodrum Liman isletmeleri A.S."nin %60
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hissesini devralmistir. Bodrum Yolcu Limani'nin diger hissedarlar,
%10 oranindaki paylyla Ko¢ Grubu semsiyesi altinda hizmet veren
gumrikstiz magaza isletmecisi Setur Turistik Servis A.S. ve %30
paylylaisadami Yuksel Caglar'dir.

Hem yerel turistler hem de kruvaziyer yolcularina daha iyi
hizmet verebilmek icin yatirmlarina hiz kazandiran Bodrum Yolcu
Limani, deniz otobUsleri ve mega yatlar icin demirleme hatlarinin
kurulumunu daiceren ilave yatirimlarini tamamlamistir.

Limana daha buyUk kruvaziyer gemilerinin yanasmasina

olanak verecek iki demirleme dolfeninin insasi da bu dénemde
tamamlanmistir. Bu sayede, 2008 yilinda hizmete baslamasinin
ardindan Bodrum Yolcu Limani stiper ve mega yatlar icin poptiler
bir ugrak noktasi haline gelmis; yat sahiplerine icme suyu, elektrik,
gumrikstz akaryakit ve erzak saglamaya baslamistir.

Turkiye turizm sektorunt desteklemek amaciyla Bodrum Yolcu
Limani piyasaya yenilikler sunmaya devam etmektedir. Bodrum
Yolcu Limanr'nin midkemmel performansi, Diinya Seyahat Odtilleri
2011'de Avrupa'nin Lider Kruvaziyer Destinasyonu kategorisinde
aday gosterilmesiyle bir kez daha teyit edilmistir. Bodrum Yolcu
Limani, GLI catisi altina girdiginden bu yana, uluslararasi kruvaziyer
sektdru etkinliklerine ve bulyUk turizm fuarlarina katiimistir.

%60

GLI, Bodrum Yolcu
Limani'nda %60 hisseye
sahiptir.
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Liman Altyapisi Bodrum Yolcu Limani

Bodrum Yolcu Limani, deniz otobisleri ve mega yatlar
icin demirleme hatlarinin kurulumunu daicerenilave
yatirmlarini tamamlamistir.

Bodrum Yolcu Limani, cesitli
konser ve etkinliklere ev sahipligi
yaparak hem yerli ve yabanci
turistleri kendi tesislerine cekmis
hem de giderek poplilerlesen bir
destinasyon olarak Bodrum'un
turistik tanitimina katkida
bulunmustur. Liman, Bodrum
Global Run'a sponsor olarak spor

turizmine de destek vermektedir.

Yarismacilar, 27 Nisan 2014 'te
15 km uzunlugunda bir parkurda
kosmuslardir.

Bodrum Yolcu Limam 2009-2013

Liman, cesitli konser ve etkinliklere ev sahipligi yaparak hem yerli
ve yabanci turistleri kendi tesislerine cekmis hem de giderek
poptilerlesen bir destinasyon olarak Bodrum'un turistik tanitimina
katkida bulunmustur.

Bodrum Global Run'a sponsor olan Bodrum Yolcu Limani, bu

yolla spor turizmine de destek vermektedir. Yarismacilar, 27
Nisan 2014'te 15 km uzunlugunda bir parkurda kosmuslardir.
Varis, Bodrum Yolcu Limanr'nda baslayip yine orada bitmistir. GLI,
ontimtizdeki donemde bu kosuyu her yil diizenleyerek geleneksel
hale getirmeyi ve hem Turkiye'deki hem de yurt disindaki diger
limanlarina da yayginlastirmayrhedeflemektedir.

Bodrum Global Run

Yaris, Bodrum'un merkezine yaklasik 1,5 km uzaklikta bulunan
Bodrum Yolcu Limani'nda dlizenlenmistir. 2013 yilinda 933
Kisinin kostugu yarisin tim geliri Toplum Gondillileri Vakfrna (TOG)
bagislanmistir.

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Feribot Yolcusu (bin) 4.8 67,9 731 87,7 88,4
Kruvaziyer Yolcusu (bin) 37,7 31,6 45,9 534 29,1
Toplam Yolcu (bin) 42,5 99,6 119,0 1411 117,5
Kruvaziyer Seferi 92 98 86 132 136
Feribot Seferi 26 363 641 684 495
Toplam Seferler 118 461 727 816 631
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Liman Altyapisi

Barselona Limani

Akdeniz'in en buyuk
kruvaziyer liman
operatoru

Barselona Limani, dinlenme ortaminin rahatlhg,
terminal tesislerinin donanimi ve genel olarak
ziyaretcilerine sundugu olumlu deneyimle bircok
odule layik bulunmustur.
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Barselona bugtin kdlttrel ve sportif etkinlikleri, ticari fuarlari

ve sergileriyle diinyanin en 8nemli turistik ve ekonomik
merkezlerinden biridir. Ticaret, egitim, eglence, medya, moda, bilim
ve sanat yasami Uzerindeki etkileri Barselona'yi diinyanin 6nde
gelen kiiresel sehirleri arasinda konumlandirmistir. Gecmisi iki bin
yillik bir tarihe dayanan ve glinumuztin ticari yasaminda cok 8nemli
bir yere sahip olan Barselona aynizamanda glineybati Avrupa'nin
onde gelen kdilturel, ekonomik ve finansal merkezlerinden biridir.

Global Yatirim Holding'in %100 bagli ortakligi olan GLI, 6nce
Barselona Liman isletmeleri (Barcelona Port Investments —
BPI) araciiglyla ve diinyanin 6nde gelen kruvaziyer isletmecileri
arasinda yer alan Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd. ile ortaklik icinde,
Barselona Limani'nrisleten Creuers del Port de Barcelona S.A.
(Creuers) sirketinin %2 3 hissesini satin almistir. BPI, 2013 Aralik
ayinda Creuers del Port de Barcelona sirketinde ek ylzde 20
hisseyi devralarak payini ytizde 43'e yikseltmistir. Avrupa'nin en
onemlikruvaziyer isletmecileri arasinda yer alan Creuers, glclti
uluslararasi deneyime ve baslica kruvaziyer hattiisletmecileriyle
baglanti agina sahiptir.

Creuers del Port de Barcelona S.A.,, 1999 yilinda Barselona
Limani'ndaki kamuya ait bes yolcu gemisi terminaliniisletmek
tzere kurulmustur. O glinden bu yana edindigi sektorel bilgi birikimi,
isinin uzmani sirketleri ve cok iyi egitiimis personeli sayesinde
2000 yilinda 562.397 yolcudan olusan kruvaziyer trafigini 2013
yilinda 2.408.000'e cikarmis; boylece Avrupa'nin en by Utk liman
operatoru olmayibasarmistir. Creuers del Port de Barcelona

ayni zamanda Malaga Yolcu Limani'nin cogunluk, Singapur Yolcu
Limani'ninise azinlik hissedari konumundadir.
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2008 yilinda, Creuers del Port de Barcelona, Malaga Limanr'nda iki
mega yolcu gemisi terminaliniisletmek Uzere Cruceros Malaga S.A.
sirketini olusturmustur. Burada yolcu trafigi 2013'te 651.000'e
ulasmistir. 2011 yilinda, Singapur Turizm Kurulu, Sats ve Creuers
Cruise Services sirketlerinin kurdugu ortakliga Marina Bay
Kruvaziyer Terminali'ninisletmesini vermistir. 2012 Mayis'inda
acilan terminal, mimari bir ikon olarak tasarlanmistir. Toplamda 350
milyon avro tutarinda bir yatirimla bu terminale simdi ayni anda iki
mega gemi baglanabilmektedir.

Barselona’nin sektore drnek olusturan ddiillii basarilan
Barselona, dinlenme ortaminin rahathigl, terminal tesislerinin
donanimi ve genel olarak ziyaretcilerine sundugu olumlu deneyimle
bircok odUle layik bulunmustur. Barselona'nin yonetimi ve
isletmesi, kruvaziyer sektoriinde benchmark olarak kabul edilen
orneklerle bilinmektedir. Sektortn prestijli dergisi Dream World
Cruise Destinations, Miami'deki yillik fuarda, kokIl deneyimi ve
basarilarinedeniyle Creuers'i bircok odtille onurlandirmistir.

Barselona, giivenlik, tesisler ve cevreye yonelik ilgili
uygulamalanyla sektordeki citay yiikseltmektedir.

Musterilerin operasyonelihtiyaclari, liman yonetiminin calismalarini
Bnemli dlctide yonlendirmektedir. isinin ehli personel ekibi,
operasyonel stireclerde en ylksek glivenlik kriterleriyle calisma
yaklasimi ve yetkililerle glivenlik glicleri arasindakiisbirligi, bir limani
guvenli ve glivenilir kilan baslica unsurlardir. Creuers, glivenlik ve
kruvaziyer trafiginin gerektirdigi spesifik lojistik alanlarinda oncti
bir sirkettir. Liman, glivenlik ve emniyet acisindan gemilerin ttim
ihtiyaclarini karsilayabilmek icin kati kurallar uygulamaktadir. ISPS
kodunun SOLAS Konvansiyonu'na uyarlanmasi, limanin guclt
yanlarindan birini olusturmaktadir. Liman, Avrupa Birligi'nin CE
125/2004 duzenlemesine iliskin denetimden basariyla gecmistir.
Bu duzenleme, Avrupa limanlarina gerekli glivenlik dtizeyini
artirmalarini, dolayisiyla ISPS kodunun mutlak tavsiye olarak

Creuers del Port de Barcelona-Yolcu Sayilan

2010 2011 2012 2013
Gelen/Giden yolcu 1.020.552 1.135.768 1.113.835 1153557
Transit yolcu 758.972 802.341 689.508 735346
Toplam yolcu 1.779.524 1.93.109 1.803.343 1.888.903
Creuers del Port de Barcelona-Finansal Sonuclar
(000 AVRO) 2010 2011 2012 2013
Gelir 17.995 20.642 19.600 20.998
FAVOK 11632 12123 11.593 13922
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Liman Altyapisi

Bar Limani

Ticaribaglari
yeniden Kurmak

GLI, Bar Limanr'ni satin alarak yurt disindakiilk
yatirimini gerceklestirmistir. Bu operasyonla ayni
zamanda, ilk kez bir Turk sirketi yurt disindaki bir
liman isletmesinin cogunluk hissesini satin almistir.

%62

GLIBar Limani'nin %62
oranindaki hissesini satin
almistir.

Bar, Karadag'in baslica limani olmasinin yani sira cevre bolgeyle
birlikte en Gnemli turist destinasyonlarindan biridir. Sehrin
neredeyse tlim Ikinci Dlinya Savasi'ndan sonra kurulmustur.,
Bugtinse Bar, yeni binalari ve genis bulvarlariyla son derece cagdas
g0runUmid bir sehirdir.

Aralik 2013'te GLI, Bar Limani'nin %62 oranindaki hissesini 8
milyon avro bedel karsiliginda ve aktif alimi ve verimlilik artisina
yonelik 21 milyon avro tutarinda sermaye harcamasi taahhtduyle
portfdytine katmistir. GLI, Bar Limani'ni satin alarak yurt disindaki
ilk yatinmini gerceklestirmistir. Bu operasyonla aynizamanda ilk
kez bir Tiirk sirketi yurt disindaki bir liman isletmesinin cogunluk
hissesini satin almistir. GLI, 6zellestirme yoluyla Bar Limanr'nin
borsadaislem gérmeyen %62 hissesini satin almistir.

Karadag Ulasim ve Denizcilik Bakanligl ve Karadag Liman
Otoritesi'nin birlikte actigi ihaleyi kazanan GLI, bu sayede 30 yillik
bir sozlesme cercevesinde Bar ilinde bulunan genel yik ve kargo
terminalinin onarim, finansman, isletme ve bakim hakkini elinde
bulundurmaktadir.

Bar Limani, halen 1 milyon konteyner ve 6 milyon ton genel kargo
kapasitesine sahiptir. Ancak, dlizgtin karayolunun olmamasi,
demiryolu aginin verimsiz kullanimi ve altyapi eksikligi nedeniyle
liman halen tam kapasite ile hizmet verememektedir. Liman, onceki
donemde Yugoslavya Federal Cumhuriyeti'nin ana limani olarak
kullanimistir. Bunu dikkate alan GLI'nin 6ncelikli plani, Sirbistan,
Kosova, Arnavutluk, Makedonya ve Bulgaristan arasindaki ticari
baglari yeniden kurmaktir. GLI, bolgesel gelisimi destekleyerek
gecmisin basarisini yeniden tesis etmek icin caba harcamaktadir.

44 GLOBAL YATIRIM HOLDING 2013 FAALIYET RAPORU



2013 Toplam Kargo Cirosu Konteyner Hatti Dagilimi
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Tasa sekil verebilmek icin enerji gerekir.
Sanatinizi yaratmak icin gece

glinduz calisirsiniz. Tasi dilediginizce
bicimlendirmek icinse yaratici glictintizli
ozglir birakirsiniz.
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Enerji Global Ener;ji

Orta ve buyuk
olcekli enerji uretim
tesislerine yatirim
yapmak

Bir yandan dogal gaz ve enerji iretim yatirmlarini
strduren Global Eneriji, ayni zamanda madencilik,
eneriji verimliligi ve yenilenebilir enerji alanlarinda da
yatirm yapmaktadir.

(\ GLOBAL GYH'in enerji sektortindekiana istiraki olan Global Enerji, Grubun enerji
‘ o s BSIAEs sektorine yonelik yatinmlarinda glivenilir bir platform olusturmak icin
kurulmustur.

Global Enerji'nin enerji sektorine yonelik Uc ana stratejisi vardir:

- Orta ve buyuk odlcekli enerji Uretim tesislerine yatirim yapmak

- Kucuk ve orta olcekli kuruluslara enerji coztimleri sunmak

- Madencilik alanindaki yatirimlari, endustriyel mineral ve metalleri de
kapsayarak genisletmek

Global Enerji, sikistirimis dogal gaz (CNG) satisi ve dagitimi alaninda
faaliyet gdsteren Naturelgaz'in %80'ine sahiptir. Enerji operasyonlarinin
kapsamini genisleterek kombine Isi ve elektrik (kojenerasyon) tesisleri
ile glines enerjisi ve diger yenilenebilir enerji projelerini de dahil eden
Global Enerji, aynizamanda dogal kaynaklar sektorline girerek feldspat
madenciligine de yatirnm yapmaktadir. Ote yandan, Global Enerji

o Turkiye'nin guneydogusunda termik santralinsa etme calismalarina da
o devam etmektedir.

Global Enerji Naturelgaz'in baslica mtisteri kitlesini, Turkiye'deki endtistriyel ve ticari

Naturelgaz'in %80'ine kuruluslar olusturmaktadir. Sirket, hizla biiytiyen isgiictine, misteri

saniptir tabanina ve satis hacimlerine odaklanarak, yeni giren katilimcilarla
birlikte artan rekabete ragmen CNG pazarindakilider ve hakim
konumunu korumaya kararlidir.
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Naturelgaz, sikistirimis dogal gaz (CNG) satis ve dagitiminin yani sira
musteri tesislerinin ihtiyaclarina 6zel olarak tasarlanan ekipman ve
montaj hizmetleri de sunmaktadir. Toptan CNG pazarinda bliylimeye
odaklanan Sirket'in bir diger hedefi de CNG faaliyetlerini ulasim
sektorunde de yayginlastirmaktir. Bu dogrultuda Naturelgaz, kamyonlar
ve otobUslerin dogal gaz donustim merkezlerinin yani sira var olan
istasyon aginida hizla yayginlastirmayi planlamaktadir. Sirket, halen
yurt capinda istasyon agi olusturmakta ve standart motorlarin dogal
gazla calisan araclara donusumund gerceklestirmektedir.

Naturelgaz'in bu alandaki stratejisi soyledir:

Yurt icinde dogal gaz hattina erisimi olmayan endUstriyel ve ticari
kuruluslara sikistirimis dogal gaz temin etmek

Turkiye'deki dizel motor ile calisan yaklasik 1 milyon agir ve orta
Olcekliticari arac ile otobus filosunu CNG'ye donusturerek %35
oraninda tasarruf saglamak

Teniyor

Naturelgaz'in stratejisi,
Turkiye'deki dizel
motor ile calisan
yaklasik Tmilyon agir
ve orta Olcekli ticari
arac ve otobus filosunu
CNG'ye donUsturerek
%35 oraninda tasarruf
saglamaktir.
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Enerji Global Enerji

Global Enerji, endUstriyel ve ticari sektorlerin
yararlanacagi santral ve enerji verimliligi projelerine
oncelik vermeye baslamistir.

o KOBI'ler Turkiye'nin ekonomik gelisiminde 6nemli bir yer
/ 75 olusturmaktadir. Ulkenin en hizl blytiyen ve en dinamik grubunu
o olusturmasina ragmen, cesitlinedenlerle, KOBI'lerin uygun
fiyatlarla, glivenilir enerji coztimlerine erisimi saglanamamistir.

Global Enerji, Straton
Maden'in %75 oranindaki

hissesini satin alarak Global Enerji, yatinm stratejisi dogrultusunda, kiictik dlcekli,
madencilik sektortine de yenilenebilir enerji projeleri tiretmenin yani sira endustriyel
adim atmistir. ve ticari sektdrlerin yararlanacagl santral ve enerji verimlilig;

projelerine dncelik vermeye baslamistir. Global Enerji'nin istiraki
Tres Enerji musteriihtiyaclarina gore tasarlanmis kombine isi

ve elektrik (kojenerasyon) tesisleriinsa edip isletmektedir. Tres
Enerji, yalnizcaisletmelerin sermaye harcamalarini Ustlenip
finanse etmekle kalmayip ayni zamanda uzun vadede enerji
maliyetlerinin onemli boyutlarda dustrtlmesini de saglamaktadir.
Global Enerji, 8numUizdeki ddnemde enerji tretimi ve hizmet
cozUmli faaliyetlerini yayginlastirmak amaciyla KOBI'lere daha cok
yogunlasmayi planlamaktadir.
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Global Eneriji, Straton Maden'in %75 oranindaki hissesini satin
alarak madencilik sektorine de adim atmistir. Bati Ege Bolgesi'nde
bulunan Straton Maden, 6nemli feldspat rezervlerine, lojistik
madencdilik faaliyetlerine ve satis ekiplerine sahip bir sirkettir.
Turkiye'nin en bliyuk feldspat ihracatcilarindan biri olan Straton
Maden, 2013 yiliicinde yeni tesisler kurarak uretim kalitesini ve is
hacmini daha da artirmak amaciyla bir yatirim hamlesi baslatmistir.
2014 yilinda bu slirecin tamamlanmasiyla Straton Maden yalnizca
urtn cesitliligini artirmakla kalmayacak, tlm diinyada Urunlerini cok
daha genis bir yelpazede yer alan, farkli sektorlere satma olanagina
kavusacak; boylece, Turkiye madencilik sektoru icindeki konumunu
glclendirecektir.

Ulusal elektrik Uretimini artirmak tzere yerel kaynaklara dayall
santraller insa etmek, Global Enerji'nin yatirim stratejisinin temelini
olusturmaktadir. Bu yaklasimla Sirket, 2014 yilinda Sirnak Termik
Santrali'nin insasina baslamayi planlamaktadir. Otuz ay icinde
tamamlanmasi planlanan insa stresinin ardindan Sirnak Termik
Santrali, 2 x 135 MW kurulu kapasiteye sahip olacak ve yilda
ortalama 2,0 milyar kWs elektrik Uretecektir.

Sirnak Termik Santrali, bolgenin zengin asfaltit rezervlerini
kullanarak enerji yogun sektorlere elektrik saglayacaktir. Bu
nedenle, Sirnak Termik Santrali yurtici yakit kaynaklarindan
enerji Ureten bir proje olarak onemli bir 6rnek olusturmaktadir.
Sirket'in sahip oldugu asfaltit rezervleri, 2 x 135 MW kapasiteli bir
santralinihtiyacinin cok Uzerindedir. Turkiye'nin glineydogusunda
onemli bir elektrik Uretim tesisi olarak one cikan bu proje, ayni
zamanda bolgenin en by Uk 6zel sektor yatirimlarindan birini
olusturmaktadir. Uretime gectiginde santralin Irak ve Suriye'ye
yonelik elektrik ihracatina da hiz kazandirmasi beklenmektedir.

2013 yilinda Global Enerji,
Straton Maden'in %75
oranindaki hissesini satin
alarak Tiirkiye madencilik
sektdriine girmistir.
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Fnerl Naturelgaz

Yurt capinda yaygin
bir ag kurmak

2013 yilinda 37,7 milyon m?® satis hacmine ulasan
Naturelgaz'in 2005 yilindan bu yana kaydettigi yillik bilesik
ortalama bliyime orani %63,1dir.

(F}ATH'HELEAZ

2004 yilinda kurulan Naturelgaz, Turkiye sikistiriimis dogal gaz
("CNG") satis ve dagitim pazarindalider konumdadir.

2011 yiinda Naturelgaz'da %25 oraninda hisse sahibi olan Global
Enerji, 201 3'te hisse oranini %80'e cikarmistir. Gerikalan %20
oranindaki hisseler Naturelgaz'in Baskan Yardimcisi ve CEQO'su olan
Aksel Goldenberg'e aittir.

Naturelgaz faaliyetlerini EPDK (Enerji Piyasasi Denetleme Kurumu)
ve Sanayi Bakanligi'ndan aldigi tc farklilisans cercevesinde
yurttmektedir:

- Sirket'in perakende satis birimlerinin her biriicin CNG satis lisansi

- CNG'yi Turkiye capinda herhangi bir bolgesel sinirlamaya tabi
olmaksizin tasima hakki veren CNG iletim ve dagitim lisansi

- Motorlu araclarin CNG dontsumdicin lisans

Naturelgaz, dizel ve benzin kullanan araclarin donusumtine
odaklanmis bir Ar-Ge departmanina sahip olan ve arac ruhsatlarina
CNG kaydi diisme yetkisi bulunanilk ve tek CNG dagitim sirketidir.

Naturelgaz, CNG dagitim pazarindaki liderliginin yani sira yurt
capinda kurdugu dagitim aglyla da sektdre onctilik etmistir. Sirket,
CNG dagitimini dogal gaz boru hattiyla baglantricinde olan "ana
istasyonlar' ve boru hattrile dogal gaz ulastirlamayan bolgelere
karayoluyla ulasim saglayan "ikincil istasyonlar” tzerinden
gerceklestirmektedir.
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Oto CNG

Manisa ve Duzce'de lojistik hizmet saglayan ve belediye otobuslerine
hizmet veren oto CNG istasyonlari aciimistir. Ulkenin en bily Uk lojistik
sirketi Reysas ve en buytk ¢op toplama sirketi Albayrak icin 0zel oto
gazistasyonlari (ikincilistasyonlar) kurulmustur. istanbul Belediyesi,
istanbul Enerji sirketi ve Gaziantep Belediyesine oto gaz istasyonlari
kiralanmistir. Naturelgaz, oto CNG faaliyetlerini hizlandirmak amaciyla
Landirenzo'nun cift yakit dontistm kiti distribUtorltigtnd almistir.
2013 yilinda, oto gaz satislari onceki yila kiyasla %200'ln tizerinde
artis gostermis ve bu artis, CNG ile LPG- benzinli her iki aractan birinde
kullaniimaktadir ve Tirkiye'de 11 milyar TL/yil dlizeyinde bir pazara
sahiptir- arasindaki fiyat farki nedeniyle %40't askin bir tasarruf
saglamistir,

Dokme CNG

Dokme CNG satislari 8nceki yilla kiyaslandiginda %100'U askin bir
artis gostermistir. Ozellikle otomatik fiyatlama mekanizmasi ve son
zamanlarda LNG (Likit Dogal Gaz) fiyatlarindaki artis nedeniyle LNG ve
CNG arasindaki fiyat farki, CNG lehine %25' asmistir. Dogal gazin boru
hatlariyla ulasamadig yerlerde kullanilan LNG, mevcut CNG piyasasina

Naturelgaz,

dizel ve benzin
kullanan araclarin
déniisiimiine
odaklanmis bir
Ar-Ge
departmanina
sahip olan ve
arac ruhsatlarina
CNG kaydi diisme
yetkisi bulunan
ilk ve tek CNG
dagitim sirketidir.
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Enerji

Naturelgaz

Naturelgaz'in mevcut musteri portfoyunt imalat sektort ve
ticari kesimden dokme gaz kullanan 0zel sektor kuruluslari
ile belediyelere ve ozel sektore ait, oto-CNG kullanan ulasim
araclari olusturmaktadir.

Naturelgaz'in giderek
genisleyen dagitim

agini kendi perakende
istasyonlarinin yani sira
bayilere ait istasyonlar
olusturmaktadir. Sirket
dogal gaz dagitimini
dogrudan kendisine ait
ana istasyonlar lizerinden
ve kendi bayilerine ya

da baska sirketlere ait
bayilere ait yan istasyonlar
(ikincil istasyonlar)
yoluyla yapmaktadir.
Ana istasyonlardan ikincil
istasyonlara, bayilere

ya da dogrudan nihai
tiiketiciye dogal gaz
nakli, 6zel donanimii

CNG kamyonlariyla
yapiimaktadir.

sahiptir. 2014'Un basindan bu yana, LNG kullanan 24 yeni sirketle
CNG tedarik sozlesmeleriimzalanmistir. Bu sdzlesmeler, 2014'te
toplam satis hacmine 37 milyon m?ilave satis olarak yansiyacaktir.
istanbul Asya Sekerpinar istasyonunun insasini bitirmek tizere olan
Naturelgaz, dtinyanin en buyuk kapasiteli CNG dolum istasyonu
olan Karadeniz Rize Dolum Tesisi'niisletmeye baslamistir.

Dogal Gaz Arzi

Naturelgaz, dogal gazi bliyuk dlclide kamu kurulusu BOTAS'tan
tedarik etmektedir. Ayrica, Turkiye'de dogal gaz toptan satis
piyasasinin liberallesmesine paralel olarak sayilari giderek artan ve
blylyen 6zel dogal gaz ithalatcilar ve dagitim sirketlerinden de
alim yapmaktadir.

Naturelgaz 2013 yilinda, Trakya bolgesindeki kullaniimayan dogal
gazi kullanarak bir ilki gerceklestirmistir. Bu proje sayesinde
kullaniimayan dogal gaz en yakin bolgede CNG'ye donusturtimekte
ve bdylece toplam 100 milyon m? dogal gaz, Turkiye ekonomisinin
kullanimina sunulmaktadir.

Tiirkiye CNG Pazan

Gunumtizde, Turkiye dogal gaz pazarineredeyse tuimuyle, boru
hattina erisimi olmayan sanayi kuruluslari ve oteller, AVM'ler gibi
ticarimusterilere saglanan dokme dogal gazdan olusmaktadir.
2013 yilinda 37,7 milyon m? satis hacmine ulasan Naturelgaz'in
2005 yilindan bu yana kaydettigi yillik bilesik ortalama bliyume
oranl %63,08'dir. 2013 yil satislarinin %90" dokme CNG'dir; bu
tutarin 3.712.549 m?'Unu de oto-CNG satislari olusturmaktadir.
Naturelgaz'in musteri portfdytini imalat sektoru ve ticari kesimden
dokme gaz kullanan 6zel sektor kuruluslariile belediyelere

ve 0zel sektore ait olan ve oto-CNG kullanan ulasim araclari
olusturmaktadir.

Dagitim Agi

Naturelgaz'in giderek genisleyen dagitim agini kendi perakende
istasyonlarinin yani sira bayilere ait istasyonlar olusturmaktadir.
Sirket dogal gaz dagitimini dogrudan kendisine ait ana istasyonlar
Uzerinden ve kendi bayilerine ya da baska sirketlere ait bayilere
ait yanistasyonlar (ikincil istasyonlar) yoluyla yapmaktadir. Ana
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istasyonlardan ikincilistasyonlara, bayilere ya da dogrudan nihai
tUketiciye dogal gaz nakli, 6zel donanimli CNG kamyonlariyla
yapiimaktadir.

Kayseriistasyonunun acilisiyla Naturelgaz'in toplam CNG
istasyonlarinin sayisi 11'e ulasmistir. Bu sayede Naturelgaz,
Kayseri'de verimli ve ekonomik bir enerji kaynagi olarak CNG'yi
konutlarin ve ticari kurumlarin kullanimina sunmustur.

istikrarli bir bicimde biytiyen sanayisi ve ekonomisiyle Kayseri
onemli bir pazar olarak degerlendiriimektedir. Ayni sekilde son
yillarda blyuk capl yatinmlar yapan Naturelgaz, Kayseri'de hafif
ticariarac filosunun ve belediye otobuslerinin tum yakit ihtiyaclarini
karsilayacaktir. Ayrica, bolgede faaliyet g8steren lojistik sirketlere
de yakit saglayacaktir. Buglin Naturelgaz, Kayseri'de CNGile
calisan 190 belediye otobustne hizmet vermeyi hedeflemektedir.
Naturelgaz 180 kamu aracini daha cift yakit kiti (CNG, dizel)

ile dontisttrmeyihedeflemektedir. Sirket, Saray Grubu'nun
araclarini ve traktorlerini de donustiurmektedir. Naturelgaz boylece
Kayseri'de kamu ve 0zel sektorin tum yakit ihtiyacinrkarsilamayi
amaclamaktadir.

Halen Uc yeniistasyonun insasini yapan Sirket, 2014 sonunda
toplamistasyon sayisini 15'e clkarmayi hedeflemektedir.

2014 yilininilk ceyreginde imzalanan yeni sozlesmelerin sayisi
24'tUr. 23 milyon m? tutarindaki Caykur ihalesi de dahil olmak
tizere bu sozlesmeler toplamda 37 milyon m?ilave is hacmi
yaratmistir.

Naturelgaz'in tesisleri AB standartlariyla uyumiu sistem ve
donanimlara sahiptir.

Ulasim Sektoriinde Yeni Vizyon
Karayolu ulasim sektoru, dokme CNG satislarinin yani sira
Naturelgaz'in hedef pazarlarindan birini olusturmaktadir.

Karayolu ulasiminda CNG kullanimi, diger enerji kaynaklarina kiyasla

iki Gnemli UstUnlik saglamaktadir:

- Maliyet verimliligi: CNG yakit maliyetini %35 oraninda
azaltmaktadir.
Cevresel surdurulebilirlik: Benzin, dizel, petrol ve LPG gibi fosil
yakitlar CNG'ye kiyasla cevreye cok daha fazla zarar vermektedir.
CNG'nin emisyon degerleri de yaygin olarak kullanilan tlim diger
yakitlara gore oldukca dusuktir. Dogal gaz, atik olusturmayan,
dumansiz bir yakittir; karbon monoksit icermedigi icin zehirsizdir.
Petrol tlrevleri ve dizele kiyasla dogal gaz, emisyon degerlerini
karbondioksitte %25, amonyum oksitte %60, hidrokarbonda
%75 ve asit ve ozon formasyonunda %50-80 oraninda
dustirmektedir.

15

2014 sonunda ulasilimasi
hedeflenen istasyon sayisi

37,7 riyone

Naturelgaz'in 2013
yilrsatis hacmi
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Enerji Naturelgaz

Naturelgaz bir italyan teknoloji sirketiyle kamyon
motorlarinin dizel-CNG dontstmdiicin ozel anlasma
yapmistir.

6 3 7 Oto-CNG hedef musterikesimi asagidaki gruplardan olusmaktadir:
’ - Belediyeler tarafindanisletilen ya da 6zel sektore ihale edilmis

milyon m3 sehirlerarasi ulasim aglari

- BlyUk capliagir ve orta bliyukltkte ticari arac filolarina sahip
musteriler (lojistik, cimento)

- Bireysel ya da ortakli calisan, agir ve orta buyuklukte, zel ticari
araclar

2013 yill CNG satis hacmi

Bircok agir ve orta buyuklukte ticari arac Ureticisi CNG OEM
modelini piyasaya sirmesine ragmen var olan dizel motorlarin
CNG'ye donustimti hala karayolu ulasiminda dogal gazin
yayginlasmasl acisindan biytk onem tasimaktadir. Bu nedenle,
Naturelgaz 2013 Ocak ayinda Istanbul Kurtkdy'de, yilda 3.200 arac
donustlrme kapasitesine sahip bir donusum merkezi kurmustur.
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Naturelgaz bir italyan teknoloji sirketiyle kamyon motorlarinin Reysas'in cevre dostu
dizel-CNG donisiimiiicin 6zel anlasma yapmistir. Bu teknolojide politikalart dogrultusunda,
kullanilan ttim ekipman Italya'da ECERIIO standartlariyla tam Naturelgaz da cevre dostu
uyumludur ve sistem Mercedes, BMC, Ford ve Iveco gibi bircok uygulamalarini daha da
markanin motorunda cok iyi sonuc vermektedir. Naturelgaz 2012 gliclendirmekted.
yilinda ayricalSO 9001, 1SO 14001, OHSAS 18001 belgeleri

almistir,

Faaliyetlerini yerel ve uluslararasi capta stirdtiren ve 1.500'den
fazla arac sahibi olan Reysas Lojistik, uluslararasi bir lojistik proje
yarismasinda "Yesil Lojistik Oduilti- Green Logistics Award' ile
onurlandiriimistir. Reysas'in Naturelgaz ile isbirligiicinde CNG
dontstimini tamamlamis olmasi, bu prestijli 6dulin ardinda yatan
en onemlinedenlerden biridir.

Reysas'in cevre dostu politikalari dogrultusunda, Naturelgaz da
cevre dostu uygulamalarini daha da gliclendirmektedir. Naturelgaz
ve Reysas Lojistik arasindaki CNG donistim ve gaz tedarik
sozlesmesi cercevesinde Proje Donustim Hedefi 200 arac olarak
belirlenmistir.

Donustim gerceklestirilen ilk 30 kamyondan elde edilen
operasyonel veriye gore, Reysas yakit harcamalarinda dizele
kiyasla onemli dlctide tasarruf saglamistir. Dahasi, 200 kamyonun
CNG donustim, seragazi emisyonlarinda yillik 33.725 ton azalma
saglamistir. Kamyon dontsimu, CNG yakit ikmal istasyonlarindaki
altyapiiyilestirme calismalarina paralel olarak daha da artacaktir.
Naturelgaz, ontimiizdeki donemde Reysas'a ait 80 kamyonun daha
dontstimini gerceklestirmeyi planlamaktadir.

EPDK*’ya gore Tiirkiye CNG Satislan

Yil 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

2013

Satis/m? 291 36,5 339 46,2 555 54,9

63,7

Naturelgaz Satis Hacmi 2007-2013 (milyon m3)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

2013

Satis/m? 9,2 142 125 129 15,8 27,8

37,7
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Enerji Naturelgaz

Kayseriistasyonunun aclilisiyla Naturelgaz'in toplam CNG
istasyonlarinin sayisi 1T'e ulasmistir. Bu sayede Naturelgaz,
Kayseri'de verimli ve ekonomik bir enerji kaynagi olarak CNG'yi
konutlarin ve ticari kurumlarin kullanimina sunmustur.

y ’

%‘*z‘

2013 Aralik istasyonlar: 2014 Planlanan Projeler:
B Ana: Adapazary, izmir, [ Ana:Bursalll, Adana,
Bursa, Bolu, Aydin, Antalya, [stanbul Avrupa, |stanbul
Afyon, Konya, Kayseri, Anadolu, Iskenderun,
Osmaniye Erzincan, Gaziantep, Rize
Manisa Corum, Dlizce
Tekirdag
Sirket Altyapisi
CNG CNG Toplam
Ana ikincil Kaynak Mobil Dagitim Tanklari  Kapasite
istasyonlar Istasyonlar istasyonlar istasyonlar Araclari (siseler) (It)
| I | [ 1 5 38 44,600 5.472.000
11 1 1 2
Toplam 12 3
|: Faaliyette,

Il Yapim Asamasinda
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ENERJi URETIMi

Son 10 yilda OECD tlkeleri arasinda eneriji talebi en hizli artan Ulke
Tuirkiye'dir.

Son ylllarda kiiresel capta yasanan durgunluga karsin, stirdtirtilebilir
dtizeyde, istikrarli bir bicimde bliytyen Turkiye'nin elektrik piyasasi
da dikkat cekici bir bliytime performansi sergilemektedir. Ytiksek
ekonomik bilylime ve artanrefah, elektrik talebinde hizli bir artisa
neden olmustur.

2013 yilinda Turkiye elektrik tuketimi 245 milyar kWs olmustur.
2002'den bu yana elektrik tiiketimindeki yillik bilesik ortalama
buiytime (CAGR) %6,2, ayni dsnemde GSYiH'daki CAGR ise
%4,9'dur.

Enerji ve Tabii Kaynaklar Bakanligi tahminlerine gore, Ttirkiye enerji
talebinin orta vadede yilda ortalama %6,5-%7,5 artmaya devam
etmesi beklenmektedir.

Tuirkiye enerji sektori yakin gelecekte 6zel sektor katiimcilarinin
hakim oldugu, verimli bir piyasaya doniismus olacaktir.

Turkiye'nin kurulu elektrik tiretim kapasitesi 2013 yilsonunda
57.071 MW dlizeyine ulasmistir. Ancak, 6nggdrilen talep

dtizeyini karsilayabilmek icin Ulkenin mevcut elektrik arzini
ontimtizdeki 10 yilicinde ikiye katlamasi gerekmektedir. Halen,
Tuirkiye'deki toplam tretimin %40'l kamuya ait santraller tarafindan
gerceklestirimektedir. Ozel sekttr yatinmlarindaki artis ve kamuya
ait santrallerin 8zellestiriime surecinin sonuna gelindigi dikkate
alindiginda, 2015 yilinda toplam Turkiye tretiminde 6zel sektor
payinin %80'e ckmasi beklenmektedir. Dolayisiyla, dagitim aginin
ozellestiriimesi konusunda blytik bir ilerleme kaydedilmistir.

245

milyar Kwh

Turkiye elektrik
tUketimi

TURKIYE
Elektrik Tiiketimi

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
milyar kWs 126 132 141 150 160 174 190 198 194 210 229 241 245.
Biiyiime %-11 %45 %65 %63 %72 %86 %88 %43 %-20 %84 %90 %55 %1,7.
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Enerji Naturelgaz

Global Eneriji, 2012 yilinda, sinai ve ticari musterilere enerji
arzi ve enerji verimliligi coztimleri sunmak ve musteriye
ozel Uretim tesisleriinsa edip isletmek amaciyla Tres
Eneriji'yi kurmustur.

—
._1:--
\ .
y -'_1 .
Tres Enerji
7 o Turkiye'de enerji,imalat sanayinin en pahali girdilerinden biridir.
Ayrica, alim glicl acisindan bakildiginda, gelismis Ulkelere kiyasla
MW kapasite enerji oldukca yliksek oranda vergilendiriimektedir. Dolayisiyla, ister
buytk ister kiicuk bir sirket olsun, Turkiye'de kurumlarin enerjiyle
Tres Enerji'nin 2015 sonu ilgili bir stratejisi olmasi gerekir. Temin ve enerji verimliligi madalyonun
hedefi

iki ytzudur. Tres Enerji, konunun her iki yanini da dikkate alarak ttim

is kollarinin bu en buylik maliyet kalemini optimize edecek essiz
cozumler sunmaktadir. Enerji sektortintin bastan asagi bir dontistim
stirecinde oldugu bu donemde, enerji verimliligi ve karbon emisyon
politikalari gibi gbrece yenikavramlar glindemin merkezinde yer
almaya devam edecektir. Enerji verimliligi, tum ticari tliketicileri,
ozellikle yliksek oranda enerji maliyetlerine maruz kalanlari altyapiya
yonelik yeni yatinmlar yapmaya zorlamaktadir. Sirketlerin genel olarak
rekabet UstUnltiklerini korumalaribu stirecin ne kadar iyi yonetildigine
bagliolacaktir,

2012 yilinda kurulan Tres Enerji, sinai ve ticari musterilere enerjiarzi ve
enerji verimliligi cozUmleri sunmakta ve musteriye 6zel Uretim tesisleri
insa edip isletmektedir. Tres Enerji, somut rakamlar ve kiyaslanabilir
sonuclarla musterilerine 6nemli boyutlarda katma deger yaratacak bir
Sirkettir,
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Sirket'in amaci, dinya capinda denenmis performans artirici bir is

modelini Turkiye'nin ticari ve yasal cercevesine uyarlamaktir. Bumodel,

girdi maliyetleri acisindan Turkiye'deki kurumsal enerji tiiketicilerinin
uluslararasi rakiplerikarsisinda rekabet gliclinu artiracak ve uygun
fiyatlarda Ustun kaliteli enerji kaynaklarina kesintisiz erisimini
saglayacaktir. Dolayisiyla, Tres Enerji, sadece kWs ile ilgilenmek yerine
kWs'in nasll Uretildigi ve ne kadar verimli kullanildigryla ilgilenmektedir.
Bu enerijinin temini ve tuketiminde kullanilacak is modeli de konunun
can alicr noktalarindan birini olusturmaktadir.

Tres, sinai ve ticari musterileriicin anahtar teslimikucuk ve orta olcekli
enerji santralleri tasarlamakta, insa edip isletmektedir. Elektrigin yan
siraisinma ve sogutma amaciyla ayrica enerji kullanan miisterilerine
kombine enerji santralleri ve termik santraller yoluyla enerji tiretim
cozimleri (kojenerasyon / trijenerasyon) sunmaktadir,

Tres Enerji, musteriye 0zel optimal enerji Uretim sistemini ve
kapasitesini tanimlamakta, yap-islet modellerini de iceren alternatif

is yapilarina dayali coztimler Uretmektedir. Bu sayede Tres Enerji,
musterilerinin kaynaklarinikullanmadan, dolayisiyla onlari herhangi bir
finansal yuk altina sokmaksizin enerji Uretim tesisini tamamlamakta
ve profesyonel enerji yonetimi hizmeti sunmaktadir.

Sirket, musterilerinin tUm enerjiihtiyaclariicin bir tur “tek durak
noktas!" yaratmistir. Tres Eneriji gliclti finansal yapisi ve deneyimli
isglicliyle hichir bedel almaksizin miisterilerinin enerji analizini
yapmakta, musterilerine kaliteli, glivenilir ve ucuz enerji saglayacak
kojenerasyon/trijenerasyon tesisleri kurmakta, eger halihazirda varsa
bu tesisleriisletmekte ve tim enerji altyapisini yonetmektedir. Tres
Enerji, bir kagit Urinlerisirketiyle 3,3 MW kapasiteliilk sozlesmesini
imzalamis, tesisininsasina baslamistir. 2014 yilinin ikinci ceyreginde
tesisin tretime gecmesi hedeflenmektedir. Ayrica, biri seramik karo
fabrikasl, digeri orman Urtnleri sirketi olmak Uzere iki ayrikurumla, her
biri 6,6 MW'lik iki s6zlesme daha imzalamistir; boylece, toplam uretim
kapasitesi 16,6 MW'a ulasmistir. Tres Eneriji, kisa sure icinde bircok
sinai ve ticarisirketle yeni sozlesmeler imzalamayi ve kojenerasyon
kapasitesini Ulke capinda yayginlastirmayi planlamaktadir. Bu
projeksiyonlar isiginda Tres Enerji, 2015 sonuitibariylais hacmini 70
MW kapasitenin Uzerine ckarmayr hedeflemektedir.

Feldspat Madenciligi

Feldspat cogunlukla cam, seramik ve boya sanayilerinde
kullaniimaktadir. Sodyum feldspat Tirkiye'de en cok Manisa, Kiitahya,
Aydin ve Mugla illerinde cikariimaktadir. Toplam 130 milyon tonluk
rezerviyle dinya feldspat kaynaklarinin %10'una sahip olan Turkiye,
yillik 5 milyon ton tutarindaki tretimiyle halen feldspat madenciliginde
dunya lideridir. Turkiye'de cikarilan feldspat, distik demir ve titanyuma
sahip oldugu icin kaliteli ve degerlidir. Turkiye'deki yillik tretimin %80'i
ispanya, italya, Rusya, Lilbnan, Misir, Almanya, Polonya, Israil, Cezayir,
Romanya ve Asya Ulkelerine ihrac ediimektedir.

Tres, sinai ve ticari
milisterileriicin anahtar
teslimi kiictik ve orta
olcekli enerji santralleri
tasarlamakta, insa edip
isletmekte ve kombine
enerji santralleri ve
termik santraller
yoluyla enerji liretim
coziimleri (kojenerasyon
/ trijenerasyon)
sunmaktadir.
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Enerji Naturelgaz

Global Yatirim Holding'in enerji, liman, gayrimenkul ve
finans sektorlerindeki basarili yatirimlarinin ardindan,
Straton Maden, kiiresel feldspat pazarinda lider bir
oyuncu olmayi hedeflemektedir.

Global Enerji 2013 yilinda Straton Maden hisselerinin %75'ini
devralarak madencilik sektortne adim atmistir. Global Yatirm
Holding'in enerji, liman, gayrimenkul ve finans sektdrlerindeki basarili
yatirmlarinin ardindan, Straton Maden, kiiresel feldspat pazarinda
lider bir oyuncu olmayi hedeflemektedir. Cevreye tumuyle duyarl bir
yaklasimla ve en verimli yontemlerle feldspat clkarmayiamaclayan
Straton Maden, daha degerli feldspat Urlinleri elde edebilmek icin
baslattigl tesis yatirimlarini tamamlamak tzeredir.

Straton Maden halen Turkiye'nin Bati Ege bolgesinde tnemli
feldspat rezervlerine, lojistik madencilik operasyonlarina ve ticari
ekiplere sahiptir. Straton, lisansli operasyon alaninda 20 milyon ton
rezerve sahiptir ve halen yilda 300.000 ton tretim yapmaktadir;
tretimin %70'i cam ve seramik sanayinde kullanilmak tizere italya
ve ispanya'ya ihrac edilmektedir. Gliclti bir miisteri tabanina sahip
olan Sirket, sundugu her Urunin kalite ve hizmet bakimindan Avrupa
pazarlarindaki standartlara timdyle uyumlu olmasticin buyuk bir
caba sarf etmektedir. Global Enerji tarafindan satin alinisindan bu
yana Sirket, dogal kaynaklarin ihracati yoluyla Turkiye ekonomisine
katkida bulunmayi strdtirmektedir. Planlanan yatirim 2014 yilinda
tamamlandiginda, diinya capinda ileri teknoloji sayesinde Sirket, hem
tretim ve istihdam hacmini hem de UrUn kalitesini 6nemli dlctide

mllyon ton artiracaktir,
Straton Maden'in toplam
rezervleri Bircok sanayide feldspata yonelik talep giderek artmaktadir.

Feldspat kullanimi seramik sektortinde nihai Urtintin sizdirmazligini ve
dayanikliiginiartirmakta, boylece daha yuksek getiri saglamaktadir.
Plastigin cevreye ve insan sagligina yonelik zararli etkileri nedeniyle
ambalaj sektdrinde giderek artan cam kullanimi, camin yalitim glictinti
ve berrakligini artiran feldspata yonelik talebin de ytikselmesine yol
acmistir. Oniimtizdeki yillarda Global Enerji madencilik alanina ve
Turkiye'nin yeralti dogal kaynaklarina yonelik yatinmlariniartirmayi
planlamaktadir.

Sirnak Termik Santral Projesi

Galata Enerji, GUneydogu Anadolu bolgesinde, Sirnak'ta akiskan
yatakl kazan teknolojislyle calisacak 2 x 135 (270) MW kapasiteli bir
termik santral Uzerinde calismaktadir. Sirket, bu tesis icin EPDK'dan 49
yillik enerji Uretimilisansi almistir.,
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Galata Enerji, termik santralde kullanilacak kdmirt, uzun vadeli tedarik
anlasmasi cercevesinde istiraki Gelis Madencilik tarafindanisletilen
asfaltit madeninden temin etmeyi planlamaktadir. Arazideki kazi
calismalari, daha disik maliyetli ack ocak madendiligi yontemiyle
yurtttlmektedir.

Gelis Madencilik, bolgede bilinen sekiz asfaltit filonunuisletmek tizere
30 yillik imtiyaz hakkina sahiptir. Bu filonlardan biri olan Avgamasya'da
yapilan tetkikler burada 40 milyon ton asfaltit rezervi bulundugunu
dogrulamistir. Bumiktar termik santrale 30 yil boyunca asfaltit
saglamak icin yeterlidir. Arastirmalar sonucunda, filondan elde edilen
komurun, Turkiye'deki en ytiksek kalori degerlerinden biri olan bir
kilogram komdir basina 4.000-4.500 kcal diizeyinde bulundugu
saptanmistir.

Global Enerfji, lisans bolgesindeki diger yedifilonicin de rezerv
arastirma calismalari baslatmak tizeredir. Bu yedi filonun potansiyeli
hesaplandiginda, madencilik alanindakirezervlerin termik santralin
kurulu Uretim kapasitesini 2.000 MW'a kadar cikarabilecegi
ongorllmektedir. Bu tahmin, ntimizdeki ddnemde ayrintili rezerv
arastirma calismalariyla teyit edilecektir. Global Enerji projeyi asama
asama gelistirerek bolgenin tam kapasitesini degerlendirmeyi
planlamaktadir,

Global Enerji, Cin sirketi CNEEC (China National Electricity and
Engineering Company) ile termik santralin insasi icin mihendisli,
tedarik ve insaat sdzlesmesi (EPC), ayrica isletme ve bakim
sozlesmesi (O&M) imzalamistir,

Termik santralin 270 MW kapasiteliilk asama insaatinin 30 aylik bir
stirede tamamlanmasi planlanmaktadir. Faaliyete gectiginde termik
santral, yilda 2,0 milyar kWs elektrik Uretecektir. Insaat icin gereken
toplam yatirm 400 milyon ABD dolari diizeyindedir ve bu yatirmin
2.500 kisiye istihdam saglamasi beklenmektedir.

Sirnak Termik Santral Projesi’nin Hisse Yapisi

Sirket, Sirnak Termik Santrali'ne Bolgesel Yatirm Tesvik Belgesi almak
icin Ekonomi Bakanligi Tesvik Uygulama ve Yabanc Sermaye Genel
Mudurligi'ne basvurmustur. Sirket'in basvurusu onaylanmis ve
Galata Enerji12 Ekim 2013'te Yatirim Tesvik Belgesi'ni almistir,

Global Enerji, 3 Ekim 201 3'te Galata Enerji'de ilave %25 hisse daha
satin almistir. Bdylece, Global Enerji'nin Galata Enerji'deki hissesi
7%60'tan %85'e ckmistir. Ayrica, Rekabet Kurulu'ndan gerekliizinlerin
alinmasinin ardindan, Global Eneriji, 3 Ekim 201 3'te Gelis Madencilik'in
%85 hissesini satin alma islemini tamamlamistir. Sonuc olarak, Global
Enerji'nin Gelis Madencilik'teki payrhalihazirda %85'tir.
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Energy Naturelgaz

Global Enerji, Turkiye'nin glines enerjisi proje gelistirme
pazarinda onct olmayr amaclamaktadir. Bu dogrultuda, onde
gelen bir Avrupall yatirim ve sistem entegrasyonu sirketiyle
ortak calismalar stirdirmektedir.
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2 5 ENERJi iSTIRAKLERINDEKI HEDEF PROJELER
Cesitlendirilmis Enerji Kaynaklarina Yonelis

Global Enerji'nin glines Onimtuizdeki dénemde Global Enerjinin faaliyetleri, 6ncelikle,

enerji tesisi projeleri yenilenebilir enerji ve cesitli atik tlrlerini de iceren cesitlendiriimis

kaynaklara dayali, orta olcekli eneriji tretim tesislerine
odaklanacaktir.

Sirket su, rlizgar, jeotermal, glines ve atik kaynakli eneriji gibi
farkli yenilenebilir enerji projeleriyle ilgilenmektedir. Global Enerji,
proje gelisim slrecinin neresinde konumlandiriimis olursa olsun bu
alandaki tlm projeleri takip etmektedir.

Giines Enerijisi Projeleri

Sirket'in glines enerijisi projeleriyle ilgilenmesinin nedeni,
hikumetin TUrkiye'de bu alanda sundugu kosullar ve giines
enerjisiyle ilgili olarak Tiirkiye'nin stratejik ve cografi konumudur.
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Turkiye, cumhuriyetin kurulusunun 100. yili olan 2023 icin baz
onemli hedefler koymustur. Bu hedeflerden biri, genis kapsamli
bir yenilenebilir enerji ve enerji verimliligi programi baslatmaktir.
Bu girisim, TUrkiye'nin riizgar, glines ve jeotermal enerji
acisindan mukemmel cografi kosullara sahip olmasinin avantajini
kullanacaktir. Bu program cercevesinde Turkiye, 2023 itibariyla
toplam enerji arziicinde temiz enerjinin payini %30'a cikarmay!
hedeflemektedir.

Devlet Meteoroloji Isleri Genel Miidurltigli'ntin 1966-1982
yillarini kapsayan verilerinden hareketle Elektrik isleri Etiit idaresi
tarafindan yapilan hesaplamalara gore;

- glines radyasyonunun yillik ortalama stiresi 2.640 saat (7,2
saat/giin),
ortalama toplam isinim siddetininise 1.311 kWs / m? - yil (3,6
kWs/ m?-glin) olmasi nedeniyle Tirkiye miithis bir glines enerjisi
potansiyeline sahiptir.

Yenilenebilir kaynaklardan enerfji tretimini duzenleyen yenilenebilir
enerji kanununun tadil edilmis hali, 3 Ocak 2011 tarihinde
TBMM'den gecmistir. S8z konusu kanuna gdre yenilenebilir enerji
santrallerikWs basina 7,3 ile 13,3 ABD dolari arasinda degisen
garantili elektrik satis fiyatlarindan yararlanacaktir. Glines

enerjisi santralleri en fazla destegi gorecek ve kWs basina 13,3
ABD dolarlik tarifeden yararlanacaktir. Kanun ayricaic piyasada
uretilen ekipman ve bilesenleri kullanan santraller icin ek destekler
ongormektedir. Yerli ekipman kullanimina dair s6z konusu tesvikler,
10 yillik bir stire boyunca tarifeye kWs basina 0,4 ila 2,4 ABD dolari
destek saglayacaktir.

Global Eneriji, Turkiye'de glines enerjisi projesi gelistirmede pazar
oncusu olmaylamaclamaktadir. Bu dogrultuda, onde gelen

bir Avrupali yatinim ve sistem entegrasyonu sirketiyle ortaklik
icindedir. Global Enerji bu ortaklik cercevesinde Turkiye'de glines
enerjisi Uretimiicin uygun proje yerleribelirlemekte ve Uretim
lisansialmak icin gerekli calismalari stirdtirmektedir.

Global Eneriji, ortaglyla birlikte, birinci ve ikinci glines radyasyonu
alaninda ve agirlikli olarak Turkiye'nin dogu ve guneydogusunda yer
alan, toplamda 450 MW Uretim kapasiteli 25 glines enerjisi santral
projesiiceren bir portfoy Uzerinde calismalarini yogunlastirmistir.
Projelerle ilgili on tasarimlar, verim hesaplari ve arsalar icin ilk kira
sozlesmeleribiyUk dlctide tamamlanmistir.

Sirket, proje gelistirme calismalarinin bir parcasi olarak; ilgili proje
alanlarinda lctim asamalarini tamamlamistir. ihale stirecinin
lisans basvurusu 2013 yilinda tamamlanmuistir. Ihale duyurularinin
2014 yilinda yapiimasi beklenmektedir.
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Bir heykel ustaca islenmis ayrintilarla sekil alir.
Uygun malzemeyi secip onu dogru
kullandiginizda ustaca dokunuslarla
hayallerinize sekil verirsiniz. Bundan sonra artik
elinizde, tanimlanabilir ve yonetilebilir yapiya
sahip, belli basl formu olan bir parca vardir.




Pera GYO, oneml
ayrintilarla fark
yaratan ve degisik
amaclara hizmet eden
gayrimenkul gelisim
projeleriyle yatirimlarini
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Gayrimenkul

Global Gayrimenkul

Uzun vadeli, cazip
ekonomik buyume

Turkiye'nin hizl bliytime egilimi ve Ulkenin genc ntifusu,
Istanbul'u uluslararasi gayrimenkul yatirrmailarricin bir
cazibe merkezine dontsturmustur.

Ekonomik verilerdeki
iyilesmeye paralel olarak
gelisip degisen demografik
unsurlar, Tiirkiye
gayrimenkul sektdriine
cok gliclii bir biiyiime
potansiyeli kazandirmstir.

Ekonomideki yiiksek performans ve bankacilik sisteminin

glicl sayesinde yerli ve yabanci sirketlerinilgi alanina giren
Turkiye gayrimenkul sektord, giderek 6nem kazanmaktadir.
2013 yilinda 35 milyar ABD dolari buyUklige ulasan Turkiye
gayrimenkul sektoriinde toplam 1.363.124 gayrimenkul satisi
gerceklestiriimistir. Yiksek istihdam dlizeyi, artan sanayilesme,
hizlintfus artisi, bliylyen kentlesme ve TOKI'nin sosyal konut
yatirimlari sayesinde gayrimenkul ve insaat sektdrleri, ekonomik
blylmenin Uzerinde bir performans sergilemistir. Ekonomik
verilerdekiiyilesmeye paralel olarak gelisip degisen demografik
unsurlar da Turkiye gayrimenkul sektortine cok gliclu bir bulytime
potansiyeli kazandirmistir,

201.3'lin dorduincti ceyreginde toplam konut satislar (mortgage
satislari dahil) 6nceki yila kiyasla buiyik bir artis gdstermistir,
Toplamda, 2013 yiliev satislari 2012'ye kiyasla %65 oraninda
artmistir. Bu, pazarin saglhigini yansitan bir gostergedir ve bos konut
stokunda bliyuk bir fazla olmadigina isaret etmektedir.

Turkiye ekonomisi 201 3'te %4 oraninda blyumdistur; bu oran,
2012 yilibiytmesinin Uzerindedir. Ayrica, yabancilarin mulk
edinmesine iliskin kisitlamalari azaltan yasal diizenlemenin
onumuzdeki yillarda Ulke capindaki yeni projelerde yabanci talebini
artirmasi beklenmektedir.

Turkiye'nin parlak bir ddnemden gecen gayrimenkul sektordicin
istanbul 6zellikle Bnemlidir. Ticari gayrimenkul degeri acisindan
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istanbul, gelisme potansiyeli ve demografik Ustiinlikleri sayesinde
diger Avrupa sehirleriyle kiyaslanabilecek duizeydedir. Turkiye'nin

hizll by ime egilimi ve tlkenin genc nifusunun yani sira istanbul,
bdlgesel capta bir finans merkezine dontismektedir. Yabanallarin
mulk edinmesine izin veren yasal duzenlemeyle birlikte tiim bu
avantajlar, istanbul'u uluslararasi gayrimenkul yatirnmailariicin bir
cazibe merkezine dontsturmdustur. Ekonominin uzun vadeli buyime
perspektifi de dikkate alindiginda, Turkiye emlak piyasasinin son
zamanlarda guclu bir bicimde yabanci yatinmcailarin ilgi alanina girdigini
sdylemek yanlis olmayacaktir.

Turkiye'nin hizll ekonomik buytimesi, uygun demografik kosullar

ve cazip yatirim ortami, gayrimenkul yatirimlari icin gliclt bir temel
olusturmaktadir. Ayrica, enerji nakil sebekeleri, ulasim altyapisi

ve konut insaatlarini kapsayan altyapi gelisimindeki hareketlilik,
onumUzdeki donemde ic talepteki gliclu blyumeyi daha da
hizlandiracaktir. Son birkac yilicinde, Turkiye perakende sektort onemli
bir cazibe merkezine dontismustr. Bu gelisimde kentlesmenin, artan
gelir ve egitim dlizeyinin, kadin isgtictintin ekonomiye katiliminin,
begeni ve zevklerdeki kiresellesmenin, televizyon ve internet
erisimindeki artisa paralel olarak marka bilincindeki arisin ve yeni
sosyallesme tercihlerinin dnemli dictide payi vardir. Bu nedenle, sureci
daha da hizlandirmak amaciyla Ulke capinda tiim perakende kanallarin
hizla gelistiriimesi 8Bnem kazanmaktadir.
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Tiirkiye'nin parlak

bir dénemden gecen
gayrimenkul sektortiicin
[stanbul 6zellikle Gnemlidir.
Ticari gayrimenkul degeri
acisindan istanbul, gelisme
potansiyeli ve demografik
ustlinliikleri sayesinde
diger Avrupa sehirleriyle
kiyaslanabilecek
diizeydedir.
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Gayrimenkul Pe ra G YO

Gayrimenkul
yatirimlarinda uzun
vadeli yaklasim

Grup, oncelikle karma kullanim amacl ticari
gayrimenkul gelisim projeleriyle ilgilenmektedir.

P=RA

GAYRIMENKUL YATIRIM ORTAKLIGI

Pera GYO, turizm ve gayrimenkul sektdrlerinde uzun yillara dayali
bir deneyime sahip, 6zellikli ve profesyonel bir ekip tarafindan
yonetilmektedir. Mevcut sirket portfoytnu izleyen bu ekip, ayni
zamanda yatinm buyUkltgtne iliskin kisitlamalar olmaksizin yeni
is gelistirme firsatlarini da yakindan izlemektedir. Grubun deneyimi
ve bilgi birikimi yonetime yerel ve uluslararasi dlizeyde stratejik
ortakliklar kurma ve yeniis gelistirme firsatlarini degerlendirme
olanagl saglamaktadir.

Pera GYO'nun tamamlanmis ve yapimi stiren projelerden olusan
yatirm portfdylinde ticari projeler, karma kullanim amacl ticari
projeler ve konut insaati projeleriile tst diizey yazlik rezidans ve
otelinsaati projeleri bulunmaktadir. Grup gayrimenkul yatirimilarini
uzun vadeli bir yaklasimla gerceklestirmekte, hem yeni yatirimlarla
hem de tamamlanmis projelerin devralinmasiyla ilgilenmektedir.
Pera GYO, Borsa istanbul'da islem gtren bir gayrimenkul yatirnm
ortakligidir ve gayrimenkul gelisimi alaninda ozellikle ticari
projelerle ilgilenmektedir.

Grubun gayrimenkul yatirmlari buiytk dlctide Pera GYO tarafindan
yuruttiimektedir. Pera GYO, Borsa Istanbul'da islem goren bir
gayrimenkul yatirnm ortakligidir.

Borsadaislem goren bir sirket olarak Pera GYO, faaliyetlerini,
SPK'nin titizlikle belirlemis oldugu kurumsal yonetim mevzuati
cercevesinde surdtrmektedir. Kurumsal ve bireysel yatirmcilara
cazip gayrimenkul yatirimi olanaklari sunan Pera GYO, diger
gayrimenkul yatirim ortakliklari gibi kurumlar vergisi muafiyeti de
dahil olmak tizere cesitli tesviklerden yararlanmaktadir. 31 Aralik
2013 itibariyla Pera GYO'nun toplam aktifleri 217,6 milyon TL'ye
ulasmistir.

Tarihi Vakifhan No. 6 binasi, Denizli SUimerpark AVM ve konut
projeleri, Pera GYO'nun tek basina yurtittigu projelerdir.
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Vakifhan No. 6

Vakifhan No. 6, Bogaz'in Avrupa yakasinda, Halic yakinlarinda yer 1 70 0 2
alan Karakoy'de bulunmaktadir. Halic, istanbul'un son zamanlarda u m
en cok gelecek vadeden semtidir. Yuzyillar boyunca hep gnemli Vakifhan No.6'nin

bir is merkezi olan Karakdy ise bugtin istanbul'da yeniliklere acik, tamamen dolu alani
onemlibir ticaret merkezidir. Tarihi Vakifhan No.6 binasi, gelen yolcu

sayisi acisindan Turkiye'nin en yogun ikinci kruvaziyer limaniolan

Salipazari Limani'na bakmaktadir. Cok onemli bir kentsel yenileme

projesi olan Salipazari Limani, yenilenen kruvaziyer limaninin

yani sira turizm ve eglence tesisleri de icermektedir. Bogaz kiyisi

boyunca 1,2 km rihtim uzunluguna sahip olan liman, toplam

110.000 m? alan tizerine kuruludur. Salipazari Limany, istanbul'un

eskieserler ve yapilarla dolu tarihi yarimadasinin hemen

yanindadir. 2013 Mayis'inda Salipazari Limani'nin 8zellestiriimesi

tamamlanmis ve isletme haklari 30 yilicin devredilmistir.

Grup, Vakiflar Genel Muidurltigl ile imzalanan Restore Et-islet-
Devret anlasmasi cercevesinde Vakifhan No. 6 binasinin mullkiyetini
Subat 2005 tarihinde 15 yilligina devralmistir, Bugtin, ofis mekani,
restoran ve bir butik otele ev sahipligi yapan toplam 1.700 m?ic
mekana sahip alti katli bina tamamen dolu durumdadir. O dénemde,
bircok tarihi binayla cevrili bu bdlgedeki tek gayrimenkul projesi
olan Vakifhan No. 6 binasl, cevresiyle birlikte o glinden bu yana
bliytk bir degisim gecirmistir.
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Gayrimenkul Pera REIT and Real Estate Projects

Global Gayrimenkul'tin Van'daki gelisim projesi
konsept tasarimi ve konumuyla kent icin cok iyi bir
ornek olusturacaktir.

Denizli Siimerpark
4 . Ege Bolgesi'nde yer alan Denizli, Turkiye'nin glineybatisinda,
ml|y0n gelismekte olan bir sanayi sehridir. GUclUu ekonomik yapisi ve
2013 yilinda Stimerpark 2013'te 1 milyona yaklasan niifusuyla Denizli, bolgede izmir'den
Alisveris Merkezi ziyaretci sonra en 8nemliikinci sehirdir. Sanayide ve ihracatta yaptigl atiimla
sayis uzun zamandir biyUk bir gelisime konu olan Denizli, Turkiye'nin

tekstil sektdriinde 6nemli bir yere sahiptir. Ayrica, zengin tarihi
ve klturtyle onemli bir turizm merkezidir. Pamukkale'nin termal
pinarlariile Hierapolis, Laodicea ve Tripolis gibi antik kentler de
Denizli civarinda bulunmaktadir. Hizla buyuyen saglik ve SPA
sektoruyle Denizli, gelecek vadeden bir turizm destinasyonudur.

Tamami Gruba ait toplam 98.41.8 m? alan tizerine kurulu Denizli
Simerpark projesi, izmir-Denizli karayolu lizerinde stratejik bir
konumda bulunmaktadir. Proje, bir AVM, 608 konut, bir 6zel okul ve
bir hastaneden olusan karma kullanim amacli bir yapidir. Bu proje,
bdlgenin en buytk ve en popller sosyal merkezini olusturmaktadir.
Projenin amiral gemisi konumunda olan ve 35.500 m?

brit kiralanabilir alanibulunan Stimerpark Alisveris Merkezi,

Mart 2011'de hizmete aciimistir. AVYM, 2013 yilinda 4 milyon
ziyaretci cekmistir. Alisveris merkezinin ana kiracilari olan Tesco
Kipa, Electroworld ve Tekzen gibi taninmis firmalar 25 yila varan
uzun vadelikira sozlesmeleriimzalamistir. Halen %95 doluluk
oranina sahip olan alisveris merkezinde kiraci olarak ayrica
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populer giyim magazalari ve yemek katinda kafeterya ve restoranlar
bulunmaktadir.

SUmerpark Evleri konut projesininilk etabini olusturan 154 dairelik

iki apartmanin insasi tamamlanmis ve konutlar Haziran 2012'de
sahiplerine teslim edilmistir. Uctincl blogun 2014 Aralik ayinda
teslim edilmesi planlanmaktadir. D8rdunct ve besinci bloklarin
insaatina 6numtzdeki ddnemde baslanacaktir. Toplam 608 konuttan
olusan projenin tUm etaplarinin 6nimuzdeki Uc yilicinde bitiriimesi
planlanmaktadir.

Final Okullar’'nin 18'inci subesi, Stimerpark projesinin en son
kiracilarindan biri olmustur. Toplam 5.545 m? alan Uizerine kurulacak
olan okul binasinininsaati 2014 Agustos'unda tamamlanacak ve
okul 2014-2015 egitim doneminde Ggretime baslayacaktir. Final
Okullari'ylaimzalanan 15 yillik s8zlesmeye gore okulun kira donemi
2014 Agustos ayinda baslayacaktir.

Denizli kalkinma projesi ayni zamanda 10.745 m? alan Uizerine
kurulacak bir hastane insaatini da icermektedir. Bu faaliyet raporu
basim surecindeyken Grup hastane icin muteahhit firmalari belirleme
asamasindayd..
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Denizli kalkinma projesi
ayni zamanda 10.745 m?
alan lizerine kurulacak
bir hastane insaatini
daicermektedir. Bu
faaliyet raporu basim
stirecindeyken Grup
hastane icin miiteahhit
firmalari belirleme
asamasindaydi.
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Gayrimenkul

Pera REIT and Real Estate Projects

Grup, sehir merkezinde, en yogun caddelerin kesisme
noktasinda bulunan ve miilkiyeti kendisine ait olan 16.611
m? arazi Uzerinde alisveris merkezi ve lise binasindan
olusan karma kullanim amacl bir proje gerceklestirmeyi

planlamaktadir.

AVM'de ayrica
madgazalarin, bir aile
eglence merkezinin,
sinema kompleksinin ve
yemek alaninin yer almasi
planlanmaktadir. Bu
proje, konsept tasarimi ve
konumuyla kent icin cok iyi
bir 6rnek olusturacaktir.
Mimari calismalari

ve kiralama stireci

devam eden projenin
2014 yiinda baslamasi
ongorilmektedir.

Van AVM Gelisim Projesi

Ayniadl, glizel bir golun dogu kiyisinda bulunan Van, etkileyici bir
manzaraya sahip eski sehre yukaridan bakan, kirectasindan kaya
tzerine kurulu antik bir kaledir. Hizla gelisip modernlesen Van,
kesfedilecek bircok dnemli beldeye sahiptir. Adini verdigi goltin
kiyisinda bulunan Van; Van Kalesi, Hosap Kalesi, Bahcesaray koyu
ve Akdamar Kilisesi gibi anitsal yapilara ve mekanlara ev sahipligi
yapmaktadir. Van, hem yurticinde hem de Tiirkiye'nin iran, Irak ve
Ermenistan'la olan ticareti acisindan hayvan derisi, tahil, meyve,
sebze ve baska urtinlerde énemli bir ticari merkez ve ulasim
noktasidir. Van ayrica Ulkenin Gliney Dogusu'ndaki Bitlis, Hakkari,
Siirt ve Mus gibi kentler icin de onemli bir kara ve hava ulasimi
merkezidir. 2011 yilinda sehri vuran biiytk capl depremin ardindan
Van, koklu bir kentlesme surecinden gecmektedir.

Grup, sehir merkezinde, en yogun caddelerin kesisme noktasinda
bulunan ve mtilkiyeti kendisine ait olan 16.611 m? arazi Uzerinde
bir aligveris merkezi yapiimasini planlamaktadir. AVM projesi,
48.800 m?briit insaat alani tizerinde yaklasik 27.270 m? briit
kiralanabilir alanile 360 araclik bir yeralti otoparkiicermektedir.
Planlanan alisveris merkezi, stipermarket eksenli bir AVYM'dir ve
potansiyel kiraci olan perakende magazalarin ve musterilerin
yerel ekonomik dinamiklerini yansitmaktadir. AVM'de ayrica
magazalarin, bir aile eglence merkezinin, sinema kompleksinin ve
yemek alaninin yer almasi da planlanmaktadir. Bu proje, konsept
tasarimi ve konumuyla kent icin cok lyi bir 6rnek olusturacaktir.
Mimari calismalari ve kiralama sureci devam eden projenin 2014
yllinda baslamasi 6ngorulmektedir.

Aqua Dolce Resort

Akdeniz'deki stratejik konumu nedeniyle Kibris, gecmisten bugtine
bircok yuzyilda tliccarlarin ana bulusma noktasi olmustur. Tarih
boyunca Finikeliler, Asurlular, Romalilar, Persler ve Bizanslilar gibi
bircok farkliuygarligin egemenligi altinda kalan Kibris, bugtin ttim
bu uygarliklarin izlerini tasimaktadir. Kuzey Kibris'in gorece daha
az gelismis dokusu sayesinde sundugu ender bulunur huzuru ve
guzelligi, glin gectikce daha cok turist kesfetmektedir.
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Tatilcilere essiz Akdeniz deneyimini yasatmayi amaclayan Aqua
Dolce Turizm ve Rekreasyon Diinyas, Itiks otel konseptine yepyeni
bir boyut getirmeye adaydir. Adini, proje alanini cevreleyen tatl

su pinarlarindan alan Aqua Dolce Turizm ve Rekreasyon Dinyas,
Tatlisu, Kyrenia kiyisindaki yaklasik 260.000 m?lik bir arazi
Uzerinde konumlanacaktir.

60.000 m?'lik bir alanda yayilan 300 odali bes yildizli bir otel yer
alacaktir. Otelde ayrica tatil, is ya da eglence amaciyla seyahat
edenlerin her tirlu ihtiyacin karsilamak icin tstun kaliteli hizmet
sunan tam donanimli tesisler bulunacaktir. Aqua Dolce Turizm ve
Rekreasyon Dlnyasi'nin merkezinde yer alacak olan kumarhane,

genis bir yelpazeye yayilan oyun ve bahis firsatlari sunacaktir. Aqua

Dolce Turizm ve Rekreasyon Diinyasi projesi, cesitli seminerlerin,

sirket toplantilarinin ve mesleki etkinliklerin diizenlenebilecegi farkl

kapasitelerde konferans salonlarinin yani sira SPA, spor merkezi,

yUzme havuzlari, kafeteryalar, restoranlar, barlar ve acik hava spor

tesisleriniicermektedir. Grup, adanin glineyine kiyasla daha az
kalabalik ve gbrece dusuk fiyath turizm ve gayrimenkul piyasasina
sahip olan KKTC'nin, 6zellikle Kibris'la ilgili politik sorunlarin
cozumune yonelik cabalarda ilerleme saglandikca, son derece
cekicl yatinm firsatlari sunacagina inanmaktadir.

Grup, adanin glineyine
kiyasla daha az kalabalik
ve gorece diistik fiyath
turizm ve gayrimenkul
piyasasina sahip olan
KKTC'nin, 6zellikle Kibris'la
ilgili politik sorunlarin
¢oziimiinde ilerleme
saglandikca, son derece
cekici yatirm firsatlari
sunacagina inanmaktadir.
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Zaman emege deger katar.

Dogada kendi halinde bulunan tas,
heykeltirasin yaratici ve hiinerli ellerinden
ciktiktan sonra zaman icinde degeri
giderek artan bir sanat eserine donusdir.




Kapsamli bilgi birikimi ve
sektor deneyimine sahip
olan AZ Global Portfoy

Yonetimi, musteri odakl
hizmet anlayisi ve Ustun
pazar konumlamasiyla

yatirim ve getiriarasinda =
aracilik yapmaktadir. 4

r




Finan:
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Global Finans

Saygin uluslararasl
kKurumlarla ortaklik

Sermaye yeterlilik orani uluslararasi normlarin cok
Uzerinde olan Turk finans sektor, bu sayede giicli
yapisint korumaktadir .

78
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Turk finans sektdrt son yillarda glicli sermaye yapisini korumayi
basarmis ve hem gelismis hem de gelismekte olan Ulkelerin
finans sektorlerinden daha yuksek bir performans sergilemistir.
Turkiye ekonomisi, ktiresel kriz sonrasinda, 6nceki yillarda
uygulanan basaril ekonomi politikalar ve finans sektoruntn
yeniden yapilandirimasini da iceren kalici reformlar sayesinde kisa
stirede kendini toparlamayi basarmistir. 2013 yilinda, Turkiye gibi
gelismekte olan Ulkeler diinya ekonomisinin dinamiginde anarol
Ustlenmeyi stirdurseler de 2010 ve 2011 yillarinda sergiledikleri
blylme hizina ulasmayi basaramadilar. Grup, birind sinif
arastirma hizmetleri ve ornek musteri hizmetlerine odaklanarak
saygin uluslararasi kurumlarla ortakliklar kurmakta; boylece
finans sektorundeki hizmet yelpazesini genisleterek yoluna
devam etmektedir. Son yillarda Turkiye finans sektort oldukca
rekabetci bir konuma gelmis olmasina ragmen, Grup gtictinu

kokll markasindan ve kaliteli bir kurum olarak itibarindan alarak
pozisyonunu korumayi basarmaktadir,

GLOBAL YATIRIM HOLDING 2013 FAALIYET RAPORU






rinans Global Menkul Degerler

Sinir otesiislemler
ve yapilandiriimis
finansman

2013 yilinda Global Menkul Degerler ve Portekiz'de
yerlesik Espirito Santo Yatirim Bankasi stratejik
isbirligi anlasmasiimzalamistir.

1990 yilinda kurulan ve Borsa istanbul'da (BIST) islem goren Global

ey Menkul Degerler; aracilik, finansal danismanlik, kurumsal finans
e ve arastirma hizmetleri sunmaktadir. Baska deyisle, uluslararasi
ve yerli yatinmailara menkul degerler, portfdy yonetimi ve tlirev
drtinlerin alim satim hizmetlerini sunmaktadir. Global Menkul
ESPIRITO Degerler, 2011 yilinda halka arz ediimesinin ardindan Borsa
SANTO istanbul'da (BIST) islem gbrmeye baslamistir. 2004 yilinda bir
INVESTMENT holding yatirim sirketine déniisen Global Yatirim Holding, aracilik
BANK ve ilgili faaliyetlerini %100 istiraki olan Global Menkul Degerler'e

devretmistir. Global Menkul Degerler, yerli yatirimailara aracilik
ederek onlarin NYSE ve NASDAQ borsalarindaki islemlerini
hizlandirmaktadir.

2013 yilinda Global Menkul Degerler ve Portekiz'de yerlesik
Espirito Santo Yatinim Bankasi stratejik isbirligi anlasmasi
imzalamistir. Buisbirligi anlasmasina gore, Espirito Santo, Global
Menkul Degerler'in arastirma raporlarini uluslararasi musterileri
veis ortaklariyla paylasacaktir. Ayrica, Global Menkul Degerler,
Espirito Santo Yatinim Bankasi'nin Turkiye'deki tek yetkili yatirm
kurumu olacaktir.

2013 sonuitibariyla Global Menkul Degerler, %1,7 pazar payi ve

27,4 milyar TL menkul kiymet islem hacmiyle Tiirkiye'deki yurtici
aracllik sirketleri arasinda 20'ndi sirada bulunmaktadir.
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IEG Global Danismanlik
IEG-Global, Global Menkul Degerler ile Avrupa'nin yatirim bankacilig 1 z 5

alaninda uluslararasi danismanlik sirketi olan IEG-Yatirim Bankacilig
Grubu'nun ortak girisimidir. Sirket, Turkiye'de birlesme/devralma, halka
arz, borc finansmani, finansal yapilandirma ve 8zellestirme islemlerinde
finansal danismanlik hizmetleri sunmaktadir.

IEG, Berlin'de ve
uluslararasi ofislerinde
calisan 125 kisilik
profesyonel ekibiyle
1990'da kurulan Global Menkul Degerler, Turkiye'de yerli ve yabanci hizmet vermektedir,

yatirimcilara menkul degerler, yatirim danismanligl, kurumsal finans ve
fon yonetimi alim satim hizmetleri sunan onci finansal kurumlardan
biridir.

Ote yandan, IEG, birlesme ve devralma, finansman ve finansal strateji
gibi konularin yani sira 6zkaynak, borc ve melez sermaye plasmani
alaninda danismanlik hizmeti sunmaktadir. IEG, Berlin'de ve uluslararasi
ofislerinde calisan 125 Kisilik profesyonel ekibiyle hizmet vermektedir.
1999'da kurulan IEG-Yatinnm Bankaciligl Grubu, uluslararasi diizeyde
faaliyet gdsteren bagimsiz bir yatirim bankasidir. Merkezi Berlin'de olan
bankanin Amsterdam, Buenos Aires, istanbul, Johannesburg, Mumbai,
Sao Paulo, Sanghay, Tunus, Varsova ve Zurih'te subeleri ve ofisleri
bulunmaktadir.

IEG-Global, Istanbul'daki, deneyimli, multidisipliner ve uluslararasi
ekibiyle sinir Gtesiislemlere ve yapilandiriimis finansmana odaklanmistir,
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Finans AZ Global

Yatirim yapmanin
benzersiz
avantajlar

Azimut, tiim diinyada msterilerinin kiiresel yatirim
urtinlerine erisimini saglayan varlik yonetimi
platformunu daha da gelistirmeyi amaclamaktadir.

@© | AZ GLOBAL

Milano'da kurulu olan Azimut, bir italyan varlik yonetimi firmasidir;
sirketin ayrica Liksemburg ve irlanda'da subeleri vardir.

Borsa Italiana'da islem goren sirket, yatirm yonetimi alaninda
uzmanlasmistir. 1.500'den fazla finansal danismaniyla 160.000'in
Uzerinde musteriden olusan bir portfoye hizmet veren Azimut,
Avrupa’nin onde gelen bagimsiz varlik yonetimi firmalarindan
biridir. Grubun italya, Liiksemburg, irlanda, Isvicre, Monako, Hong
Kong, Cin, Brezilya, Singapur, Tayvan ve Turkiye'de 60 yatirm
aracina dagilan varliklarinin toplami 25 milyar ABD dolarinin
tizerindedir. 1986 yilinda Italya'da kurulan Azimut, miisterilerinin
kuresel capta yatinim trtnlerine erisimini saglayan varlik yonetimi
platformunu kisiye 6zel, yerel piyasaya odakli finansal danismanlik
modeliyle ve kiresel captaki sayginligindan glic alarak daha da
gelistirmeyi amaclamaktadir.

2012 yilinda Avrupa'nin dnde gelen bagimsiz portfdy yonetim
firmasi Azimut Grubu ile Global Yatinm Holding, Tlrkiye'de portfdy
yonetimini yeniden tanimlayacak AZ Global'i kurmak Uzere
guclerini, deneyimlerini ve bilgi birikimlerini birlestirmistir. AZ Global
hisselerinin %601 Azimut'a, %40'1ise Global Menkul Degerler'e
aittir.

AZ Global, glinluk likidite, donemsel kupon 8demesi, coklu birim
siniflary, uluslararasi piyasalarda yatirim ve aktif risk yonetimi gibi
benzersiz avantajlara sahip bir yeni sinif yatirim fonunu Turkiye'ye
tanitmistir. AZ Global, finansal Urtinlerinin satis ve pazarlamasinda
Azimut'un ve Turkiye'nin kurumsal finansman, arastirma ve
sermaye piyasalari danismanlik hizmetleri alaninda koklu
deneyime sahip aracilik kurumu Global Menkul Degerler'in birlikte
piyasaya sunduklari yenibir finansal danismanlik modelinden
yararlanmaktadir. AZ Global, Turkiye'nin en biy Uk bagimsiz aktif
yonetimi sirketleri arasinda yer almaktadir.
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Global Menkul Degerler, Azimut Grubu'nun dinya capindaki milyon TL
uzmanligindan yararlanarak ve asagidaki konulara odaklanarak finansal

danismanlik hizmeti sunmaktadir: 43 5

Mutlak Getirili Esnek Yatirim Fonlari ‘
AZ Global benchmark izleme stratejileriyle sinirlanmaksizin trtinleri A“ZnGltOr:a'éBS milyon TL
Uzerinden mutlak getiriler sunmayi hedeflemektedir. yonetmextedrr

Kupon Odemeleri
AZ Global Turkiye'de ilk kez yatirim donemi boyunca somut nakit akisi
saglayan periyodik kupon 6demeli yatirim fonu sunmaktadir.

Giinliik likidite
AZ Global misterilerine portfoylerini vade kisitlamasi olmaksizin 8zgtirce
kullanabilecekleri glinlik likidite saglamaktadir.

Etkin Yatinm Uriinleri

AZ Global'in, sektorde en diistik masraf oranlarindan birine sahip olan
yatirim fonlarihem kurumsal hem de bireysel yatirimailara uzun vadeli ve
karli finansal coziimler sunmaktadir.

Aktif Risk Yonetimi

AZ Global, aktif risk yonetimi teknikleri ve farkli vade ve para birimlerine
dagilmis finansal enstrimanlar iceren portfdy kompozisyonlariyla
musterilerine uzun vadeli servet birikimiicin sermayelerini koruma
olanagi sunmaktadir.

Ozel Portfoy Yonetimi

AZ Global, finansal danismanlik hizmetlerini 6zel portfoy yonetimiile
tasarlayabilmektedir. Boylece, dinamik bir servet yonetimi yaklasimiyla
kisisel risk profillerine gore musteri ihtiyaclarini karsilama potansiyelini
artirmaktadir.
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Yatirimai iliskiler

Guncel bilgi akisi...

Kurumsal yonetim ve yatirmciiliskileri alaninda diinya
standartlarini benimseyip hayata geciren Grup, hem hissedar
hem de miisteri memnuniyetini artirmaya cabalamaktadir.

2013 yihnda Yatirimci Seffafligiilke edinen Global Yatirim Holding, yatirimailarina

lliskileri Departmani zamaninda ve eksiksiz bilgi akis saglamaktadir. Kurumsal yonetim
yatinmailardan tefefon, ve yatirmcaiiliskileri alaninda diinya standartlarini benimseyip
e-posta, sosyal medya hayata geciren Grup, hissedar ve miisteri memnuniyetini artirmaya

ve posta kanaliyla

gelen pek cok soruyu cabalamaktadir.

yanitlamanin yani sira

proaktif bir yaklasimia, Grubun yatinmai iliskileri, yatirim camiasina yonelik giinlik bilgi
finansal kuruluslara akisini diizenleyen Yatirmai lliskileri Departmani tarafindan kamuyu
Grup faaliyetleriyle ilgili aydinlatma ve seffaflik ilkeleri dogrultusunda, blyuk bir titizlikle
onemli ve glincel bilgi akisi yonetimektedir.

saglamistir.

2013 yilinda Yatinma lliskileri Departmani yatirmcilardan telefon,
e-posta, sosyal medya ve posta kanaliyla gelen pek cok soruyu
yanitlamanin yani sira proaktif bir yaklasimla, finansal kuruluslara
Grup faaliyetleriyle ilgili Gnemli ve glincel bilgi akisi saglamistir.
Departman ayrica, yatirimcilarin Gruba yoneltmek istedikleri
sorulari yanitlamak tizere 8zel bir Yatirimcr lliskileri web sitesi
kurmustur,

BUtun mevcut ve potansiyel yatirnmcilar investor@global.com.

tr e-posta adresinden Gruba ulasmaya ve ir.globalyatirim.com.
tr adresindeki yeni Yatirima lliskileri sitesini ziyaret etmeye tesvik
edilmektedir.
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2013 yilinda Global Yatirnm Holding asagidaki odUllere layik
gorulmustdr:

iINOVA Odulleri: Kurumsal web sitelerinde toplam miikemmellik
ve inovasyonu degerlendiren iNOVA Odillerinde (INOVA Awards)
GYH, Online Raporlar-Coklu&Genel Sanayi kategorisinde Bronz
odtle layik gorulmustur.

Farkl kategorilerde Altin, GUmis ve Bronz Galaxy Odulleri:
Global Yatirim Holding, Online Yillik Raporlar ve Geleneksel
Olmayan Raporlar kategorilerinde iki Altin, Yillik Raporlar-Cesitli
Is Alanlari kategorisinde Gimds, Yillk Rapor Kapaklari-Sanatsal/
llistrasyon kategorisinde de bir Bronz madalya almistir.
Uluslararasi Yaraticilik Odtilleri: GYH, en uzun stireli bagimsiz
reklamcilik, pazarlama ve tasarim yarismalarindan biri olan
Uluslararasi Yaraticilik Odtilleri (Creativity International
Awards)'da Gimus 6dult kazanmuistir,

LACP Odulleri: Global Yatirim Holding, 2013 yill LACP Spotlight
Awards'da Eniyi 100 rapor arasinda dordincu olmustur; ayni
zamanda Yillik Raporlar Basim kategorisinde Platin oddle lay ik
gorulmustur. Ayni zamanda Yillik Raporlar Basim kategorisinde
Platin 6dule layik gorulmustdr.

L GALAXY

REARDS

’ ARC
BWARDS

oy

Global Yatirim Holding,
Online Yillk Raporlar ve
Geleneksel Olmayan
Raporlar kategorilerinde iki
Altin, Yillk Raporlar-Cesitli
is Alanlari kategorisinde
Giimiis, Yillk Rapor
Kapaklari-Sanatsal/
illiistrasyon kategorisinde
de bir Bronz madalya
almstir.
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Global Yatirim Holding Grubu
Kurumsal Sosyal Sorumluluk

En onemlisi egitim...

Egitim, kiiltlir, toplum ve spor alanindaki calismalarini
artirmaya devam eden Global Yatirim Holding, ilgili
kampanyalari, projeleri ve etkinlikleri desteklemeye
devam etmistir.

Global Yatinm Holding ve bagli ortakliklari, Grubun temel stratejisi
4 o o 0 dogrultusunda, icinde bulunduklar topluluklarla ve sosyal
u paydaslariyla yakinisbirligiicinde olmaya her zaman buy Uk bir Gnem
Ogrencilere okul vermektedir. Sirket, tim faaliyetlerinde sosyal, cevresel, etik ve
malzemelerinden olusan insani meseleleri gdzeten surecler olusturmaktadir. Bu yaklasimla,
4.000 adet okul seti 2013 yilinda egitim, yardim kampanyalari, kultur, toplum ve spor
gondermistir. alanindaki calismalari, projeleri ve etkinlikleri daha blly Uk bir katkiyla

desteklemeye devam etmistir.

Sosyal sorumluluk alaninda egitim konusuna 8zel bir Bnem veren
Global Yatirm Holding:

- 2007 yilinda ulusal bir gazete tarafindan diizenlenen, Tiirkiye
genelinde ihtiyac sahibiilkokullara kitap destegi kampanyasina
sponsor olmus, Milli Egitim Bakanligl ve UNICEF isbirligiyle
dlizenlenen bir projeye Sanlurfa'nin Harranilcesinde iki derslik

yaptirarak destek vermistir.
8 6 GLOBAL YATIRIM HOLDING 2013 FAALIYET RAPORU



Uc blokta toplam 40 ayri birimden olusan Erzincan Universites
Refahiye Meslek Yiiksek Okulu izzet Y. Akcal Refahiye Ogrenci
Yurdu'nun insaatini tamamlayarak 2009 yilinda hizmete acmistir.
Milli Egitim Bakanligrile isbirligi icinde Adnan Menderes
Universitesi Turizm Isletmediligi ve Otelcilik Yiksekokulu'nun
insaatini gerceklestirmistir. 2009 yilinda egitim-0gretime acilan
yuksekokul hem Kusadasi ve cevresinin kllturel yasaminda hem
de Turk turizm sektorlne nitelikliinsan kaynagi yetistiriimesinde
onemli bir role sahiptir.

Denizli sehir merkezinde yer alan 32 derslikli ilkdgretim okulunun
insaatini Aralik 2010'da tamamlamistir. Ayni donemde, Mus

ili Bescatak Koyt lIkdgretim Okulu'na giysi, kitap ve kirtasiye
yardiminda bulunmanin yani sira pek cok okula da bilgisayar
bagislamistir.

Sirnak'taki 6grencilere burs temin etmistir.

Cocuklarin kisisel gelisimine ve egitim faaliyetlerine katkida
bulunmak tizere, 2012 yilinda Sirnak Ipekyolu lkégretim Okulu
ogrencileriicin kUtUphane kurmustur. Ayrica, kurumsal sosyal
sorumluluk yaklasimi dogrultusunda, istanbul Dumlupinar
iIkogretim Okulu 6grencilerine bilgisayar yardiminda bulunmustur.
2003 yilinda kurulusundan bu yana faaliyette oldugu Kusadasi
kasabasi ve liman civarindaki bolgeye katki saglamak icin pek
cok inisiyatif gerceklestirmistir. Sirket'in bolge halkina yonelik
katkilar, Adnan Menderes Universitesi Turizm Isletmeciligi ve
Otelcilik Yuksekokuluinsaatinin yani sira yerel okullara bilgisayar
ve ekipman yardimini, yerel plajlarin rehabilitasyonu icin kaynak
saglamayi ve devlet kurumlarina teknik destegiicermektedir.
Cesitli hayir kuruluslarina yonelik bagislarin ve ihtiyac sahiplerine
sunulan dlizenli destegin yani sira, Ege Ports yerel motor
sporlarikuliibiine sponsor olmus ve yangindan zarar goren
orman arazisinin yeniden agaclandiriimasi icin finansal destek
saglamistir.

Bodrum Yolcu Limani'nin ev sahipligi yaptigl Bodrum Global Run'in
tum gelirini Toplum Gonulltileri Vakfi'na bagislamistir.

Ege Ports, halka acik konserler, sosyal, sportif ve klturel
etkinlikler organize etmis, iskele ve tesislerini bu ttir faaliyetlere
tahsis etmistir. Bu etkinlikler arasinda Ramazan senlikleri,
Anneler GUnu, Babalar Gunu, ayrica deve yarisi ve her yil
dlizenlenen balikcilik yarisi gibi geleneksel eglenceler yer
almaktadir.

Ekim 2011'de yasanan Van depreminin ardindan, Global Yatirm
Holding bolgede 0zellikle agir hasar goren alanlardaki 6grencilere
okulmalzemelerinden olusan 4.000 adet okul seti gondermistir.

Sosyal sorumluluk faaliyetleriyle Turkiye'nin tanitimina katkida
bulunmak; yerel ve ulusal dlizeyde lkenin ve toplumun yararina
sosyal, klttrel ve ekonomik ortamiiyilestirmeye yonelik etkinlikleri
desteklemek, Global Yatirim Holding'in 6ncelikleri arasinda yer
almaktadrr.

2

2007 yilinda ulusal

bir gazete tarafindan
dtizenlenen, Turkiye
genelinde ihtiyac sahibi
ilkokullara Ders Kitabi
Destek Kampanyasi'na
sponsor olmustur. Ayrica,
Milli Egitim Bakanligi

ve UNICEF isbirligiyle
dtizenlenen proje
kapsaminda Sanlurfa'nin
Harran ilcesinde iki
derslik yaptirarak destek
vermistir.
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Denizli sehir merkezinde
yer alan 32 derslikli
ilkogretim okulunun
insaatini tamamlamistir.
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Kurumsal Yonetim

Kurumsal yonetim
ilkelerini benimsemek

Kamuyu aydinlatma acisindan 2013 yilinda biyk bir gelisme
kaydeden GYH, bu alandaki politikalarini gozden gecirerek

glincellemistir.

Global Yatirim Holding,
Genel Kurul'a ve SPK'ya
kurumsal yonetime

uyum performansi
konusunda yillik raporlar
sunmaktadir, Ote yandan,
calismalarini hukuki
danisman destegiyle
stirdiiren Kurumsal
Yonetim Komitesi'ne,
Yonetim Kurulu tarafindan
resmi olarak karara
baglanacak kapsami

bir kurumsal yonetim
politikasi hazirlama yetkisi
verilmistir.

Global Yatirnm Holding, 2006 yilinda Sirket'in ve Grubun ydnetim
yaklasimini dahaiyi tanimlayarak kurumsal bir noktaya tasimak
amaciyla baslattigi kurumsal yonetim alanindaki gelisimini
surdirmektedir.

Oncelikle, icraci olmayan tye sayisi artirilarak Yonetim Kurulu'nun
bagimsizligini gliclendirme yolunda 6nemli bir adim atilmistir,

Bir yandan Sirket, Genel Kurul'a ve SPK'ya kurumsal ydnetime
uyum performansi konusunda yillik raporlar sunmaktadir. Ote
yandan, faaliyetlerini yasal danismanlik destegiyle stirdiren
Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi'ne, Yonetim Kurulu tarafindan resmi
olarak karara baglanacak kapsamli bir kurumsal yonetim politikasi
hazirlama yetkisi verilmistir. Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi'nin Uyeleri
Jerome Bayle (Baskani), Aysegiil Bensel (Uye) ve Adnan Nas'tir
(Uye).

Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi'nin yani sira Denetim Komitesi ve Erken
Risk Degerlendirme Komitesi de verimli bir bicimde faaliyetlerini
strdirmektedir. Denetim Komitesi, Oguz Satici (Baskan) ve Jerome
Bayle'dan (Uye) olusmaktadir, Erken Risk Degerlendirme Komites
ise Jerome Bayle (Baskan), Oguz Saticl (Uye) ve Adnan Nas'dan
(Uye) olusmaktadir.
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Derecelendirme

Dinamik Surec

JCR Eurasia Rating, Global Yatirim Holding'in “BBB - (Trk)"
olan uzun vadeli ulusal notunun “pozitif' goruntimunu tim
diger notlar icin teyit etmistir.

Kurumsal Yonetim Derecelendirme GYHnin kurumsal

ybnetime verdigi 5nem
ve bu alanda dinamik ve
stirekli bir yonetimsel

Global Yatinm Holding'in 2013 yilt Subat ayinda ve Sermaye yapi olusturma kararliigi,
Piyasasi Kurulu'nun Kurumsal Yonetim llkeleri dogrultusunda gectigimiz 12 ayda
belirlenen kurumsal yonetim derecelendirme notu, 10 Uzerinden kaydettigi gelismeyle
8,84'tlr. Bu notla sirket, BIST'In Kurumsal Yonetim indeksi'nde yer birlikte derecelendirme
almaya devam etmektedir. notunun yiikseltiimesine

neden olmustur.

Kurumsal yonetim derecelendirme notu Sermaye Piyasasi
Kurulu'nun, Pay Sahipleri, Kamuyu Aydinlatma ve Seffaflik, Menfaat
Sahipleri ve Yonetim Kurulu olmak Uzere dort kategoriye ayrilan
Kurumsal Yonetim llkeleri dogrultusunda belirlenmektedir. GYH'nin
kurumsal yonetime verdigi nem ve bu alanda dinamik ve surekli
bir yonetimsel yapi olusturma kararlilig), gectigimiz 12 ayda
kaydettigi gelismeyle birlikte derecelendirme notunun ciddi bir
bicimde yukseltiimesine neden olmustur.

Derecelendirme alt kategorileri
Pay Sahipleri 86.89

Kamuyu Aydinlatma ve Seffaflik 91.89
Menfaat Sahipleri 88.42

Yonetim Kurulu 87.12

Toplam 8.84
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Derecelendirme

2013 yilinda ttiim is birimlerindeki yliksek operasyonel
performansi sayesinde Global Yatirim Holding, toplam
briit gelirindeki ve nakit yaratma kapasitesindeki artis

egilimini korumustur.

2013 yilinda tiim is
birimlerindeki yiiksek
operasyonel performansi
sayesinde Global Yatirm
Holding, toplam briit
gelirindeki ve nakit
yaratma kapasitesindeki

artis egilimini korumustur.

Basta Akdeniz Limani
olmak lizere genel olarak
liman faaliyetleri, 6zellikle
sikistinlmis dogal gaz
(CNG) ve madencilik
operasyonlarinin
katkisiyla enerji
yatirimlari, GYO portfoyii
ve finans sektoriindeki
faaliyetleri, GYH'nin 2013
yilinda kaydettigi giiclii
performans lizerinde
ozellikle etkili olmustur.

KREDI DERECELENDIRME

JCR Rating

JCR Eurasia Rating, Kasim 201 3'te Global Yatirim Holding'in “"BBB
- (Trk)" olan uzun vadeli ulusal notunun "“pozitif" gorinumund tim
diger notlaricin teyit etmistir.

2013 yilinda tum is birimlerindeki ylksek operasyonel performansi
sayesinde Global Yatirim Holding, toplam brit gelirindeki ve

nakit yaratma kapasitesindeki artis egilimini korumustur. Basta
Akdeniz Limani olmak Uzere genel olarak liman faaliyetleri, 6zellikle
sikistirimis dogal gaz (CNG) ve madencilik operasyonlarinin
katkislyla enerji yatirmlari, GYO portfoyu ve finans sektorindeki
faaliyetleri, GYH'nin 2013 yilinda kaydettigi ylUksek performans
Uzerinde ozellikle etkili olmustur. Artan borc yuku nedeniyle Global
Liman isletmeleri A.S. temetti dagitamamakta; bu da Holding'in
konsolide gelirini 6nemli dlclide etkilemektedir. Ancak, pazar
payini ve net satislarini artirarak; ayrica, yeni satin alinan limanlarin
katkislyla bu sorunun giderilecegi umulmaktadir.

Satin alma ve satma surecinde deger yaratarak uygun piyasa
kosullarinda nakde donusttirme stratejileri, GYH'yi piyasada
farklilastiran bir 0zelliktir. Bu stratejiler, nakde dontistm surecinde
operasyonlarin parasal degerini Sirket varliklarina katmayi
amaclamaktadir.

2013'Unilk dokuz aylik doneminde, JCR Eurasia Rating'in daha
oncekiduyurularinda da belirtildigi gibi, bazi gelir akislarinin
geciciliginedeniyle karlilik gostergeleri piyasariski ve volatiliteye
maruz kalmistir. Bu donemde Sirket'in mali yapisini; uzun vadeli
borclanma diizeyindeki artisin fon dagiliminda yarattigi baski,
hisse satin alma programi, yilicinde yapilan temettt 6demeleri
nedeniyle 0zkaynak dlizeyinde azalma, projelerin farkl nakit
yaratma asamalarina gore yapilan degerlemeler nedeniyle bilanco
varliklarinin onemli bir kisminin maddi olmayan duran varliklardan
olusmasi gibi faktorler etkilemistir. Grubun performansi, net
finansal pozisyonda borclanma ihtiyacinin yarattigi bozulma ve acik
pozisyon nedeniyle olumsuz yonde etkilenmistir.
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Ote yandan, cok yonlii faktorler dikkate alindiginda GYH'nin BBB
(Trk) olan Uzun Vadeli Ulusal Notu'nun 1 Ekim 2013 tarihinde
JCR-ER tarafindan belirlenen not ve risk diizeylerinin isaret ettigi
tolerans seviyesiicinde oldugu gorllmektedir. Sirket'in BBB-
olan Uzun Vadeli Uluslararasi Yabanci Para notuise Turkiyeicin
belirlenen tavan notunun sinirlariicindedir. Bu degerlendirmede
dikkate alinan faktdrler; dogalgaz satis gelirlerinin stirekli artan
yapis|, Girisim Sermayesi (Private Equity) fonksiyonu kapsaminda
Karadag, Singapur, Barselona ve Malaga limanlarinin hisselerinin
bir bolumunun satin alinmasi ve bu sayede artan nakit yaratma
potansiyeliyle buytmenin desteklenmesi ve son olarak, likiditenin
ulusal ve uluslararasi piyasalardan temin edilebilirligidir.

GOzden geciriimis kredi degerlendirme notunun ayrintilari asagida
yer almaktadir:

Uzun Vadeli Uluslararasi Yabanci:
Para: BBB- / (Duragan)

Uzun Vadeli Uluslararasi Yerel Para Notu:
BBB- / (Duragan)

Uzun Vadeli Ulusal Notu:
BBB-(Trk) / (Duragan)

Kisa Vadeli Uluslararasi Yabanci Para:
A-3/ (Duragan)

Kisa Vadeli Uluslararasi Yerel Para Notu:

A-3/ (Duragan)

Kisa Vadeli Ulusal Notu:
A-3(Trk)/ (Duragan)

Desteklenme Notu: 2

Ortaklardan Bagimsizlik Notu: B

GYH'nin BBB (Trk) olan
Uzun Vadeli Ulusal
Notu'nun 1Ekim 2013
tarihinde JCR-ER
tarafindan belirlenen
not verisk diizeylerinin
isaret ettigi tolerans
seviyesiicinde oldugu
goriilmektedir. Sirket'in
BBB-olan Uzun Vadeli
Uluslararasi Yabanci

Para notu ise Tiirkiye icin
belirlenen tavan notunun

sinirlari icindedir.
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S.
Kurumsal Yonetim ilkelerine Uyum Raporu

1. Kurumsal Yonetim ilkelerine Uyum Beyani

Global Yatirm Holding A.S. (“GYH"), Sermaye Piyasasi Kurulu (“SPK") tarafindan yayimlanan Kurumsal
Yonetim ilkeleri'ni uygulamakta ve gereklerini yerine getirmek icin azami 6zen gostermektedir. Sirket,
bu yaklasimin benimsenmesi amaciyla Yonetim Kurulu seviyesinde calismalarini surdtirmektedir.

Bu cercevede, Sirket'in organizasyon yapisinda ve Ana Sozlesmesi'nde yapilimasi gereken yeniden
yapllandirma calismalarini yiiriitmek tizere tic Yonetim Kurulu Uyesi'nin dahil oldugu bir komite
olusturulmustur. Kurumsal Yonetim ilkelerinde belirtilen Yonetim Kurulu'nda en az iki Bagimsiz Uye
bulunmasi gerekligi hayata gecirilmistir.

Pay sahipleri, GYH web sitesinden kapsamli ve gtincel bilgiye ulasabilmekte, ayrica sorularini Yatirmci
iliskileri Direktorligil'ne telefon, e-posta ve sosyal medya mecralari yoluyla yoneltebilmektedir.

Kurumsal Yonetim llkeleri'nin gerekleri acisindan web sitesini ve faaliyet raporunu daha kapsamli
inceleyen GYH, bu alanda yaptigi dlizenlemeleri stirdurmektedir. Yonetim Kurulu, tst yonetim ve
tim Sirket calisanlari stirecin her asamasinda her zaman Kurumsal Yonetim ilkelerine uyumu
desteklemistir.

Kurumsal Yonetim Derecelendirme notumuz, Sermaye Piyasasi Kurulu'nun (SPK) Kurumsal Yonetim
ilkeleri uyarinca agirliklari belirlenmis olan dort ana baslik (Pay Sahipleri, Kamuyu Aydinlatma ve
Seffaflik, Menfaat Sahipleri, Yonetim Kurulu) altinda yapilan degerlendirmenin sonucunda belirlenmis
olup bu ana basliklara gore yapiimis olan mevcut dagilim asagidaki sekildedir;

Basliklar Agirhik (%) Not
Pay Sahipleri 25 86,89
Kamuyu Aydinlatma ve Seffaflik 25 91,89
Menfaat Sahipleri 15 88,42
Yonetim Kurulu 35 87,12
Toplam 100 8,84

Kurumsal yonetim derecelendirmesine iliskin Kobirate tarafindan hazirlanmis olan bu rapor, Sirket'in
kurumsal yonetim ilkeleriyle uyumlu oldugunu ve uygulamalarinda gereken politikalari yurtttugtini ve
onlemleri aldigini gostermektedir.

Uyum Saglanmamis Kurumsal Yonetim ilkelerinin Sebepleri

Sirket, kurumsal yonetimilkelerine tam uyumun saglanmasiicin calismalarini sirdtrmektedir. Hali
hazirda uygulanan ilkelerin disindaki veya hentiz uygulanmayan ilkeler menfaat sahipleri arasinda
herhangi bir cikar catismasina sebep olmamistir.

GYH, faaliyette bulundugu sektor geregi sik sik alim satim ya da kiralama yapmakta oldugundan,

gerceklestirilecek her bir islemicin Genel Kurul toplantisi diizenlemenin mtmkun olamayacag|
dustinulerek Sirket Ana S6zlesmesi'nde "boliinme ve hisse degisimi, 6nemli tutardaki maddi/maddi
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olmayan varlik alim/satimi, kiralanmasi veya kiraya veriimesi veya bagis ve yardimda bulunulmasi

ile Uclincu kisiler lehine kefalet, ipotek gibi teminat verilmesi” gibi dnemli nitelikteki kararlarin Genel
Kurul'da alinacagina iliskin ifade yer almamistir. Bdylelikle firsatlarin kacirimasi onlenerek islemler hizli
bir bicimde gerceklestiriimektedir.

GYH Ana Sozlesmesi'ndeki imtiyazli hisse gruplari Sirket'in halka arzindan 6nce yaratilimis olup

bu hisse gruplarinin sahip oldugu imtiyazlarin degistirimesi veya kaldiriimasi kanunen imtiyazl
hissedarlarin muvafakatine bagl oldugundan Sirket (Genel Kurulu'nun) yetkileri kapsaminda degildir.
Bu kapsamda imtiyazli hissedarlar A Grubu imtiyazli hisselerin imtiyazlarinin kaldiriimasina muvafakat
etmis ve bu cercevede Temmuz 2010'da SPK'ya izin basvurusunda bulunulmustur ancak bu basvuru
reddedilmistir.

Pay sahiplerine 8zel denetci atama hakki saglanmasi ve azinlik haklariylailgili ek diizenleme hususlari
Tuirk Ticaret Kanunu ve SPK diizenlemelerinde yer almakta oldugundan, Sirket Ana S6zlesmesi'nde
yasal cercevenin yeterli oldugu dustincesiyle ayrica bir dizenlemeye yer verilmemistir,

Sirket, menfaat sahiplerinin kurula katiimiyla ilgili olarak bir politika olusturmamistir. Ancak, kurulun
bagimsiz Uyeleri, tum menfaat sahiplerinin Sirket ve pay sahipleriile birlikte temsil ediimesini
saglamaktadir. Sirket, tum calisanlarinin, tedarikcilerinin, gayri resmi kuruluslarin ve musteri
memnuniyeti anketlerinin gorus ve dnerilerini dikkate almaktadir. Sirket'in ortaklik yapisi dolayisiyla
bazi kurul tyeleri birden fazla komitede gorev yapmaktadir.

Kurumsal Yonetim ilkelerinin 4.6.5 maddesi uyarinca, kurul tyelerine ve tist dlizey yoneticilere yapilan

tlm ddemeler ve saglanan menfaatler, yillik rapor ile kamuya aciklanmaktadir. Ancak, aciklama kisi
bazinda degil, kurul tiyeleri ve tist dlizey yoneticiler ayrimiyla yapiimaktadir.

GLOBAL YATIRIM HOLDING A.S.

I. Pay Sahipleri

2. Pay Sahipleri ile iliskiler Birimi

2.101.10.2004 tarihinde bir holding olarak yapilandirilan Sirket, her donemde pay sahipligi haklarinin
kullaniimasi hususunda mevzuata, Ana Sozlesme'ye ve diger Sirket ici dlizenlemelere uyulmasina
azami 6zen gostermekte ve bu haklarin uygulanmasinihizlandirmak icin gerekli 6nlemleri almaktadir.
2.2 GYH'nin Ekim 2004 itibariyle gerceklestirilen holdinglesme calismalari sirasinda Pay Sahipleri ile
iliskiler konusu temel Bncelik tasimis; bu nedenle organizasyon semasiicinde bir Yatirima iliskileri Birimi
kurulmustur

GYH'nin pay sahipleriile olan iliskilerini ytirtiten direktorltk ile ilgili bilgiler asagida yer almaktadir:
Yatinmai iligkileri Direktorliigii

Direktor: Selran Cakir Baydar

Uzman: Beglim Dasluoglu
Uzman Yardimaisi: Esra Gundtiz
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Adres: Rihtim Cad. No: 51 Karakdy 34425 istanbul
Telefon: +90 212 244 60 00

Faks:+90212 2446161
E-posta:investor@global.com.tr

Yatinmai lliskileri Direktorliigli'ntin baslica gorevleri asagidaki sekildedir:

Pay sahiplerine iliskin kayitlarin saglikli, glivenli ve gtincel olarak tutulmasini saglamak,

Sirket ileilgili kamuya aciklanmamis, gizli ve ticari sir niteligindeki bilgiler haric olmak Uzere, pay
sahiplerinin sirket ile ilgili yazili bilgi taleplerini yanitlamak,

Genel Kurul toplantisinin yUrurliikteki mevzuata, Ana S6zlesme'ye ve diger sirket ici dlizenlemelere
uygun olarak yapilmasiicin gerekli 6nlemleri almak,

Genel Kurul toplantisinda, pay sahiplerinin yararlanabilecegi dokimanlari hazirlamak,

Toplanti tutanaklarinin pay sahiplerine yollanmasini saglamak,

Mevzuatla uyum acisindan kamuyu aydinlatmaile ilgili her turlt hususu gozetmek ve izlemek.

2.3 Ayrica, yukaridakilere ek olarak, 2005 yiliitibariyle kurulan yapida yuruttlmekte olan asagidaki
gOrevler de, Malilsler ve Finansman Birimi ve Hukuk Birimi'nin koordinasyonu ile Yatirimai lliskileri Birimi
tarafindan yurutulecektir,

Pay sahiplerinden gelen sozlti ve yazili sorularin yanitlanmasi,

Sirket yatinma sunumunun hazirlanmasi ve diizenli olarak glincellenmesi,

Holding internet sitesinde Yatirma lliskileri Bolumui'niin glincellenmesi,

Yurt disinda yatinmcai bilgilendirme toplantilarinin dizenlenmesi,

Altraylik donemlerle yatirima ziyaretlerinin dizenlenmesi,

Ceyrek donem finansallarinin telekonferans ve e-postaile yatirimcailara duyurulmasi;
Borsalstanbul'a yapilan 6zel durum aciklamalarina paralel analist toplantilarinin organize edilmesi.

2.4 2005 Agustos ayindan bu yana, araci kurumlarla diizenlenen roadshow'larin ardindan cesitli
zlyaretlerle ya da Sirket Genel Merkezi'nde yatirimcilarla toplantilar dizenlenmistir.

3. Pay Sahiplerinin Bilgi Edinme Haklarinin Kullanimi

3.1 Pay sahipleri ve analistler tarafindan telefon, e-posta ve sosyal medya mecralari araciligyla
Yatinmci lliskileri Direktorliigii'ne ulasan sorular, gizli ve ticari sir niteligindeki bilgiler haric olmak tizere,
ilgili oldugu konunun en yetkili kisisiyle gortistilerek en hizli ve etkin sekilde yanitlanmaktadir. GYH'ye
iliskin pay sahipleriniilgilendiren bilgi ve gelismeler, internet sitesi ve sosyal medya araciliglyla Turkce ve
ingilizce olarak giincel ve gecmise doniik olarak yayinlanmakta; veri tabanina kayith olan kisilere eposta
yoluyla duizenli olarak aktariimaktadir.

ilgili dsnem icinde, pay sahipleri ve analistlerden gelen 271 s8zlli ve yazil bilgi talebi cevaplandirimistir,

3.2 Pay sahiplerinin bilgilendirilmesi icin ilgili Yonetim Kurulu tiyesi, gérevli birimlerle koordinasyon
icinde dlizenli olarak calismaktadir.
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3.3 2013 yilinda pay sahibi haklarinin kullanimiyla ilgili olarak, 6zel denetci atanmasi talebi de dahil
olmak Uzere, Sirket'e iletilen herhangi bir sikayet veya bu konuda Sirket hakkinda acilan bir inceleme/
sorusturma bulunmamaktadir.

4. Genel Kurul Bilgileri

4.1 GYH 2012 hesap donemineliskin Olagan Ortaklar Genel Kurul Toplantisi 23 Mayis 201 3 tarihinde
gerceklestiriimistir. Olagan Genel Kurul Toplantisi'nda, toplanti tarihiitibariyle Sirket sermayesinin
%38,22'si temsil edilmistir.

4.2 Genel Kurul Toplantiilani, mevzuat ile ongdriilen usullere uygun olarak Tirkiye Ticaret Sicili
Gazetesi, Borsalstanbul'un Kamuyu Aydinlatma Platformu sistemi ve Sirket'in web sayfasiile
duyurulmaktadir. Pay defterine kayitl nama yazili pay sahiplerinin Genel Kurul'a katiimasiicin herhangi
bir stire s6z konusu degildir.

2014 yilinda gerceklestirilecek Genel Kurul toplantisinda Borsa Istanbul'da islem goren hisse
sahiplerinin TUrk Ticaret Kanunu'nun (TTK) 415/3 maddesi uyarinca en az bir hafta 6ncesinden
Genel Kurul'a katilacaklarini Sirket'e bildirmeleri ve Genel Kurul giris karti almalari gerekmektedir. TTK
geregi yurdrltge giren ikincil mevzuat, pay sahiplerine Genel Kurul'a fiziki olarak katilim konusunda bir
alternatif sunan Elektronik Genel Kurul'unilkelerini belirlemektedir.

4.3 VYillik faaliyet raporu dahil, mali tablo ve raporlar, bagimsiz denetim raporlari, kar dagitim onerisi,
Genel Kurul gindem maddeleriile ilgili olarak hazirlanan bilgi doktimani ve diger belgeler ile Ana
Sozlesme'nin son hali ve Ana Sozlesme'de degisiklik yapilacak ise tadil metni ve gerekcesi; Genel Kurul
toplantisina daveticin yapilan ilan tarihinden itibaren Sirket merkezinde pay sahiplerinin incelemesine
aclk tutulmaktadir. Glindem ve var ise Ana Sozlesme tadil metni ayrica 4.2'de belirtilen yollarla da
duyurulmaktadir.

4.4 Genel Kurul toplantisinda pay sahipleri soru sorma haklarini kullanmislar ve tiim sorular
Yonetim Kurulu tarafindan yanitlanmistir. Ayrica, glindeme madde eklenmesiicin herhangi bir 8neri
getirilmemistir.

4.5 Genel Kurul'a, Sirket'in bagis politikasi ve yil boyunca Sirket tarafindan yapilan bagis ve yardimlarin
tutari ve bu bagis/yardimlardan yararlananlara iliskin ayri bir glindem maddesi eklenmis; boylece, pay
sahiplerinin konuylailgili olarak bilgilendiriimeleri saglanmistir.

5. Oy Haklar1 ve Azinlik Haklan

5.1 Sirket sermayesi, (A), (D), (E) ve (C) olmak tizere dort grup hisseye bolinmiistir. (A), (D)ve (E)
grup hisselerin Yonetim Kurulu Uyeligine aday belirleme imtiyaz bulunmaktadir. (C) grubu hisselerin
ise herhangi bir imtiyazi bulunmamaktadir. Sirket Yonetim Kurulu'nun yedi kisiden olusacagi hukme
baglanmistir. TUm hissedarlar Uc Yonetim Kurulu Uyeligiicin aday gosterme hakkina sahiptir. Bu tc
adaydan yalnizca biriicin (A) grubu hisselere sahip hissedarlarin onay sarti aranmaktadir.

Ana Sozlesme ile belirlenen bir dizi Yonetim Kurulu kararticin, (D) ve (E) grubu hisselere sahip
hissedarlarinilgili Yonetim Kurulu toplantisinda bulunmasi ve (A) grubu hisselere sahip hissedarlarin
aday gostermis olduklari Yonetim Kurulu Uyelerinin olumlu oyu aranmaktadir.

5.2 Karsilkliistirak iliskisi icinde olan sirketler Genel Kurul'da oy kullanmamaktadir.

95



Global Yatirrm Holding A.S.
Kurumsal Yonetim ilkelerine Uyum Raporu

6. Kar Dagitim Politikasi ve Kar Dagitim Zamani

6.1 Kar Dagitim Politikasi

Kar Dagitim Politikasi Sermaye Piyasasi Kanunu ve Sermaye Piyasasi Kurulu'nun tebligleri
dogrultusunda, Yonetim Kurulu'nun onerisiyle Genel Kurul tarafindan belirlenecektir. Kar dagitiminda,
Kurumsal Yonetim ilkeleri'ne uygun olarak pay sahipleri ve Sirket menfaatleri arasinda dengeli ve tutarl
bir politika izlenmektedir.

6.2 Sirket'in kar dagitimi, TTK'na ve SPK'ya uygun sekilde ve yasal stireler icinde gerceklestiriimektedir.
Sirket karina katiim konusunda Ana Sozlesme'de imtiyaz bulunmamaktadir. Kar dagitimimevzuatta
ongorulen sureler icinde, Genel Kurul toplantisini takiben en kisa stirede yapiimaktadir.

23 Mayis 201 3 tarihinde gerceklestirilen Genel Kurul toplantisinda, 2012 yilina ait konsolide finansal
tablolarda yer alan 108.074.628,-TL tutarinda net donem karindan, Kurumlar Vergisi Kanunu ve Turk
Ticaret Kanunu huktmleri cercevesinde yasal karsiliklar ayrildiktan sonra yasal kayitlardan karsilanacak
0lan 13.365.000,-TL (her 1,~TLlik hisse basina briit 593990 Kr.) tutarinda briit temettintin
31.05.201 3 tarihine kadar dagitiimasina karar verilmistir,

7.Paylarin Devri

Sirket Ana Sozlesmesi'nde pay devrini kisitlayan herhangi bir htikiim yer almamaktadir.
Il. Kamuyu Aydinlatma ve Seffaflik

8. Sirket Bilgilendirme Politikasi

8.1 Sirket Bilgilendirme Politikasi Genel Kurul toplantisinda hissedarlarla paylasiimis, ayrica, kurumsal
web sitesinde yayinlanmistir.

Yonetim Kurulu, Sirket Bilgilendirme Politikasi'niizlemek, gbzden gecirmek ve gelistirmekten
sorumludur. Yatirmai lliskileri Birimi Yoneticisi, Mali Isler ve Finansman Grup Baskani (CFO) ya da Bas
Hukuk Musaviri, Sirket Bilgilendirme Politikasi'ni uygulamakla ytkumilt tst dlizey yoneticilerdir.

8.2 Kurumsal lletisim Birimi, Yatirimai lliskileri Birimi ile birlikte kamuoyunu Sirket hakkinda
bilgilendirmekle gorevlendiriimistir. Sirket hakkinda medya ve kamuoyundan gelen sorular sorunun
icerigine gore ve mumkun olan en kisa stre icinde Genel Miiduir (CEO), Maliisler ve Finansman Grup
Baskani (CFO) ve Bas Hukuk Miisaviri tarafindan veya bu kisilerin bilgisi ve yetkilendirme sinirlari
dahilinde Yatirmearlliskileri Birimi araciliglyla cevaplandirimaktadir. Sorularin cevaplanmasinda sosyal
paydaslarin bilgi edinme esitligi ilkesine titizlikle 6zen gosterilmektedir.
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8.3 Ucaylik donemler halinde, Sirket mali tablolarinin kamuoyuna duyurulmasinin ardindan GYH'nin
finansal durumunu 6zetleyen bir basin duyurusu hazirlanip yayinlanacaktir. Sirket faaliyet raporu
ise her yil diizenli olarak basilarak yatirimcilara ve ilgili kurum ve kuruluslara Yatirmecr lliskileri Birimi
tarafindan iletiimektedir.

8.4 Kamuya yonelik aciklamalar, acklamanin icerigine gore, Yonetim Kurulu Baskani (Mehmet
Kutman) veya bizzat Yonetim Kurulu tyeleri tarafindan ya da; Mali isler ve Finansman Grup Baskani
(Kerem Eser), Bas Hukuk Musaviri (Ugur Aydin) veya haberin yayinlanacagi mecraya gore Yatirima
iliskileri Birimi tarafindan yapilabilmektedir.

9. Ozel Durum Aciklamalan

9.1 Sirket, kamuya yaptigl aciklamalarda Sermaye Piyasasi mevzuatina, SPK ve Borsa

diizenlemelerine ve SPK ilkelerine uymaktadir. Ozel durum aciklamalari Sirket kurumsal web sitesinde

Turkee ve ingilizce olarak duyurulmaktadir,
10. Sirket internet Sitesi ve icerigi

10.1 Kamunun aydinlatimasinda, SPK ilkelerinin 6ngdrdiigi sekilde Sirket'in web sitesi aktif olarak
kullaniimaktadir.

10.2 Yatinmarlliskileri Birimiile ilgili tim konular www.globalyatirim.com.tr internet adresindeki web

sitesinde yer almaktadir.

10.3 Sirket'in Web Sitesi, ttim kurumsal kimlik doktimanlarinda ve tanitim materyallerinde yer
almaktadir, Web sitesi, hem bilgi hem de gorsel acidan uluslararasi standartlara sahiptir. Web sitesi,

Yatirima lliskileri Departmani tarafindan yonetilmektedir. Web sitesinde izlenebilecek 8nemlibasliklar

asagida ozetlenmistir:

Kurumsal kimlige iliskin detayli bilgiler
- Vizyon ve ana stratejiler
Yonetim Kurulu Uyeleri ve Sirket Ust yonetimi hakkinda bilgi
Sirketin organizasyonu ve ortaklik yapisi
Sirket Ana Sozlesmesi
Ticaret sicil bilgileri
Finansal bilgiler, gostergeler
Basin aciklamalari
Ozel Durum Aciklamalar
Hisse senedi ve performansinailiskin bilgi, grafikler
Yatirimar sunumiari
Genel Kurul'un toplanma tarihi, gtindem, gtindem konularr hakkinda aciklamalar
Genel Kurul toplanti tutanagl ve hazirun cetveli
- Vekaletname ornegi
Kurumsal Yonetim uygulamalari ve uyum raporu
Kar Dagitim Palitikasi
Bilgilendirme Politikasi
Sikca Sorulan Sorular bélumu
Kurumsal Sosyal Sorumluluk
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11. Sirket’in En Yiiksel Kontrol Yetkisine Sahip Pay Sahiplerinin Aciklanmasi

Sirket sermaye yapisi ve sermaye yapisindaki degisiklikler, ilgili mevzuat uyarinca kamuya
aciklanmaktadir. Sirket'in ortaklik tablosu, web sitesinden incelenebilmektedir.

12. iceriden Ogrenilebilecek Durumda Olan Kisilerin Kamuoyu Duyurulmasi

iceriden 6grenilebilen bilgilerin kullaniminin 8nlenmesi icin gerekli tedbirler alinmaktadir. Sermaye
Piyasalari Kanunu ve ilgili yasa ve mevzuat ve idari htiktmlerle uyum saglamak amaciyla,

GYH Bilgilendirme Politikasi kapsaminda “iceriden 6grenenlerin ticaretine iliskin" bir politika da
olusturulmustur. iceriden 6grenenlerin listesi ayni zamanda web sitesinden incelenebilmektedir,

lll. Menfaat Sahipleri

Sirket'in bir holding sirketi olmasi nedeniyle, pay sahipleri ve stratejik is ortaklarien dnemli sosyal
paydaslaridir. Menfaat sahipleriyle iliskilerin koordineli bir sekilde yurttulmesi amaciyla ttim istiraklerin
ve Holding'in bilgi akisi merkezi olarak yapiimaktadir.

Ayrica, calisanlarin kisisel deneyimi ve egitim diizeyi hizmet sektorinde faaliyette bulunan istiraklerinin
ve Holding'in sundugu hizmet diizeyini dogrudan etkilemektedir. Bu acidan, Sirket'in insan kaynaklari
politikasi son derece dnemli bir rol oynamaktadir. ise alimlariniinternet sitesinden ilan eden Sirket'in
insan kaynaklari politikasi Personel Yonetmeligi ile belirlenmistir. istiraklerde uygulanmaya baslayan
calisanlarin performans sistemleriyle geri beslemeli sistemin Sirket genelinde yayginlastiriimasi
hedeflenmektedir.

13. Menfaat Sahiplerinin Bilgilendirilmesi

Menfaat sahiplerini yatirimcilar ve is ortaklarrile calisanlar olarak gruplandirdigimizda yatirimcilarin
bilgilendiriimesine iliskin aciklamalar “Pay Sahiplerinin Bilgilendirilmesi” bolumtnde detayli olarak
aciklanmistir. Ayrica, Sirket calisanlarinin detayli bilgi alabilmesiicin kurulan intranet sistemiile hem
Sirket ici operasyonel calismalar ytrttulmekte; hem de Sirket calisanlari dtizenli olarak kamuoyuna
yapllan aciklamalar ve Sirket'in faaliyetlerini etkileyecek yonetimsel konularla ilgili bilgilendirilmektedir.

14. Menfaat Sahiplerinin Yonetime Katilimi
Denetim Komitesi ve Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi'nin Uyeleri birim yoneticilerinin diizenledigi haftalik
degerlendirme toplantilarina katiimakta; bu toplantilarda birim yoneticileri bagl olduklariistirakler ve

birimlerin goruslerini st yonetime iletmekte, komite Uyelerine soru yoneltmektedir. Boylece, menfaat
sahipleriyle komiteler arasindaki bilgi akisi birim yoneticileri Uizerinden saglanmaktadir.
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15. insan Kaynaklari Politikasi

Global Yatinm Holding A.S. Turkiye'nin ekonomik ve politik arenasindaki koklU degisimlere paralelileriye
donuk bir strateji surdtirmektedir.

Sirket, bliyuyen yapisi ve profesyonel kadrosuyla yonetici adaylarinin yeteneklerini gelistirmelerinde ve
kariyerlerinde yukselmelerinde firsatlar sunmaktadir.

Sirket, ise alim strecinde her adaya esit kosullar ve is olanaklari sunmaktadir.

Adaylar, iyi bir akademik gecmise sahip tniversite mezunlarindan, akici bir ingilizcenin yani sira diger
yabanci dilleri de konusabilen, kendi alanlarinda basaril bireylerden olusmaktadir.

Yasemin Cakar, calisanlarla iliskileri yonetmekten sorumiu insan Kaynaklari Direktori'dir. 2013 yilinda,
calisanlardan herhangi bir sikayet alinmamistir.

15.1 Sirket'te insan kaynaklari politikasi yazili hale getirilmistir ve intranette "Personel Yonetmeligi" adi
altinda Turkce ve ingilizce olarak yayinlanmaktadir. Bu yonetmelik geregi tistlin bilgi ve beceri diizeyine
sahip, kurum klturine kolaylikla uyum saglayabilecek, degisime ve gelisime acik kisilerin istindami
saglanmaktadir.

15.2 insan kaynaklari politikasi cercevesinde ise alimlarda ve kariyer planlamalari yapilirken, esit
kosullardaki kisilere esit firsat saglanmasi ilkesi benimsenmektedir. Bu nedenle, s6z konusu
pozisyonlar herkesin erisebilecegi sekilde internet sitesinde belirtimekte ve basvurular e-mailile kabul
ediimektedir.

15.3 Calisanlara saglanan firsatlar ve calisanlari daiilgilendiren Sirket gelismeleri, hem Ust yonetimin
e-mailleriyle hem de intranette duyurulmaktadir.

16. Miisteriler ve Tedarikcilerle iliskiler

Sirket bir holding sirketi oldugundan musteriler ve tedarikciler ile dogrudan iliskisi bulunmamaktadir.
17. Sosyal Sorumiuluk

Global Yatinm Holding A.S. ve istirakleri musterilerini, hissedarlarini, calisanlarini ve genel anlamda
toplumu, hizmet vermekle yUkumlt oldugu temel sosyal paydaslar olarak gormektedir. Hem

Global Yatinm Holding seviyesinde hem de onun bagli sirketleri araciligiyla, Grup, icinde yasadigl ve
faaliyet gosterdigi cesitli toplumlarin dahaiyi olma hedefine guiclii bir baglilik duymaktadir. Bu hedef
dogrultusunda, Global Yatirim Holding Grubu, cesitli egitim, hayir, kulttrel, sosyal ve spor faaliyetleri ve

projelerine katkida bulunmakta ve sponsor olmaktadir.

Global Yatinm Holding 201 3 yilinda sosyal sorumluluk faaliyetleri cercevesinde egitime yonelik
destegini strdurmustur.
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IV. Yonetim Kurulu

18. Yonetim Kurulu’nun Yapisi, Olusumu ve Bagimsiz Uyeler

18.1 Sirket, Genel Kurul'un sectigi yedi Uyeden olusan bir Yonetim Kurulu tarafindan yonetilmektedir.
Sirket'in ana sozlesmesi cercevesinde gdrev yapan mevcut Yonetim Kurulu Uyelerinin adlari asagida
yer almaktadir

Mehmet Kutman — Yonetim Kurulu Baskani — icraci Uye
Erol Goker - Yonetim Kurulu Baskan Vekili — icraci Uye
Aysegiil Bensel - Uye — icraci Olmayan Uye

Serdar Kirmaz - Uye — icraci Uye

Adnan Nas - Uye — icrac Olmayan Uye

Jérome Bernard Jean Auguste Bayle - Bagimsiz Uye
Oguz Satic — Bagimsiz Uye

Yonetim Kurulu Uyelerinin glincel listesi ve 6zgecmisleri Faaliyet Raporu'nda ve kurumsal web sitesinde
yer almaktadir.

Yonetim Kurulu, yatinm bankaciligr kariyerinin yani sira is gelistirme ve proje yonetimi alanindaki
deneyimini dikkate alarak Baskan Mehmet Kutman'in ayni zamanda Genel MudUr olarak atanmasina
karar vermistir,

18.2 Yonetim Kurulu'nun iki bagimsiz Uiyesi, SPK tarafindan Kurumsal Yonetim llkeleri'nde belirlenen
bagimsiz Uye niteliklerine uygundur.

18.3 Sirket Yonetim Kurulu Uyelerinin Sirket disinda baska gorev ve gorevler almasi belirli kurallara
baglanmamis ve/veya sinirlandirimamistir. Sirket bir holding sirketi oldugu ve iliskili sirketlerin
yonetiminde temsil edilmenin Sirket menfaatine bulundugu goz ontine alinmaktadir.

18.4 Ucretlendirme Komitesi'nin gérevleri Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi tarafindan tistlenilmistir.
Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi, 29 Nisan 201 3'de bagimsizlik kriterini tasiyan iki adayinin adini Yonetim
Kurulu'na sunmustur.

18.5 Bagimsiz Yonetim Kurulu Uyelerinden birinin bagimsizlik niteligini yitirmesine yol acan herhangi
bir durum oldugunda ilgili Gye bu gelismeyiivedilikle Yonetim Kurulu'na bildirecek ve konuylailgili
gecikmeksizin kamuya aciklama yapilacaktir. ilkesel olarak, bagimsizlik niteligini yitiren Uye istifasini
sunar.

istifanin ardindan, Yonetim Kurulu'nda bagimsiz tiye sayisi geregini yerine getirmek tizere, Kurumsal

Yonetim Komitesi bir sonraki Genel Kurul'a kadar gorev Ustlenecek bagimsiz tye secimiyle ilgili bir
degerlendirme yapar ve bu konudaki kararini yazili olarak Yonetim Kurulu'na sunar.
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19. Yonetim Kurulu Uyelerinin Nitelikleri

19.1 Yonetim Kurulu Uyelerinin 8zgecmisleri sirket web sitesinde (www.globalyatirim.com.tr) yer
almaktadir.

19.2 Yonetim Kurulu tyelerinde Sirket'in faaliyet alanlarinda temel bilgi ve Ust diizeyde yonetim
ozelliklerinin bulunmasi esas alinmistir.

20. Sirket’in Misyonu ve Vizyonu ile Stratejik Hedefleri
GYH'nin vizyonu, misyonu, hedefleri ve degerleri kurumsal web sitesinde kamuya aciklanmaktadir.

Vizyon: Global Yatirnm Holding'in hedefi, faaliyet gdsterdigi alanlarda lider konuma gelmek;, yenilikci ve
blyUme potansiyeli olan yeni projelere imza atarak Turkiye'deki degisim ve gelisimin oncileriarasinda
yer almaktir.

Misyon: Holding, faaliyette bulundugu alanlarda kiresel kriterlere uygun, rekabetci ve saglikl biytime
potansiyeli olan sirketler portfoy U olusturmak, yonetimlerine nculiik etmek, daimi olarak kiresel
ve yerel degisikliklere gbre stratejiler olusturarak bu stratejiler cercevesinde biinyesindekiistiraklerin
degisenis kosullarina en hizli sekilde adaptasyonunu saglamak ve gelisimlerine yardimci olmak ile
sorumludur.

21. Risk Yonetim ve ic Kontrol Mekanizmasi

Sirket blinyesinde, Hakan Murat Akin'in baskanlik ettigirisk yonetim ve ic kontrol birimleri kurulmustur.
Konuylailgili calismalar Yonetim Kurulu Uyeleri Jerome Bayle ve Oguz Saticr koordinasyonunda
strdurilmektedir. ic Denetim Departmani, dogrudan Yonetim Kurulu Denetim Komitesi'ne bagli olarak
calismaktadir.

22. Yonetim Kurulu Uyeleri ile Yoneticilerin Yetki ve Sorumluluklar

Yonetim Kurulu'nun yetki ve sorumluluklari, fonksiyonlarrile tutarl ve hicbir stipheye yer birakmaksizin,
Genel Kurul'a taninan yetki ve sorumluluklardan acikca ayrilabilir ve tanimlanabilir bicimde Sirket'in Ana
Sozlesmesi'nde ve Yonetim Kurulu Calisma Esaslari'nda yer almaktadir.

Sirket Yonetim Kurulu Ana Sozlesme'de anilan gdrevler disinda, SPK Kurumsal Yonetim ilkelerinde
Yonetim Kurulu'nun gorevleri arasinda sayilan asagidaki gorevleri de yerine getirir:

Yonetim Kurulu strekli ve etkin bir sekilde, Sirket'in hedeflerine ulasma derecesini, faaliyetlerini ve
gecmis performansini gozden gecirir. Bunu yaparken her konuda uluslararasi standartlara uyum
saglamaya calisir. Gerektigi durumda gecikmeden ve sorun ortaya clkmadan 6nce 6nlem alir. Etkin
g0zden gecirme sirket faaliyetlerinin, onaylanan yillik finansman ve is planlarinin gerceklesme
duzeyinin, finansal durum ve faaliyet sonuclarinin muhasebe kayitlarina yansitimasinda mevcut
mevzuat ve uluslararasimuhasebe standartlarina uyumun ve sirket ile ilgili finansal bilginin dogruluk
derecesinin ortaya cikariimasiniifade eder.

Yonetim Kurulu, Sirket'in karsi karsiya kalabilecegi ve basta pay sahipleri olmak Uizere menfaat

sahiplerini etkileyebilecek olan riskleri en aza indirebilecek bir risk yonetim ve ic kontrol
mekanizmasi olusturur ve bunun saglikli olarak islemesiicin gerekli onlemleri alir,
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Yonetim Kurulu gorev ve sorumiuluklarini saglikli bir bicimde yerine getirmek amaciyla komiteler
olusturur.

Yonetim Kurulu nitelikli personelin uzun sire Sirket'e hizmet etmesini saglamaya yonelik tesvik ve
onlemlerialir. Yonetim Kurulu gerekli gordtigl takdirde yoneticileri vakit gecirmeksizin gorevden alir
ve yerlerine bu gorevlere uygun ve nitelikli yenilerini atar.

Yonetim Kurulu Sirket ile pay sahipleri arasinda yasanabilecek anlasmazliklarin gideriimesinde ve
coztme ulastirimasinda oncd rol oynar.

Yonetim Kurulu pay sahiplerinin haklarinin kullanilmasinda yasalara, mevzuata, Ana S6zlesme
hikumlerine, sirket ici dlizenlemelere ve olusturulan politikalara tam olarak uyulmasini saglar ve bu
amaca y6nelik olarak Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi ve biinyesinde olusturulan Yatirmai iliskileri Birimi
ile yakinisbirligiicinde calisir.

23. Yonetim Kurulu’nun Faaliyet Esaslan

Yonetim Kurulu tyelerinin gBrevlerini tam olarak yerine getirebilmelerini teminen her turlu bilgiye
zamaninda ulasmalari saglanmaktadir. Kurumsal Yonetim likeleri cercevesinde Sirket biinyesinde
Yonetim Kurulu'na bagli olarak olusturulan sekretarya toplanti tarihinden en az tic (3)gtin once
Yonetim Kurulu tyelerini toplanti gindemi ve glindeme iliskin doktimanlari kendilerine ulastirmak yolu
ile bilgilendirmektedir. Yonetim Kurulu, toplantilarinien az ayda bir kez olmak tzere, lizum gordikce
gerceklestirir. Yonetim Kurulu 2013 yilinda 28 yazili karar almistir. Yonetim Kurulu toplantilarinda alinan
kararlar oybirligiile alinmistir. Yonetim Kurulu glindemi Sirket'in ihtiyaclari dogrultusunda, Yonetim
Kurulu Uyeleri tarafindan belirlenmektedir. Yonetim Kurulu tyelerinin agirlikli oy kullanma hakki yoktur,
tum Uyeler ve Baskan esit oy hakkina sahiptir. Yonetim Kurulu toplantilarinda tyelerin sordugu sorular
ve muhalif goruslerin ayrintil agiklamalari tutanaklara gecirimektedir.

24. Sirket’le Muamele Yapma ve Rekabet Yasagi

Kurumsal Yonetim llkeleri cercevesinde Sirket'le muamele yapma ve rekabet yasagina iliskin herhangi
bir durum meydana gelmesi halinde bundan dolayi olabilecek cikar catismalari kamuya aciklanacaktir.

25. Etik Kurallar
Sirket'in etik kurallari bilgilendirme politikasi cercevesinde web sitesi araciliglyla kamuya aciklanmistir.

Yonetim Kurulu, ttim yoneticiler ve ¢alisanlarin Sirket etik kurallarinibenimseyip uygulamalarina bty ik
bir onem veriimektedir.
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26. Yonetim Kurulunda Olusturulan Komitelerin Sayi, Yapi ve Bagimsizhigi

GYH Yonetim Kurulu, SPK Kurumsal Yonetim llkeleri dogrultusunda Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi ve
Denetim Komitesi olusturmustur. Yonetim Kurulu Uyeleri komitelerin calismalari hakkinda dizenli
olarak bilgilendiriimektedir. 24 Haziran 201 3 tarihli Yonetim Kurulu karariyla Kurumsal Yonetim
Komitesi'ne bagimsiz Yonetim Kurulu Uyesi Jérome Bernard Jean Auguste Bayle ile icraci olmayan
Uyeler Aysegll Bensel ve Adnan Nas secilmistir. 24.06.201 3 tarihli Yonetim Kurulu Karartile bagimsiz
Yonetim Kurulu Uyeleri Oguz Satici ve Jerome Bernard Jean Auguste Bayle Denetim Komitesi'ne
secilmistir. 24 Haziran 201 3 tarihli Kurul karari uyarinca, Jérome Bernard Jean Auguste Bayle, Bagimsiz
Uye, Oguz Satici, Bagimsiz Uye ve Adnan Nas, icraci Olmayan Kurul Uyesi, Riskin Erken Saptanmasi
Komitesine Uye olarak secilmislerdir.

2012 yilinda Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi bes, Denetim Komitesi dort kez toplanmistir. Faaliyetlerini
kendi tlizUkleri cercevesinde surduren tim komiteler Yonetim Kurulu'na danismanlik yapmakta ve
tavsiyelerde bulunmaktadir. Komitelerde baskanlik yapan Uyeler, icraci olmayan bagimsiz Yonetim
Kurulu tyelerinden olusmaktadir. Denetim Komitesi Uyelerinin ve komite baskanlarinin bagimsiz
Yonetim Kurulu Uyeleri arasindan secilmesi zorunlulugu oldugundan Jéréme Bernard Jean Auguste
Bayle her iki komitede de gbrev Ustlenmistir.

Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi Gorev ve Calisma Esaslar:

1. AMAC

Sirket'te kurumsal yonetim ilkelerinin uygulanip uygulanmadigini, uygulanmamasi halinde nedenlerini
ve bu uyumsuzlugun yol actigl cikar catismalarini saptamak; bu alanda iyilestirme calismalari
strdirmek; ayni zamanda konuyla ilgili Yonetim Kurulu'nu bilgilendirmek ve Yatirmai iliskileri Birimi'nin
calismalarini denetleyip yonlendirmek.

2. YETKi VE KAPSAM

Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi:

a) Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi'nin gérev alani, Aday Gosterme Komitesi, Riskin Erken Saptanmasi
Komitesi, Ucretlendirme Komitesi ve Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi icin Sermaye Piyasasi mevzuatinda
ongorilen konulariicerir.

b) Sirket icinde Kurumsal Yonetim lilkeleri'ni gelistirerek benimsenmesini ve uygulanmasini saglamak

c) Yonetim Kurulu'nun yillik kurumsal yonetim degerlendirmesini yapmak ve Yonetim Kurulu'nun
onayina sunmak

d) Yatinma lliskileri Birimi'nin calismalarini diizenlemek
e) Yonetim Kurulu ve bagl komitelerin isleyisi, yapisi ve etkinligine iliskin dnerilerde bulunmak

f) Yonetim Kurulu'na uygun adaylarin saptanmasi ve degerlendirimesine iliskin politika ve stratejilerin
belirlenmesiicin calismalar yapmak
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g) Yonetim Kurulu'nun yapisi ve verimliligi hakkinda degerlendirme yapmak ve bu alanda yapilabilecek
degisikliklere iliskin Yonetim Kurulu'na tavsiyelerde bulunmak

h) Yonetim Kurulu Uyeleri ve Ust diizey yoneticilerin performans degerlendirmesi ve kariyer
planlamasina iliskin yaklasim, ilke ve uygulamalari belirlemek ve bu alanda gerekli yonlendirmelerde
bulunmak

i) Sirket hedeflerine ulasmayi engelleyebilecek riskli hususlarin etkilerinin ve olasiliklarinin
tanimlanmasi, degerlendirilmesi, izlenmesi ve yonetiimesi amaciyla etkinic kontrol sistemleri

olusturmak

j) Risk yonetimi ve ic kontrol sistemlerinin Sirket'in kurumsal yapisina etkin bir bicimde entegrasyonunu
takip etmek

k) Sirket'inrisk yonetimi ve ic kontrol sistemleri tarafindan risk unsurlarinin uygun kontroller
gozetilerek dlclilmesi, raporlanmasi ve karar mekanizmalarinda kullaniimasi konularinda calismalar

yapmak

I) Komite calisma esaslarini diizenli olarak gozden gecirmek ve nihai karar sorumlulugu Yonetim
Kurulu'na ait olmak Uzere, gerektiginde degisiklik dnerilerini Yonetim Kurulu'nun onayina sunmak

m) Sirket'in uzun vadeli hedeflerini dikkate alarak Yonetim Kurulu Uyelerinin ve st diizey yoneticilerin
Ucretlendirme esaslarina iliskin oneriler belirlemek

n) Ucretlendirmeyleilgili 8icttleri, Sirket'in ve Uyenin performansini birlikte degerlendirerek belirlemek

0) Komite calisma esaslarini diizenli olarak gbzden gecirmek ve nihai karar sorumlulugu Yonetim
Kurulu'na ait olmak Uzere, gerektiginde degisiklik nerilerini Yonetim Kurulu'nun onayina sunmak

3.KOMITENIN YAPISI

a) Komite, Sirket Ana Sozlesmesine uygun olarak olusturulur.

b) Komite, en az iki tiyeden olusur,

c) Komite baskani bagimsiz Yonetim Kurulu tiyeleri arasindan secilir,

d) Komite iki Uyeden olusuyorsa her iki tye, Uye sayisiikiden fazla ise tyelerin cogunlugu icraci olmayan

Kisiler arasindan secilir. Yuriitmede gorevli Sirket icra Baskani, Genel Miidur ve Maliislerden Sorumiu
Grup Baskani komitede gbrev alamaz.
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e) Komite gerektiginde konusunda uzman kisilerin gorislerinden yararlanir.

f) Komite her yil Olagan Genel Kurul'dan sonra yapilan ilk Yonetim Kurulu toplantisinda tekrar belirlenir,
g) Komite, Uye sayisi cogunlugunun katiimiyla toplanir, Uye sayisinin cogunluguyla karar alir,

h) Komitenin sekretarya islemleri Yonetim Kurulu sekretaryasi tarafindan yerine getirilir.

4. KOMITE TOPLANTILARI VE RAPORLAMA

a) Kurumsal Yonetim Komitesi toplantilari en az lic ayda bir gerceklestirilir,

b) Komite toplantilarinda alinan kararlar Yonetim Kurulu sekretaryasi tarafindan yazili hale getirilir ve
arsivlenir,

) Komite, yetki ve sorumluluk alanina giren konularda ulastigi sonuc ve nerileri Yonetim Kurulu'nun
bilgisine sunar.

5. SORUMLULUK
a) Kurumsal Yonetim ilkeleri'ne Uyum

Kurumsal Yonetim llkeleri'nin Sirket icinde gelistirimesini ve uygulanmasini saglar.

Sirket'te kurumsal yonetim ilkelerinin uygulanip uygulanmadigini, uygulanmamasi halinde
nedenlerini ve bu uyumsuzlugun yol actigl cikar catismalarini saptar; bu alandakiiyilestirme
onerilerini Yonetim Kurulu'na sunar.

Komite, pay sahipleri tarafindan Sirket'e ulastirilan onemli sikayetleriinceler, sonuca baglanmasini
saglar ve calisanlarin da bu konulardaki bildirimlerinin gizlilik ilkesi cercevesinde yonetime iletilmesini
temin eder.

Kurumsal ydnetim kapsaminda degerlendirilebilecek ve Yonetim Kurulu tarafindan talep edilen diger
faaliyetleri yerine getirir.

b) Kamuya Yapilacak Aciklamalar
Komite, kamuya aciklanacak faaliyet raporunu gdzden gecirir.
Komite, kamuya yapilacak aciklamalarin ve analist sunumlarinin Sirket “Bilgilendirme Politikasi"na
uygun olarak yapilmasini saglayan oneriler gelistirir.

c) Yatinmai lliskileri

“Pay Sahipleri ile iliskiler Birimi", ortaklar ve yatirimcilar arasindaki tiim iliskileriizlemek ve bunlarin
bilgi edinme haklarina iliskin gereklerin eksiksiz bir bicimde yerine getiriimesini saglamak amaciyla
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kurulmustur.
Pay Sahipleri ile iliskiler Birimi;

Yeteri kadar uzman personelden olusur.

Pay sahiplerinin ve yatirimailarin bilgi taleplerini, mevzuat, Ana Sozlesme, kurumsal yonetim ilkeleri
ve bilgilendirme politikasi cercevesinde yerine getirir.

Mevzuat, esas s6zlesme, kurumsal yonetim ilkeleri ve bilgilendirme politikasi cercevesinde yurtici
ve yurtdisinda periyodik yatinmci bilgilendirme toplantilari dtizenler veya diizenlenen toplantilara
katilr.

Web sitesi araciligiyla yerli ve yabanci yatinmcilarla etkin iletisim kurmak icin gerekli calismalari
yapar,

Kamuyu aydinlatma uygulamalarinin ilgili mevzuata uygun sekilde gerceklesmesini gozetir ve izler,
Pay sahiplerine iliskin kayitlarin saglikli, gtivenli ve gtincel olarak tutulmasini saglar.

Faaliyet raporlarinin mevzuat ve SPK Kurumsal Yonetim llkelerinin gereklilikleri dogrultusunda
hazirlanmasini saglar.

Genel Kurul toplantilarinin usuline uygun sekilde toplanmasini saglar.

Genel Kurul toplantilarinda pay sahiplerine sunulacak doktmanlarin hazirlanmasini saglar.

Toplanti tutanaklarinin usuline uygun tutulmasi amaciyla gerekli sistemin olusturulmasini saglar.

d) Raporlama Sorumlulugu

Komite, yetki ve sorumluluk alanina giren konularda Yonetim Kurulu'nun bilgilendiriimis olmasini
saglar.

Komite, yaptigl ttim calismalari yazili hale getirerek kaydeder.

Komite, calismalarini ve dnerilerini rapor haline getirerek Yonetim Kurulu'na sunar.

e) Yonetim Kurulu'na Aday Gosterme

Yonetim Kurulu'na uygun adaylarin saptanmasi, degerlendirilmesi, egitiimesi ve ddullendirilmesi
konularinda seffaf bir sistem olusturur ve bu konuda politika ve stratejiler gelistirir.

Yonetim Kurulu tyelerinin ve yoneticilerin sayisi konusunda Gneriler gelistirir.

Yonetim Kurulu Uyeleriicin bir aday havuzu olusturur ve bu olusumda pay sahiplerinin gortis ve
onerilerini dikkate alir.

Sirket'in atama ve terfiilkelerini ve uygulamalarini periyodik olarak gbzden gecirir ve onaylar.
Adaylik kriterlerini belirler, dlizenli olarak gdzden gecirir ve belirlenen adaylari Yonetim Kurulu'na
onerir.
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f) Ucretlendirme

Yonetim Kurulu Uyelerinin ve Ust dlizey yoneticilerin performans degerlendirmesi, kariyer
planlamasi ve ddullendirilmesi konusunda yaklasim, ilke ve uygulamalari belirleyerek gdzetimini
yapmak ve bu uygulamalarin yazili hale getiriimesini saglamak

Sirketin Ucretlendirme felsefesini, ilkelerini ve uygulamalarini periyodik olarak gzden gecirip
onaylamak

Yonetim Kurulu Uyeleri ve Ust dizey yoneticilerin ticretlendirme esaslarinin sirketin risk yonetimi
ilke ve uygulamalarrile uyumlu olmasini saglamak

Ucretlendirme politikasinin pay sahiplerinin cikarlariyla uyumiu olmasini saglamak

Yonetim Kurulu Uyeleri ve Ust dizey yoneticilerin kendi Ucretlerinin kendileri tarafindan
belirlenmemesiicin gerekli tedbirleri almak

Denetim Komitesi'nin Gorev ve Calisma Esaslari
1.AMAC

Sirket'in muhasebe sisteminin, finansal bilgilerin denetiminin ve kamuya aciklanmasinin ve ic kontrol
sistemininisleyisinin ve etkinliginin gozetimini yapar.

2. YETKi ve KAPSAM

Denetim Komitesi;

a) Mali tablolarin, dip notlarin ve diger finansal bilgilerin dogrulugunu, seffafligini, mevzuata ve
uluslararasi muhasebe standartlarina uygunlugunu denetler ve bagimsiz denetim kurulusunun

gortstni de alarak Yonetim Kurulu'na yazili olarak bildirir.

b) Bagimsiz denetim kurulusunun ve calisanlarinin bagimsizligini zedeleyecek herhangi bir konu olup
olmadigini ve yeterliligini Yonetim Kurulu adina inceler.

c) Sirket'in muhasebe sisteminin, finansal bilgilerin kamuya aciklanmasinin, bagimsiz denetiminin ve ic
kontrol sistemininisleyisinin ve etkinliginin gozetimini yapar.

d) Bagimsiz denetim kurulusunun secimi, denetim sézlesmelerinin hazirlanarak bagimsiz denetim
sUrecinin baslatiimasi ve bagimsiz denetim kurulusunun her asamadaki calismalarini gozetir.

e) Sirket muhasebesi, ic kontrol sistemi ve bagimsiz denetimiyle ilgili yapilan sirket ici ve sirket disi
sikayetleri gizlilik ilkesi cercevesinde inceler ve sonuca baglar.

f) Yasal duzenlemelere ve sirket ici diizenlemelere uyumun saglanmasini gbzetir,

g) Komite calisma esaslarini diizenli olarak gbzden gecirir ve nihai karar sorumlulugu her zaman
Yonetim Kurulu'na ait olmak Uzere, gerektiginde Yonetim Kurulu'na degisiklik onerilerinde bulunur.
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3.KOMITENIN YAPISI
a) Komite Sirket Ana Sozlesmesine uygun olarak olusturulur,

b) Komite en az iki tiyeden olusur. Komite'de gdrev yapacak Uyelerin tamami, bagimsiz yonetim kurulu
Uyeleriarasindan secilmesi zorunludur,

c) Komite'de, Sirket icra Baskani ve Genel Miidiir ve Maliislerden Sorumlu Grup Baskani gorev alamaz.
d) Daha 6nce Sirket'e danismanlik yapmis kisiler Denetim Komitesi'ne tye secilemezler,

e) Komite gerektiginde konusunda uzman kisilerin gorislerinden yararlanir.

f) Komite her yil Olagan Genel Kurul'dan sonra yapilan ilk Yonetim Kurulu toplantisinda tekrar belirlenir,
g) Komite, Uiye sayisinin cogunlugun katilimiyla toplanir, ye sayisinin cogunluguyla karar alrr.

h) Komitenin sekretarya islemleri Yonetim Kurulu sekretaryasi tarafindan yerine getirilir.

4. KOMITE TOPLANTILARI VE RAPORLAMA

a) Denetim Komitesi en az tic ayda bir toplanir ve toplanti sonuclarini Yonetim Kurulu'na sunar.

b) Komite, yetki ve sorumiuluk alanina giren konularda Yonetim Kurulu'nu bilgilendirir,

) Komite toplantilarinda alinan kararlar Yonetim Kurulu sekretaryasi tarafindan yazil hale getirilir ve
arsivlenir,

5. SORUMLULUKLAR

a) Mali Tablolar ve Duyurular

Komite, kamuya aciklanacak finansal tablolar ve dipnotlarinin Sirket'in izledigi muhasebe ilkelerine,
gercege uygunluguna ve dogrulugunaiiliskin olarak sorumlu sirket yoneticilerinin ve bagimsiz
denetcilerin goruslerini alir; kendi degerlendirmeleriyle birlikte Yonetim Kurulu'na yazili olarak bildirir.
Komite, kamuya aciklanacak faaliyet raporunu gbdzden gecirir; burada yer alan bilgilerin Komite'nin
sahip oldugu bilgilerle tutarli olup olmadigini denetler.

Sirketin mali tablolarinin hazirlanmasini Gnemli dlclide etkileyecek; muhasebe politikalarinda, ic
kontrol sisteminde ve mevzuatta meydana gelen degisiklikleri Yonetim Kurulu'na raporlar.

Komite, Gnemlimuhasebe ve raporlama konularini gézden gecirir ve bunlarin mali tablolar
Uzerindeki etkisinin arastiriimasini saglar.
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Hissedarlar ve menfaat sahiplerinden gelen ve mali tablolari etkileyecek derecede 6nemli sikayetleri
inceler ve sonuca baglar.

Varlik ve kaynaklarin degerlemesi, garanti ve kefaletler, sosyal sorumluluklarin yerine getirilmesi,
dava karslliklari, diger yukumildltkler ve sarta bagli olaylar gibi, muhasebe kayitlarina aktariimasinda
Sirket yonetiminin degerlendirmesine ve kararina birakilmis islemleri gozden gecirir.

b) Bagimsiz Denetim Kurulusu

Bagimsiz denetim sirketinin secimi, degistiriimesi, denetim strecinin baslatimasi, faaliyetlerinin
izlenmesi ve degerlendirilmesi Komite'nin gdzetiminde gerceklestirilir.

Komite, bagimsiz dis denetcilerin onerdigi denetim kapsamini ve denetim sirecini inceler,
calismalarina engel olusturan konular hakkinda Yonetim Kurulu'nu bilgilendirir.

Komite, bagimsiz dis denetgilerin bagimsizligini gézden gecirip degerlendirir.

Komite, bagimsiz dis denetciler tarafindan tespit edilen Gnemli sorunlarin ve bu sorunlarin
giderilmesiyle ilgili 8nerilerinin zamaninda Komite'nin bilgisine ulasmasini ve tartisiimasini saglar.
Bagimsiz denetim sirketine iliskin her tiirlt Ucret ve tazminatiinceler ve onaylar.

c) ic Denetim ve ic Kontrol Sistemi

Komite i¢ kontrol sisteminin etkinligi ve yeterliligi konusunda calismalar yapar ve Yonetim Kurulu'na
raporlar.

ic denetimin seffaf olarak yapiimasi icin gerekli tedbirlerin alinmasini saglar.

Komite, ic Denetim Departmani'nin calismalarini ve organizasyon yapisini, gdrev ve calisma
esaslarini gozden gedirir, ic denetcilerin calismalarini sinirlayan veya calismalarina engel teskil eden
hususlar ve faaliyet etkinligi hakkinda Yonetim Kurulu'nu bilgilendirir ve Onerilerde bulunur.

Komite, ic Denetim Departmani denetim raporunda belirtilen nemli sorunlarin ve bu sorunlarin
giderilmesiile ilgili cozuim dnerilerinin zamaninda Komite'nin bilgisine ulasmasini, tartisiimasini ve
cevaplanmasini saglar.

d) Yasalarin Ongordiigii Diizenlemelere Uygunluk
Sirket faaliyetlerinin mevzuata ve sirket ici dizenlemelere uygun olarak yuruttltp yurutilmedigini
izler, DUzenlemelere aykiri hareket edilmesi halinde uygulanacak kurallari belirler.

Muhasebe, ic kontroller ve bagimsiz denetimle ilgili olarak Sirket'e ulasan sikayetlerin gizlilik ilkesi
cercevesinde degerlendiriimesini saglar.
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RiSKiIN ERKEN SAPTANMASI KOMITESININ GOREVLERI VE CALISMA KURALLARI

1. AMAC

Riskin Erken Saptanmasi Komitesinin amaci; sirketin varligini, gelismesini ve devamliligini tehlikeye
sokabilecek riskleri erken tespit etmek, bu dogrultuda gerekli onlemleri alip coztimleriuygulamak,
sirketin kurumsal risk alma profiline paralel olarak bu riskleri yonetmek ve raporlamak, tespit edilen
risklere iliskin gerekli onlemleri uygulamak, dahili kontrol sistemlerinin gelistiriimesi ve entegrasyonu
hususunu karar alirken dikkate almak ve bu hususta kurula 6nerilerde bulunmaktir.

2. YETKILER VE KAPSAM

Riskin Erken Saptanmasi Komitesi:

a) Etki ve olasiliklarina gore, sirketin hedeflerinin gerceklestirimesini etkileyebilecek risklihususlari
tanimlamak, degerlendirmek, izlemek ve yonetmek amaciyla etkili dahili kontrol sistemlerini olusturur,

b) Risk yonetimi ve dahili kontrol sistemlerinin sirketin kurumsal yapisina entegrasyonunu ve etkilerini
izler,

c) Sirketin risk yonetimi ve dahili kontrol sistemleri tarafindan risklerin 6lciimlenmesi, raporlanmasi ve
risklerle ilgili karar alma mekanizmalarinin kullaniimasi gibi hususlar tizerinde calisir ve gerekli gorilen
kontrolleri yapar.

d) Komitenin faaliyetlerini diizenli olarak gdzden gecirir, gerektiginde degisiklik tekliflerini onay icin
Kurula sunar, ancak nihai karar icin sorumluluk daima Kurula aittir.

3. KOMITENIN YAPISI

a) Komite, sirketin esas sézlesmesine uygun olarak olusturulmustur.

b) Komite en az iki tiyeden olusur. Komite baskani bagimsiz Kurul tyeleri arasindan secilir.
c) Gerekli gbrdugiinde komite, alanlarinda uzman kisilerin goriislerine basvurur.

d) Komite, her yil olagan genel kurul toplantisi sonrasinda yapilanilk Yonetim Kurulu toplantisinda
yeniden secilir.

e) Komite, Uye sayisinin yarisinin bir fazlasinin katilimiyla toplanir ve kararlar oy cokluguyla alinir.,

f) Komitenin sekreterya isleri, Kurulun sekreterligi tarafindan yrtulir,
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4. KOMITE TOPLANTILARI VE RAPORLAMA

a) Riskin Erken Saptanmasi Komitesi toplantilari en az her tic ayda bir yapilrr,

b) Komite, kendi yetki ve sorumluluguna giren hususlarla ilgili olarak Kurulu bilgilendirir.
) Komite toplantilarinda alinan kararlar Kurul sekreteryasi tarafindan yazilir ve arsivlenir.
5. SORUMLULUKLAR

a) Sirketin karsilastigi riskleri tanimlamak, analiz etmek, 6lcimlemek;, izliemek ve raporlamak ve kontrol
edilebilir ve kontrol edilemez riskleri azaltmak icin uyarilarda bulunmak.

b) Risk yonetimi stratejilerine dayanarak Kurulun onerileri dogrultusundarisk yonetimi politikalari
belirlemek, uygulama esaslari belirlemek ve bu esaslara gore uygulanmalarini saglamak.

¢) Risk yonetim modellerinin risk yonetiminde kullanilan araclar olarak tasarlanmasi, secilmesi,
uygulanmasi ve 0n onaylanmasi stireclerine istirak etmek, modelleri dtizenli olarak gbzden gecirmek,
senaryo analizleri yuriterek gerekli degisiklikleri yapmak.

d) Risk izleme fonksiyonunun etkili olarak uygulanmasini saglamak icin gerekli gorulduginde ilgili
birimlerden bilgi, 6neri ve rapor talep etmek.

27. Yonetim Kurulu’na Saglanan Mali Haklar

23 Mayis 201 3 tarihli Sirket Genel Kurulu'nda, Yonetim Kurulu Uyelerine aylik net 8.000 TL huzur
hakki ddenmesi karara baglanmistir. Ust diizey yoneticiler icin Ucretlendirme politikasi ve Yonetim
Kurulu yelerinin katilim bedeli web sayfasinda yayinlanmistir. 201 3 yiliicinde Sirket, konsolide
finansal tablolarda yer alanlarin disinda hicbir Yonetim Kurulu Uyesine ya da Ust dlizey yoneticiye borc
vermemis yada kredi kullandirmamistir,

Mehmet Kutman Serdar Kirmaz
Yonetim Kurulu Baskani icraci Yonetim Kurulu Uyesi
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Sorumluluk Beyani

Finansal Tablolarin Kabuliine lliskin Yonetim Kurulu Kararrnin
Tarih: 11 Mart 2014
Sayi: 835

SERMAYE PIYASASI KURULU'NUN 9. MADDESI, NO: lI-14.1 SAYILI TEBLIGI GEREGINCE SORUMLULUK
BEYANI

a) Sirket'in 01/01/2012-31/12/2013 donemine ait konsolide finansal tablolari tarafimizca
incelenmistir.

b) Gorev ve sorumluluklarimiz cercevesinde edindigimiz bilgilere gore rapor, 6nemli konularda gercege
ayKkiri bir aciklama ya da aciklamamiz tarihi itibariyle yaniltici olmasi sonucunu dogurabilecek herhangi
bir eksiklik icermemektedir.

) Gorev ve sorumluluklarimiz cercevesinde edindigimiz bilgilere gore, ilgili donem itibariyle, gecerli
olan finansal raporlama standartlarina gore hazirlanmis finansal tablolarin, aktif-pasif yapisi, finansal
konum ve kar/zarar acisindan Sirket'in konumunu dogru ve adil bir bicimde yansittigini; ayrica,
faaliyet raporunun isin gelisimi ve performansini, Sirket'in finansal durumunu, karsi karsiya oldugu
onemliriskler ve belirsizliklerle birlikte, Sirket'in faaliyet sonuclari hakkinda gercegi dogru ve diriistce
yansittigini beyan ederiz.

Saygllarimizla,

GLOBAL YATIRIM HOLDING A.S.

Kerem ESER Mehmet KUTMAN
Finans Direktoru Yonetim Kurulu Baskan

s -
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Bagimsizlik Beyan

Global Yatirim Holding A.S. Yonetim Kurulu'na,
Global Yatirim Holding A.S.'de gdrev yaptigim sire boyunca,
Yonetim Kurulu Uyesi olarak alti yildan daha uzun bir sure hizmet vermedigimi
Global Yatirim Holding A.S.'nin iliskili taraflarindan biri veya sirket sermayesinde dogrudan veya
dolayliolarak %5 veya daha fazla paya sahip hissedarlarin yonetim veya sermaye bakimindan iliskili
oldugu tizel kisiler ile kendim, esim ve Ucuncl dereceye kadar kan ve sihri hisimlarim arasinda,
son bes yilicinde, dogrudan veya dolayliistihdam, sermaye veya onemli nitelikte ticariiliskinin
kurulmadigini;
Son bes yilicinde, basta Global Yatirim Holding A.S.'nin denetimini, derecelendirilmesini ve
danismanligini yapan sirketler olmak tzere, yapilan anlasmalar cercevesinde Sirket'in faaliyet ve
organizasyonunun tamamini veya belli bir balumunu ytiruten sirketlerde calismadigimi ve Yonetim
Kurulu Uyesi olarak gbrev almadigimi;
Son bes yilicinde, Sirket'e 6nemli Slctide hizmet ve Urlin saglayan firmalarin birinde ortak, calisan
veya yonetim kurulu tyesi olmadigimi;
Yonetim Kurulu Uyeligi dolayisiyla Sirket sermayesinde sahip olacagim hisse oraninin %1 'den fazla
ve imtiyazli olmayacagini;
Bagimsiz Yonetim Kurulu tyesi olmam nedeniyle Ustlenecegim gorevleri geregi gibi yerine getirecek
mesleki egitim, bilgi ve tecriibeye sahip oldugumu;
Aday oldugum tarih itibariyle ve gorev stirem boyunca kamu kurum ve kuruluslarinda tam zamanli
gorev almadigimi;
Gelir Vergisi Kanunu'na gore Turkiye'de yerlesmis sayildigimi;
Sirket'in faaliyetlerine olumlu katkilarda bulunabilecek, ortaklar arasindaki cikar catismalarinda
tarafsizhgimi koruyabilecek, menfaat sahiplerinin haklarini dikkate alarak 6zgurce karar verebilecek
gliclu etik standartlara, meslekiitibara ve deneyime sahip oldugumu;
Yonetim Kurulu'nda g@revlerimi bagimsiz Uye olarak yerine getirecegimi

Yonetim Kurulunuz, ortaklariniz ve ilgili bltun taraflarin bilgisine beyan ederim.

Jerome Bayle Oguz Satici
Bagimsiz Yonetim Kurulu Uyesi Bagimsiz Yonetim Kurulu Uyesi

T s
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Global Yatirim Holding Grubu I¢ Kontrol:
Rasyonalizasyon

Global Yatirnm Holding 201 3 yilinda Grup capinda risk yonetimi ve ic kontrol politikalarini titizlikle
uygulamayi strdirmtistiir. Oteden beri uygulanan kurumsal etik kurallara yonetim raporlama
sistemleri, internet kullanim kisitlamalari, 6zsermayeli ticaret limitleri ve ilkeleri de dahil olmak

tizere, dizenli bicimde riayet edilmistir, Ote yandan, tiim organizasyonu kapsayacak sekilde, Sirket
varliklarinin gtivenligini saglamaya yonelik ve bilgi sistemlerini de iceren bir bilinc yukseltme calismasi
hayata gecirilmistir.

Grup operasyonlarinin verimliligini ve Uretkenligini artiran, finansal raporlamanin ve faaliyetlerin yasal
mevzuata uyumunu glivence altina alan ic kontrol sistemi, yillik ic denetim plani dogrultusunda ic
Denetim Ekibi tarafindan denetlenmekte ve sonuclar Yonetim Kurulu'na sunulmaktadir. Kurumsal risk
yonetimi acisindan énemli bulunan risklere yilik denetim planinda oncelikli olarak yer veriimektedir.

Yonetim Kurulu'nun talebi tizerine ic Denetim Ekibi 2013 yilinda, Grup sirketleri ve Genel Merkez
birimlerindeki potansiyel riskleri tespit etmek amaciyla cesitli denetim uygulamalarini koordinasyon
icinde yUrtitmiistir. Ic Denetim Ekibi teknik ic denetim yaklasimi kapsaminda, hem holding hem de tek
tek sirketler dlizeyinde gerekli onlemleri alarak etkin risk yonetimi araclarini uygulamaya koymustur.
Ekip, 2014 yilinda da, yillik denetim plani cercevesinde genis bir yelpazeye yayilanic denetim
uygulamalarinihayata gecirmeyi amaclamaktadir.
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Finansal Gortinim

Global Yatirim Holding'in gectigimiz yil 166,3 milyon TL olan net geliri, %49 artisla 247,3 milyon TL'ye
ulasmistir. Bu artis, Grubun tim is birimlerinin, 0zellikle konsolide gelirlere by Uk katkisi olan Liman ve
Enerji birimlerinin gliclti faaliyet performansi neticesinde gerceklesmistir.

Faiz, Amortisman ve Vergi OncesiKar (FAVOK) tutari, Bar Limani, Naturelgaz ve Straton Maden
alimlari sonucu olusan 109,7 milyon TL serefiye kazanci da dahil olmak tizere 190,0 milyon TL olarak
gerceklesmistir. 2012 yilindaise bu tutar, varlik satislari ve alimlariile elde edilen 163,0 milyon TL de
dahil olmak tizere 208,3 milyon TL olarak gerceklesmistir.

Segment bazindaise, Grubun Liman isletmelerine ait gelirleri 2013 yilinda 2012 yilina kiyasla

%17 oraninda bir artis gdstererek, 122,4 milyon TL'den 143,5 milyon TLye ulasmistir. Ticariliman
faaliyetlerinin ve ozellikle Antalya Limani'nin operasyonel performansi bu artista etkili olmustur.
Segmentteki normallestiriimis FAVOK tutari 2013 yilinda 2012 yilinakiyasla 80,2 milyon Tl'den 93,9
milyon TLye yukselmistir.

Grubun Enerji segmentinin sikistiriimis dogalgaz ve feldspat satislarindan olusan 2013 gelirleri toplam
63,3 milyon TL olmustur. Segmentin FAVOK tutar, bir onceki yilin ayni doneminde gerceklesen

3,1 milyon Tl'ye kiyasla 2013 yilinda 53,1 milyon TL olarak gerceklesmistir. Segmentin 2013 yili
FAVOK tutari, enerji varligi alimlarindan kaynaklanan 54,5 milyon TL tutarindaki negatif serefiyeyi de
icermektedir. 2012 yilindaise bu rakam 12,8 milyon TL olarak gerceklesmistir.

Son olarak, GYH 2013 yilinda, bir 8nceki yilin 108,4 milyon TL net karinakarsin 29,1 milyon TL
konsolide net kar acikladi. Bu dustsin ana nedenlerinin Grup'un uzun vadeli kredilerinden kaynaklanan
46,9 milyon TL tutarindaki kur farklari ve varlik alimi sonucu olusan 60,0 milyon TL tutarindaki
amortisman/itfa payi giderleridir. Ayrica, temettl dagitimina bagli olarak ertelenmis vergi varliklarinda
2013 yiinda 15,4 milyon TL azalma meydana gelmistir.

Hisse Geri Alim Programi 201.3'lin sonlarinda tamamlanmis ve Sirket sermayesinin %9,24'tnt temsil
eden 20.791.765 hisse geri alinmistir. Bubaglamda, GYH 2013 yilinda 8dedigi hisse basina 0,05940
TL nakit temettlye ilave olarak, yatirimcilarina hisse basina 0,1443 TL "“temettl karsiligl" dagitnmistir.
2013 yilinda, timis segmentleri pozitif nakit akisi gerceklestirmistir. Grup karliligini stirdtirme ve
enerji, madencilik ve gayrimenkul yatirimlarindan temettu akisi yaratma hususlari odak noktasi
olurken Grubun faaliyetlerinin itici glici olmaya devam edecektir.
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Feragatname

Elinizdeki Faaliyet Raporu'nda yer alan proje ve faaliyetler, Global Yatirnm Holding A.S.'ve (“Global Yatirim
Holding Grubu" ya da "Sirket") ait cesitli sirketler (“istirakler”) tarafindan gerceklestirilmistir. Global
Yatinm Holding A.S. ve istirakleriraporda ayrica "Grup" olarak da anilmaktadir.

Aksi belirtiimedigi takdirde, bu Faaliyet Raporu'nda sunulan bilgiler 31 Aralik 201 3 tarihiitibariyle biten
donemi kapsamaktadir. “Mevcut" ve "halen" terimleri, ilgili bilginin Faaliyet Raporu’nun matbaaya
gonderildigi zamana ait oldugunu ifade etmektedir.

Turkiye Cumhuriyeti'nin para birimi Ttirk Lirasi'dir (TL). S6z konusu para birimi 1 Ocak 2009 tarihinde,
Yeni Turk Lirasi (YTL) ile bire bir takas edilmek lizere piyasaya stirtimustur. Yalnizca kolaylik saglamasi
acisindan, rapordaki belirli TL tutarlar, aksi belirtimedigi takdirde ilgili donemde TCMB tarafindan
aciklanan ABD dolari - Turk Lirasi kuru ya da ortalama resmi kur esas alinarak, ABD dolari cinsinden
sunulmustur. Burada, ilgili TL tutarlarin belirtilen kur ya da baska bir kur tizerinden ABD dolarina fiilen
cevrilmesi soz konusu degildir.

Elinizdeki Faaliyet Raporu, "amac”, "beklenti"”, "6ngoru", "program”, “proje”, "hedef", “planlanmis” vb.
gelecege donuk ifadeler icermektedir. Sirket yonetiminin Faaliyet Raporu'nun matbaaya gonderildigi
tarihitibariyle sahip oldugu beklentilere dayanan bu tur ifadeler, dogasi itibariyle operasyonel risklere;
ayrica genel ekonomik ve politik kosullar, piyasa fiyat, oran ve endekslerindeki volatilite, mevzuat ve
duzenlemelerdeki gelismeler gibi kontrolumuz disindaki etkenlere; dahasi bizim vasifli personeliise
alma ve muhafaza etme, projeler icin finansman bulma, yapilandirma ve temin etme, optimal teknoloji
ve bilgi sistemlerini kurma ve rekabetci bir piyasada basarili bir bicimde faaliyet yUrutme becerimize
tabidir. Dolayisiyla, elde ettigimiz sonuclar ddnemden doneme degisebilir ve stratejik hedeflerimize
ulasamayabiliriz.

Global Yatirim Holding Tiirkiye'de istanbul'da kuruludur. Sirket'in kayith genel merkez acik adresi Rihtim
CaddesiNo: 51, Karakdy 34425, istanbul, Turkiye'dir. Global Yatinm Holding, SPK ve Borsa istanbul
mevzuatina tabidir. Diger Grup sirketleri de sermaye piyasasi diizenlemelerine ya da yetkili dlizenleyici
otoritelere tabidir.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the Board of Directors of Global Yatirim Holding Anonim Sirketi,
Introduction

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position (balance sheet) of Global Yatirim Holding Anonim
Sirketi (the "Company") and its Subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the (“Group") as at 31 December 2013 and the related
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and explanatory notes.

Group Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Group's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards published by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
("POA") and for such internal controls as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to error and/or fraud.

Independent auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our audit was conducted
in accordance with standards on auditing issued by the Capital Markets Board of Turkey. Those standards require that ethical
requirements are complied with and that the independent audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the financial statements provide a true and fair view of the Group.

An audit involves performing independent audit procedures to obtain independent audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our professional judgment, including

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error and/or fraud. In making
those risk assessments, the Group's internal control system is taken into consideration. Our purpose, however, is not to express
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control system, but to design procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances in
order to identify the relation between the consolidated financial statements prepared by the Group and its internal control system.
An audit includes also evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Group's management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly the consolidated financial position of Global
Yatirim Holding Anonim Sirketi and its Subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 and its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards (Note 2).

Reports on independent auditor’s responsibilities arising from other regulatory requirements

In accordance with Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code (*TCC"); the Board of Directors submitted to us the necessary
explanations and provided required documents within the context of audit, additionally, no significant matter has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the Group's bookkeeping activities for the period 1 January — 31 December 2013 is not in
compliance with the code and provisions of the Company's articles of association in relation to financial reporting.

Pursuant to Article 378 of Turkish Commercial Code no. 6102, Board of Directors of publicly traded companies are required to

form an expert committee, and to run and to develop the necessary system for the purposes of: early identification of causes

that jeopardize the existence, development and continuity of the company; applying the necessary measures and remedies in

this regard; and, managing the related risks. According to subparagraph 4, Article 398 of the code, the auditor is required to prepare
a separate report explaining whether the Board of Directors has established the system and authorized committee stipulated
under Article 378 to identify risks that threaten or may threaten the Company and to provide risk management, and, if such a
system exists, the report, the principles of which shall be announced by the POA, shall describe the structure of the system and the
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practices of the committee. This report shall be submitted to the Board of Directors along with the auditor's report. Our audit does
not include evaluating the operational efficiency and adequacy of the operations carried out by the management of the Company
in order to manage these risks. As of the balance sheet date, POA has not announced the principles of this report yet so no separate
report has been drawn up relating to it. On the other hand, the Company formed the mentioned committee on 24 June 2013 and
itis comprised of 3 members. The committee has met one time since its formation to the reporting date for the purposes of early
identification of risks that jeopardize the existence of the company and its development, applying the necessary measures and
remedies in this regard, and managing the risks, and has submitted the relevant report to the Board of Directors.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to the following litigation matters:

As explained in detail in Note 19.2, on 26 February 2013 the court case which continues as at the date of reporting period between
Ankara Metropolitan Municipality (“the Municipality”) and Joint Venture Group ("JVG"), comprising the Company, regarding the
cancellation of the injunction of liquidation of Letter of Guarantee amounting to USD 50 million given by the Group in favor of
Municipality in accordance with the specifications of the privatization tender of Baskent Dogalgaz Dagitim A.S. by the method

of block sale, has been resulted against the JVG. The Group appealed the file as the reasoned decision of the court is complete

and received by the Group and accounted its obligations arising from the decision of the court of first instance inits consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2012. As at the date of reporting period, the Letter of Guarantee amounting to USD
50,000,000 has beenliquidated and paid in cash by the Group and legal proceedings with regard to collection of share of the
members of the JVG whichis recognized as other receivables have been initiated. On the other hand, the Municipality filed a lawsuit
against the Group before 4th Ankara Commercial Court in request for the compensation for unlawful preliminary injunction and
lawsuit petition. The interim decision related to the lawsuit has been received by the Group. In the rebuttal petition, the Group's
lawyers claimed for nonsuit and requested for awaiting the finalization of the decision of the superior court, evidencing of tangible
damages of plaintiff by the Municipality and determining of the scope of compensation in accordance with the Code of Obligation
Article 51.

At the preliminary examination hearing dated 21 November 2013 at 4th Ankara Commercial Court, the appeal lawsuit regarding
restitution of the Letter of Guarantee before 11th Chamber of Supreme Court has been accepted as prejudicial issue.

As explained in detail in Note 19.2, the Water Utilization Rights Agreement which should had been signed between a subsidiary

of the Group engaged in hydroelectric power plant investments and the General Directorate of State Water Works (“DSI") has not
been put in signature due to the cancellation of the project by DSI. The Group lawyers have filed a lawsuit at the 16th Administrative
Court of Ankara to cancel the decision given by DSI which was further rejected by the Court. The Group lawyers appealed the verdict
of the decision at the Council of State and requested an injunction.

As at the date the consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue, the litigations mentioned above are being held at
different stages of the judicial proceedings and include uncertainty regarding the ultimate outcome of the resolutions. The Group
management, based on consultation with the Group legal attorneys, has not provided any provision with respect to aforementioned
litigation matters in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Additional Paragraph for Convenience Translation to English
As explainedin Note 2.1(a), the accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the consolidated

financial position and the consolidated results of operations of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Turkey and International Financial Reporting Standards.

Istanbul, 11 March 2014
Akis Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik Anonim Sirketi

Crho Mo

Orhan Akova, SMMM
Partner
Istanbul, Turkey
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Position
(Balance Sheet) as at 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

Audited
Audited (Restated) (*)
Notes 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

ASSETS
Current assets 386.385.802 259.188.610
Cash and cash equivalents 7 74.333.643 48.868.879
Financial assets 8 23.028.330 9.738.924
Trade receivables 36.873.195 13.017.832
- Other trade receivables 10 36.873.195 13.017.832
Other receivables 31.593.215 65.979.971
- Due from related parties 6 26513110 29.028.678
- Other receivables 11 5.080.105 36,951,293
Receivables from operations in finance sector 44.663.535 63.213.340
- Due from related parties 6 11.074.620 10.981.046
- Other receivables 12 33,588,915 52,232,294
Inventories 13 27.760.220 26.338.469
Prepayments 14 16.259.454 2168.837
Current income tax assets 31 2.141.787 3.108.055
Other current assets 22 18.687.002 25,891,552
(Subtotal) 275.340.381 258325859
Assets classified as held for sale 36 111.045421 862.751
Non-current assets 1.591.217.416 1.074.715.919
Other receivables 63.510.338 55.673.742
- Due from related parties 6 5.029.659 5,029.659
- Other receivables 11 58.480.679 50.644.083
Financial assets 8 5164987 3.083.737
Equity accounted investees 18 46.870.242 45.829.232
Investment property 15 223.510.000 197.915.245
Property, plant and equipment, net 16 317.369.431 118.811.928
Intangible assets, net 861.554.303 594.809.183
- Goodwill 17 44,178,992 41,243,581
- Other intangible assets 17 817.375311 553.565.602
Prepayments 14 17.241.027 26.184.804
Deferred tax assets 31 34.967.122 28.332.356
Other non-current assets 22 21.029.966 4,075,692
TOTAL ASSETS 1.977.603.218 1.333.904.529

(*) See Note 2.3.e for restatements.

Accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Position
(Balance Sheet) as at 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

Audited  Audited (Restated) (*)
Notes 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
LIABILITIES

Short term liabilities 423.279.577 305.425.524
Short-term borrowings 9 114.317.515 22.339.619
Short portion of long-term borrowings 9 133.714.789 84.235.729
Trade Payables 28.725.646 4.184.386
- Due to related parties 6 - -
- Other trade payables 10 28.725.646 4.184.386
Payables related to employee benefits 21 3.903.294 1.774.465
Other payables 39.285.206 46.124.930
- Due torelated parties 6 122.653 166.748
- Other payables 11 39.162.553 45958182
Liabilities due to operations in finance sector 39.489.658 49.260.566
Due to related parties 6 302,770 20.910
- Other payables 12 39.186.888 49.239.656
Derivative instruments 33 - 47.835
Deferred income 14 7437721 326.717
Current tax liabilities 5.016.673 3.502.554
Provisions 3.301.130 92.062.782
- Short term employee benefits 21 1.127.571 966.712
- Other provisions 19 2.173.559 91.096.070
Other short-term liabilities 22 9.671.609 1.565.941
(Subtotal) 384.863.241 305425524

Liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale 36 38.416.336
Long term liabilities 828.421.052 291.147.545
Long term borrowings 9 607.948.170 176.273.277

Trade payables 767.976
- Other trade payables 767.976 -
Other payables 46.471.920 1.004.929
- Due to related parties 6 16.220 16.220
Other payables 11 46.455.700 988.709
Liabilities arising from equity accounted investees 18 735735 -
Deferred Income 14 863.325 -
Provisions 5541781 2.763.274
Long term employee benefits 21 5541.781 2763274
Deferred tax liabilities 31 166.092.145 111.106.065
EQUITY 23 725.902.589 737.331.460
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 515.252.194 516.924.660
Paid-in capital 225.003.687 225.003.687
Inflation adjustment on capital 34.659.630 34.659.630

Tresury shares owned by the Company

(29.985.681)

(10.237.242)

Tresury shares owned by the subsidiaries

(53.731.622)

(59.783.630)

Share premium 4.893.906 4.893.906
Accumulated other comprehensive income/expense not to be reclassified 13.726.331 13.885.308
toprofit or loss
- Special Funds 14.497.128 14.497.128
Actuarial gain / (loss) on employee benefits (770.797) (611.820)
Accumulated other comprehensive income/expense to be reclassified to
profit or loss 104.423.733 42412221
- Foreign Currency translation differences 116.923.599 41.798.476
Gain/loss on revaluation and remeasurement 281.339 613.745
- Gain/loss arising from net investment hedges (12.781.205) -
Restricted reserves 79.706.826 86.393.932
Retained earnings 107.443.791 71.320.624
Net profit/(loss) for the peirod 29111593 108.376.224
Non-controlling interests 210.650.395 220.406.800

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1.977.603.218

1.333.904.529

(*) See Note 2.3.e for restatements.

Accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

Audited
Audited (Restated) (*)
1 January- 1 January-
Notes 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
PROFIT ORLOSS
Revenue 24 224.216.840 143.156.841
Cost of revenues (-) 24 (148.634.186) (86.491.224)
Gross profit from trade operations 75.582.654 56.665.617
Revenues from finance operations 24 23.132.084 23.211.103
Cost of revenues from finance operations (=) 24 (2.987.123) (4.014.076)
Gross profit from operations in finance sector 20.144.961 19.197.027
GROSS PROFIT 95.727.615 75.862.644
Marketing expenses (-) 25 (16.895.478) (3.623.536)
General administrative expenses (-) 25 (78.082.749) (72.380.586)
Other operating income 27 123.578.482 167.882.762
Other operating expense (=) 27 (11.070.117) (3.873.537)
Share of profit/(loss) of equity accounted investees 18 (775.467) (7.152.794)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 112.482.286 156.714.953
Income from investing activities 28 16.908.658 7427124
Expense from investing activities (=) 28 (897.324) (557.948)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE FINANCE INCOME/EXPENSE 128.493.620 163.584.129
Finance income 29 22.153.260 25.328.547
Finance expenses (-) 30 (120.978.714) (84.240.312)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 29.668.166 104.672.364
Income tax credit /(expense) (3.168.836) 12.303.770
- Current tax benefit/(expense) 31 (10.448.284) (10.354.451)
- Deferred tax benefit /(expense) 31 7.279.448 22.658.221
NET OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 26.499.330 116.976.134
Net profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - -
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 26.499.330 116.976.134
Profit/(loss) attributable to 26.499.330 116.976.134
Non-controlling interests (2.612.263) 8.599.910
Owners of the company 32 29.111.593 108.376.224
Earnings per share
-Earnings per share from continuing operations 32 01830 0,6587
Diluted earnings per share
-Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 32 01830 0,6587
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other Comprehensive Income/Expense not to be Reclassified to Profit
orlLoss (158.977) (301.596)
Actuarial loss on employee benefits (158.977) (301.596)
Other Comprehensive Income/Expense to be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 65.301.771 (35.739.428)
Change in revaluation fund of financial assets (461.041) (3.094)
Change in foreign currency translation differences 78.451.809 (35.736.953)
Gain/loss arising from net investment hedges 30 (12.781.205) -
Tax income/expense related with revaluation fund of financial assets 92.208 619
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) 65.142.794 (36.041.024)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 91.642.124 80.935.110
Total comprehensive income attributable to 91.642.124 80.935.110
Non-controlling interests 702150 59.572
Owners of the compan 90.939.974 80.875.538

(*) See Note 2.3.e for restatements.

Accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

Audited-
Audited Restated (*)
1 January- 1 January-
Notes 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit/(loss) 26.499.330 116.976.134

Adjustment to reconcile net profit/ (loss) before tax and net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 59.915.277 44.056.752
Tax (income)/expense 3.168.836 (12.303.770)
Bargain purchase gain 27 (109.670.862) (12.807.961)
Gain on sale of joint ventures (150.185.136)
Change in provision for employment termination indemnities 633.224 606.867
Net gain / (loss) from sale of non-current assets 59.222 (162.655)
Changein fair value of derivatives 29 (47.835) (877.131)
Interest income from operations in finance sector 24 (7.499.4. (7.904.215)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss on bank borrowings 68.790.133 (4.689.862)
Other provisions 360.799 44.487.152
Interest income from non-financial activities 29 (8.555.610) (6.460.859)
Impairment loss on goodwill 1.587.600 -

Interest charges from loans extended to customers

2.071.783

2.959.437

Dividendincome 27,28 (1.022.476) (933.483)
Letter of guarantee commissions and other financial expenses 30 700.000 7.072.365
Interest expense from other than in finance sector 56.301.333 26425724
Gain on sale of associates (1.546.042)
(Gain) / loss on sale of investment properties (25.286.372) (4.467.095)
Loss / (gain) from equity accounted investees 775.467 7.152.794
Gain on sale of subsidiary 27 - (1.745.775)
Change in restricted cash deposits 7 275507 (8.868.366)
Change in allowance of doubtful receivables 219.892 489.075
Operating cash flow before changes in operating assets and liabilities 69.275.763 37.273.950
Taxes paid (7.967.897) (7.694.815)
Interest received from financial sector activities 7.499.485 7.904.215
Interest paid related to loans extended to customers (2.071.783) (2.959.437)
Dividend received 1022476 933483
Employment termination indemnity paid (259.222) (96.485)
Change in trade receivables from operations in finance and non-finance sectors 1.108.351 (21.485.808)
Changein other receivables 27.135.256 (1.444.228)
Change in other current assets and prepaid expenses 5.625.283 (7.064.872)
Change in other non-current assets (14.384.808) 939.229
Change in inventories 1.819.695 5.521.040
Change in trade payables due to operations in finance and non-finance sectors (2.312.078) (4.257.016)
Change in other payables (41.429.342) 20.924.330
Change in other current liabilities 14.143.666 (3.705.147)
Change in other non-current liabilities (153.289) 524.876
Net cash from operating activities 59.051.556 34.313.315
Investing activities
Addition to investment propert 15 (308.383) (559.073)
quisition of property. plant and equipment 16 (57.953.514) (12.545.028)
quisition of intangible assets 17 (931.884) (126.863)
Acquisition of inventories (1.521.589) -
Initial public offer and purchase and sale of shares in a subsidiary in the finance segment without loss
of control - 1148079
Purchase of equity accounted investees (41.891.792) -
Purchase of non-controlling interest without loss in control (160.864.117) -
Change in financial investments (13.887.139) 8.719.311
Cash paid for purchase of subsidiary, net (30.028.387) -
Cash obtianed from sale of joint ventures, net - 101.024.350
Cash paid for purchase of joint venture, net (761.440) (5.390.745)
Interest received from other than in finance sector 8.280.103 6.132.382
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 840.809 3.394.267
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities (299.027.333) 101.796.680

Financing activities

Interest paid for financing activities

(46.511.988)

(31.235.352)

Change in treasury shares

(13.696.431)

3.497.800

Cash paid for letter of guarantee commisions and other financing activities

(5.788.886)

Cash paid for letters of guarantee 19

(89.130.000)

Dividend distribution

(9.763.633)

Dividend distribution to non controlling interest

(6.355.152)

(17.879.990)

Proceeds from borrowings

878.863.109

118367.735

(424.079.513)

(205.860.631)

Net cash from / (used in) financing activities 289.326.392 (138.899.324)
Effect of foreign currency translation (23.610.344) (15.952.821)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25.740.271 (18.742.150)
Transfer to assets held for sale - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 7 35.906.936 54.649.086
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 7 61.647.207 35.906.936

(*)See Note 2.3.e for restatements.

Accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

1 ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Global Yatirm Holding A.S. (“Global Yatirim Holding", “Global Holding", “GYH' or “the Company"') was
establishedin 1990 with the trade name Global Menkul Degerler A.S. as a brokerage company in
istanbul, Turkey. On 6 October 2004, the Company changed its trade name to Global Yatirim Holding
A.S andits field of activity to restructured itself as a holding company. As part of its restructuring,
on 2 October 2004, a new company, named Global Menkul Degerler A.S. was established by through
a partial de-merger in accordance withunder Turkish legislationlaw and 99,99% of its shares were
owned by the Company. All of the Company's brokerage activities were transferred to this new
company. The main operation of the Company's primary purpose is to participate invest in the capital
and participate in the management of companies that operate or will operate in the fields of financial
services, energy, infrastructure and real estate development sectors, and to minimize the volatility
of its investments against economic fluctuations by handling managing the capital expenditure,
financing, organization and administration of those its investment companies within portfolio,

while contributing to such companies the achievingement of sustainable growth and ensuring the
going concern of those such companies to the benefit of the national economy, and to engage in
commercial, industrial and financial activities in line with these goals.

Global Yatinnm Holding, its subsidiaries, its joint ventures and its associates are together referred to as
“the Group". As at 31 December 2013, the number of employees of the Groupis 1.415 (31 December
2012:630)

The Group is registered with the Capital Market Board (*CMB") and its shares have been traded on the
BorsaIstanbul ("BIST") since May 1995 (from May 1995 to 1 October 2004, the company traded as
“Global Menkul Degerler A.S.").

The registered office of the Company is "Rihtim Caddesi No: 51 Karakdy / Istanbul”.

99,99% of the shares of the Company arelisted on the BIST.

The Company's shareholding structure is presented in Note 23.
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

1 ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS (continued)

The nature of the operations and the locations of the "Subsidiaries"” of the Group are listed below:

Subsidiaries

Location

Operations

Global Menkul Degerler A.S. (Global Menkul) (1)

Turkey

Brokerage

Global Financial Products Ltd. (GFP)

Cayman Islands

Financial Investments

Global Sigorta Aracilik Hizmetleri A.S. (Global Sigorta) Turkey Insurance Agenc
Global Liman Isletmeleri A.S. (Global Liman) (15) Turkey Infrastructure
Ege Global Madencilik San. ve Tic. A.S. (Ege Global) Turkey Mining Investments
Mavi Bayrak Tehlikeli Atk imha Sistemleri San. ve Tic. A.S. (Mavi
Bayrak) Turkey Waste Disposal Systems
Salipazariinsaat Taahhiit Bina Yonetim ve Servis
Hizmetleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. (Salipazan) (2) Turkey  Construction Investments
Giiney Madencilik Isletmeleri A.S. (Gliney) Turkey Mining
Neptune Denizcilik Yatirimlari ve Isletmeciligi A.S. (Neptune) (3) Turkey Maritime Investments
Nesa Madencilik San. ve Tic. A.S. (Nesa) Turkey Mining
Vespa Enterprises (Malta) Ltd. (Vespa) Malta Tourism Investments
Pera Gayrimenkul Yatinim Ortakligi A.S. (Pera) Turkey Real Estate Investments
Tora Yayincilik A.S. (Tora) Turkey Publishing
Global Enerji Hizmetleri ve isletmeciligi A.S. (Global Enerji) Turkey Electricity Generation
Dagoren Enerji AS. (Dagoren) (4) Turkey Electricity Generation
Global Securities (USA) Inc. (1.2)(5) USA Brokerage
CJSC Global Securities Kazakhstan (12)(5) Kazakhstan Brokerage
Ege Liman isletmeleri A.S. (Ege Liman) (6) Turkey Port Operations
Bodrum Yolcu Limani isletmeleri A.S. (Bodrum Liman) (6) Turkey Port Operations
Ortadogu Antalya Liman isletmeleri A.S.
(Ortadogu Liman) (6) Turkey Port Operations
izmir Liman Isletmeciligi A.S (izmir Liman) (6) Turkey Port Operations
Sem Yayincilk A.S. (Sem) (7) Turkey Publishing
Maya Turizm Ltd. (Maya Turizm) (8) Cyprus Tourism Investments
Galata Enerji Uretim San. ve Tic. A.S. (Galata Eneriji) (4) (19) Turkey Electricity Generation
Dogal Enerji Hizmetleri ve isletmeciligi A.S. (Dogal Eneriji) Turkey Electricity Generation
Global Depolama AS. (6) Turkey Storage
Torba Insaat ve Turistik A.S. (Torba) (9) Turkey Real Estate Investments
GES EnerjiA.S. Turkey Electricity Generation
Stimerpark Gida Isletmeciligi A.S. (10) Turkey Food Management
Randa Denizcilik San. ve Tic. Ltd. Sti. (Randa) (11) Turkey Marine Vehicle Trade
Ra Giines Enerjisi Uretim San. ve Tic. A.S. (Ra Giines) (4) (13) Turkey Electricity Generation
Tres Enerji Hizmetleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S (Tres Enerji) (4) Turkey Energy Generation
Straton Maden Yatinmlari ve Isletmeciligi A.S. (Straton) (16) Turkey Mining
Adonia Shipping Limited Malta Ship Management
Compressed Natural Gas
Naturelgaz Sanayi ve Tic. A.S. (Naturelgaz) (14) Turkey Sales
Container Terminal and General Cargo — Bar (Port of Bar) (17) Montenegro Port Operations
Gelis Madencilik Enerji insaat Ticaret A.S. (Gelis Madencilik) (18) (19) Turkey Mining
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

1 ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS (continued)

(1) In2011asaresult of the sale of its shares through an initial public offering and direct sale and
subsequent purchase of some of its publicly traded shares the Group's effective ownership
rate in this company decreased to 76,85% as at 31 December 2011 and 75,67 % as at 31
December 201 2. As at 31 December 2013, the Group's effective ownership rate in this
company is 67,43%.

(2)  This company's corporate name was changed to Salipazari insaat Taahhtit Bina Yonetim ve
Servis Hizmetleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S.in 25 May 2012. The company's core business was
changed to "‘construction services, commitment services, real estate brokerage, real estate
management, cleaning and security services

(3)  This company's corporate name was changed to Neptune Denizcilik Yatirmlari ve isletmecilig|
A.S.in16 July 2012. The company's core business was changed from mining investments to
maritime investments and management.

(4)  This company is consolidated to Global Enerji.

(5) These companies are consolidated to Global Menkul

(6) These companies are consolidated to Global Liman.

(7)  This company is consolidated to Tora.

(8)  The control of this company, the joint venture of Pera and Vespa, belongs to the Group and is
consolidated to the Group.

(9)  This company has not been consolidated starting from 4 January 2008 due to assignment of
the Group's shares in the company to a trustee and the resulting loss of control (Note 2.1.f.(vii)).

(10) This company's corporate name was changed firstly to "Saglam Enerji Yatirmlari A.S. in
April 2011 and then to “Siimerpark Gida Isletmeciligi A.S." in May 2011. The company's core
business was changed from energy investments to food management

(11) This company was purchased by Global Liman, a subsidiary of the Group, on 17 February 2011
for a price amounting to Euro 10.000. This company is inactive and its financial statements
are immaterial in the consolidated financial statements, so as at 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2013 it is excluded from the scope of consolidation (Note 2.1.f.(vii)).

(12) The Group hasresolved to liquidate these companies.

(13) This company was established in 27 November 2012 and consolidated to Global Enerji. As at the
balance sheet date, it is included from the scope of consolidation since its financial statements
are material in the consolidated financial statements.

(14) Asexplainedin detailin Note 3,0n 23 May 2011, EYH, a joint venture of the Group, acquired
50% of Naturelgaz shares. Starting from that date Naturelgaz was consolidated to the Group
with 25% proportionate accounting method. It was excluded from the scope of sales of EYH
on 10 July 2012 andits shares' have been transferred to Global Enerji. Global Enerji has been
purchased 30% of shares of Naturelgaz from the other shareholders on 12 December 2012
and since then the Group's ownership rate has increased to 55%. However as at 31 December
2012, after the assessments of the Group management and the lawyers, the Group decided
that the new shareholding rates is not sufficient to take control of Naturelgaz. Thereforeitis
treated as a joint venture at that date and the Group continued to consolidate with 55% rate.
As explained in detail in Note 2.1.f, the Company has restated the financial statements as of 31
December 2012 and 30 June 2012, and has recognised Naturelgaz, which previously had been
recognised as joint venture using proportionate consolidation, as a joint venture consolidated by
equity accounting method. As of 18 January 2013 Global Enerji has increased its shares to 80%
by buying 25% of Naturelgaz shares owned by STFA Yatirim Holding. Since then, the Group has
started to control Naturelgaz solely and consolidate as subsidiary (Note 3).
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

1 ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS (continued)

(15) Asat 3 February 2013, the Group purchased 22,114% shares of its subsidiary Global Liman
from Savina Holding with a consideration (except dividends distributed) of USD 91.724.06 3.
After the completion of the transfer of the shares, the Group's shares in Global Liman increased
to 100% (Note 23).

(16) The corporate name of Hades Maden has changed as Straton Maden Yatirimlari ve Isletmeciligi
A.S.on 8May 2013 and has beenincluded in the scope of consolidation starting from 1 June
2013 (Note 3).

(17) GlobalLiman, a subsidiary of the Group with 100% shareholding rate, won the tender for the
privatization of Port of Bar which is controlled by Ministry of Transportation and Maritime
and Port Administration of Montenegro. The tender comprises the repair and maintenance,
financing, construction and operating the Port for 30 years. The contract for the privatization
of Port of Bar has been signed on 15 November 2013. On 30 December 2013, Global Liman
completed the acquisition of 62,09% shares of Port of Bar for a total consideration of Euro
8.071.000 and since then Port of Bar has been included to scope of consolidation (Note 3).

(18) Asof 3 October 2013, Global Enerji, a subsidiary of the Group, completed the acquisition of
85% of the shares of Gelis Madencilik Enerji insaat Ticaret A.S (Gelis Madendilik), a company
operating in the scope of business license numbered IR-2505 in Sirnak, with respect to the
transaction Gelis Madencilik has been included in the scope of consolidation (Note 3).

(19) AsexplainedinNote 32, the Group has made pre-interviews for selling of 85% of shares of
Galata Enerji and Gelis Madencilik and those companies has been classified to assets held for
sale as at 31 December 2013.

Investments in associates Location Operations
Global Portfoy Yonetimi A.S. (Global Portfoy) (1) Turkey Portfolio Management
IEG Kurumsal Finansman Danismanlik A.S. (IEG) (2) Turkey  Corporate Fin. Consulting
Barcelona Port Investments, S.L (“BPI") (3) Spain Port Operations
Creuers del Port de Barcelona, S.A. ("Barselona Port") (3) Spain Port Operations

(1) As at 28 February 2012, this company has been changed from a subsidiary to an equity accounted investees as a result of the
transfer of 60% of the shares to AZ International Holdings SA based on Luxembourg, a subsidiary of Azimut (Note 18).

(2) This company has been established on 17 May 2011 with a 50 %- 50 % shareholdering structure by Global Menkul, a subsidiary
of the Group, and IEG (Deutschland) GmbH, as a prominent company in corporate finance sector in Europe. As at the balance sheet
date, this company was consolidated by equity accounting method.

(3) Barcelona Port Investments, S.L (“BPI") was established in 2013 in partnership with Global Liman and Royal Caribbean Cruises
Ltd., one of the world's leading cruise operators. BPI, acquired 43% of shares of Creuers del Port de Barcelona S.A ("Creuers”)
through BPI. Creuers is operating Port of Barcelona, owned the majority shareholder of the Malaga Cruise Port and owned the
minority shareholder of the Singapore Cruise Port. As at 31 December 2013, BPI has been consolidated by equity accounting
method to the Group (Note 18).

130 GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation
(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2013, the accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Capital Market Board's (*CMB") Communique "Principles of Financial Reporting in
Capital Markets" ("Communique") which was published in the Official Gazette dated 13 June 2013
and numbered 28676 Series Il, No. 14.1.

Also, the consolidated accompanying financial statements of the Group are prepared in compliance

with theillustrative financial statements and instructions manualissued by CMB on 7 June 2013.1n
the current period, the Group has made some reclassifications on prior year's consolidated financial
statements to comply with the announcement dated 7 June 2013 (Note 2.3.(e)).

Additional paragraph for convenience translation into English:

The differences between the accounting principles promulgated by CMB, accounting principles
generally accepted in countries in which the accompanying consolidated financial statements are
to be distributed and IFRS have influence on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present

the consolidated financial position and consolidated results of operations in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in such countries and IFRS.

(b) Preparation of Financial Statements in Hyperinflationary Economies

With the resolution taken on 17 March 2005, the CMB has announced that, effective from 1 January
2005, the application of TAS 29 "Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies" issued is no
longer required for companies operating in Turkey and accordingly effective from 1 January 2005, TAS
29 has not been applied in preparing the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(c) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in TL based on historical cost except for financial
instruments, investment property and derivatives measured at fair value.

The methods used for measuring fair value are explainedin Note 2.5 (ad).

(d) Functional and Presentation Currency

The presentation and functional currency of the Company is Turkish Lira (TL). Transactions in foreign
currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group entities by using
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at
that date. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss.
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)
(d) Functional and Presentation Currency (continued

US Dollar is significantly used in the operations of the subsidiaries, Ege Liman, GFP, Vespa, Bodrum
Liman and Ortadogu Liman, and has a significant effect on the operations. Therefore, US Dollar has
been determined as the functional currency of these companies inline with TAS 21 - The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Eurois significantly used in the operations of the subsidiaries; Adonia Shipping, Port of Bar, BPl and
Barselona Port. Therefore, Euro has been determined as the functional currency of these companies
inline with TAS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

(e) Netting/Offsetting

The Group's financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the
consolidated balance sheet if and only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and thereis anintention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(f) Basis of Consolidation
Asat 31 December 2013 and 2012, the consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the subsidiaries and associates of Global Yatirim Holding A.S.

(i) Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date
when controlis transferred to the Group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits fromits activities. In assessing control, the Group takes
into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

- The fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

- Therecognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus

- If the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest in
the acquiree; less

- The net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Transactions costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the
Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)
(f) Basis of Consolidation (continued)
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities on which the Group has the power to control. The Group controls

the companies when it is incurred changeable returns due to relations of any companies or has a

right to own these returns and has a power to affect these returns. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which controlis
transferred to the Group to the date on which controlis transferred out from the Group. The Group has
made adjustments on the financial statements of the subsidiaries to be inconsistent with the basis of
applied accounting standards if it is necessary.

For each business combination, the Group elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the
acquire either:

At fair value; or
At their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair value

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in aloss of control are accounted for
as transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests are
based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to
goodwilland no gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Losses in non-controlling interest of subsidiaries are transferred to non controlling interest even if the
result is negative.

Ontheloss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-
controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus of
deficit arising on the loss of controlis recognized in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest

in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is
lost. Subsequently that retained interest is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an
available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)
(f) Basis of Consolidation (continued)

(i) Subsidiaries (continued)

The table below demonstrates the rates of the effective ownership and the voting power held in
terms of percentages (%) as of 31 December 2013 and 2012 for all subsidiaries directly or indirectly
controlled by the Group and included in the scope of consolidation:

Effective ownership rates

Voting power held

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012
Global Menkul Degerler A.S. (*) 67,43 75,67 75,67 76,85
Global Portfoy Yonetimi A.S. 39,97 39,97 40,00 40,00
Global Financial Products Ltd. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Global Sigorta Aracilik Hizmetleri A.S. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Global Liman isletmeleri A.S. (Note 24) 100,00 77,89 100,00 77,89
Global Securities (USA) Inc. 67,43 7567 67,43 7567
CJSC Global Securities Kazakhstan 67,43 75,67 67,43 7567
Ege Liman isletmeleri A.S. 72,50 56,47 72,50 72,50
Bodrum Liman isletmeleri A.S 60,00 46,73 60,00 60,00
Ortadogu Antalya Liman isletmeleri A.S. 100,00 77,73 100,00 100,00
Ege Global Madencilik San.ve Tic. A.S. 84,99 84,99 85,00 85,00
MaviBayrak Tehlikeli Atik imha Sistemleri San.ve 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
TicAS.
Salipazariinsaat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Gliney Maden Isletmeciligi A.S. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Dogu Maden Isletmeciligi A.S. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Nesa Madencilik San.ve TicA.S. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Vespa Enterprises (Malta) Ltd. 99,93 99,93 100,00 100,00
Maya Turizm Ltd. 74,96 74,96 80,00 80,00
Galata Enerji Uretim ve Ticaret A.S. 84,99 59,99 60,00 60,00
Global Enerji Hizmetleri ve isletmeciligi A.S. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Tora Yayincilik A.S. 96,00 96,00 100,00 100,00
Sem Yayincilik A.S. 65,00 62,40 65,00 65,00
Pera Gayrimenkul Yatirim Ortakligi A.S. (*) 49,99 49,99 60,00 60,00
Dogal Enerji Hizmetleri ve isletmeciligi A.S. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Dagdren Enerji A.S. 70,00 70,00 70,00 70,00
GlobalDepolamaA.S. 100,00 77,88 100,00 100,00
GESEnerjiAS. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Stimerpark Gida Isletmeciligi A.S. 100,00 100,00 100,00 100,00
Izmir Liman isletmeciligi A.S. 100,00 82,53 100,00 100,00
Naturelgaz Sanayi ve Tic. A.S. (Note 3) 80,00 55,00 80,00
Adonia Shipping Limited 100,00 0,00 100,00 0,00
Gelis Madendilik Enerjiinsaat Ticaret A.S. (Note 3) 85,00 0,00 85,00 0,00
Container Terminal and General Cargo — Bar (Note 62,09 0,00 62,09 0,00

3)

(*) As at 31 December 2013, the Group was made sale and purchase transactions in respect of the shares of the subsidiaries were
listed on the BIST and operated in real estate and finance sector (Global Menkul and Pera). As a result of these transactions, the
Group's share of Pera and Global Menkul was 49,99% and 67,43%, respectively (31 December 2012:49,99% and 75,67%). They
were shown in the consolidated statement of changes in equity under the line "Change in non-controlling interest without loss in

control",
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)
(f) Basis of Consolidation (continued)
(iii) Non controlling interest (continued)

For each business combination, the Group elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the
acquire either:

At fair value; or

At their proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair value
Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in aloss of control are accounted for
as transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests are
based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to
goodwilland no gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(iv) Under common control transactions

Transactions arising from transferring or acquisition shares of entities under the common control are
recognised as at the beginning of the period in which the transaction accrued. Comparative periods
are restated for that purpose. Acquired assets and liabilities are recognised at book value which is the
same as recorded book value in under common control entity's financial statements. Shareholder's
equity items of entities under common control are recognized in equity of the Group except for capital
and current profit or loss is recognised in equity.

(v) Transactions with non-controlling interest

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority interests as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is deducted from equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity. For disposals to non-controlling interests, differences between any proceeds received and the
relevant share of non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Associates are those entities, in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies. Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has
joint control, established by contractual agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic
financial and operating decisions. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity accounting method.

The Group's associates are accounted under equity accounting method in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Under the equity accounting method, the investment in an
assodciate is initially recognized at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize
the investor's share of net assets in the associate.

135



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)
(f) Basis of Consolidation (continued)
(v) Transactions with non-controlling interest (continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate or joint venture, the carrying
amount of that interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced to zero and the recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made
payments on behalf of the investee. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits,
the share of the profits, only after its share of losses not recognized, is recognized in the financial
statements.

The table below demonstrates the rates of the effective ownership and the voting power held in terms
of percentages (%) as of 31 December 2013 and 2012 for all the joint ventures which are under the
direct or indirect joint control of the Group and included in the scope of consolidation:

Effective ownership rates Voting power held
31 December 31December 31December 31December
2013 2012 2013 2012
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Naturelgaz (%) 80,00 55,00 80,00 55,00
BPI 49,00 - 50,00 -

(*) As of 18 January 2013, the Group has increased its percentage of shares to 80% by buying Naturelgaz shares of STFA Yatirim
Holding of 25%. Since then, the Group has started to control Naturelgaz solely and consolidate as subsidiary.

The table below demonstrates the rates of the effective ownership and the voting power held in terms
of percentages (%) as of 31 December 2013 and 2012 for the associates:

Effective ownership rates Voting power held

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 2013 2012

IEG 0,34 0,38 0,34 0,38
Global Portfoy 39,97 39,97 39,97 39,97
Barselona Limani 21,07 - 21,07 -
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)
(f) Basis of Consolidation (continued)
(vii) Equity Securities (continued)

Equity securities in which the Group owns either directly or indirectly less than 20% of the shares,
that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are carried at cost, less permanent impairment losses disclosed as available for sale
financial assets at consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2013 Randa in which the Group has effective ownership interests of 99,9%
respectively and which are immaterial to the consolidated financial statements and Torba insaat

ve Turistik A.S.in which the Group has an ownership interest of 80% but has no control are not
consolidated and are disclosed as available for sale financial assets carried at cost less any impairment
losses. For the same reasons, as at 31 December 2012, Ra Glnes, Tres Eneriji, IEG Kurumsal, Randa
and Torba are disclosed as available for sale financial assets, carried at cost less any impairment
losses.

(viii) Consolidation adjustments

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized gains
arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment

to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same

way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. Carrying
value of shares owned by the Group and dividends arising from these shares has been eliminated in
equity and profit or loss statements. In consolidation of operating results and financial positions of
subsidiaries whose functional currency is other than TL, main consolidation transactions are made
such as elimination of related party balances and transactions. But, a monetary asset (or liability) of
related parties regardless of short-term or long-term (except for monetary items which are part of
net investment of the Group inits subsidiaries whose functional currency is more than TL) can not be
eliminated with related party liability (or related party asset) without presenting results of fluctuation
of foreign currencies in consolidated financial statements. Because, a monetary item provides
obligation of translation of any currency to other currency and makes the Group exposed to gain or
losses arising from fluctuation of foreign currencies. Correspondingly, these kind of foreign exchange
differences are recognized in profit or loss of consolidated financial statements of the Group.

(ix) Functional and Presentation Currency
Allitems in the financial statements of Group companies has been accounted in the currency of the

primary economic environment in which they operate. The consolidated financial statments are
presented under Turkish Lira (“TL’) which is Company's functional currency.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Statement of Compliance

Group and its subsidiaries operating in Turkey maintain their books of account and prepare their
statutory financial statements in Turkish Lira (“TL") in accordance with the accounting principles
as promulgated by the Turkish Commercial Code and tax legislation. The foreign subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates maintain their books of account and prepare their statutory financial
statements in their local currencies in accordance with the laws and regulations in force in the
countries in which they are registered.

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with "Principles of Financial
Reporting in Capital Markets" (“*Communigue") which was published in the Official Gazette dated 13
June 2013 and numbered 28676 Series I, No. 14.1.

In accordance with article 5 of the Communique, the Companies which are reporting under CMB
legislation are required to apply Turkish Accounting Standards / Turkish Financial Reporting Standarts
("TAS" / “TFRS") which s published by Public Oversight of Accounting and Auditing Standards Board.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December
2013 have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 11 March 2014. The General
Assembly of the Company have the right to modify the issued financial statements.

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies

The Group adopted TAS 19 Employee Benefits (2011) with a date of initial application of 1 January
2013 and changed its basis for determining the expense related to defined benefit obligations.

The Group has adopted TFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, as well as the consequential amendments to IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (201.1), with a date of initial application of 1 January
2013.

The monetary effects of the changes in accounting standards is shown in the following notes.
(a) Employee benefits

As aresult of the adoption of TAS 19 (2011), all actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately
in other comprehensive income. Actuarial gains and losses were previously recognised in profit or loss
before the change in the accounting standard. The change in accounting standard has been applied
retrospectively. It reduced the employee severance indemnity expense recognised in profit or loss and
correspondingly increased the defined benefit obligation through actuarial differences recognised in
other comprehensive income by TL 158,977 for the period ended 31 December 2013 (31 December
2012:TL 301.596).

138 GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
(b) Subsidiaries

As aresult of the adoption of TFRS 10, the Group has adopted its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over and consequently whether it consolidates its investees.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of TFRS 10, the Group re-assessed the control
conclusion for its investees at 1 January 2013. As a consequence, the Group's control conclusion
inrespect of its investment in other entities has not changed and there has been no impact on the
recognised assets, liabilities and comprehensive income of the Group.

(c) Joint ventures and associates

As aresult of the adoption of TFRS 11, the Group has changed its accounting policy with respect to
its interests in joint arrangements. The change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively.
Under TFRS 11, the Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as either joint operations

or joint ventures depending on the Group's rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities

of the arrangements. When making this assessment, the Group considers the structure of the
arrangements, the legal form of any separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the arrangements
and other facts and circumstances. Previously, the structure of the arrangement was the sole focus
of classification. The Group has re-evaluated its involvement in its joint arrangements. As a result,
Group's joint arrangements, which were classified as jointly controlled entities before the change in
accounting policy, were classified as joint ventures. According to this classification, the joint ventures
are recognised by applying the equity accounting method effective from 1 January 2012 which were
previously proportionately consolidated. Therefore, together with the restatement of the financial
statements on 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013, the Group has recognized Naturelgaz
and Enerji Yatinm Holding (“EYH") as joint venture accounted by equity accounting method as of 31
December 2012 and 30 June 2012 respectively (Note 2.3.e).

(d) Fair value measurement

TFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement' redefines fair value, measurement TFRS 13 requires or permits
fair value measurements or disclosures about fair value measurements (and measurements, such as
fair value less costs to sell, based on fair value or disclosures about those measurements), except in
specified circumstances.

Fair value measurement is to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to
transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under
current market. Also TFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement” is replaced to TFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures' for disclosure requirements and expands those disclosure requirements.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
(e) Comparatives and restatement of prior periods’ financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include comparative financial information
to enable the determination of the financial position and performance. Comperative figures
are reclassified, where necessary, to conform to changes in presentation in the current period
consolidated financial statements.

With the resolution dated 7 June 2013 and numbered 20/670, the CMB has published an
announcement comprising illustrative financial statements and instructions manual which is effective
for the periods ended after 31 March 2013 for the companies which are reporting in accordance with
the Communique. Accordingly, reclassifications are made on consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications made on consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2012 are as follows

- Prepayments for the following months amounting to TL 2.168.837 which is comprised of advances
given for inventory amounting to TL 1.608.7 71 in total, is reclassified from other current assets to
prepayments,

- Prepaid taxes and funds amounting to TL 3.108.055 is reclassified from other current assets to
current income tax assets as a seperate line in current period,

- Other receivables amounting to TL 43.085.442 is reclassified from current other receivables to
non-current other receivables,

- Prepaid expenses amounting to TL 812.246 and advances given amounting to TL 25.372.558 are
reclassified from other non-current assets to prepayments as a seperate line in current period,
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
(e) Comparatives and restatement of prior periods’ financial statements (continued)

- Short term portion of long term borrowings amounting to TL 84.235.729 that is recorded in short
term borrowings in previous periods is recorded as a seperate line in current period,

- Total of due to personnel and social security premiums payables amounting to TL 1.774.465 is
reclassified from other liabilities to payables related to employee benefits as a seperate line in
current period,

- Derivative instruments amounting to TL 47.835 that is recorded in other financial liabilities in
previous periods, is recorded as a seperate line in current period

- Total of deferred income and advances received amounting to TL 326.717 is reclassified from other
short term liabilities to deferred income as a seperate line in current period,

- Total of provisions for notice pay and unused vacations and provisions for personnel premiums
amounting to TL 966.712 is reclassified from provisions to short term provision for employee
benefits,

- Treasury shares owned by the Company amounting to TL 10.237.242 that were recorded in
treasury shares in previous periods, is recorded as a seperate line in current period.

Reclassifications made on consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2012 are as follows:

- Dividend income amounting to TL 672.113, gain on sale of property and equipments amounting to
TL133.066, gain on sale of real estates amounting to TL 49.505 and fair value gain on investment
property amounting to TL 4.467.096 recorded in other operating income in previous periods, is
recorded as income from investing activities.

Loss from sale of property and equipments amounting to TL 19.916 is reclassified from other
operating expenses to expense from investing activities.

- Gain on sale of financial assets amounting to TL 2.370.283 and valuation differences on financial
assets amounting to TL 145.804 is reclassified from finance income to income from investing
activities.

- Valuation difference on financial assets amounting to TL 538.032 which is recorded as finance
expense in previous periods is reclassified to expense from investing activities from finance
expense.

Above classifications were taken into account in preparing consolidated cash flow statements.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Comparatives and restatement of prior periods’ financial statements (continued)

The following table summarises the adjustments made to the Group's consolidated statements of
financial position and consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the period ended 31 December 2012,

31 December 2012
Adjustments
(Changesin Reclassifications
Previously accounting (Changes in the CMB
Reported standards) Adjusted Format) Restated
ASSETS
Current Assets 312.447.838 (53.259.228) 259.188.610 - 259.188.610
Cash and cash equivalents 49.079.630 (210.751) 48.868.879 - 48.868.879
Investments 9.738.924 - 9.738.924 - 9.738.924
Trade receivables 15.132.390 (2.114.558) 13.017.832 - 13.017.832
- Other trade receivables 15.132.390 (2.114.558) 13.017.832 - 13.017.832
Other receivables 113.864.239  (47.884.268) 65.979.971 - 65.979.971
- Due from related parties 33.820.418 (4.791.740) 29.028.678 - 29.028.678
- Other receivables 80.043.821 (43.092.528) 36.951.293 - 36.951.293
Receivables from operations in
finance sector 63.213.340 - 63.213.340 - 63.213.340
- Due from related parties 10.981.046 - 10.981.046 - 10.981.046
- Other receivables 52.232.294 - 52.232.294 - 52.232.294
Inventories 27.923.099 (1.584.630) 26.338.469 - 26.338.469
Prepayments - - - 2.168.837 2.168.837
Current income tax assets - - 3.108.055 3.108.055
Other current assets 32.633.465 (1.465.021) 31.168.444 (5.276.892) 25.891.552
(Subtotal) 311.585.087 (10.173.791) 258.325.859 - 258.325.859
Assets classified as held for sale 862.751 - 862.751 - 862.751
Non-current assets 1.054.455.090 20.260.829 1.074.715.919 - 1.074.715.919
Other receivables 12.588.300 - 55.673.742 - 55.673.742
- Due from related parties 5.029.659 - 5.029.659 - 5.029.659
- Other receivables 7.558.641 43.085.442 50.644.083 - 50.644.083
Investments 3.083.737 - 3.083.737 - 3.083.737
Equity accounted investees 1.211.672 44.617.560 45.829.232 - 45.829.232
Investment property 197.915.245 - 197.915.245 - 197.915.245
Property, plant and equipment,
net 146.054.895 (27.242.967) 118.811.928 - 118.811.928
Intangible assets, net 634.020.342  (39.211.159) 594.809.183 - 594.809.183
- Goodwill 41.243.581 - 41.243.581 - 41243581
- Other intangible assets 592.776.761  (39.211.159) 553.565.602 - 553.565.602
Prepayments - - - 26.184.804 26.184.804
Deferred tax assets 28.332.356 - 28.332.356 - 28.332.356
Other non-current assets 31.248.543 (988.047) 30.260.496 (26.184.804) 4.075.692
TOTAL ASSETS 1.366.902.928 (32.998.399) 1.333.904.529 - 1.333.904.529
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Comparatives and restatement of prior periods’ financial statements (continued)

Adjustments Reclassifications
(Changes in (Changes in the CMB
Previously Reportedaccounting standards) Adjusted Format) Restated
Revenue 305.199.073 (162.042.232) 143.156.841 - 143.156.841
Cost of sales (-) (248.232.204) 161.740.980 (86.491.224) - (86.491.224)
Gross profit/(loss) from trade operations 56.966.869 (301.252) 56.665.617 - 56.665.617
Revenues from finance operations 23211103 23211103 23.211.103
Cost of revenues from finance operations
(=) (4.014.076) - (4.014.076) - (4.014.076)
Gross profit from operations in finance
sector 19.197.027 - 19.197.027 - 19.197.027
GROSS PROFIT 76.163.896 (301.252) 75.862.644 - 75.862.644
Marketing expenses (-) (5.955.664) 2332128 (3.623.536) - (3.623.536)
General administrative expenses (-) (77.767.396) 5.386.810 (72.380.586) - (72.380.586)
Other operating income 174508173 (1.714.375) 172.793.798 (4.911.037) 167.882.762
Other operating expenses (-) (2.746.107) 905.395 (1.840.712) 2.032.825 (1.820.796)
Share of profit/(loss) of equity accounted
investees (630.576) (6.522.218) (7.152.794) - (7.152.794)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 163.572.326 86.488 163.658.814 (6.943.862) 156.714.953
Income from investing activities - - - 7427124 7427124
Expense from investing activities (-) - - - (557.948) (557.948)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE FINANCIAL
INCOME/EXPENSE 163.572.326 86.488 163.658.814 (74.685) 163.584.129
Financeincome 63.833.813 (7.736.481) 56.097.332 (30.768.785) 53.581.245
Finance expenses (-) (124.875.189) 9.791.406 (115.083.783) 30.843471 (114.545.751)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 102.530.950 2.141.414 104.672.364 - 104.672.364
Tax income/ (expense) from continued
operations 14.143.587 (1.839.817) 12.303.770 - 12.303.770
Current tax benefit/(expense) (10.354.451) (10.354.451) (10.354.451)
- Deferred tax benefit /(expense) 24.498.038 (1.839.817) 22.658.221 - 22.658.221
NET OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR
THE PERIOD 116.674.537 301.596 116.976.133 - 116.976.133
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other Comprehensive Income/Expense
not to be Reclassified to Profit or Loss - (301.596) (301.596) - (301.596)
Actuarial loss on employee benefits - (301.596) (301.596) - (301.596)
Other Comprehensive Income/Expense
to be Reclassified to Profit or Loss (35.739.428) - (35.739.428) - (35.739.428)
Change in revaluation fund of financial
assets (3.094) (3.094) (3.094)
Change in foreign currency translation
differences (35.736.953) - (35.736.953) - (35.736.953)
Tax income/expense related with
revaluation fund of financial assets 619 - 619 - 619
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (35.739.428) (301.596) (36.041.024) - (36.041.024)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 80.935.109 - 80.935.109 - 80.935.109
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(f) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective as at
31 December 2013 and have not been early adopted by the Group

TFRS 9, “Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement”

TFRS 9 (2009) contains new requirements for classification and measurement of financial assets and
liabilities. Financial assets are classified and measured according to business model and contractual
cash flow features on basis of TFRS 9 (2009). TFRS 9 (201.0) provides additional changes for financial
liabilities. TFRS has an active plan providing limited changes about classification and measurement
requirements in TFRS 9 and new requirements about impairment of financial assets. TFRS 9 (2013)
represents a new model for avoiding financial risk on accounting. The new model provides a familiar
relationship between financial risk avoidance accounting policy applied for avoiding financial and

non financial risks incurred by companies and risk management activities. The Group does not plan

to adopt these standards before their effective date and the extent of their impact has not been
determined yet.

TAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation— Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities (Change)”

The amendments clarify the meaning of currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off and also
clarify the application of the TAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. These amendments are to be retrospectively
applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,

The Group does not plan to adopt these standards before their effective date and the extent of their
impact has not been determined yet at the consolidated financial statements is not expected to be
significant.

2.4 Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The changes in accounting policies resulting from the initial application of anew TAS/TFRS are
applied in accordance with the transition clauses of the related TAS/TFRS, if any, retrospectively or
prospectively. The changes for which no transition clauses exist, the significant optional changes in
accounting policies or the identified accounting errors are applied retrospectively and the financial
statements for the prior periods are restated. Changes in accounting estimates are applied in the
current period if the change is related with only one period. They are applied in the current period
and prospectively if they are related to the future periods. The Group has no significant change in its
accounting policies and estimates.

The Company, has transferred the part of exemption gain on sale of participations amounting to

TL 35.000.000 and recorded in restricted reserves inlegal financial statements to previous years'
profit/loss . In addition, the Company has transferred gain on sale of participations amounting to TL
24.702.769in legal financial statements in the year of 2012 to restricted reserves based on related
article of Corporate Income Tax and made required adjustments on Corporate Income Tax Return.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (continued)

The Group has made adjustments on Corporate Income Tax Return for the years of 2011 and 2012
and after the adjustments, the amount of TL 13.471.979 which was recognised in previous years'
loss in Fourth Period Provisional Tax Return has been taken into consideration for deferred tax
calculations. The adjustments have anincreasing effect on current year's effective tax rate.

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Revenues
(i) Service and commission revenue

The Group receives commissions for providing services with brokerage services and asset
management services, and recognizes in profit or loss by taking into account the completion

stage at the end of the reporting period. Other service and commission revenues comprised of
interest received from customers, portfolio management commissions and other commissions and
consultancy services and recognizes in profit or loss by taking into account the completion stage at
the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Portfolio management fees

Fees charged for management of customer portfolios at capital markets are recognized as income at
the end of each month.

(iii) Gain on trading of securities

Gains / losses on trading of securities are recognized in profit or loss at the date of the related
purchase/sale order.

(iv) Natural gas sales

Revenues from the sales of natural gas comprise the revenues from the sales to individual and
corporate subscribers. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the subscribers and natural gas has been consumed by the related
subscriber. In addition, natural gas distributed but not billed is accrued at each reporting period.
The Group accounts prepaid sales which partis not used by the subscribers as deferred natural
gas revenue in other current liabilities. Deferred prepaid sales are recognized as revenue as natural
gas is consumed by the subscriber. Transfer of risk and rewards changes as to the periods of the
consumption of natural gas by subscribers. Net sales revenue is disclosed less sales returns.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(a) Revenues (continued)
(v) Port administration revenues and port rent income

Port administration revenues comprise revenues from services provided to ships and motorboats
(pilotage, tugboat rents, passenger landing fee, etc.), and cargo handling fees (general cargo, bulk
cargo, container) recognized on accrual basis,

Rentincome comprises rental income from marina, shopping centers and duty-free stores. Rent
income is recognized in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

(vi) Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when
persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales agreement, that the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration

is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

(ix) Other service revenues
Rentincomeis accounted for on accrual basis, interest income is accounted for using effective interest
method and dividend income is recognized on the date the Group's right to receive the paymentis

established.

Other service incomes and other sales are transferred to consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on accrual basis.

Gain on sale of real estates and loss on investment properties obtained from reflecting renters are
recorded as rent and service income of real estates in consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Incomes from mining activities are recorded as mining income in consolidated statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income,
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(b) Expenses (continued)

Expenses are accounted for on accrual basis. Operational lease expenses are recognized in profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Interest expenses

Interest expenses are accrued by using the effective interest method or applicable variable interest
rate. Interest expenses arise from the difference between the initial cost of an interest bearing
financial instrument and the value of the instrument discounted to its present value at the date of the
maturity or the premium or discount, discounted to present value. The financial costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualified asset are capitalized.

(c) Inventories

(i) Inventories

Inventories are valued by using the weighted average method. Inventories are stated at the lower

of cost and net realizable value. Cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and
conditions are included in the cost of inventory. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

(i) Trading property

Trading properties held by subsidiaries that operate in real estate sector are classified as inventories.
Trading property is stated at the lower of cost at balance sheet date and net realizable value. Net
realizable value represents the fair value less costs to sell. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
trading properties in progress are included in the cost of the trading property. Expenses are capitalized
from the date they have beenincurred to the date the asset is available for use. The duration of the
completion of these trading properties is over one year and it varies from project to project.

(d) Investment Property

Investment property is aland, building or part of a building or both held (by the owner or by the lessee
under a finance lease) to earn rentals of for capital appreciation or both, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes or sale in the ordinary course
of business.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement. Investment properties are measured in accordance with fair value model. Related
changes are recognized in profit or loss in the period.

The fair value of investment property is the price at which the property could be exchanged or
liability is paid between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. It is applied to all
investment properties.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Investment Property (continued)

The investment property under construction is the investment property which is being constructed
for earning rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. This property is classified as constructionin
progress under the investment property.

If the Group determines that the fair value of an investment property under constructionis not
reliably determinable but expects that the fair value of the property to be reliably determinable when
constructionis complete, it measures that investment property under construction at cost until
either its fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed (whichever is earlier).
Costsincurred during the acquisition and construction of these assets and subsequent expenditures
are capitalized if it is probable that they willincrease the future economic benefits obtained from that
asset.

Expenses and costs are capitalized if the costs directly attributable to the investment properties
in progress and expenses made for these assets have an additional value for the fair value of the
investment property in the future.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the investment properties in progress are included in the
cost of theinvestment property. Expenses are capitalized from the date they have been incurred to
the date the asset is available for use. If the cost of the investment property in progress is lower than
its recoverable value, an impairment loss is provided. Capitalization rate is the average of the current
interest rates of the financial liabilities attributable to the investment properties in progress and the
general funding made for these assets.

Once the Group becomes able to measure reliably the fair value of aninvestment property under
construction that has previously been measured at cost, that property is measured at fair value. Once
construction of that property is complete, it is presumed that fair value can be measured reliably.

Aninvestment property under construction is measured at the fair value to be determined once its

constructionis complete less the construction and borrowing costs estimated to be realized until the
construction is complete.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Costincludes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the following:

- the cost of materials and direct labour;
- any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended
use
- when the Group has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and
- Capitalised borrowing costs.

Cost also includes transfers from equity of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and equipment. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit
orloss.

Property, plant and equipment of the subsidiaries and joint ventures that operate in Turkey and
acquired before 1 January 2005 are stated at restated cost until 31 December 2004 less accumulated
depreciation and permanent impairment losses. Property, plant and equipment of such entities
acquired after 1 January 2005 are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and permanent
impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment of companies, whose functional currencies are not TL, are
denominated in the original currencies, stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses and are translated to TL by using the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed
asincurred.

(i) Depreciation

[tems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date they are available for use or,

in respect of self-constructed assets, from the date that the asset is completed and ready for use.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values using the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is
generally recognised in profit or loss, unless the amount is included in the carrying amount of another
asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless
itis reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land is not
depreciated. The depreciation rates used by the Group are as follows:

Buildings 2%-25%
Land improvements 3,38%-4,49%
Machinery and equipment 5%-25%
Motor vehicles 556%-25%
Furniture and fixtures 2%-33,33%
Leasehold improvements 3,33%-33,33%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

(f) Intangible Assets

(i) Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets comprise port operation rights, royalty and natural gas selling and transmission
licenses, contract-based customer relationships, development costs, computer software, and the
hydroelectric power plant ("HEPP”) license, Vakif Han building usage rights, other rights and other
intangible assets.

Intangible assets related to operations whose functional currency is TL and which were acquired
before 1 January 2005 are restated for the effects of inflation in TL units current at 31 December
2004, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets acquired
after 1 January 2005 are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and permanent impairment
losses.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Intangible Assets (continued)
(i) Recognition and measurement (continued)

Intangible assets related to operations whose functional currencies are not TL, are denominated in the
original currencies, stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses
and are translated to TL by using the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date.

In a business combination or acquisition, the acquirer recognizes separately an intangible asset of the
acquiree at the acquisition date only if it meets the definition of anintangible assetin IAS 38 Intangible
Assets andits fair value can be measured reliably.

Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantively improved
products and processes. Development expenditure is capitalized only if development costs can be
measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic
benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development
and to use or sell the asset.

(i) Amortization
Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets.

The amortization rates applied by the Group are as follows:

Port operation rights (*) 3,33%-8,33%
Customer relationship 8,33%
Rights 2,22%-33,33%
Software 10%-33,33%
HEPP license 2,01%
Natural gas selling and transmission license (**) 3,33%
Royalty licence (***) 10%

(*) Port operation rights will expire by 2028 for Ortadogu Liman, by 2033 for Ege Liman, by 2019 for Bodrum Liman, by 2043 for
Port of Bar.

(**) The licenses of Naturalgaz include the compressed natural gas (CNG) sales licences in izmir, Bursa, Antalya and Adapazari
regions as well as the CNG transmission license. The CNG transmission license and the CNG sales licenses in Bursa, Antalya and
Adapazari have been obtained by Naturelgaz in 2005 whereas the CNG sales license in izmir has been obtained in 2006. The
licenses are valid for 30 years.

(***) Royalty licence will expire by 2023 for Straton Maden.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Goodwill

According to TFRS 3 "Business Combinations”, the excess of cost of the total consideration over

the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combinationis recognized as goodwill. Goodwillis not amortized and is tested for impairment annually
or more often when the circumstances indicate that the goodwill is impaired.

When the cost of the acquisition is lower than the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination, the difference is recognized as income (gain
on a bargain purchase (negative goodwill)).

The initial recognition of the business combination is accounted for provisionally if the fair values of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination can only be
recognized, or the cost of a business combination is measured, only using provisional amounts. The
provisional business combination accounting shall be completed in the 12 months following the date
of acquisition and the adjustments shall be recognized retrospectively.

The goodwill acquired in a business combination is not amortized. Alternatively, once a year or the
conditions indicate the impairment losses, the Group test impairment losses more frequently than the
usual conditions.

(i) Financial Instruments

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables on the date that they are originated. All other
financial assets (including assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised
initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest
in such transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Goodwill (continued)

(i) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-trading
or is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial assets are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss if the Group manages such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based
on their fair value in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment
strategy. Attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein, which takes into
account any dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets classified as held-for-trading comprise short-term sovereign debt securities actively
managed by Group's treasury department to address short-term liquidity needs.

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss comprise equity securities that
otherwise would have been classified as available-for-sale.

The fair value of the financial instruments is determined by using the quoted prices in an active market
at the balance sheet date without any deduction of transaction costs. If the market for a financial
instrument is not active at the balance sheet date, the fair value is estimated by using the market
inputs and the appropriate valuation techniques. However, judgment is needed to interpret the
available market information. Therefore, the estimates may not reflect the value that would have been
realized in a current market transaction.

For all the other financial instruments that are not quoted in an active market, fair value is
determined by using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques include net present value technique,
benchmarking and other valuation techniques.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

If the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then such financial
assets are classified as held-to-maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are recognised initially at
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-
maturity financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(g) Goodwill (continued)

(i) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i) Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted

in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Loans and receivables comprise
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturities of three months
or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value,
and are used by the Group in the management of its short-term commitments.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the above categories of financial assets. Available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than
impairment losses and foreign currency differences on available-for-sale debt instruments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an
investment is derecognised, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets comprise equity securities and debt securities.

Equity securities classified as available for sale financial assets and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, due to lack of active and observable market, are carried at cost, which has been restated by

considering the inflation effect until 31 December 2004 less impairment losses if any, since they are
acquired before 1 January 2005.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Goodwill (continued)
(i) Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they
are originated. All other financial liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date
that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such
finandcial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, debt securities issued (including certain
preference shares, bank overdrafts, and trade and other payables.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the statement of cash
flows.

(i) Share capital
Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to theissue of ordinary
shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Repurchase and reissue of share capital (treasury shares)

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid,
whichincludes directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction from
equity. Repurchased shares are classified as "treasury shares owned by the Company" if owned by
the Company and classified as "treasury shares owned by the subsidiaries" if owned by subsidiaries
and are presented in equity. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount
received is recognised as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transactionis
presented in share premium.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Goodwill (continued)
(iv) Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately
if:
- the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the embedded derivative are not
closely related;
. aseparate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of aderivative; and
the combined instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Oninitial designation of the derivative as a hedging instrument, the Group formally documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, including the risk management
objectives and strategy in undertaking the hedge transaction and the hedged risk, together with the
methods that willbe used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship. The Group makes
an assessment, both at the inception of the hedge relationship as well as on an ongoing basis, of
whether the hedging instruments are expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in the
fair value or cash flows of the respective hedged items attributable to the hedged risk, and whether
the actual results of each hedge are within a range of 80 — 125 percent. For a cash flow hedge of
a forecast transaction, the transaction should be highly probable to occur and should present an
exposure to variations in cash flows that ultimately could affect reported profit or loss.

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value; any attributable transaction costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are accounted for as described below.

Cash flow hedge transactions

If a derivative instrument is designed cash flow hedge instrument of a recorded asset or liability or
a certain risk which most likely can have an effect on profit or loss, effective portion of change of
fair value of the derivative instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented
within equity as financial hedge reserve. Ineffective portion of change of fair value of the derivative
instrument is directly recognised in profit or loss.

If anitem which is subject to financial hedge is a non financial item, accumulated amount within equity
is presented in other comprehensive income and classified to profit or loss in the period or periods
which non financial item affects profit or loss In other situations, accumulated amount within equity
is reclassified in profit or loss in the period or periods which non financial hedging item affects profit
or loss. When financial hedging instrument doesn't provide required criterias for financial hedging
accounting, financial hedging instrument is overdue or disposaled, used or canceled, financial hedging
accounting is ceased on a going forward basis. If estimated transaction is not expected to accrue any
more, related balance recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Goodwill (continued)

(iv) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Net investment hedge accounting (continued)

A netinvestment hedge is a hedge of the foreign currency exposure arising from a net investmentin
a foreign operation using a derivative or non derivative financial items as the hedging instrument. If a
monetary itemis a part of net investments made to subsidiaries of the Company whose functional
curreny is other than TL, foreign exchange differences arise in financial statements of the Company.
Those foreign exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income in consolidated
financial statements when the differences are considered as hedging instruments.

Transactions for the purpose of avoiding net investment risk made to subsidiaries whose functional
currency is other than TL are recognised as transactions for the purpose of cash flow accounting
hedge including financial accounting hedge transactions of monetary items which are recognised as a
part of net investment.

The effective portion of gain or loss arising from financial hedging instrument is recoginsed in other
comprehensive income or expense and

Non effective portion of gain or loss arising from financial hedging instrument is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gain or loss on financial hedging instrument related to effective portion of financial hedging
transaction and recognised in other comprehensive income or expense is excluded from equity and
classified to profit or loss as reclassification adjustment when there is a disposal of related subsidiary
or disposal period.

(j) Impairment of assets
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if
objective evidence indicates that aloss has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and the
loss had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated
reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency of a debtor,
restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise,
indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy and the disappearance of an active market for
a security. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its
fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Goodwill (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

The Group considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both a specific asset and collective
level. Allindividually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually
significant receivables not to be impaired are then collectively reassessed for any impairment that has
beenincurred, but not yet identified. Receivables that are not individually significant are collectively
assessed for impairment by grouping similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgment as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less
than suggested.

Animpairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and
accounted as doubtful receivables. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss
to decrease, the decrease inimpairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by transferring the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the fair value

reserve in equity, to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any
principal repayment and amortisation and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Animpairment loss in respect of an equity-accounted investee is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Animpairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

(i) Non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of

impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An

impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU)
exceeds its recoverable amount.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Goodwill (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Non financial assets (continued)

For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that one not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time. The recoverable amount of an asset or
cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent
of the cashinflows of other assets or groups of assets (the ""cash-generating unit”). The goodwill
acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

Animpairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assetsin the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

Animpairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. Impairment losses recognized in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. Animpairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Animpairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

(k) Employee Benefits

In accordance with the existing labor law in Turkey, the entities operating in Turkey are required to
make lump-sum payments to employees who have completed one year of service and whose
employment is terminated without cause, or due to retirement, military service or death. With respect
to Group's employees in Turkey, retirement pay liability is calculated by using lower of employee's
monthly salary and retirement pay ceiling. It is detailed in Note 21 as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.
The Group recognizes retirement pay liability as the present value of the estimated total reserve of the
future probable obligation of the Group. The key actuarial assumptions used in the calculation of the
retirement pay liability are detailed in Note 21.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(1) Foreign Currency
(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group
entities by using exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in
profit or loss.

Companies, whose functional currencies are not TL, prepare their financial statements according
to their functional currency and these financial statements are translated to TL for consolidation
purpose in accordance with TAS 21,

Foreign currency differences arising on operations with foreign currency are recognised in profit or
loss as foreign currency exchange gains and losses.

According to TAS 21, balance sheet items presented in the financial statements of domestic and
foreign subsidiaries and joint ventures whose functional currency is different from TL, are translated
into TL at the balance sheet (USD/TL and EUR/TL) exchange rates whereas income, expenses

and cash flows are translated at the average exchange rate or ruling rate of the transaction date.
Profit or loss from translation difference of these operations is recognised as ""Currency Translation
Differences" under the equity.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, foreign currency buying exchange rates of the Central Bank of
Republic of Turkey (“CBRT") comprised the following;

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

US Dollar / TL 21343 1,7826
Euro/ TL 29365 2,3517

The average foreign currency buying exchange rates of the CBRT in 2013 and 2012 comprised the
following:

2013 2012
US Dollar / TL 19013 1,7925
Euro/ TL 25248 2,3045
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(ii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated to TL at exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated to TL at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income, under the currency
translation differences (“CTD"). When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant
amount in the CTD is transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

(m) Discontinued Operations, Assets Held For Sale and Liabilities Directly Associated with Assets
Held For Sale

A discontinued operationis a component of the Group's business that represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier.

When an operationis classified as a discontinued operation, the net assets of the discontinued
operations are measured at fair value less cost of sale of the operation. The profit/(loss) before tax
and the profit/(loss) after the tax of the discontinued operation are presented in the notes of the
consolidated financial statements and a profit/(loss) analysis including the income and expenses is
performed. Besides, the net cash flows related to operational, investing and financing activities of the
discontinued operations are presented in the related note.

In compliance with TAS 31 “Shares in Joint Ventures" and TFRS 5 "Assets Classified as Held For

Sale and Discontinuing Operations', the interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in
accordance with TFRS 5. When aninterest in a jointly controlled entity previously classified as held for
sale nolonger meets the criteria to be classified, it is accounted for using proportionate consolidation
or the equity method as from the date of its classification as held for sale. Financial statements for
the periods since classification as held for sale are amended accordingly. The operations of the joint
venture whose operations have been previously classified as discontinued are classified as continued.

A group of assetsis classified as asset held for sale if their carrying amount is planned to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. The liabilities directly
associated with these assets are classified similarly. Such group of assets is accounted for at the
lower of its carrying amount (being the net amount of the assets and liabilities directly associated
with them) and fair value less costs to sell.

If the Group has classified an asset (or disposal group) as held for sale, but the criteria of such
classification are no longer met, the Group ceases to classify the asset (or disposal group) as held for
sale. The Group measures a non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale (or ceases
to be included in a disposal group classified as held for sale) at the lower of:
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POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Discontinued Operations, Assets Held For Sale and Liabilities Directly Associated with Assets
Held For Sale (continued)

(a) its carrying amount before the asset (or disposal group) was classified as held for sale, adjusted
for any depreciation, amortization or revaluations that would have been recognized had the asset (or
disposal group) not been classified as held for sale.

(b) its recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

The Group does not reclassify or re-present amounts presented for non-current assets or for the
assets and liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for sale in the balance sheet for prior periods
to reflect the classification in the balance sheet for the latest period presented.

(n) Earnings/(Loss) Per Share

The Group presents basic earnings per share (“EPS") data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, less own shared acquired.

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares
("bonus shares”) to existing shareholders from retained earnings and inflation adjustments on equity
items. Such kind of bonus shares are taken into consideration in the computation of earnings per
share as issued share certificates. For the purpose of earnings per share computations, the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period has been adjusted in respect of bonus shares
issues without a corresponding change in resources, by giving them retroactive effect for the periodin
which they were issued and each earlier period.

(o) Events After the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period include all events up to the date when the financial statements are
authorized for issue, even if those events occur after the public announcement of profit or of other
selected information.

The Group adjusts the amounts recognized inits consolidated financial statements to reflect adjusting

events after the reporting period. Non adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, if material.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(p) Provisions, Contingent Assets and Liabilities

A provisionis recognized in the accompanying consolidated financial statements if, as a result of a past
event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably and it

is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Contingent
liabilities are assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits has become probable. Unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote,
contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Where an economic

inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that aninflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset
and the related income are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change
occurs.

(r) Leases
(i) Financial lease

Allleases which transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset
are classified as financial leases. Financial leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the
fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments and is
reflected as a liability by the same amount in the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
finance lease obligations are reduced through principle payments and the finance charge portion is
allocated to consolidated statement of comprehensive income of each period during the lease term.
Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the related asset.

If there is not reasonable certainty that the ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, and the lease termis shorter than the estimated useful life of the leased asset, the asset is
depreciated over the lease term, otherwise the asset is depreciated over its estimated useful life.

(ii) Operating leases

Operating leases are the leases that the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the asset
belongs to thelesser. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an expense in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(s) Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities through which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group's management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess
its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

The operating segments of the Group are finance, energy, infrastructure, real estate and other
segments, and they are disclosed in Note 5.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(t) Government Subsidies and Incentives

All subsidies and incentives, including non-monetary incentives stated at fair market values, are
included in the consolidated financial statements when there is reasonable certainty that the Group
will qualify for and receive such subsidies and incentives. Government subsidies and incentives utilized
by the Group are presented in Note 37.

(u) Related Parties
Parties are considered related to the Company if:

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:
(i) controls,is controlled by, or is under common control with the Company (this includes
Parent, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries):

(i) has aninterest in the Company that gives it significant influence over the Company; or

(iii) has joint control over the Company;

b) the party is an associate of the Company

) the party is a joint venture in which the Company is a venturer;

) the party is member of the key management personnel of the Company as its parent;

) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred toin (a) or (d);

f) the party is an entity that is controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e)

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Company, or of
any entity thatis arelated party of the Company.

(
(c
(d
(e
(

A related party transactionis a transfer of resources, services or obligation between related parties,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

A number of transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business.
(v) Treasury shares

(i) When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid,
whichincludes directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction
from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as "treasury shares owned by the Company" if
owned by the Company and classified as "treasury shares owned by the subsidiaries" if owned by
subsidiaries and are presented in equity. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently,
the amount received is recognised as anincrease in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on
the transaction is presented in share premium.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(y) Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax charge is recognized in profit or
loss except for the effects of the items reflected under equity. Current tax except taxes recognized
during business combination and taxes recognized under other comprehensive income are recognized
in profit or loss.

Current tax liability is calculated on taxable profit for the current year based on tax laws and tax rates
that have been effective for the reporting date including adjustment related to previous years' tax
liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognized over temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognized for the differences arising from the initial recognition of goodwill, differences of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, at the time of the transaction,
which affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and for differences associated with the
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint ventures, to the extent that they probably
willnot reverse in the foreseeable future, Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable, entity or on different tax entities but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
anet basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset over tax loss carried forward is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

(z) Receivables From Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The funds given in return for the financial assets subject to reverse repurchase are accounted for

as receivables from reverse repurchase agreements under the cash and cash equivalents. For the
difference between the purchase and re-sale prices determined in accordance with the related reverse
repurchase agreements, which is attributable to the period, anincome rediscount is calculated with
theinternal rate of return method and is accounted for by adding to the cost of the receivables from
reverse repurchase agreements.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(aa) Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows for the period are classified as cash flows from operations, investing activities and
financing activities. Cash flows from operations are the cash flows generated from the principal
activities of the Group. The Group presents the cash flows from operating activities by using the
indirect method such as adjusting the accruals for cash inflows and outflows from gross profit/loss,
other non-cash transactions, prior and future transactions or deferrals.

Cash flows from investing activities represent the cash flows used in/provided from investing
activities (purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and financial
investments).

Cash flows from financing activities represent the funds used in and repayment of the funds during
the period.

Cash and cash equivalents are short term investments with high liquidity that comprise cash balances
and call deposits with maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value.

(ab) Dividends

Dividend receivables are recorded as income in the period of declaration. Dividend payments are
recognised in consolidated financial statements when a distribution of profit decided by General
Assembly.

(ac) Resolutions Promulgated by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA"), has issued the Authority’s
Principle Decisions on the following topics for companies preparing financial statements in accordance
with TAS until further amendments are made to TAS on the relevant matters. These principle
decisions are issued with the aim of promoting reliability, relevance, comparability, understandability

and uniformity and easing auditability of the financial information presented to users.

Details of these resolutions and impact on the Group stated as below:
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POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(ac) Resolutions Promulgated by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
(continued)

Financial Statement Examples and User Guide (2013-1)

Financial statement examples and user guide are prepared topics for companies preparing financial
statements in accordance with the TAS with the aim of promoting reliability, relevance, comparability,
understandability and uniformity and easing auditability of the financial information presented to
users. This resolution is effective from the first reporting period after that resolution publication

date 20 May 2013. The Group made reclassifications explained in Note 2.3.e in order to fulfill the
requirements of this resolution and comply with illustrative financial statements published by CMB on
7 June 2013.

Other resolutions mentioned below became effective for the reporting periods subsequent to 21
July 2013 and applicable from annual reporting periods beginning after 31 December 2012. It is not
expected that the below mentioned resolutions would have impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Accounting of Combinations under Common Control (2013-2)

Combination of entities under common control should be recognized using the pooling of interest
method. Thus, goodwill should not be included in the financial statements. The effect of combination
of entities under common control should be recognized on '"The effect of Combination of Entities

or Business Under Common Control" under equity as equalizing balance. The financial statements
should be prepared as if the combination has taken place as of the beginning of the reporting periodin
which the common control occurs and should be presented comparatively from the beginning of the
reporting period in which the common control occurred.

Accounting of Redeemed Share Certificates (2013-3)

Clarification has been provided on the conditions and circumstances where the redeemed share
certificates shall be recognized as a finandial liability or equity based financial instruments.

Accounting of Cross Shareholding Investments (2013-4)

Accounting of cross investment in associates is assessed based on the type of the investment,

the subsidiary holding the equity based financial instruments of the parent, the associates or joint
ventures holding the equity based financial instruments of the parent, the parent's equity based
financial instruments are held by an entity, which is accounted as an investment within the scope of
TAS 38 and TFRS 9 by the parent. With this resolution, this topic has been assessed under three main
headings above and the recognition principles for each one of them has been determined.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(ad) Determination of fair value

Both financial and non financial assets and liabilities of the Group are subject to fair value
determination based onrelated accounting policies and statements of the Group. Additional
information, applicable to assumptions used in determination of fair value, is presented in notes of the
related assets and liabilities particularly.

The different levels have been defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Input other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices);

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

2.6 Summary of Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with TFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect both the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimate.

The accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements, are consistent with the accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions used in
preparing the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2012 except for the application of
TAS 19 mentioned in Note 2.3.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following
notes:

- Note 3 Business combinations

- Note 5 Segment reporting

- Note 15 Investment properties

- Note 36 Assets held for sale
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Summary of Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, the significant estimates and judgments used
by the Group are included in the following notes:

- Note 2.5 (def) Usefullives of property,plant and equipments and intangible assets and
concessionintangible assets

- Note 3 Fair value of assets and liabilities in business combinations

- Note 10 Impairment losses on trade receivables

- Note 12 Impairment losses on receivables from finance sector operations

- Note 15 Fair value of investment properties

- Note 17 Impairment of goodwill

- Note 19 Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

- Note 21 Assumptions for provision of employment termination benefit

- Note 28 Income/expense from investing activities

- Note 31 Tax assets and liabilities

- Note 35 Determination of fair value

- Note 36 - Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Port of Bar:

The contract with respect to acquisition of % 62,09 shares of general freight and cargo terminal

of Port of Bar located in Montenegro has been signed on 14 December 201 3 after a subsidiary of
Group, Global Liman offered the tender comprised the repair and maintenance of the Port, financing,
construction and operating the Port for 30 years and initiated by Ministry of Transportation and
Maritime and Port Administration of Montenegro at best, approvals and procedures related to sales
transaction was completed on 30 December 2013 which is the Group obtained management and
control of the company.

Port of Bar, represents a significant chain in intermodal transportation with respect to free zone
regime and integration of Belgrade —Bar road and railway traffic system. Port of Bar has a port with
1619 meter long and the shallowest point of the port is 10 meter. 249 numbers of ships visited the
port and 539 thousand tones of cargo handled in the year of 201 3. Global Liman is under obligation
of performing some investment and social programmes stated in the agreement in the first three
years following the acquisition. Global Liman has made a commitment amounting to Euro 13,5 millions
with respect to investment expenditures for the first three years. Service scale of Port of Bar willbe
arranged with Port Administration of Montenegro in accordance with the terms of the concession
agreement. Based on taking control of Port of Bar, the Group acquired the operation right of a port
operating overseas and also a Turkish Company has acquired the majority ownership of a port
operation overseas for the first time. The Group plans to increase port investments overseas and
expands its port portfolio overseas by new port investments.
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3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Port of Bar: (continued)

Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are recognised at fair value based on TFRS-

3 "Business Combinations". Transaction is provisionally recognized in the consolidated financial
statements due to limited duration between the date of acquisition and preparation of the financial
statements and the separation transaction of identifiable assets and liabilities were in progress at
the reporting date. The fair value of the identifiable monetary assets of Port of Bar are assessed to
be equal to the carrying value and the fair value of the property, plant and equipment is determined
by a fixed asset expert in temporarily recognition of acquisition transaction and fair value of property
and equipments have been taken into consideration based on the amount determined by the fixed
asset expert. The acquisition cost explained below in detail is recognized in intangible assets as port
operation right after deduction of identifiable assets and liabilities mentioned above.

The fair value of the Port of Bar has been determined by using the weighted average of the value
based on the market approach method and income approach method prepared by an independent
appraisal company.

This acquisition is accounted for by applying the purchase method, which requires the measurement
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at their fair values accordance with TFRS 3
"Business Combinations".

According to the income approach, the fair value of the company has been determined through future
projected cash flows by using discounted cash flow method (DCF). When determining the fair value of
the company with DCF method, the discount ratio as the weighted average of cost of capital in Eurois
determined as 13,66%. The valuation is made by calculating the discounted future cash flows based
on 30 year period projections which includes current and 30-years port traffic, current capacity, and
the capacity after the investments which the Group plans to make, and restructuring commitments
based on the agreement. In the market approach method, the peer comparison method and
comparable Shares Purchase-Selling Agreements are used based on the standard ratios of similar
companies, Price/Sales and NAV/EBITDA ratios.

The following table summarizes the details related to the accounting of the acquisition in accordance
with the purchase method:

Acquisition cost 23160.129
Fair value of total net identifiable assets (100%) (126.082.994)
Fair value of non-controlling interests (37,91%) 47.798.063
Bargain purchase gain (negative goodwiill) (55.124.802)

Bargain purchase gainis recognized in "other operating income' in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income (Note 27.1).
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3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Port of Bar: (continued)

Fair value
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed 100%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 426.838
Trade and Other Receivables 3.280.147
Other Assets 10.430.251
Property, Plant and Equipment 82.881.996
Intangible Assets 35.416.609
Deferred Tax Asset 3.968.598
Loans and Borrowings (2.656.302)
Trade and Other Payables (3.791.389)
Provisions for Employment Termination Indemnity (3.623.297)
Other Liabilities (250.457)
Net identifiable assets 126.082.994

Itis probable to observe corrections in the identifiable assets and liabilities and correspondingly in the
accounted value of bargain purchase gain when the accounting of acquisition is completed.

The realized and expected to realize growth in the operations due to the increase in the capacity -
usage-ratio as a result of the working-capital fund transfers and investments in order to improve the
productivity and working capacity of the port in question that would contribute to the value of the
operation resulted in bargain purchase gain as a result of the acquisition of Port of Bar. The acquisition
of Port of Bar shares contributed net profit of TL 55.124.802, accounted as bargain purchase gain
whereas it has no effect on consolidated revenues since it was purchased at the end of 2013,

Consideration paid: 23.160.129
Cash associated with purchased assets (426.838)
Net cash outflow 22.733.291

The acquisition cost amounting to Euro 8.071.700 (TL 23.160.119) was totally paid to Ministry of
Transportation and Maritime Affairs of Montenegro on 30 December 2013,

Gelis Madencilik

As of 3 October 2013, Global Enerji, a subsidiary of the Group has purchased the 85% of the shares
of Gelis Madencilik Enerjiinsaat Ticaret A.S (Gelis Madencilik), a company operating in the scope of
business license numbered IR-2505 in Sirnak after obtaining required permissions from Competition
Authority and reached to 85% of the shares of Gelis Madencilik with respect to the transaction. The
Group has purchased Gelis Madencilik for the purpose of providing raw material procurement for
future thermal plant investments of its subsidiary, Galata Enerji (a company, operating and developing
aproject called "2X135 MW long fluidized bed thermal plant” in progress in Sirnak, the southeast of
Turkey, with respect to energy production license obtained from EMRA).
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3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Port of Bar: (continued)
Gelis Madencilik (continued)

When the Power Plant has started to operate, the coal will be supplied by Gelis Madencilik which has
a capacity of asphaltite reserve probably more than 200 million tones and private operating right for
asphaltite in Sirnak.

Gelis Madencilik is established under Turkish Law in 2006 and has a statue of corporate body resident
with respect to the regional and international tax practices in Turkey.

The main operation of the company is prospecting, taking out a license for mining, sinking mine, mining
and operating, leasing mine, leasing out mine, taking over and transferring mine licenses purchased,
conducting factory and workplaces for mining, purchasing mine, selling, importing, sinking semi-
finished mine and transforming them into merchandise.

Gelis Madencilik has an agreement dated 29 June 2007 about operating asphaltite reserves
numbered IR-2505 based on the authority of Sirnak Special Provincial Administration and Turkish
Coal Enterprise. Gelis Madencilik, produces asphaltite and makes related asphaltite investments in
accordance with Turkish Coal Enterprise and royalty agreement stating operating license rights in
certain limits and other supplemental agreements.

Itis probable to observe corrections in the temporary value of identifiable assets and liabilities and
correspondingly in the accounted value of goodwill when the accounting of acquisition is completed.
Acquisition of Gelis Madencilik would strengthen the Group's position within the market for mining.
The Group willinvest into Gelis Madencilik via working-capital fund transfer. These are expected to
create value-addition in the sector and take in the best position in terms of cash generation whichin
turn would increase their income.

The following table summarizes the details related to the accounting of the acquisition in accordance
with the purchase method:

Acquisition cost 54.421.124
Fair value of total net identifiable assets (100%) (17.737.266)
Fair value of non-controlling interests (15%) 2.660.590
Goodwill (Note 17) 39.344.448

Fair value
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed 100%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 161.620
Trade and Other Receivables 16.220.531
Inventory 11.149.652
Other assets 5.439.545
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 3.908.274
Loans and borrowings (3.027.599)
Trade and Other Payables (16.114.757)
Total net identifiable assets 17.737.266
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3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Port of Bar: (continued)
Gelis Madencilik (continued)

Total cost of the acquisiton is USD 26.958.500. After deducting the advance paid amounting to

USD 7.958.500 the remaining amount of consideration payable by USD 19.000.000 will be paid to
suppliers after the ninety-days that the commercial sale of electricity will be started by the Plant
Project whose license owned by Galata Enerji will be starting to operate. In addition, the advance
payment amounting to USD 7.958.500 will be repaid to the Group, on the conditon that Thermal Plant
Project will not start to operate in two years starting from the date of shares taken over by the Group
(Note 36).

The sellers are responsible for collecting and paying the existing receivables and payables of Gelis
Madencilik according to the transfer protocol. Related receivables and payables are paid and collected
at the reporting date.

Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities shown in the table above are recognised at fair

value based on TFRS-3 "Business Combinations". The gross amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables acquired at the date of the business combination reflect their carrying value.

Consideration paid .

Cash associated with purchased assets 137.377
Net cash outflow 137.377
Straton Maden:

Global Enerjihas purchased the 75% share of “Ra Dogu Madencilik A.S." and changed its commercial
title as "Hades Maden Yatirimlari ve isletmecdiligi A.S.” on 15 January 2013. Approvals and procedures
related to sales transaction was completed on 18 February 2013 and after that day the Group
obtained management and control of the company. As of 8 May 2013, commercial title of the
company was changed as "'Straton Maden Yatirimlari ve isletmecdiligi A.S." ("' Straton Maden") by a
board decision.

As of 1 June 201 3, Straton Maden has taken over Feldspat Operation from "“Standart Teknoloji
Savunma Enerji ve Madencilik A.S." with all excavation rights and all of the property plant and
equipments and employees. The company is consolidated from the date of 1 June 2013.

Straton Maden has 3 stopes in Yatagan in Mugla. Annual production capacity of the Company is
aproximately 250.000 tones. After the planned investment, production capacity is planned to reach
t0 935.000 tonnes. As of July 2013, Straton Maden has IR 1108 licence and Royalty licence which is
obtained from Turkish Coal Enterprise. Mine set of the royalty licence numbered 3303 is located in
northwest (25 km away) of the Yatagan and 50 km away from Milas, Mugla. 3303 numbered mine set
has 2.530 hectare feldspat operation area. Total mine areais 4.911 hectare. Straton Maden's feldspat
operation royalty licence is valid until 20 February 2023 based on agreement with KIAS. Straton
Maden has 2 open mines and 20 openable mines.
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3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Port of Bar: (continued)
Straton Maden: (continued)

Taking the control of Straton Maden will strengthen the Group's position within the market for Mining.
Together with the acquisition, the Group would invest to Straton Maden via working-capital fund
transfer. These are expected to create value-addition in the sector and take in the best position in
terms of cash generation which in turn would increase their income.

The acquisition price of 75% of Straton Maden's sharesis TL 11.000.000. The final value of the
consideration is determined as the 75% of the 3 times amount of EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest,
Taxes, Depreciation and Amortisation) that would be generated within the 12 months period following
the acquisition. The advance payments for the acquired property, plant and equipment will be netted
off from this final consideration.

This acquisition is accounted for by applying the purchase method, which requires the measurement
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at their fair values accordance with TFRS 3
"Business Combinations”.

The acquisition of Straton Maden is accounted provisionally in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, since i) the property, plant and equipment acquired with government incentives
has not yet been transferred, i) the consideration value is contingent on the performance within the
12 months following the transfer, iii) difficulty in estimating the 12 months performance together with
the investments, iv) the accounting of the acquisition has not yet been finished as of reporting date
due to the difficulty in a fair value assessment of the property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and the goodwill. The fair value of the identifiable monetary assets and liabilities of Straton Maden
are assessed to be equal to the carrying value and the fair value of the property, plant and equipment
assetsis determined by a fixed asset expert. The fair value of acquired operation is temporarily
attributed to the royalty under intangible assets after deducting the above mentioned identifiable
assets and liabilities and accounted under the intangible assets.

The value of the acquired operation that has been determined by anindependent company providing
appraisal services is calculated on the future cash flows using the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF)
method. These cash flows are determined based upon the mine detection report prepared by
independent engineers that are experts in mining. Based on the above mentioned report, the potential
reserves in the transferred mine sites is 24 million tones, 10 million tones of which is proven reserves
and 14 million tones of which is probable reserves. While probable reserves are not taken into account
in the cash flows that are used to determine the value of the operation, only the proven reserves are
considered in calculations. The discount rate in DCF method for the determination of the value of the
operationis 10% which is determined as the weighted average cost of capital.

Itis probable to observe corrections in the identifiable assets and liabilities and correspondingly in the
accounted value of bargain purchase gain when the accounting of acquisition is completed.
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3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Port of Bar: (continued)
Straton Maden: (continued)

The following table summarizes the details related to the accounting of the acquisition in accordance
with the acquisition method:

Acquisition cost 11.000.000
Fair value of total net identifiable assets (100%) (83.700.466)
Fair value of non-controlling interests (25%) 20.925116
Bargain purchase gain (negative goodwill) (51.775.350)

Bargain purchase gainis recognized in "other operating income" under the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income (Note 27.1).

Therealized and expected to realize growth in the operations due to the increase in the capacity -
usage-ratio as aresult of the working-capital fund transfers and investments in order to improve the
productivity and working capacity of the mine site in question that would contribute to the value of
the operation resulted in bargain purchase gain as a result of the acquisition of Straton Maden.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed Fair value 100%
Cash and cash equivalents 6.031
Trade and other receivables 1.649.204
Inventories 1.332.758
Property, plant and equipment 2.930.207
Intangible assets-royalty contract value 103.313.111
Deferred tax liabilities (20.912.133)
Trade and other payables (4.618.712)
Net identifiable assets 83.700.466

The acquisition of Straton Maden's shares contributed to revenues by TL 8.884.035 and to net profits
by TL 48.505.385 (including a bargain purchase gain) in consolidated profit or loss.

Consideration paid: 2.203.000
Cash associated with purchased assets (6.031)
Net cash outflow 2.196.969

TL 8.797.000 that remains after deducting TL 703.000 which is paid during the transfer of the
property, plant and equipments and TL 1.500.000 which is paid as the initial advance from the
acquisition cost of TL 11.000.000 is recognized under other payables. As at 31 December 2013 the
remaining consideration payableis TL 5.904.000 (Note 11).
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3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Port of Bar: (continued)

Naturelgaz:

25% Share Purchase (2013)

On 18 January 2013, the Group's subsidiary, Global Enerji that previously had 55% of the shares of
its joint venture Naturelgaz that engaged in the sales activities of compressed natural gas bought
25% of shares of Naturelgaz shares and the voting rights from STFA Yatinm Holding A.S. with a
consideration of USD 10.000.000 ( TL 17.510.000). Therefore, the Group's effective percentage of
shares in Naturelgaz has increased to 80%. This purchase gives the control of Naturelgaz to the Group
solely. Due to the fact that there is no financial statement prepared on 18 January 2013 and 18 days
of difference is considered as immaterial for the consolidated financial statements, it is decided to use
the financial statements as at 31 December 2012 for the purchase accounting. As for the purchase
accounting, the fair values that were used during the recognition of the 30% of shares taken over on
12 December 2012 are used.

Naturelgaz was established in order to operate in the CNG (compressed natural gas) sector. This
company meets the natural gas needs of many diversified users such as the large industrial
companies, small enterprises, mass housing projects, villas, hotels, recreational facilities, forklifts and
generators in the areas where natural gas can not be distributed via pipelines. Moreover, it provides
fuel for buses, minibuses and heavy vehicles. With the purchase of shares in Naturelgaz, the Group
continued to expand its investment in the energy sector.

The following table summarizes the details related to the accounting of the acquisition in accordance
with the purchase method:

Acquisition cost 17.510.000
Fair value of total net identifiable assets (100%) (81.122.838)
Fair value of non-controlling interests (20%) 16.224.568
Fair value of previously held interests (55%) 44.617.560
Bargain purchase gain (negative goodwill) (2.770.710)

Bargain purchase gain is recognized in other operating income in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income (Note 27.1).

1 7 6 GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Port of Bar: (continued)

Naturelgaz: (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed Fair value 100%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 383.184
Trade and Other Receivables 12.569.791
Inventories 2.881.154
Other Current Assets 4.460.123
Property, Plant and Equipment 49.532.668
Intangible Assets 71.293.017
Finnacial Liabilities (21.980.529)
Trade and Other Payables (17.091.094)
Provisions for Employment Termination Indemnity (447.204)
Provisions (7.549)
Deferred Tax Liability (18.804.800)
Other Liabilities (1.665.923)
Net identifiable assets 81.122.838

This acquisition is accounted for by applying the purchase method, which requires the measurement
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at their fair values as of the date of
acquisition in accordance with TFRS 3 “Business Combinations'. As at acquisition date, gross

contractual cash flows of trade and other receivables reflect their fair values.

Acquisition of Naturelgaz, included in the scope of consolidation as a result of the acquisition,
contributed on consolidated revenues amounting to TL 54.371.289 and decreased the consolidated
profits including bargain purchase gain and gain on previously-held interest of TL 10.560.339.

As aresult of the acquisition, the Group recognized net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities corresponding to the previously held 55% equity interest at their fair values at the acquisition

dateinits consolidated financial statements.

Share purchase (30%) (2012)

On 12 December 2012, Global Enerji, a subsidiary of the Group, acquired 30% of the shares and voting
rights of Naturelgaz, a company operating in the natural gas transmission and distribution sector, from
Rudolf Ruben Goldenberg, Lusi Aser Goldenberg and Altindag Yatirim Mumessillik ve Ticaret A.S at
aprice of USD 12.000.000 (equivalent to TL 21.325.200 in total). Thus, the effective shareholding

interest of the Group in Naturelgaz became 55%.

The total net identifiable assests of Naturelgaz as at 31 December 2012 was determined with the

method of DCF by an authorized valuation company.
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3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Port of Bar: (continued)

Naturelgaz: (continued)

The following table summarizes the details related to the accounting of the acquisition in accordance

with the acquisition method:

Acquisition cost 21.325.200
Fair value of total net identifiable assets (30%) (24.336.851)
Bargain purchase gain (negative goodwill) (3.011.651)
Bargain purchase gain is recognized in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed Fair value 100%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 383.184
Trade and Other Receivables 12.569.791
Inventory 2.881.154
Other Assets 4460123
Property, Plant and Equipment 49,532,668
Intangible Assets 71.293.017
Financial Liabilities (21.980.529)
Trade and Other Payables (17.091.094)
Provisions for Employment Termination Benefit (447.204)
Debt Provisions (7.549)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (18.804.800)
Other Liabilities (1.665.923)
Total net identifiable assets 81.122.838

As aresult of the acquisition, Global Enerji, a subsidiary of the Group, recognized net identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities corresponding to the previously held 25% equity interest
at their fair values at the acquisition date inits consolidated financial statements. As a result of this
recognition, the difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of the net identifiable
assets at the acquisition date corresponding to equity interest held immediately prior to acquisition
is recognized as gain on previously-held interest in other operating income in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Port of Bar: (continued)

Naturelgaz: (continued)

The following summarizes the gain on previously-held interest recognized:

Fair value of the net identifiable assets corresponding to equity interest held immediately prior to
acquisition (25%)

20.280.709
Carrying amount of the net identifiable assets corresponding to equity
interest held immediately prior to acquisition (10.484.399)
Gain on previously-held interest 9.796.310

Gain on previously-held interest is recognized in profit or loss.

This acquisition is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, which requires the measurement
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at their fair values as of the date of
acquisition in accordance with TFRS 3 “Business Combinations'. As at acquisition date, gross
contractual cash flows of trade and other receivables reflect their fair values.

Acquisition of Naturelgaz, included in the scope of consolidation as a result of the acquisition, has no
effect on the salesin 2012. Naturelgaz and its acquisition including bargain purchase gain and gain on
previously-held interest decreased the consolidated profits of TL 12.807.961.

Except for Naturelgaz which has been consolidated since 1 January 2013, the effects of the
acquisitions of Straton Maden, Gelis Madencilik and Port of Bar have not been taken into consideration
due to net profit or loss before the acquisition transactions of Straton Maden, Gelis Madencilik

and Port of Bar have no material effect on consolidated financial statements since the acquisition
transaction of those companies recognized on 1 January 2013.

4 INVESTMENT IN OTHER ENTITIES
Shares in Joint Ventures

The Group, together with the changes in the accounting standards that are explained in Note 2.3
restated the consolidated financial statements. Naturelgaz and EYH which were consolidated as joint
ventures by proportionate consolidation method as of 31 December 2012 , have been consolidated
as equity accounted investees by equity accounting method. Naturelgaz has been subject to full
consolidation as a subsidiary following the increment to 80% of the Naturelgaz shares of the Group
as of 18 January 201 3. According to these changes in the accounting standards, the detail of joint
ventures, including BPl acquiredin 2013, are explained in Note 18 "Equity Accounted Investees".
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments considered in performance evaluation of the Group Management are determined
by considering the Group's risks and resources and internal reporting structure. The Group's operating
segments are finance, energy, infrastructure, real estate and other. Finance segment includes the
finance operations (including Global Yatirnm Holding), energy segment includes compressed natural
gas distribution and electricity generation facilities and mining operations, infrastructure segment
includes port operations and real estate segment includes operations in respect of investment
property and trading property operations. Other segment mainly includes the media operations.

Especially in the winter months (December, January, February), the operations of the subsidiaries

of the Group operating in the port operation sector under the infrastructure segment decline in
comparison with the other months of the year. The busiest period in the cruise port operations is the
third quarter of the year. These seasonality of operations have animpact on the performance of the
aforementioned segments.

Information regarding all the segments is stated below. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortization ("EBITDA") is reviewed in the assessment of the financial performance of the
operating segments. The Company management assesses EBITDA as the most appropriate method
for the review of the segment operations, based on the comparability with other companies in the
same industry. As the transactions mentioned below became significant in terms of the operations
of the Group, the Group, starting in 2011, includes the following items in the EBITDA: the profit or /
loss before tax earned by the Group companies' sale of the Company shares and the profit or / loss
before tax earned by the Group from the sale of its subsidiaries’ shares without losing the control
and unquoted to an active market. These gains and losses are accounted for under the equity in the
consolidated financial statements. The information related to the segments of the Group is disclosed
below.
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Revenues
Segment revenues 248.406.705 166.367.944
Elimination of inter-segment revenues (**) (1.057.781) -
Consolidated revenues 247.348.924 166.367.944
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Consolidated EBITDA 190.024.028 208.787.726
Finance income (Note29) 22.153.260 25.328.547
Finance expenses (Note 30) (120.978.714) (84.240.312)
(Gain)/Loss on sale of shares recognized in equity
(Note 23) (1.576.561) (1.146.845)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses (Note 26) (59.953.847) (44.056.752)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before income tax 29.668.166 104.672.364
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Segment finance income 27.254.750 32.272.657
Elimination of inter-segment finance income (5.101.490) (6.944.110)
Total finance income (Note 29) 22.153.260 25.328.547
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Segment finance expenses (126.698.597) (91.426.669)
Elimination of inter-segment finance expenses 5.719.883 7.186.357
Total finance expenses (Note 30) (120.978.714) (84.240.312)
1 January- 1 January-
Significant non-cash income / expenses 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Bargain purchase gain (Note 27) 109.670.862 3.011.651
Gain on previously held interest (Note 27) - 9.796.310
Gain/loss on fair value change of investment property,
net (Note 28) 16.286.371 4.467.095
Provision for consultancy expenses (Note 1.9) 808.815 808.815
Gain on sale of joint ventures - 150.185.136
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 25) 219.892 489.075
Other
Total 126.985.940 168.758.082
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Fixed asset purchases (***)

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)

Energy 42.509.203 3.056.770
Finance 728372 2.854.354
Infrastructure 15.323.708 6.724.679
Real estate 319.769 577373
Other 312,729 17.788
Total 59.193.781 13.230.964

(*) 31 December 2012 financial statements are restated. For the restated financial statements please refer to Note 2.3.e.
(**) The total amount of elimination of inter-segment revenues is related to the finance segment.

(***) Fixed asset purchases include additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property.
TL 9.796.310 part of the material non-cash income/expenses in the period ended 31 December 2012 is related to bargain
purchase gain (201.3: None).

6 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The related parties shown in the related party disclosures and the nature of the relation of the Group
with these parties are as follows:

Related party Nature of relations
Mehmet Kutman Shareholder and key management personnel
Erol Goker Shareholder and key management personnel

Global Portfty Equity accounted investee (Note 1.8)
Global A Tipi ve B Tipi Fon Funds of a subsidiary
Torba Unconsolidated subsidiary (Not 2.1.f.(vii))

Turkcom Turizm Enerjiinsaat Gida
Yatirimlar A.S. (Turkcom)

Company owned by shareholder

Due from related parties

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, current receivables from operations in finance
sector-due from related parties comprised the following:

Current receivables from operations in finance

sector due from related parties 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Turkcom (*) 10.000.713 9.994.079
Global A Type ve B Type Funds 2291 2,291
Other 1.071.616 984.676
Total 11.074.620 10.981.046

(*) Balances consist of loans extended for regular margin lending activities. The receivables are secured with equity securities.
Interest is charged on the receivables based on market interest rates.
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6 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

Due from related parties (continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other current receivables from related parties
comprised the following:

Other current receivables from related parties 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Mehmet Kutman (1) 2.079.160 642.895
Turkcom 84.466 5.743.333
Erol Goker (1) 1.220.617 -
Other 1.409.283 3.658.774
Total (2) 4.793.526 10.045.002

(1) These amounts are related with the personnel and work advances and they are not secured. Interest is charged on advances
which have not work advances (Interest rate: 31 December 2013:11,75%, 31 December 2012:15%)
(2) The amount excludes the loans provided to key management explained below.

A subsidiary of the Group has provided secured loans to key management with a limit of USD
10.000.000 and an interest rate of Libor +3,5%, having annual coupon payments and a principal
payment at the end of period, which mature on 30 December 201 2. The maturity of this loanis
extended to the date of 31 December 2014. As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, this
receivable has been classified in other current receivables from related parties in the balance sheet.
As at 31 December 201 3, the principal of this loan amounted to USD 9.806.377 and the accrued
interest amounted to USD 370.067. The total loan amounted to USD 10.176.444 (equivalent to TL
21.719.584). As at 31 December 2012, the principal of this loan amounted to USD 10.000.000 and
the accrued interest amounted to USD 649.431 and the totalloan amounted to USD 10.649.431
(equivalentto TL18.983.676).

As at 31 December 2013, current receivables due from related parties (including the loan provided to
key management by the Group) amount to TL 26.513.110 in the consolidated financial statements
(31 December 2012: TL 29.028.678).

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other non-current receivables from related parties
comprised the following:

Other non-current receivables from related parties 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Torba (*) 5.029.659 5.029.659
Total 5.029.659 5.029.659

(*) The balance consists of an advance given for a real estate development project. The receivable balance has no guarantee.
Interest was charged over this receivable until the date of loss of the control of Torba (Note 1.9.2 (ii)).
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6 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)
Due to related parties

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, short-term payables from operations in finance
sector-due to related parties comprised the following:

Short-term payables from operations in finance

sector due to related parties 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Global A Type and B Type Funds 302.770 -
Other - 20.910
Total 302.770 20.910

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other short-term payables due to related parties
comprised the following:

Other short-term payables to related parties 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Other 122.653 166.748
Total 122.653 166.748

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other long-term payables due to related parties
comprised the following;

Other long-term payables to related parties 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Other 16.220 16.220
Total 16.220 16.220

Transactions with related parties:

Transactions with key management personnel

The total benefits (salaries, bonuses, attendance fees for Board of Directors, etc.) provided to the
key management for the period ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are TL10.627.539and TL
16.698.051, respectively.

The Group's interest income earned from the loan provided to key management for the year ended 31
December 2013 amountsto TL 703.608 (1 January-31 December 2012: TL 659.771).
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6 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

Transactions with other related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, significant transactions with other related parties

comprised the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Interest Commission Other Commission Interest Commission Other Commission

Received Received income Given Received Received income Given

Turkcom (*) 1.580.323 - - - 1.613.904 - - -

Mehmet Kutman (*) 394.784 - - 700.000 337.226 - - 700.000

Erol Goker 7.431 - 2.400 - 10.336 - 2100 -
Global A Type and B Type

Funds - 44226 - - - 7.765 - -

Other 135.547 - 512.840 - 679.834 - 460.660 -

Total 2.118.085 44.226 515.240 700.000 2.641.300 7.765 462.760 700.000

(*) Includes margin lending and advance interest.

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, cash and cash equivalents comprised the

following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Cash onhand 298.520 452,978
Cash at banks 65.329.996 29.369.998

-Demand deposits 11.822.201 17.986.821

-Time deposits 53.507.795 11.383.177
Receivables from reverse repurchase agreements 4495547 18.512.737
Credit card receivables 9 358
Receivables from Takasbank 1.910.746 508.310
Other 2.298.825 24.498
Cash and cash equivalents 74.333.643 48.868.879
Blocked deposits (12.686.436) (12.961.943)
Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes 61.647.207 35.906.936
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7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, maturities of time deposits comprised the
following

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Up to 1 month 51.217.142 9.839.401
1-3months 2.290.653 1.543.776
53.507.795 11.383.177

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the range of time deposit interest rates included in
cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Interest rate range for time deposit - TL 7,42%-915% 5%-9,25%
Interest rate for time deposit - USD 0,35% 5,00%

As at 31 December 2013, cash at banks amounting to TL 1.469.045 (31 December 2012: TL
1.911.000) is blocked due to bank borrowings and letters of guarantee by the banks. As at 31
December 2013, TL 10.962,948 deposited at the BIST Settlement and Custody Bank (*Takasbank)
is blocked by the CMB (31 December 2012: TL 10.731.612). Cash at banks amounting to TL 9 (31
December 2012: TL 358) comprises credit card receivables and TL 254.434 (31 December 2012: TL
318.973) of other receivables are blocked at banks until their maturities. Financial risk with respect to
cash and cash equivalents are detailed in Note 33.

8 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the details of financial investments comprised the
following:

Current assets 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Financial assets held for trading 22.808.608 9.738.924
Financial assets available for sale 219.722 -
Total 23.028.330 9.738.924

Non current assets

Financial assets available for sale 5,164,987 3.083.737
Total 5.164.987 3.083.737
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8 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)
The details of financial assets of the Group is as follows:

a) Financial assets held for trading

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Debt securities 13.491.591 4.784.791
Equity securities 9.308.434 4.864.572
Investment funds participations 8.583 89.561
Total 22.808.608 9.738.924

Allfinancial assets held for trading are financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
changes in fair value of these assets are accounted for in gain/(loss) oninvesting activities, netin
the consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive income (Note 28). All the equity securities
included in the financial assets held for trading are traded in active markets.

As at 31 December 2013, debt securities amounting to TL 7.401.97 3 (31 December 2012: TL
5.099.167) are subject to repurchase agreements.

As at 31 December 2013, government bonds amounting to TL 445.478 are pledged by the banks
with respect to the letter of guarantees given to BIST (31 December 2012: TL 595.170). As at 31
December 2013, equity shares amounting to TL 8.720.7 28 are pledged with respect to the purchase
debt securities (31 December 2012: TL 3.238.660).

As at 31 December 2013, government bonds amounting to TL 108.224 are given to Turkish
Derivative Exchange ("VOB") for transaction guarantee (31 December 2012: TL 363.806). As at 31
December 2012, government bonds amounting to TL 195.574 are pledged by the banks with respect
to the financial liabilities (31 December 2013: None).

As at 31 December 2013 the Group's shares amounting to TL 26.818 are pledged for an ongoing
lawsuit case.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the letters of guarantee given to the BIST,
Settlement and Custody Bank, the Turkish Derivative Exchange and the Capital Market Board are

explainedin Note 20.

b) Financial assets available for sale

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Equity securities

- Quoted to an active market 219.722 -
- Unquoted to an active market 5164.987 3.083.737
Total 5.384.709 3.083.737
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8 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)

b) Financial assets available for sale (continued)

Details of equity securities which are not quoted in an active market comprised the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Share Book Share Book

ratio (%) value ratio (%) value

Takas ve Saklama Bankasi A.S. 2,35 4,900.000 0,83 2.750.000
Bakii Borsasi 550 137.523 550 137.523
Torba (Note 2.1.f.(vii)) 80,00 80.000 80,00 80.000
Other 47.464 116.214
Total 5.164.987 3.083.737

The Group recognized and measured the investments that are not quoted in active markets at cost.

9 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, financial liabilities comprised the following:

Short term borrowings 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Short term bank loans 114.317.515 22.339.619
-TL Loans 27.349.732 11.644.019
-Foreign currency loans 86.967.783 10.695.600
Total 114.317.515 22.339.619
Short term portion of long term borrowings
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Short term portion of long term bank loans 104.317.122 80.012.061
-TL Loans 5582.389 17.660.013
-Foreign currency loans 98.734.733 62.352.048
Debt securities issued 21158518 2.602.770
- TL debt securities 18.036.865 -
-Foreign currency debt securities 3.121.653 2.602.770
Finance lease obligations 8.239.149 1.620.898
Total 133.714.789 84.235.729
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9 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Long term borrowings 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Long term bank loans 415.764.038 151.964.052
-TL Loans 18.667.325 10.666.322
-Foreign currency loans 397.096.713 141.297.730
Debt securities issued 163.146.590 23.042.314
- TL debt securities 134.533.336 -
-Foreign currency debt securities 28.613.254 23.042.314
Finance lease obligations 29.037.542 1.266.911
Total 607.948.170 176.273.277

Maturity profile of long term bank loans and debt securities issued comprised the following;

Years 31 December 2013 31 December 2012

2014 - 62.482.350

2015 84.747.416 48.319.471

2016 175.319.885 46.690.520

2017 and after 318.843.327 17.514.025

Total 578.910.628 175.006.366
Maturity profile of finance lease obligations comprised the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Present Present

Future value of Future value of

minimum minimum  minimum minimum

lease Interest lease lease Interest lease

payments payment payments payment

Lessthanoneyear 10.474.653 2235504 8239149 1.727.835 106.937 1.620.898

Between one and
five years 32.246.346 3.208.804 29.037.542 1.330.277 63.366 1.266.911
Total 42.720.999 5.444.308 37.276.691 3.058.112 170.303 2.887.809
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9 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

31 December 2013
Company Nominal Interest
Loan Type Name Currency Maturity Interest Type Rate % Principal (TL) _Carrying Value (TL
Loans andissued debt
securities used to finance
Debt securities issued (i) Holdin Usb 2017 Fixed 11% 31.734.907 31.734.907
Bonds issued (ii Holdin TL 2015 Floatin: DIBS+ 5,00% 75.000.000 76.821.486
Bonds issued (i) Holding TL 2016 Floatin DIBS+ 4,50% 75.000.000 75748715
Unsecured loan (i) Holding usD 2014 Fixed 617% 64.029.000 67.214.483
Unsecured loan (iv) Holding TL 2014 Fixed 10,50% 10.000.000 10.000.000
Unsecured loan (v) Holding Usb 2014 Floating Libor+ 7% 2.223.300 2274581
Unsecured loan (v) Holdin: USD 2016 Floating Libor + 7,50% 8.437.155 8.445.278
Securedloan (v) Holdin: USD 2016 Floating Libor + 7,50% 64.429.181 66.468.259
Unsecured loan Holding TL 2015 Fixed 13.80% 66.480 66.480
Unsecured loan Holding TL Rotative Fixed 1250% 10.000.000 10.000.000
Ortadogu
Securedloan (vi) Liman UsD 2016 Floating Libor+4,95% 56.452.235 56.955.239
Ortadogu
Secured loan (vii) Liman UsD 2016 Fixed 515% 4.802.175 4.858.004
Ortadogu
Secured loan (vii) Liman Usb 2017 Floating Libor+ 5,05% 9.337.563 9.358.296
Ortadogu
Secured loan (viii) Liman uUsD 2019 Fixed 565% 7.825.767 7.869.524
Ortadogu
Securedloan Liman TL 2015 Fixed 11.76% 80.821 81.401
Securedloan (ix) obal Liman usb 2017 Floating Libor+4,95% 26.892.180 27.733.079
Securedloan (ix) obal Liman UsbD 2023 Floating Libor +5,60% 105.114.275 103.092.246
Securedloan (x) obal Liman Usb 2021 Floating Libor + 5,35% 178.640.910 184.476.593
Securedloan Ege Liman UsbD 2016 Floatin Libor+5,05% 2.134.300 2145498
Securedloan Ege Liman usD Rotative Fixed 5% 1.067.150 1.067.150
Secured loan Ege Liman usb Rotative Fixed 525% 1.067.150 1.067.150
Bodrum
Secured loan Liman usD 2014 Fixed 7.95% 998.200 1.029.657
Bodrum
Secured loan Liman usD 2016 Fixed 7.75% 1.506.721 1.535.219
Bodrum
Unsecuredloan Liman TL Rotative Fixed 9% 550.000 550.000
Securedloan Pera TL 2017 Floating 12,5%-15.4% 2198213 2.198.213
Securedloan (x]) Pera L 2017 Floating  TRLibor + 5% 18.766.450 18.766.450
Unsecured loan aturelgaz L 2017 Floatin: 12%-1430% 2.854.861 2.854.861
Unsecuredloan (xiii) aturelgaz L Rotative Fixed 10,5% - 13,50% 6.799.732 6.799.732
Securedloan (xii) aturelgaz usD 2015 Fixed 4.75% 10.671.500 10.956.228
Adonia
Secured loan Shippin EURO Rotative Floatin: Euribor + 3,5% 6.083.239 5.977.442
Straton
Securedloan (xiv) Maden EURO 2014 Fixed 1,34% 17.619.000 17.619.000
Straton
Unsecured loan Maden TL 2015 Fixed 12% 200.000 200.000
Straton
Secured loan Maden TL Rotative Fixed 10.2% 82.309 82.309
Unsecuredloan (xv) Port of Bar EURO 2017 Fixed 7.8% 1.761.900 1.569.084
Unsecuredloan (xv) Port of Bar EURO 2017 Fixed 7.6% 1.174.600 1.087.219
805.601.274 818.703.783
Finance Lease Obligations
Ortadogu
Leasing (xvi) Liman usD 2015 Fixed 592% 1.516.867 1.516.867
Ortadogu
Leasing (xvi) Liman UsbD 2017 Fixed 518% 552.300 552.300
Leasing (xvii) Naturelgaz usb 2018 Fixed % 15.428.487 15.428.487
Leasing (xvii) Naturelgaz EURO 2017 Floating 9.90%- 10.30% 17.429.837 17.429.837
Leasing (xviii) Tres Eneriji EURO 2018 Fixed 7.56% 2.349.200 2.349.200
37.276.691 37.276.691
842.877.965 855.980.474
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9 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

31 December 2012

Nominal Interest Carrying Value
Loan Type Company Name Currency Maturity Interest Type Rate % Principal (TL) (TL)
Loans andissued debt securities used to finance
Debt securities
issued (i) Holding usb 2017 Fixed 11% 25.676.570 25.676.570
Unsecured loan Holding usD 2013 Floating Libor +6,75% 10.431.128 10.466.030
Unsecured loan (v) Holding ushD 2014 Floating Libor + 7% 4.468.649 5.525.958
Unsecured loan (v) Holding usb 2016 Floating Libor + 7,50% 9.559.193 9.568.257
Securedloan (v) Holding usD 2016 Floating Libor + 7,50% 62.391.000 64.480.132
Unsecured loan Holding TL 2015 Fixed 13,80% 99.258 99.258
Secured loan (vi) Ortadogu Liman usb 2016 Floating Libor+4,95% 60.073.620 60.627.575
Secured loan Ortadogu Liman usD 2013 Fixed 7,25% 965.575 972151
Secured loan (vii) Ortadogu Liman usb 2016 Fixed 515% 5.347.800 5.409.171
Secured loan (vii) Ortadogu Liman usb 2017 Floating Libor+5,05% 10.027.125 10.053.126
Secured loan Ortadogu Liman TL 2013 Fixed 9,48%-10,68% 22413 22,515
Secured loan (ix) Global Liman usb 2017 Floating Libor+4,95% 26.471.610 27.307.842
Secured loan Ege Liman usb 2013 Floating Libor+2,5% 3.310.543 3.320.240
Secured loan Ege Liman usb 2016 Floating Libor+5,05% 2.495.640 2508315
Secured loan Bodrum Liman usb 2014 Fixed 7,95% 1.602.263 1.652.743
Secured loan Bodrum Liman usD 2016 Fixed 7,75% 1.695.124 1.726.753
Secured loan (xi) Pera TL 2013-2015 Fixed 12,48% - 19,43% 36.638.886 39.842.025
Unsecuredloan Sem L 2013 Fixed 12,89% 6.555 6.555
Unsecured loan Holding usD 2013 Fixed 4,5% 10.695.600 10.695.600

271.978.552 279.960.816

Leasing Payables
Leasing (xvi) Ortadogu Liman usb 2015 Fixed 5,9% 2.007.127 2.007.127
Leasing Ortadogu Liman EURO 2013 Floating 6% -8% 334.361 334.361
Leasing Ege Liman usb 2013 Fixed 8,3% 546.321 546.321

2.887.809 2.887.809
274.866.361 282.848.625
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9 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Detailed information related to the significant loans and borrowings of the Group is as follows:

(i)

The Company has borrowed amounting to USD 100.000.000 long term loan with a 5 year
maturity and an interest rate of 9,25% "loan participation notes" issued on 1 August 2007.

The principal amount would be paid on maturity and interest would be paid in January and

July each year. On the day the loan was issued, a special purpose entity of the Group invested
USD 25.000.000 in the notes, which were issued by Deutsche Bank Luxembourg SA. With
subsequent repurchases on various dates, the amount of notes owned by the Group reached a
nominal value of USD 26.860.300 as at 31 December 2010. The Group presented these notes
acquired as aresult of these transactions by netting off its investments in the notes and Group's
loan participation notes in accordance with TAS 32.

As at 28 December 2011, the Group exchanged the portion of the aforementioned notes
amounting to USD 39.333.000 with the new notes issued by the Company having a nominal
value of USD 40.119.000, with a maturity date of 30 July 2017 and an interest rate of 11% p.a.
Interest will be paid in January and June each year. Thus, as at 31 December 2011, the nominal
value of the aforementioned loan participation notes is USD 60.667.000. As of 31 July 2012,
the loan participation notes has been closed by repayment of all interest and principal amounts.

As at 31 December 2013, the portion amounting to USD 25.250.000 (31 December 2012:
USD 25.715.000) of the new notes issued by the Company (with a total amount of USD
40.119.000) are the notes held by the Company and its subsidiaries (USD 2.000.000 of

these notes have beenlent). The Group presented these notes acquired as a result of these
transactions by netting off its investments in the notes and Group's notes issued in accordance
with IAS 32, As at 31 December 2013, the net nominal value (principal amount) of the issued
new notes (presented as debt securities issued) is USD 14.869.000 (31 December 2012: USD
14.404.000).

The loan and debt security agreements include financial covenants, terms restricting
indebtedness, sales of material assets, transactions with subsidiaries and mergers and
acquisitions of Group companies.

The Company has issued bonds to qualified investors amounting to USD 75.000.000 with 725
days maturity and an interest rate of GDS+5% on 25 January 2013. The interest is paid every
three months.

The Company has issued bonds to qualified investors amounting to USD 75.000.000 with

1.116 days maturity and an interest rate of GDS+4,5% on 29 March 2013. The interest is paid
every 31 days.
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9 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

(i) The Company has borrowed a total of USD 30.000.000, with a maturity date on 20 March
2014 and an interest rate of 6,17% on 26 March 201 3. The principal amount will be paid on
maturity.

(iv)  The Company has borrowed a total of TL 10.000.000 with an interest rate of 10,50% on 10
December 2013.

(v)  Abankloanof USD 4.900.000 was used on 9 March 2011 with maturity on 10 March 2014, and
an interest rate of Libor+7%. The terms of the borrowing is the same as the first tranch except
interest rate. The remaining principal amount of the loan as at 31 December 2013 was USD
1.041.700 (31 December 2012:USD 2.506.815).

OnJune 2012, the Company has borrowed a total of USD 5.500.000, with an interest rate of
Libor+7,5% and maturity on 27 June 2016. Interest and principal are paid every six months (in
June and December). The remaining principal amount of the loan as at 31 December 2013 was
USD 3.953.125 (31 December 2012: USD 5.362.500).

OnJuly 2012, the Company has borrowed a total of USD 35.000.000, with an interest rate of
Libor+7,5% and maturity on 27 July 2016. Interest and principal are paid every six months (in
January and July). Under this loan agreement, the shares of a subsidiary of the Group amounting
to TL 4.250.000 nominal value has been pledged. The remaining principal amount of the loan as
at 31 December 2013 was USD 30.187.500 (31 December 2012: USD 35.000.000).

(vi) In2006,Ortadogu Liman entered into a loan agreement amounting to USD 40.000.000 in total
with a 10-year maturity. The interest rate was Libor+2,90%. Starting from 29 July 2010, the
interest rate was amended to Libor+4,95%. The remaining principal amount of the loan as at 31
December 2013 was USD 19.200.000 (31 December 2012: USD 25.200.000). Principal and
interest are paid at the end of April and October of each year. Security for the loan includes all of
the borrower’s rights under the Antalya Port TOORA, the proceeds under business interruption
insurance relating to the port, a pledge of the borrower’s collections and other accounts, a
pledge over the shares of the borrower and an assignment of receivables under the port's rent
agreements. The loan agreement imposes financial covenants on Ortadogu Liman, and includes
terms restricting financing activities, investments, dividend payments, sales of assets, and
mergers and acquisitions.

On 12 August 2010, under the amended loan agreement, Ortadogu Liman raised an additional
borrowing amounting to USD 10 million with the same conditions as of the previous loan
agreement. The remaining principal amount of the loan as at 31 December 2013 was USD
7.250.000 (31 December 2012: USD 8.500.000).
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9 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

(vi) Ortadogu Liman entered into aloan agreement on 13 October 2010, amounting to USD
4.500.000 in total with a 6-year maturity for the purpose of financing the purchase of a mobile
harbour crane. Theinterest rate is 5,15%. The remaining principal amount of the loan as at 31
December 2013 was USD 2.250.000 (31 December 2012: USD 3.000.000). Under the loan
agreement, in the event of default, the harbour crane and other machinery purchased with the
loan has been pledged to the lender.

Additionally, Ortadogu Liman entered into aloan agreement on 14 June 2011, amounting to
USD 7.500.000 in total with a 6 year maturity. Principal and interest are paid every 6 months.
Theinterest rateis Libor+5,05%. The remaining principal amount of the loan as at 31 December
2013 was USD 4.375.000 (31 December 2012: USD 5.625.000). There is a pledge over the
property, plant and equipment in relation to the loan.

(viii) Ortadogu Liman has borrowed a total of USD 4.000.000, with a 6 years maturity and an interest
rate of 5,65% on 24 May 201 3. The remaining principal amount of the loan as at 31 December
2013 was USD 3.666.667 and there is a pledge over the property, plant and equipment in
relation to the loan.

(ix)  GlobalLiman entered into aloan agreement amounting to USD 35.000.000 in total on 20
July 2010 with a 7-year maturity and an interest rate of Libor+4,95%. Principal and interest
are paid at the end of June of each year. The remaining principal amount of the loan as at 31
December 2013 was USD 12.600.000 (31 December 2012: USD 14.850.000). Under this loan
agreement, in the event of default, the shares of Ege Liman and Ortadogu Liman have been
pledged in accordance with a share pledge agreement.

On 31 July 2013, Global Liman entered into a loan agreement amounting to USD 11.200.000
with aninterest rate of Libor+5,60% and 10 year maturity. Principal amount and interest are
paid every June. Under this loan agreement, there is a pledge on Global Liman's shares.

On 24 December 2013, Global Liman borrowed an additional loan in two tranches amounting to
USD 38.050.000 in total with the same conditions as the previous loan agreement.

(x)  0n 26 June 2013, Global Liman entered into aloan agreement amounting to USD 83.700.000
to repurchase its shares (Note 23.6) with an interest rate of Libor+5,35%. The principals of this
loan are paid every June and the maturity dateis 21 June 2021. Under this loan agreement, the
shares of Global Liman have been pledged.

(xi)  TLloansamounting to TL 18.766.450, represent the loans granted to Pera on 10 May 2013,
to refinance the loans borrowed to finance Stmerpark Shopping Mall, aninvestment property
of the Group. The Company, is joint guarantor for the refinancing loans over the term of all
commitments and liabilities arising from these loans. As a guarantee for this loan, the land
in Denizli Sumer Mahallesiis given as a mortgage and there is pledge over the Stimerpark
Shopping Mallin favour of the lender.
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9 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

(xii) Naturelgaz entered into aloan agreement amounting to USD 5.000.000 with an interest of
4,75% and two year maturity on 24 July 2013. The interests are paid every three months and
the principal will be paid at the maturity date. The Company has given a guarantee cheque
amounting to TL 1.494.010 for the loan.

(xiii) Naturelgaz borrowed rotative loans amounting to TL 6.799.7 32 with an interest rate of
10,50%-13,50% in December 2013.

(xiv) Straton Maden entered into a loan agreement amounting to Euro 6.000.000 with aninterest r
ate of 1,34% and eight months maturity to finance investing activities in September 2013,

(xv) Theloans used by Port of Bar to finance investing activities.

(xvi) On27 August 2010, Ortadogu Liman has signed a finance lease agreement with the expiry
date of 4 September 2015 and interest rate of 5,92% for the purchase of a port tugboat.

On 23 December 2013, Ortadogu Liman has signed a finance lease agreement with the expiry
date of 30 June 2017 and interest rate of 5,18%.

(xvii) Financial lease agreements signed by Naturelgaz with an interest rate of 7%-10,30% and expiry
date of 2017-2018 for the purpose of leasing machinery and motor vehicles.

(xviil) On 9 October 2013, Tres Enerjihas signed a finance lease agreement with an interest rate of
7,56% and expiry in 2018 to finance investments.

A summary of other guarantees with respect to the loans are presented in Note 20.

The details of the financial risks with respect to financial liabilities are presented in Note 34.

196 GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

10 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Trade receivables - current

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, current trade receivables other than due from

related parties comprised the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Receivables from customers 35.650.014 12178576
Doubtful receivables 4,780.426 5.482.351
Allowance for doubtful receivables (4.780.426) (5.482.351)
Other 1.223.181 839.256
Total 36.873.195 13.017.832

The movement of the allowance for doubtful trade receivables during the years ended 31 December

2013 and 31 December 2012 comprised the following:

2013 2012
Balance at the beginning of the period (1 January) (5.482.351) (5.061.446)
Allowance for the period (221.985) (423.568)
Cancellation of allowances and collections 923.910 2,663
Balance at the end of the period (31 December) (4.780.426) (5.482.351)

The expenses related to the allowance for doubtful receivables are presented under general

administrative expenses.

Short-term trade payables

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, short-term trade payables other than due to

related parties comprised the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Payables to suppliers 26.290.877 4172557
Notes payable 2.430.952 -
Other 3.817 11.829
Total 28.725.646 4184.386
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Other receivables - current

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other current receivables other than due from
related parties comprised the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Receivables from Ada Metal 4,033.619 3.935.291
Deposits and advances given 307.692 1118170
Recievables from subsidiaries’ and joint ventures' other 20.153 15.753
shareholders

Receivables from STFA (*) - 30.304.200
Other 718.641 1.577.879
Total 5.080.105 36.951.293

(*) Receivables from STFA comprise of receivables from the sales of EYH and its subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2013, these
receivables have been collected in cash after netting of the payables amounting to USD 10.000.000 (TL 17.510.000) to STFA
arising from acquisition of shares of Naturelgaz from STFA (Note 3).

Other receivables non-current

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other non-current receivables other than due
fromrelated parties comprised the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Reimbursement of payments related to Baskent 51.586.031 43.085.442
Dogalgaz lawsuit (Note 19)

Receivables from Bilecik Demir Celik 3.641.146 3.400.841
Deposits and advances given 1.269.010 1516411
Receivables from Ada Metal 1.471.604 1.104.543
Receivables from Udas Usak Dogalgaz Dagitim A.S. (*) - 1.023.148
Other 512.888 513.698
Total 58.480.679 50.644.083

(*) As at 31 December 2013, continuing lawsuits related to the receivables concluded on behalf of the Group and related receivables
were collected.

198 GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated
11 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (continued)
Short-term other payables (continued)

At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, short-term payables other than due to related
parties comprised the following;

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Due to subsidiaries’ and joint ventures' other

shareholders 11415553 15.605.166
Taxes payable 7.649.772 4.732.944
Payables related to security purchases (*) 10.902.925 4.963.897
Tax amnesty obligations 981.792 2.905.789
Notes payable (**) - 16.043.400
Other 8212511 1.706.986
Total 39.162.553 45,958.182

(*) Comprises payables of subsidiaries which are not operating in finance sector arising from purchasing marketable securities.

(**) The amount comprised the notes given regarding the purchase of shares held by Rudolf Ruben Goldenberg, Lusi Aser
Goldenberg and Altindag Yatirim Mtimessillik ve Ticaret A.S., corresponding to 30% of Naturelgaz as explained in detail in Note 3 and
the total amount has been paid during the year.

Other payables - long-term

At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other long-term payables other than due to related
parties comprised the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Consideration payable (*) 46,455,700 -
Tax amnesty obligations - 988.709
Total 46.455.700 988.709

(*) The consideration payable amounting to TL 40.551.700 comprises the payable of USD 19.000.000 arising from acquisition of
85% of the shares of Gelis Madencilik. The amount will be realizable after the Power Plant, the licence of whichis owned by Galata
Enerji, start to operate (Note 36).

The other consideration payable amount TL 5.904.000 comprised the balance after deducting TL
3.596.000 that is paid for the property, plant and equipment and TL 1.500.000 that is given as the
first advance from the acquisition value of TL 11.000.000.
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12 RECEIVABLES FROM AND LIABILITIES DUE TO OPERATIONS IN FINANCE SECTOR

Current receivables

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, current receivables from operations in finance

sector other than due from related parties comprised the following:

Current trade receivables from finance sector 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Receivables from customers 24.845538 46.018.546
Receivables from money market 8.673.000 6.129.878
Doubtful receivables 1.259.871 1.260.806
Allowance for doubtful receivables (1.259.871) (1.260.806)
Other trade receivables 70.377 83.870
Total 33.588.915 52.232.294

Short-term liabilities

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, short-term liabilities due to operations in finance

sector other than due to related parties comprised the following;

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Payables to money market 23.670.230 37.668.000
Funds provided from reverse purchase agreements 11.933.565 5.099.166
Payables to customers 3.257.833 3.437.037
Payables to suppliers 324.687 315.093
Funds provided from bank loans - 2.718.716
Other 573 1.644
Total 39.186.888 49.239.656

13 INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, inventories comprised the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Trading properties (**) 19.879.298 26.338.469
Raw materials (*) 7468171 -
Commercial goods 412.751 -
Total 27.760.220 26.338.469

(*) Inventories for raw materials comprised of inventories held by Straton Maden and Naturelgaz which are acquired through

business combinations in 2013 (Note 3).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group accounted for inventory allowance amounting to TL 132.576 for raw materials (31 December

2012:TL72.916).
(**) The details of trading properties are as follows:
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13 INVENTORIES (continued)

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Balance at the beginning 26.338.469 29.603.354
Addition 1.521.589 8.170.084
Disposal (7.980.760) (11.434.969)

19.879.298 26.338.469

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Group's land classified as inventory composed
of the land plots on which residential flats started to be built in 2011 in the scope of the residential
project in Denizli. They were transferred from invesment property to inventoriesin 2011. Thelandis
located in Denizli, Plot 6224, Parcel numbered 1.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Group's construction projects under
development and in progress contain the capitalized costs of the residential units started to be
constructedin 2011 in Denizli. The first phase, consisting 154 residential apartments and two blocks
of a total 608 residential units planned housing project, have been completed and as of reporting date
itis continued to deliver title deeds.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 borrowing costs amounting to TL 110.541 have been
capitalisedin the cost of the Group's inventory (31 December 2012: TL 1.568.483).

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the mortgage or pledge on the inventory of the
Group is explained in Note 20.

14 PREPAYMENTS AND DEFERRED INCOME
Prepayments-current

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, current prepayments comprised the following;

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Prepaid expenses 8.543.494 560.066
Other advances given(*) 7.341.161 -
Order advances given for inventories 1.100 1.608.771
Other 373.699 -
Total 16.259.454 2.168.837

(*) The major part of other advances given comprises of advances given for developing projects related to energy and mining
investments of the Group.
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14 PREPAYMENTS AND DEFERRED INCOME (continued)

Prepayments—non current

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, non-current prepayments comprised the

following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Advances given (*) 14.744.370 25.372.558
Prepaid expenses 2.035.386 812.246
Other 461.271
Total 17.241.027 26.184.804

(*) As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the major part of advances given comprises of advances given for

developing projects of the Group.

Deferred income-short term

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, short-term deferred income comprised the

following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Advances received (*) 7.055.179 67.329
Deferred income 382542 259.388
Total 7.437.721 326.717

(*) The major part of advances recieved comprises of advances received for third block sales of residence project of Stimerpark

Residences which construction is still in progress

Deferred income-long term

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, long-term deferred income comprised the

following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Deferred income 863.325 -
Total 863.325 -
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Movements of investment property during the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as
follows:

Valuation
1 January difference 31 December
2013 Additions  (Note 28.1) Disposal 2013
Land 30.295.245 - 23449755 - 53.745.000
Operating investment
property 167.620.000 308.383  1.836.617 - 169.765.000
Total 197.915.245 308.383 25.286.372 - 223.510.000
Valuation
1 January difference 31 December
2012 Additions  (Note 28.1) Disposal 2012
Land 28.266.246 - 2.028.999 - 30.295.245
Operating investment
property 167.613.234 559.073 2.438.096 (2.990.403) 167.620.000
Total 195.879.480 559.073  4.467.095 (2.990.403) 197.915.245

Investment property consists of Stimerpark AVM and lands in Denizli and Van.

The project whichis to be realized upon the land of the Group located in Denizli/ Turkey includes a
shopping mall, residential flats, a hotel and a hospital.

Operating investment property/Construction in progress — Siimerpark Shopping Mall (“Siimerpark
AVM")

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the fair values of the Simerpark Shopping Mall are
presented below:

2013 2012
Valuation Fair Valuation Fair
Report Date Value Report Date Value
31 December  169.765.000 26 December 167.620.000
Denizli SUmerpark AVM 2013 2012
169.765.000 167.620.000

As at 31 December 2013, thereis aninsurance amounting to TL 111.061.518 oninvestment
properties of the Group (31 December 2012 : TL 99.000.000).

As of 31 December 2013 and 2012, the supermarket within the shopping center is registered as the
lessee in the land registry records for 20 years.

Stmerpark AVM, has been officially opened on 12 March 2011 after the construction is completed
and has been transferred from the construction in progress to the operating investment property at
this date.
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the fair value of the Stimerpark AVYM has been measured by an
independent real estate appraisal company having the authorization license of CMB.

Rent revenues from the investment property and direct operating costs are disclosed as real estate
rent revenues and costs of real estate rent revenues in Note 25.

The mortgages on the investment properties are presented in Note 20.

The fair value of investment properties is in the scope of level 2 based on the methods used for
valuation.

Land

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the fair values of the land plots of the Group are
presented in the table below:

2013 2012
Valuation Valuation
Report Date Fair Value Report Date Fair Value
25 December 17 December
Denizli Land (Hotel and hospital) (*) 2013 15.370.000 2012 14.244.999
30 December 21 December
Van land 2013 38.375.000 2012 16.050.246
53.745.000 30.295.245

(*)These land plots of the Group in Denizli include the plots on which the Group plans to build residential flats, a hospital and a hotel
and is located in Denizli Stimer Mahallesi. The land plot, located in Denizli, Plot # 6224 Parcel # 1 is allocated to a residential flat
project.This plot has been transferred to inventory in 2011 as the construction of the residential units project started in 2011. The
land plots, located in Denizli, Plot #6227 Parcel 1 and Plot #6225 Parcel 1 willinclude the hospital and hotel projects. The fair values
of these land plots have been determined according to the valuation reports dated 25 December 2013 (using the market approach
method) prepared by anindependent real estate apprasial company, which has the authorization licence of CMB.

As at 31 December 2012, the fair values of the aforementioned land plots have been determined according to the valuation report
prepared by an independent real estate appraisal company, which has the authorization license of CMB based on the report dated
17 December 2012 (using the market approach method).

The Group has made a lease agreement with Final Okullari to operate a school building on the land plot of the Group located in Denizli
#6225 Parcel 1 with respect to Stimerpark Multicomponent Project which functions as a shopping mall, flats, a hospital, a hotel
and a school and carried out by a subsidiary of the Group, PERA in Denizli. According to the agreement, Final Okullari has aright to
operate on the land plot mentioned above as a school for fifteen years. The school is planned to start operationsin 2014-2015
education period, consist of 11.450 square meter long closed area with seventy-four classrooms, gym, swimming pool, dining hall,
library, conference and meeting rooms.

(**)The details related to Van Land are presented below:

The Group has 16.611 m’ area of land in Van province of Turkey acquired for the purpose of capital appreciation.

The fair value of theland as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 has been determined according to the valuation report prepared by an
independent real estate appraisal company, which has the authorization license of CMB. In accordance with the expertise reports
dated 30 December 2013, the fair value of the land has been determined as TL 38.375.000 by using the value based on the market
approach method and as at 31 December 2012 a value of TL 16.050.246 by using the cost value approach.

As explained in Note 19, a conciliation protocol was signed between the Group and Municipality with respect to withdrawing
lawsuits and operating the project based on the decisions of Van City Council and related counciliation comission on 5 July 2013.
According to the conciliation protocol, ownership of the property belongs to the Group and the project is started to actualize based
on the fullfilment of the certain conditions specified in the protocol (Note 22).
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, no finance costs have been capitalized under property, plant and
equipment.

According to the transfer of operational rights agreements (“TOORA"") of Ege Liman, Port of Bar and
Ortadogu Liman, subsidiaries of the Group and the Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT") tender agreement
of Bodrum Liman, at the end of the agreement periods, fixed assets with their capitalimprovements
will be returned as running, clean, free of any liability and free of charge.

Pledges on the property, plant and equipment related to loans are presented in Note 9.

Other mortgage and pledges related to property plant and equipment are presented in Note 20.

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the carrying values of the leased assetsin
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Furniture and fixtures 28.610.680 10.682.178
Motor vehicles 3.904.146 8.028.865
Machinery, plant and equipments 13.715.718 7.769.439
Buildings = 13.608

46.230.544 26.494.090

The depreciation expenses related to the Group's property, plant and equipment are accounted for
under the cost of sales, marketing expenses and general administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (Note 25.2).
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated
17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (continued)
b) Goodwill:

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, movement of goodwillis as
follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

1 January 41.243.581 42.610.644
Foreign currency translation differences 4,523,011 (1.367.063)
Effect of business combination (Note 3) 39.344.448 -
Transfer to assets held for sale (Note 36) (39.344.448) -
Impairment loss (1.587.600) -
31 December 44,178.992 41.243.581

The distribution of the goodwill according to the segments as at 31 December 2013 and
31 December 2012 is as follows:

Distribution by segments 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Infrastructure 27.448.005 22,924,994
Finance 10.018.691 10.018.691
Real estate 6.712.296 6.712.296
Other - 1.587.600
Total 44.178.992 41.243.581

Basic assumptions used in each segment for the purpose of impairment testing are as following:
Infrastructure operations:

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has carried USD 12.860.425 (TL27.448.005) goodwill related
to the acquisition of Ege Liman inits consolidated financial statements (31 December 2012: TL
22.924.994),

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group tested impairment by comparing the goodwill from
the acquisition of Ege Liman with the values in use of the cash generating units and concluded that no
impairment exists. Cash flow forecasts based on financial budgets of the subsidiary are prepared up to
the end of the port usage rights, whichis 2033. The basic assumption is that the expected increase

in the intensity of the port activity willincrease operational profit. Cash flows used to calculate value
inuse are prepared in USD. As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, interest rates of 11,68% and 11,5% is
used for discounting future cash flows, respectively.
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (continued)
b) Goodwill:
Finance operations:

The Group tested impairment of assets of Global Menkul in order to test the goodwill amounting to TL
10.018.691 as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
The Group compared the amount of goodwill with the value in use of cash generating unit and has
concluded that there is noimpairment. These calculations are based on the cash flows derived from
the financial budget for five years approved by the management.

b) Goodwiill:
Real estate operations:

The Group tested the impairment of the goodwill related to the acquisition of Maya amounting to TL
6.712.296 as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. In such work, the Group compared the amount of
goodwill carried in the consolidated financial statements, with Maya's fair value and has concluded
that thereis no impairment. Maya leased land in Tathisu Magosa for 49 years from the Government
of Northern Cyprus in order to build hotels, villas and apartments for the Holiday Village project on
theleased land. As at the reporting date, the construction has not been started onleased land,
because the expropriation studies have not been completed. As at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
the fair value of this leased land is obtained from the appraisal reports prepared by anindependent
real estate appraisal company. The real estate appraisal company, which is authorized by CMB, uses
market approach by reference to market prices of similar properties in the market to determine the
fair value and concluded that the fair value of the property is TL 10.795.000 (31 December 2011: TL
9.750.000) whichis above the total investment of the Group in Maya recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

Other operations:

The Group tested impairment on assets of Sem Yayincilik in order to test the goodwillamounting to TL
1.587.600 recognized in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2012. The Group
compared the amount of goodwill with the value in use of cash generating unit and has concluded
that thereis no impairment. These calculations are based on the cash flows derived from the financial
budget for five years approved by the management. Cash flows used to calculate value in use are
preparedin TL. Market interest rates are used for discounting future cash flows to balance sheet date.

The Group, has accounted provision for impairment loss accounted under other expense on goodwill

from acquisition of Sem Yayinallik due to insufficiency of projects, expectations and cash inputs
belong to Sem Yayincilik as of 31 December 2013.
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18 EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

Asat 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the details of financial statements related to
equity accounted investees are as follows:

Participation

Carrying value

Rates 2013 2012
Assets
Global Portfoy (*) 39,97 % 450.232 1.211.672
Barcelona Port
Investments,
S.L.(**%) 49 % 46.420.010 -
Naturelgaz 55% - 44.617.560
Total Assets 46.870.242 45.829.232
Liabilities
IEG (**) 50 % (735.735) -
Total Liabilities (735.735) -

(*) TL1.090.723 and TL 1.069.830 of Global Portfoy's assets compraised of cash and cash equivalents and deferred tax asset,

respectively.

(**) TL 1.609.539 of IEG's liabilities are comprised of the liabilities due to operations in finance sector. Since the Group will
compansate the liabilities of IEG based on the its shareholding rates, the Group recognized a loss on IEG's financial statements
under loss from equity accounted investees.
(***) Global Liman, a subsidiary of the Group with 100% shareholding rate, acquired 43% of shares of Creuers del Port de Barcelona
S.A ("Creuers") through Barcelona Port Investments, S.L (“BPI") in partnership with Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd., one of the world's
leading cruise operators. Creuers is operating Port of Barcelona, the majority shareholder of the Malaga Cruise Port (80%) and

the minority shareholder of the Singapore Cruise Port (40%). As at 31 December 201 3, the acquisition transaction is recognised
provisionally in consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2013.

Net profit/

Current Non-current Short-term  Long-term Total loss for the

31 December 2013 assets assets Total Assets liabilities liabilities Liabilities Income Expenses period

Global Portfdy 1.819.501 1.327.533 3.147.034 (565.443) (149.480) (714.923) 2555548 (4.459.759) (1.904.211)

IEG 131725 1.719.330 1.851.055 (1.471.470) (1.471.470) (2.942.940) 266,408 (1.737.878) (1.471.470)
Barcelona Port

Investments, S.L. 563.731 94.298.807 94.862.538 (127.825) - (127.825) 2013915 (541.709) 1.472.206

Net profit/

Current Non-current Short-term  Long-term Total loss for the

31 December 2012 assets assets Total Assets liabilities liabilities Liabilities Income Expenses period

Naturelgaz 18.497.802122.622.133141.119.935 31.278.740 28.718358 59.997.098 40.146.436 (43.788.498) (3.642.062)

Global Portfdy 33722 31163 64.885 (260.871) (111.058) (371.929) 1.298.919 (2.919.198) (1.620.279)
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18 EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES (continued)

2013 2012
Balance at the beginning of the period (1 January), 45.829.232 6.587.975
restated
Acqusition of shares of joint venture which become a (44.617.560) -
subsidiary (Note 3) (*)
Theimpact of recognition of Global Portfoy as associate - 1.842.397
due to the transfer of shares to Azimut
Joint venture included scope of consolidation 41.891.792 44.617.560
Net profit/(loss) (775.467) (7.152.794)
Foreign currency translation differences 3.806.837 -
Other comprehensive income (327) (65.906)
Balance at the end of the period (31 December) 46.134.507 45.829.232

(*) As of 18 January 2013 the percentage of shares of Naturelgaz owned by the Group has reached to 80% by purchasing
Naturelgaz shares owned by STFA Yatirim Holding of 25%. Starting from that date, the Group has started to control Naturelgaz
solely and consolidate Naturelgaz as subsidiary.

19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

19.1 Other short term provisions

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Provision for lawsuits (Note 19.2.vii) 1.364.744 90.287.255
Provision for consultancy expenses 808.815 808.815
2.173.559 91.096.070

19.2 Legalissues

There are lawsuits pending that have been filed against or by the Group. These lawsuits primarily
include the labour and debt cases. The management of the Group assesses the possible results and
financial effects of these lawsuits at the end of each period and as a result of these assessments, the
required provisions are recognized for those possible earnings and liabilities. The amount of provision
that has been accounted for is stated in Note 19.1. The information related with the significant
lawsuits that the Group is directly or indirectly a party is as follows:

(i) EgeLiman was granted the operationright of Kusadasi Port for a term of 30 years as of July 2003
by the Privatization Authority ("PA"). In October 2006, two former members of the Kusadas|
Municipal Council filed a lawsuit with the requesting the cancellation of those ‘zoning plan and
planning notes' of the Region of Kusadasi, which enables the construction of the new Cruise Port
Upper Structure Facilities. The relevant Chamber of the Council of State ordered the cancellation
of the zoning plan and planning notes in November 2009. That decision was appealed by the
lawyers of the Ministry of Public Works as well as the lawyers for the Group. Upon affirmation of
the decision by the Council of State, an application has been submitted for the rectification of such
decision as well and the file is under examination of the Council of State.
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

19.1 Other short term provisions (continued)

While that appeal was pending, the Group lawyers filed a lawsuit against the termination of the
occupancy and construction permit notification of the Municipality with the request of stay of
execution. The Aydin Administrative Court issued a stay of execution for the cancellation. Due
to the Municipality's objection to that decision, the stay of execution has been cancelled. Aydin
Administrative Court rejected the case. This decision has been appealed. The appeal is currently
pending.

Kusadasi Municipality consequently issued a cease and desist order on 18 June 2010 to Ege
Liman which governs the modification of the building in accordance with the previous zoning plans.
The Group lawyers filed a lawsuit in order to cancel the order as well as issue a stay of execution.
Aydin Administrative Courtissued a stay of execution on 22 June 2010. However, the stay of
execution was cancelled on 19 August 2010. Ege Liman and TDI appealed the court's decision.
The appealis currently pending.

In 21 October 2010, Ege Liman filed a lawsuit in the Aydin Administrative Court to annul the
decision by the Kusadasi Municipal Council to demolish Kusadasi Port and to request a stay

of execution. The court ordered a stay of execution on 21 October 2010. TDI successfully
intervened in the lawsuit on 22 December 2010. The court renewed the stay of execution after
the first reply of the Municipality, but then overruled the stay of execution on 29 June 2011.
Aydin Administrative Court rejected the case, and such decision has been appealed. The appeal is
pending.

Following the cancellation of the stay of execution, a letter by the Kusadasi Municipality for the
evacuation of Kusadasi Port has been sent, and a lawsuit has been filed against such action of
the Municipality on 20 July 2011. TDI has also intervened the lawsuit. The court has rejected the
lawsuit, and such decision has been appealed by the Group. The appeal is pending.

The group lawyers think that, the zoning plan details of which is stated below will supersede all the
lawsuits mentioned above.

Upon such developments, on 28 October 2010, the Ministry of Public Works approved the new
zoning plans for Kusadasi Port; however several objections were raised by a number of local
institutions.

The Ministry of Public Works took some of the objections regarding the new zoning plan dated 28
October 2010 into account and approved the new amended zoning plan on 31 January 2011 on
the grounds that;

The "Master Plan" with 1/5.000 and "Implementation Plan" with 1/1.000 of Kusadasi Port, that
have been approved on 28 October 2010 are inline with the 1/100.000 “Environment Plan" of
Aydin-Mugla-Denizli, and
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

19.1 Other short term provisions (continued)

i)

Kusadaslis animportant cruise port that would become idle if the zoning plans are cancelled which
could, in turn, have a negative effect on the Turkish economy. Moreover, Kusadasi Port complies
with “Coastal Law' and "Regulations regarding the Implementation of Coastal Law'. However the
Municipality filed a lawsuit requesting cancellation of the new zoning plan and a stay of execution.
The court ruled for a stay of execution regarding the new zoning plan. The Plenary Session of
Administrative Law Divisions of the Council of State has accepted the objection of the Group
Lawyers raised against the stay of execution decision; and such stay of execution decision has
been lifted. The plaintiffs have objected the decision of the Council of State with a request for stay
of execution, but the Council of State has rejected such request.

Ege Liman applied to Kusadasi Municipality for building permit on 15 March 2011 but the
Municipality rejected such application. The Group therefore filed a lawsuit against such action of
the Municipality. The court has decided to reject the lawsuit; such decision has been appealed by
the Group. The appeal is pending before the Council of State.

A former member of the Kusadasi Municipal Council filed a lawsuit with the Aydin Administrative
Court against the PA and the Group seeking to cancel the PA’'s approval of the Kusadasi Port
tender granted to Ege Liman. The court ordered the cancellation of the tender on 2 June 2010.
The Group and the PA appealed the decision. The Council of the State approved the decision of the
court of first instance and the Group and the PA lawyers requested the revision of the decision.
The lawsuit is currently before the Council of State.

The Council of Ministers, in year 2011 decided not to enforce court decisions that have been
rendered for the cancellation of certain privatization transactions which have been completed
pursuant to final transfer agreements as a result of the privatization acts, and are irrevocable for
practicalimpossibilities, including the cancellation of the privatizations of Ege Ports-Kusadas.

In addition to such Council of Ministers Decree, and in accordance with Article 10 of the Law No.
6300 that entered into force by publishing in the Official Gazette dated 10 May 2012, and the
Council of Ministers Decision numbered 2012 /3240 that entered into force by publishing in the
Official Gazette dated 12 June 2012, it has been decided not to enforce the civil jurisdictions
that has been rendered for the cancellation of some privatization actions, transfer and delivery
processes of which are completed by the execution of final transfer agreement as a result of the
privatization transactions, and irrevocable for practicalimpossibility. However, by an application
submitted by the opposition party, the Turkish Constitutional Court has decided for the annulment
of the Law no 6300, as well as the Council of State rendering a decision for the stay of execution
of the Council of Ministers Decision numbered 2012 /3240 in reply to the lawsuit filed by the
TMMOB. Accordingly, although the Council of Ministers Decision numbered 2012/3240 has
been unenforceable, the 2011 decision of the Council of Ministersis still in force. Due to these
legal developments, it has not been expected to face any negative consequences in the lawsuits
regarding cancellation of Ege Ports tender.
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
19.1 Other short term provisions (continued)

(i) The former owner of the shares of a subsidiary of the Group filed a lawsuit against the Group for
therestitution of the shares costlessly. On 2 March 2010, the court decided on restitution of
shares costlessly to the former owners and that the trustee, previously appointed by the Court,
shall remain in charge until the final decision. The Group lawyers appealed the decision on 28 April
2010 upon the notification of the justified decision. As a result of the appeal, the Supreme Court
of Appeals overruled the decision and the trial has begun before the court of firstinstance. As a
trustee was appointed to the aforementioned subsidiary by the Court on 4 January 2008, this
subsidiary is excluded from the scope of consolidation.

(iii) In the lawsuit filed with Adana Court of First Instance, plaintiffs stated that in the period the
Company operated as a brokerage house (2003) their money and stocks were transferred to
other accounts by the ex-worker of Global Menkul and claimed a compensation regarding money
stocks and interest from Global Menkul (recently Global Yatirim Holding as the title changed). The
Group has performed arisk assessment regarding the cases and allocated a provision amounting
to TL 554.134 for the cases.

(iv) A lawsuit amounting to TL 542,595 has been filed against the Group for the receivables of
TWP Eurosia Mihendislik Madencilik ve Danismanlik Ticaret A.S (“TWP"). The Group disputed
against this case as it had not received the service. TWP declares that the service related with
such receivables was provided to Global Yatirim Holding A.S and requested the payment of such
amount. It was determined within the first and second expert reports that the assignment of
receivables from TWP South Africa to TWP Turkey is void and thus the plaintiff is lack of standing,
Notwithstanding, the last expert report was against the Company, therefore the Court accepted
the case and decided the Company to pay the plaintiff. The Group lawyers will appeal the decision
upon the notification of the justified decision.

(v) Lawsuits related with Denizli land

Theissues regarding the lawsuit filed against the Group before the Denizli Administrative Court
related with the cancellation of change in zoning plan that also effects the land owned by a
subsidiary of the Group are as follows:

Kentsel Gayrimenkul, which merged into Perain June 2008, applied to Denizli Municipality to

amend the Denizli SUmerpark Project zoning plan to permit the construction of houses, shopping
centers, hotels and hospitals. The Commission of the Public Works of the Municipality of Denizli's
report regarding the acceptance of the rejection of the objections raised against the decision of the
Municipality Assembly's dated 11 October 2006 and numbered # 640 within the objection period was
accepted by Denizli Municipality assembly dated 9 January 2007 and numbered 54.
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
19.1 Other short term provisions (continued)

On 29 June 2007, the Denizli Branch of the Chamber of Architects of Turkey filed a lawsuit with the
Denizli Administrative Court against the municipality requesting cancellation of the amendments
approval to the zoning plan, as well as an injunction to prevent construction. The court rejected the
stay of execution on 11 September 2007.0n 1 April 2009, the court dismissed the case in favor of
the Group. The Denizli Branch of the Chamber of Architects of Turkey appealed and the Sixth Chamber
of the Council of State upheld the dismissal. The Denizli Branch of the Chamber of Architects of Turkey
filed for areversal of the appellate decision. However Council of State has rejected such reversal
request and the case has been finalised in favor of the Group.

The court decided to appoint an expert council in another lawsuit filed by a person requesting

the cancellation of the resolutions approved by the Denizli Municipality Assembly. Pera sought to
intervene in the lawsuit as a party along with the Denizli Municipality, which then was approved by
the Court. Since the expert report written by the Expert Council appointed by the Court was in favor
of Pera, the court dismissed the lawsuit. The plaintiff appealed the decision. The decision which was
appealed on 18 September 2012 was rejected due to the reason that the decision and the reasoning
is unjustifiable with law and rules of procedure.

(vi) GYH and Global Liman were part of a consortium which participated in the tender process
relating to the privatization of izmir Port. The joint venture in which the Group also attended placed
as the highest bid for the tender regarding the privatization of the operating rights of TCDD izmir
Ports via transferring method conducted by the Privatization Administration on 3 July 2007. The
High Council of Privatization Administration approved the tender. Liman-is and Kamu Isletmediligini
Gelistirme Merkezi Vakfi separately filed lawsuits for the cancellation of the tender. These lawsuits
were rejected by the Council of State. Plaintiffs appealed the verdicts. 1st Department of Council of
State has approved the Privatization of Operating Rights without waiting for the approval of the 13th
Department of Council of State. High Council of Privatization has invited the Joint Venture to sign the
Agreement with a declaration dated 23 September 2009.

The Group, on behalf of the joint venture partnership participating in the tender, requested an
extension from the PA to complete the privatization by 15 April 2010. The PA granted a 45-day
extension on 10 November 2009, permitting the joint venture to complete the privatization by 24
December 2009. Pursuant to the terms of the tender, on 7 January 2010 the PA cancelled the tender
and called the USD 15 million bid bond provided by GYH and its joint venture partners during the bid
process. On 8 January 2010, the Group deposited USD 6,9 million in escrow, its portion of the bid bond,
and on 12 January 2010 the PA received the bid bond in full from all joint venture partners. Following
forfeiture of the bid bond, the Group and its joint venture partners fulfilled all of their obligations to the
PA in connection with the tender.
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
19.1 Other short term provisions (continued)

The Group initiated a pilot debt recovery procedure of USD 10.000 against the PA with the Ankara
Enforcement Authority (which thenis to be followed by the actual procedure) claiming the repayment
of the Bid Bond issued by Bank Asya numbered 308099 and dated 29 March 2007 with a total
amount of USD 12.750.000 which was liquidated on unjustifiable grounds. However, the proceeding
was suspended upon defendant's objection. The cancellation of the defendant's claim and a penalty
amounting to 40% of the total amount were requested from Ankara Commercial Court on the ground
that defendant’s claim was unjustifiable. However, the court dismissed the lawsuit since the lawsuit
should be filed with the Administrative Court.

The decisionis appealed upon the notification of the reasoned decision. The Appeal Court upheld the
local court's decision. Thereupon, Ankara Administrative Court, before which the cancellation lawsuit is
pending, also decided that the civil court is the competent court to hear the case.

After this court's decision becoming final, it shall be requested from the Court of Jurisdictional
Disputes to determine whether the competent court is, and the court has decided that the civil court
is the competent court. The filing has been returned to 5th Ankara Commercial Court and stillin the
registration process.

vii) On 14 March 2008 the joint venture ("JV") consisting of Energaz and GYH placed the highest

bid (USD 1.61 billion) for the tender relating to the privatization of the shares of Baskent Dogalgaz
Dagitim A.S. (“Baskentgaz'") owned by the Municipality of Ankara via the block sale method. STFA
Yatinm Holding A.S. and ABN Amro Infrastructure Capital Management Ltd. also became members of
the JV. As the information in relation to Baskent Dogalgaz Dagitim A.S. within the tender specifications
were misleading the shares of Baskent Dogalgaz Dagitim A.S. were not transferred to the JV. As the
procedure was continuing, the Municipality applied to the guarantor bank to enable the liquidation of
the USD 50 million Letter of Guarantee, procured from Asya Katiim Bankasi A.S by the Consortium,
submitted to the Municipality as a requirement under specifications by GYH, the 51,66% participant of
the JV.

The Group filed a lawsuit before the Ankara Administrative Court against the Municipality, requesting
cancellation of the Municipality Council's resolution dated 22 January 2009, numbered 86/325
regarding the forfeiture of the letter of guarantee given by JV according to Article 10/c of the tender
specification. The Group also requested an injunction on 15 January 2010. Ankara Administrative
Court decided incompetence and the case has been taken over by the Thirteenth Chamber of Council
of State. The Thirteenth Chamber of Council of State rejected the request for a stay for execution.
The Group appealed and the Administrative Division of the High Council of the State overturned the
rejection on 8 July 2010. At this point, 13th Chamber of Council of State completed the parts which
were missed before, and again gave its rejection. Further to the rejection given by 13th Chamber of
Council of State, Group's lawyers made an objection to the Administrative Division of the High Council
of the State regarding the decision given by 13th Chamber of Council of State. Since the objection to
the rejection of the request for a stay for execution rejected by the Administrative Division of the High
Council of the State, the lawsuit is pending before the 13th Chamber of Council of State in order to
decide on the merits of the lawsuit. Next hearing will be held on 6 May 2014.
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
19.1 Other short term provisions (continued)

On 2 July 2009, a decision of the Turkish High Council of Privatization Administration was published in
the Official Gazette. Accordingly, the Privatization Administration shall be in charge in order to conduct
and finalize the privatization process of the Baskentgaz shares as at the date of the decision. Thus,
the Turkish Privatization Administration finalized the privatization process of the Baskentgaz shares
by means of making several tendersin 2013.

As the Group planned to file a lawsuit regarding the payment of the Letter of Guarantee, Boru Hatlari
ile Petrol Tasima A.S. ("BOTAS") initiated an execution process in accordance with the Article 79 of
the Collection of the Public Receivables Act No. 6183 against the Municipality. As a precautionary
measure, the Group applied to Beyoglu Commercial Court to prevent the liquidation of the Letter

of Guarantee. The courtissued a precautionary measure for 15% of the collateral of the Letter of
Guarantee which prevented the liquidation. The Municipality raised an objection against the measure,
which was rejected by the Court.

Continuing with their precautionary measure, a lawsuit was filed by the Group against the Ankara
Metropolitan Municipality and BOTAS before the First Chamber of the Beyoglu Commercial Court
claiming to dissolve the discrepancy for the payment of the Letter of Guarantee and the restitution of
the Letter of Guarantee. The court decided that it is not a competent court to conduct the case and
that Ankara courts were the most appropriate forum for the litigation. The guarantor bank requested
an intervention in the lawsuit, which was then approved by the Court. The court additionally allowed
the plaintiff to file a separate lawsuit against the PA and enabled this separate lawsuit to be combined
with the pending lawsuit. Upon this order, the Consortium filed another lawsuit against the PA, as it
became the competent authority to conduct the privatization process. The court decided to combine
this lawsuit with the pending lawsuit which is behind Ankara 3rd Chamber Commercial Court.

The file has been sent to a three person expert commission for detailed examination on 26 June
2012. Commission declared in their report that the outcome of the Administrative Court case

may be a prejudicial question however the Court, has not taken the objections to the Commission
report into account and, rejected the case and cancelled the preliminary injunction on the Bid Bond

on 26 February 2013. The file has been appealed and it still is before the Supreme Court. The Bid
Bond amounting to USD 50.000.000.00 has been liquidated and paid to the Ankara Metropolitan
Municipality on 1 March 2013 and the Company has been notified accordingly. The decision has been
appealed and still waiting the appellate hearing.

The Group treated the new situation as an adjusting as of 31 December 2012. The Group has made
provision amounting to USD 50.000.000 (TL 89.130.000) by taking the situation as of 31 December
2012 within the consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, legal proceedings with regard
to collection of share of the members of the Consortium, STFA, ABN Amro ve Energaz, amounting to
USD 24.170.000 (TL 43.085.442) have been initiated.

219



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
19.1 Other short term provisions (continued)

Brielfy as at 31 December 2012, the Group allocated provision amounting to USD 50.000.000 (TL
89.130.000) under “provisions’ in its consolidated financial statements. The reimbursement of the
provisions is accounted for under "other receivables" as "reimbursement of provisions" amounting

to USD 24.170.000 (TL 43.085.422) (Note 11) and a net amount of provision and reimbursement of
the provision amounting to USD 25.830.000 (TL 46.044.558) (Note 30) is accounted for as provision
expense under “finance costs" in the consolidated financial statements. As of 31 December 2013,
since the liability have been paid, the receivables amounting to TL 51.586.031 (Note 11) accounted as
“reimbursement of payments' in the other receivables.

On the other hand, the Municipality filed a lawsuit against the Company and Energaz before 4th
Ankara Commercial Court on the date of 26 Mach 2013 in request for the compensation for unlawful
preliminary injunction. The requested compensation amount is USD 10.000.000, save for therights

to surplus related to lawsuit, request and other damages especially interest income loss of the
municipality and damages arising from forced loan, with accruing commercial interest as from 31
December 2008. The lawsuit petition and interim decision related to the lawsuit have been received on
7 May 2013.In the rebuttal petition dated 15 May 2013, the Group's lawyers claimed for nonsuit and
requested for awaiting the finalization of the decision of the superior court by reason of the fact that
the compensation lawsuit was filed before giving ruling on the primal lawsuits conducted before 4th
Ankara Commercial Court numbered 2010/308 E. and the Thirteenth Chamber of Council of State
numbered 2010/920 E. Besides, the Group's lawyers requested for evidencing of tangible damages
of plaintiff and determining of the scope of compensation in accordance with the Code of Obligation
Article 51. The Court has decided to pend the filing until the decision of The Supreme Court mentioned
above. Next hearing will be held on 24 June 2014,

(viii) The Company filed alawsuit of USD 15.000 against ABN Amro Infrastructure Capital
Management Ltd. before Beyoglu Commercial Court claiming that the defendant, with regards to the
related articles of the JV Agreement signed between the Parties after the Tender of the Privatization
of Baskent Dogalgaz Dagitim A.S. arranging to share jointly all the financial, accounting, legal, tax,
commercial and insurance expenses, has not paid its share of USD 236.918, reserving the right

to claim the whole amount. The expert report and the additional report has been received and the
parties has raised objections to such reports. In the hearing held on 3 March 2014, it has been decided
to be pend the filing until the decision of the file numbered 2010/920 before 13th Council of State.
Next hearing willbe held on 3 July 2014.

(ix) The members of the Municipality Assembly of Van filed a lawsuit claiming the cancellation of the
Assembly's decision dated 9 January 2008 numbered 13 regarding the amendment to the zoning plan
of the property then owned by the Municipality as well as the imposing of an injunction. The request
for the injunction was rejected by the Court on 29 May 2008. The zoning plan and the tender won by
Pera and Global Yatinm Holding as a joint venture regarding the sale of the property then owned by

the Municipality have been cancelled. According to the cancellation decision of the court, a lawsuit is
filed by the Municipality against the Company and Global Yatirim Holding relating to cancellation of the
deed.
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
19.1 Other short term provisions (continued)

The Company's lawyers objected that the Municipality must deposit the tender price to the Courtin
order to remove the restriction placed on filing the lawsuit. This would oblige the court to dismiss the
case should the Municipality fail to deposit of the tender price to the Court within the time limits. The
Company may recourse the tender price along with the interest and the adequate payment in return
for the unlawful use of the property by the Van Municipality since 2008 and the compensation for the
damages by filing an unjust enrichment case. Van Municipality has been granted with additional time
by the Court to deposit the sale price.

In addition, the Settlement Protocol regarding the withdrawal of the lawsuit between the Municipality
and the Company and Global Yatinim Holding and the settlement negotiations has been started

with regards to the implementation of the Project was signed with the Commission established in
accordance with the city council decision for the settlement on 5 July 201 3. In consequence of the
Protocol, the property will be held by the Company depending on carrying definite conditions and the
Project will be commenced. It has been asked additional time from the Court in order to implement the
Protocol. The next hearing willbe held on 25 April 2014,

(x) Dagoren, one of GYH's subsidiaries made an application to the General Directorate of State
Hydraulic Works (the “Administration”) to obtain a generation licence for the Dagsoren Hydroelectric
Power Plant (“"HEPP").

According to correspondence sent by the Administration dated 18 July 2008, the Administration
accepted the application with one condition-the generation licence had to be granted by the Energy
Market Regulatory Authority (“EMRA"). Subsequently, Dagoren completed its licences application
to EMRA and EMRA approved the application for a 46 year generation licence on 27 November
2008. Consequently, the Right of Water Usage Agreement was signed and sent to Dagdren by the
Administration.

Dagoren responded stating that the draft agreement was acceptable and the final Right of Water
Usage Agreement could be signed. On the grounds that the Bilateral Cooperation Agreement
("Agreement"") between Turkey and USA is abrogated, which includes the development of Hakkari
Dam and Hydroelectric Power Plant (“HEPP") Project located on the upper level of Dagoren Regulator
and HEPP Project, the Administration refrained from signing the water utilization rights agreement and
subsequently notified Dagdren, that Dagoren Regulator and HEPP Project is also cancelled.

Dagoren lawyers filed a lawsuit in the Sixteenth Administrative Court of Ankara to cancel the
administrative decision given by the Administration on grounds that EMRA is the only body entitled

to give or cancel any production licence; that the Administration has no authorization to cancel a
project whichis already approved by EMRA; that the Administration has no right to refrain from signing
the water utilization rights agreement of any project that is approved by EMRA and the cancellation

of Hakkari Dam and HEPP Project is not automatically a reason for the cancellation of the Dagdren
Regulator and HEPP Project.
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
19.1 Other short term provisions (continued)

The Sixteenth Administrative Court of Ankara decided against Dagdren as a matter of public interest
and not considering any contradiction against the law. Dagoren appealed the verdict to the Council of
State and requested an injunction declaring that the process conducted by the Administration cannot
be lawful as a matter of publicinterest where it contradicts the express provisions of the law. The
lawyers also requested that the appeal process shall be carried on through court hearings. Since the
Thirteenth Chamber of the Council of State which will carry on the appeal process is the specialized
court in such processes, the Group lawyers believe that the decision by the Sixteenth Administrative
Court of Ankara willbe reversed and a judgement made in favour of the Group.

On the other hand, a lawsuit has been filed at Ankara Intellectual and Industrial Property Rights Court
No. 3 by the Group on the grounds that Dagdren Regulator and HEPP Project is a product and is a
property of Dagdren and that the rights of the owner of the product cannot be interfered and the
possession of the product cannot be taken by solely changing the name of the Project. The first
expert decided against Dagoren by majority of votes in their report although the technical expert
represented their report in favor of Dagoren. At this statement, Dagoren made an objection to the
court regarding the report. Within the second expert report prepared upon objections, it was stated
that the transfer of the intellectual property rights regarding the Dagoren Project from the Dagdren

to the General Directorate of State Hydraulic Works under the related regulations is an issue open to
criticism, and these rights are actually owned by the Dagoren, and the use of the projects which were
prepared by the Dagdren by the Administration is a matter considered to be professionally unethical,
and the decision related to the product needs to be decided under the court's discretion. Although the
Court approved that the Group's Project is a creation, it also dismissed the lawsuit claiming that the
similarities between the Group's Project and the Hakkari HEPP Project announced by the defendant
DSl have originated from several technical requirements; therefore the DSI's Project is also deemed as
another creation. The decision which is contrary to law have been made against the Technical Expert's
opinions and convictions. Therefore, the Group lawyers appealed the decision.

The Group lawyers believe that the court's fault decision shall be reversed in favor of the Group by
the Appeal Court upon further review at the appeal stage, since the Court erroneously concluded the
lawsuit, although it confirmed that the Group's Project is a creation and there are similarities between
two creations.

Finally, the Group filed a lawsuit at Second Administrative Court of Ankara, claiming that the
administrative order regarding the application announcement by the Administration related to the
Hakkari Hydro Electric Project which is a combination of Dagoren Regulator and HEPP with the Hakkari
Dam Construction Project and HEPP under this name must be cancelled. Although, such lawsuit which
has been filed before Ankara Intellectual and Industrial Property Rights Court No. 3 should be decided
as a prejudicial question, the Court rejected the case. The Group lawyers appealed the decision.
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
19.1 Other short term provisions (continued)

(xi) Lawsuit filed in relation to the recovery of debts within the scope of the Agreement regarding
Construction Work

The contractor filed a lawsuit in relation to fix the amount of the final allowance and the recovery of

TL 2.708.085 arisen out of the Agreement regarding Construction Work of Sumerpark Mall dated

12 February 2010. Pera, on the contrary, rejoined that there was no difference in favor of the plaintiff
where the increased manufacturing costs and cuts are considered. Additionally, Pera had raised a claim
that the final allowance was not approved by the Company.

Additionally, in the lawsuit between Pera and the Technical Supervision Service Provider which was
filed before 35th Commercial Court of Istanbul, Pera requested that such lawsuit to be a prejudicial
question for this lawsuit. The contractor, however, claimed the final allowance due to the reason that
there has been no cut; the increased costs were approved by Pera and the construction was fully
completed. Pera had raised objection to the amounts between the temporary and the final allowances.
The Court decided to give instruction to the Commercial Court of Denizli to make an investigation and
prepare an expert report.

(xii) Usage of Sumerpark Trademark

On behalf of the Plaintiff, a lawsuit has filed before the 3rd Civil Court of Denizli in request for the
purpose of discontinuation and prevention of the usage of registered "Sumerpark' trademark which
is being used by Pera under Sumerpark AVM. The Company objected such claim by way of claiming
that such trademark is registered under the Company's title and such usage is legal and valid. By Perg,
anew counter lawsuit was filed before the 1st Intellectual and Industrial Property Rights Court for the
purpose of rescission of trademark.

In the preliminary examination, defendant's lawyers' claim with regards to jurisdiction plea was
rejected. The lawsuit which was proceeded against Perga, the Court decided to pend the response
to the written to the 3rd Civil Court of Denizli and once the response received, the case shallbe
presented to the expert for an expert report.

Additional information and documents had been submitted as a counter statement against the

notified expert report; therefore, it was decided to respite the hearing to establish a new committee to
prepare a new report.
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
19.2 Contingent assets

The Company, having 49,20% shares of GY Elyaf ve Iplik Sanayi ve Dis Ticaret A.S. ("GY Elyaf") has
purchased additional 50,80% shares from prior shareholders on 7 November 2008 and transferred
100% shares to Koninklijke Vopak NV (Vopak'') at the same date, at the nominal value of TL 50.000.
According to the Article 9 of the share transfer agreement, following the realization of the pre-
conditions by the Company and Vopak, Vopak shall pay USD 9.750.000 (50% of the amount will be
paid to the previous shareholders of GY Elyaf) as goodwill in 24 months after the signing date of the
agreement. In November 2012, Vopak submitted the Company that the liabilities , explained in the
9th article of the agreement, could not be accomplished in reasonable time and demanded the sale of
land according to the relavant provisions of the agreement explained in the 11th article. An authorized
investment bank by Vopak has been carrying out on the sale of land. The gain on sale (including
goodwill) will be shared according to relavant provisions of the share transfer agreement.

19.3 Contingent liabilities

The details related to the Group's guarantees, pledges and mortgages given are presented in Note 20.
Moreover, the Group has the following contingent liabilities:

Ege Liman

The details of the Transfer of Operational Rights Agreement dated 2 July 2003, executed by and
between Ege Liman and Privatization Authority (“PA") together with Turkish Maritime Organization
("TDI") are stated below:

Ege Liman will be performing services such as sheltering, installing, charging, discharging, shifting,
terminal services, pilotage, towing, moorings, water quenching, waste reception, operating, maintaining
and repairing of cruise terminals, in Kusadasi Cruise Port for an operational period of 30 years. Ege
Liman s liable for the maintenance of Kusadasi Cruise Port together with the port equipmentin

good repair and in operating condition throughout its operating right period. After the expiry of the
contractual period, the real estate and the integral parts of it shall be surrendered to the TDI, while the
movable properties stay with Ege Liman.

Ortadogu Liman

The details of the Transfer of Operational Rights Agreement dated 31 August 1998, executed by and
between Ortadogu Liman and PA together with TDI are stated below:

Ortadogu Liman will be performing services such as sheltering, installing, charging, discharging,
shifting, terminal services, pilotage, towing, moorings, water quenching, waste reception, operating,
maintaining and repairing of cruise terminals, in Antalya Port for an operational period of 30 years.
Ortadogu Limanis liable for the maintenance of Antalya Port together with the port equipmentin
good repair and in operating condition throughout its operating right period. After the expiry of the
contractual period, the real estate and the integral parts of it shall be surrendered to the TDI, while the
movable properties stay with Ortadogu Liman.
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
19.3 Contingent liabilities (continued)
Port of Bar

The details of the Transfer of Operational Rights Agreement dated 15 November 2013, executed by
and between Global Liman and Ministry of Transportation and Maritime and Port Administration of
Montenegro ("PAM") are stated below:

Global Liman will be performing services such as terminal services, operating, financing, maintaining
and repairing of cruise terminals, in Port of Bar in Montenegro for an operational period of 30 years.
Global Limanis liable for the maintenance of Port of Bar together with the port equipment in good
repair and in operating condition throughout its operating right period. After the expiry of the
contractual period, the real estate and the integral parts of it shall be surrendered to the PAM, while
the movable properties stay with Global Liman.

Bodrum Liman

The details of the BOT Contract dated 23 June 2004, executed by and between Bodrum Liman and
the State Railways, Ports and Airports Construction Company ("DLH") are stated below:

Bodrum Liman had to construct the Bodrum Cruise Port in a period of 1 year and 4 months following
the delivery of the land and thereafter, will operate the Bodrum Cruise Port for 12 years. The final
acceptance of the construction was performed on 4 December 2007, and thus the operation period
has commenced. Bodrum Liman is liable for the maintenance of the port together with the port
equipment in good repair and in operating condition throughout its operating right period. The facilities,
equipment, installations and the systems together with the tools and other equipment belonging
thereto shall be surrendered to the DLH after the expiry of the contractual period.

19.4 Operating leases
Group as lessee

The Group entered into various operating lease agreements. As at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

2013 2012

Less than one year 2.780.419 1.131.300
Between one and five years 4.727.848 0.067.211
More than five years 1.293.021 2316111
8.801.288 9.514.622

The Company's main operating lease agreements as lessee are the port rent agreement of Bodrum
Limanuntil 2019 and the rent agreement signed by Pera with the General Directorate of Foundations
with respect to the rental of 6.Vakif Han for 15 years and other operating lease agreements of
Naturelgaz.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, payments recognized as rent expense are TL 2.769.148
(2012:TL 751.040).
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19 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

19.4 Operating leases (continued)

Group as lessor

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the future lease receivables under operating leases are as

follows:
2013 2012
Less than one year 11.390.976 12.595.958
Between one and five years 30.598.368 34200471
More than five years 25678523 28.537.863
67.667.867 75.334.292

The Group's main operating lease agreements as lessor are the rent agreements of Pera with the
lessees of SUmerpark AVM and 6. Vakif Han, the marina lease agreement of Ortadogu Liman until
2028 and various shopping center rent agreements of Ege Liman and Bodrum Liman up to 5 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, TL 15.122.623 (2012: TL 14.023.802) have been

recognized as rent income in the consolidated financial statements.
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20 COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 guarantees, pledges and mortgages (GPMs) given by the Group

are presented below:

31 December 2013

TL Equivalent

Original
Amount TL

ushD

EURO

A Total amount of GPMs givenin the
name of its own legal personality

158.472.694

136.702.834

10.200.000

B Total amount of GPMs given in the
name of the consolidated subsidiaries
and joint ventures

416.662.207

370.462.709

4.840.065

12.215.000

- Total amount GPMSs given in the name
of the consolidated subsidiaries

416.662.207

370.462.709

4.840.065

12.215.000

- Total amount of GPMs givenin the
name of the consolidated joint ventures

C Totalamount of GPMs given to be
able to conduct ordinary business
transactions

to secure payables of third parties

17.709.000

90.000

6.000.000

D Other GPMs given

- Total amount of GPMs givenin the
name of the main shareholder

- Total amount of GPMs givenin the
name of other group companies except
for Band C

- Total amount of GPMs givenin the
name of third parties except for C

Total

592.843.901

507.255.543

15.040.065

18.215.000
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20 COMMITMENTS (continued)

31 December 2012

TL Equivalent

Original
Amount TL

usD

EURO

A Total amount of GPMs givenin the
name of its own legal personality

150.290.028

132.107.508

10.200.000

B Total amount of GPMs given in the
name of the consolidated subsidiaries
and joint ventures

375.916.024

374.801.628

625152

- Total amount GPMSs given in the name
of the consolidated subsidiaries

375.310.159

374.195.763

625152

- Total amount of GPMs given in the
name of the consolidated joint ventures

605.865

605.865

C Totalamount of GPMs given to be
able to conduct ordinary business
transactions to secure payables of third
parties

14.200.200

90.000

6.000.000

D Other GPMs given

- Total amount of GPMs givenin the
name of the main shareholder

- Total amount of GPMs given in the
name of other group companies except
forBand C

- Total amount of GPMs givenin the
name of third parties except for C

Total

540.406.252

506.999.136

10.825.152

6.000.000

As at 31 December 2013 the ratio of other GPMs given to the Group's equity is 0% (31 December

2012:0%).
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20 COMMITMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 guarantees and the details of the GPMs given by the Group are
presented below:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Given to Energy Market Regulatory Authority (1) 10.438.390 8.776.890
Given for tenders 240.840 201.256
Given as a guarantee for commercial contracts 19.081.238 14.110.200
Given to Borsalstanbul 8.478.000 9.073.170
Given to banks 90.000 285,574
Given to Takasbank 39.425.000 39.425.000
Given to Privatization Administration 1.206.718 1.014.988
Given to supply for natural gas 14.121.389 -
Given to courts, ministries, Tax Administration 1.399.005 221158
Given to Capital Markets Board 2,776 2.776
Given to Derivative Exchange Market 108.224 363.806
Other 5.095.262 3.369.188
Total letters of guarantee 99.686.842 76.844.006
Mortgages and pledges on inventory, property plant and

equipment and investment property (2) 291.439.500 313.747.000
Pledges on equity securities (3) 147.770.049 109.973.221
Securities given (4) 53.947.510 39.842.025
Total contingent liabilities 592.843.901 540.406.252

(1) The amounts include the letters of guarantee given by Group companies operating in energy sector to EMRA,

(2) Mortgages and pledges oninventory, property, plant and equipment and investment property:

As at 31 December 2013, there is a mortgage amounting to TL 80.000.000 over one of the buildings of Global Yatirm Holding
(whichis classified as property, plant and equipment) with respect to the loans obtained (31 December 2012: TL 80.000.000).

As at 31 December 2013, there is mortgage on the land of the Group located in Denizli Plot # 6224 and Parcel # 1 (whichis
classified as inventory) as collateral of the Group's bank loans amounting to TL 26.800.000 and on the other lands of the Group
located in Denizli and Van (classified as investment property) amounting to TL 150.200.000. As at 31 December 2012, thereis a
total mortgage amounting to TL 202.000.000 on the land plots classified as investment property.

As at 31 December 2013, thereis a pledge over the property, plant and equipment of Ortadogu Liman amounting to TL
31.503.000 (31 December 2012: TL 31.747.000) with respect to the loans obtained by Ortadogu Liman. Also, there is a pledge
over the property, plant and equipment of Port of Bar amounting to TL 2.936.500 (Euro 1.000.000) as at 31 December 2013 with
respect to the loans obtained.

(3) Pledges on equity securities:

As at 31 December 2013, thereis a pledge on the Global Liman's shares in Ege Liman and Ortadogu Liman with a total nominal
value of TL 22.005.897 (31 December 2012: TL 27.262.145) with respect to loans used by Global Liman, Ege Liman and Ortadogu
Liman. The details are presented in Note 9. As at 31 December 2013, the Group gave marketable securities with a nominal value of
USD 10.200.000 (equivalent to TL 21.769.860) (31 December 2012: TL 18.182.520) and equity shares amounting to TL 26.818
(31 December 2012: TL 22.405) as collateral with respect to ongoing legal proceedings. In addition, there is a pledge on shares of
Global Liman with a nominal value of TL 33.789.081 with respect to loans used by Global Limanin 2013.

As mentionedin Note 9, as at 31 December 2013, financial investments amounting to TL 442.741 given to BIST as collateral
according to the blockage of brokerage transactions in return for the letters of guarantee obtained from banks (31 December 2012:
TL 595.170). As at 31 December 2013, government bonds amounting to TL 107,748 are given to Turkish Derivative Exchange
("vOB") for transaction guarantee (31 December 2012: TL 363.806). As at 31 December 2012, financialinvestments with
carrying value of TL 195.574 were given as a pledge to related lenders (31 December 2013: None). As at 31 December 2013,
treasury shares amounting to TL 38.552.024 (31 December 2012: TL 51.026.626) as mentioned in Note 23.1 has been pledged
for loans and debt securities as mentioned in Note 9. As at 31 December 2013, equity shares amounting to TL 20.228.074 has
been pledged for debt securities (31 December 2012: TL 3.238.660).
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20 COMMITMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has pledged 14.978.125 equity shares of one of its subsidiaries amounting to TL 6.290.813
with respect to the guarantee for aloan (31 December 2012:14.978.125 shares amounting to TL 8.687.311) In additon, thereis a
pledge on shares with a nominal value of 4.250.000 lots of a subsidiary of the Group as at 31 December 2013.

(4) Securities given:

As at 31 December 2013, the Group provided guarantee amounting to TL 20.964.662 for the loans of Pera, a subsidiary of
the Group (31 December 2012: TL 39.842.025). In addition, the Group provided guarantee amounting to Euro 11.215.000 (TL

32.932.848) and TL 50.000 with respect to loans used by Straton Maden, a subsidiary of the Group (31 December 2012 : None).
21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Payables related to employee benefits

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, payables related to employee benefits comprised
the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Payables to personnel 3.210.016 1.465.824
Social security premiums payable 693.278 308.641
Total 3.903.294 1.774.465

Provisions for employee benefits

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, provisions for employee benefits comprised the
following:

Short term provisions

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Provision for notice pay and vacations 910.691 876.973
Provision for personnel premium 216.880 89.739
1.127.571 966.712

Long term provisions

Long term provisions included provision for employee benefits. The details of the long term provisions
are as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Provision for employement termination indemnity 5541.781 2.763.274
5.541.781 2.763.274
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21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Payables related to employee benefits (continued)

The assumptions used to recognize provision for employment termination benefits are explained

below:

Under the Turkish Labor Law, the Group is required to pay employement termination benefits to
each employee who has qualified for such benefits as the employment ended. The amount payable
consists of one month's salary limited to a maximum of TL 3.254 for each period of service as of 31

December 2013 (31 December 2012: TL 3.034).

Provision for employment termination indemnity are not subject to any statutory funding.

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the movement of the provision for employement

termination indemnity as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Balance at 1 January 2.763.274 2.209.377
Interest for the period 223441 179.544
Current service costs 409.783 427.323
Paid during the period (259.222) (96.485)
Disposal from scope of consolidation - (365.459)
Addition to scope of consolidation 2.179.650 103,473
Currency translation differences 46.085 (71.494)
Transfer to assets/liabilities held for sale (19.951) -
Actuarial gain/losses 198.721 376.995
Balance at 31 December 5.541.781 2.763.274

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, expenses related to employment termination
benefit are presented in cost of sales, in the personnel expenses under general administrative

expenses, finance expenses and other comprehensive income or expense,
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22 OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
a) Other current assets

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other current assets comprised the following;

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Value added tax (*) 8.016.333 14.801.473
Job and salary advances given to personnel 5.813.625 7.353.032
Income accruals 2.594.982 3.192.865
Other 2.262.062 544,182
Total 18.687.002 25.891.552

(*) The Group has classified deferred VAT assets as current or non-current assets on basis of future realizable projections.

b) Other non current assets

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other non-current assets comprised the following;

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Value added tax (*) 12.337.430 4.075.692
Job and salary advances given to personnel (**) 8.653.178 -
Other 39.358 -
Total 21.029.966 4.075.692

(*)The Group has classified deferred VAT assets as current or non current assets on basis of future realizable projections.
(**) Includes long term personnel and job advances given by a subsidiary of the Group which is operating abroad.

c) Other short-term liabilities

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, other short-term liabilities comprised the
following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Liabilities related with real estate (*) 9.000.000 -
Expense accruals 387.767 1.565.941
Other 283.842 -
Total 9.671.609 1.565.941

(*) Includes payables based on the protocol between the Group and Van Municipality.
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23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

23.1 Share capital / treasury shares

Share capital:

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Company's statutory nominal value of paid-in
share capital consists of 22.500.368.745 registered shares with a par value of TL 1 each. Number of
shares is presented in lots in the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes (1

lot= 100 shares).

Theissued capital of the Company is TL 225.003.687,45 and the authorized capital ceiling is TL
650.000.000. The shareholder structure of the Company is as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Proportion of Value Proportion of Value of
share % of share share % share
Mehmet Kutman (*) 2583 % 58.115.880 25,55 % 57.495.090
Erol GGker 0,22 % 488.707 0,22 % 488.707
Publicly traded other 73,95% 166.399.100 74,23 % 167.019.890
shares
Total 100 % 225.003.687 100 % 225.003.687
Inflation accounting 34.659.630 34.659.630
adjustment
Inflation adjusted capital 259.663.317 259.663.317

() Disclosed together with the shares of Turkcom Turizm Enerjiinsaat Gida Yatirimlar A.S which is owned by Mehmet Kutman.

The shares of the Company include privileged shares. The privileges of the (A), (D) and (E) group
shares are explained below:

Two of the members of the Board of Directors are chosen among the candidates nominated by the
owners of the group (A) shares. One of the members of the Board of Directors is chosen among the
candidates nominated by the owners of the group (D) shares and one of them is chosen among the
candidates nominated by the owners of the group (E) shares. Each member of the boardis chosen

by the decision of the majority of the shareholders of the privileged share group that nominated the
candidate. All the shareholders have the right to nominate any candidate but, in order to select such
candidates for the General Assembly; the nominations should be approved by the group (A) shares
before the selection. All the shareholders have the right to nominate for two candidates for the Board.
In case that group (D) and group (E) shares cannot nominate any candidate, any shareholder can
nominate a candidate.
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23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
23.1 Share capital / treasury shares (continued)
Treasury shares:

The Company and some of the subsidiaries of the Company repurchase shares of the Company from
the capital markets. These repurchased shares are called as treasury shares. The shares can be sold
back to the market. Profit or loss that arises as the result of the sale of the shares is accounted for
under retained earnings in the consolidated financial statements. The shares are accounted for at
cost under treasury shares owned by the Company and treasury shares owned by the subsidiaries.
Amounts related to these transactions are presented under "Own shares acquired and sold" in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity. As at 31 December 2013, the Company and its
subsidiaries held 65.950.985 shares of Global Yatirim Holding A.S. (31 December 2012: 60.482.404
shares), with the cost of TL 83.717.303 (31 December 2012: TL 70.020.872).

As at 31 December 2013, the Company repurchase of the shares with the cost value of TL
29.985.681 (20.791.765 nominal lot) (31 December 2012: TL 10.237.242 , 8.336.840 nominal

lot ) and amounts related to these transactions are presented under "“Treasury shares owned by the
Company" under equity. As at 31 December 2013, the Company's subsidiaries held 45.159.220
shares of Global Yatirm Holding A.S. (31 December 2012: 52.145.564), with the cost of TL
53.731.622 TL (31 December 2012: TL 59.783.630) and amounts related to these transactions are
presented under "Treasury shares owned by the Subsidiaries" under equity. The portion of the shares
with the nominal value of TL 5.869.645 has been lent.

For the period ended 31 December 201 3, the profit before tax of the Group companies from the sale
of the shares of the Company amounted to TL 1.576.561 (31 December 2012: TL 1.146.845) and
has been recognized in equity in the consolidated financial statements.

Based on the share purchase program, The Board of Directors authorized at the BOD meeting,
numbered 791, held on 30 March 2012 and approved on 10 May 2012 by the General Assembly,
Group repurchase of the shares with the nominal value of TL 22.500.368, thatis 10% of GYH's paid
capital at the amount of TL 225.003.687,45. According to the program, the share buyback period will
be 18 months. As at 31 December 2013, the total amount and the total nominal value of the shares
that are repurchased by the Group are TL 20.791.765 (9,24 %) and the program has been completed
due to the termination of 18 months period.

23.2 Share premium/discounts
Share premium represents the inflow of cash arising from the sales of shares at market value. The

premium amount is included in equity and cannot be distributed. It can only be used for the future
capitalincreases.
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23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
23.3 Other comprehensive income/expense not to be reclassified to profit or loss

This item comprises, income/expenses defined as a component of other comprehensive income and
reported for the period in which they arise and in no case transferred directly in equity through profit
or loss such as following:

a) Gain/loss on revaluation and remeasurement
- Actuarial gain/ (loss) on employee benefits (Note 2.1.e)
b) Other gain/loss

Special funds

The application filed by Pera, a subsidiary of the Group operating in the real estate segment, to the
CMB in relation to permission for a share capital decrease by TL 35.900.000 and simultaneous share
capitalincrease (in cash) by TL 29.000.000, was approved by the CMB on 24 January 2011 inthe
decision numbered 86-928. The amendment to Article 8 of the Association of Pera was approved

by the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting on 15 February 2011, and the share capital of Pera
was decreased to TL 60.100.000. The pre-emptive rights of the existing shareholders were used
between 1 March and 15 March 2011 and after that the remaining shares were offered to investors
between 1 Apriland 15 April 2011. Finally, the portion of the new shares, for which the pre-emptive
rights were not used, has been purchased by Global Yatinm Holding A.S. and the capital increase to
TL 89.100.000 was completed. The process was approved by the CMB on 3 May 2011. As a result of
the capitalincrease, a total of TL 29.000.000 has been accounted for as "Special Reserve' by Pera, of
which TL 14.357.900 has been reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

This item comprises, income/expenses defined as a component of other comprehensive income and
reported for the period in which they arise and subsequently transferred directly in equity through
profit or loss such as following:

a) Currency translation differences

Currency translation differences comprise the foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries and joint ventures from their functional
currencies to the presentation currency (TL) recognized in the equity.

b) Gain/loss on revaluation and remeasurement

- Gain/loss on revaluation and remeasurement of available-for-sale financial assets

Gain/loss on revaluation and remeasurement comprises from the change in fair value of available for
sale financial assets.

235



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
23.3 Other comprehensive income/expense not to be reclassified to profit or loss (continued)
¢) Gain or loss on net investment hedge

A subsidiary of the Group, Global Liman's foreign exchange differences arising from foreign currency
loans into currency of the related subsidiary's functional currency other than TL which are part of
net investments made to its subsidiaries have been considered as hedging instruments and effective
portion of them has been recognised in other comprehensive income in the consolidated financial
statements. The accounting method mentioned above has been applying since 1 October 2013 and
the Group has recognised loss amounting to TL 12.781.205 in other comprehensive income within
equity for the year ended 31 December 2013.

23.4 Restricted reserves

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's restricted reserves are total of TL 79.706.826 (31 December
2012:TL 86.393.932).

The Company, transferred the exemption of gain on sale of subsidiaries which is accounted under
restricted reserves inlegal financial statements amounting to TL 35.000.000 to retained earnings.
Also the Company transferred the gain on sale of joint ventures which was accounted in the legal
finanacial statements for the year 2012 by the way of exception amounting to TL 24.702.769 to
the restricted reserves according to the relevant article of Corporate Tax Law and made necessary
regulations in the Corporate Tax Return. These adjustments resulted in change in effective tax rate of
the Group.

23.5 Retained earnings / accumulated losses and non-controlling interests

The retained earnings/accumulated losses excluding the net income/loss for the period, and the
general reserves which have retained earnings/accumulated losses nature are included in retained
earnings/accumulated loss account.

23.5 Retained earnings / accumulated losses and non-controlling interests (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 the Group entered into sale and purchase transactions of
shares in Pera and in Global menkul, which shares are publicly traded at BIST. As aresult of the sale and
purchase of Pera and Global Menkul shares by the Group, the effective shareholding rate of the Group
in Peraincreased to 49,99 % and effective shareholding rate of the Group in Global Menkul decreased
t0 67,43% as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012:49,99% and 75,67 %). The result of

these transactions is recognized under equity and is shown as change in non-controlling interests in
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity.

The net assets of the subsidiaries attributable to the shares not controlled directly or indirectly by the
parent company are presented as "Non-controlling interests” in the consolidated balance sheet.
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23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
23.6 Transactions with owners of the Company, recognized directly in equity

The share transfer transactions enabling Venice European Investment Capital S.p.A. (“VEI"), a private
equity fund, and Savina Holding GmbH, a special purpose entity of Venice Shipping and Logistic
S.p.A (a strategic partner), to acquire a minority stake in Global Liman, a subsidiary of the Group,

was finalized on 26 July 2011. With the share purchase agreement which comprises the transfer

of 22,114% shares of Global Liman to Global Yatirim Holding for a consideration amounting to USD
91.724.063 after deduction of dividend payment from Savina to the Group has been completed as
at 3 February 201 3. After the completion of the transfer of the shares, the Group's shares in Global
Limanincreases to 99,99%.

The result of transaction is recognized under equity and is shown as "'changes in non-controlling
interest without loss in control” in the consolidated changes in shareholder’s equity. The transaction
has been accounted for in accordance with the paragraphs 30 and 31 of TAS 27 "Consolidated

and Separate Financial Statements", which require the changes in a parent's ownership interest

in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control to be accounted for as equity transactions (i.e.
transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). In such circumstances the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests shall be adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received shall be recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the parent.

As aresult of this transaction, TL 94.323.000 corresponding to 22,114% of Global Liman's
shareholders equity is deducted from "“non-controlling interests' and the difference amounting to TL
66.806.996 between consideration paid and non-controlling interests acquired is recognized under
equity. The transactionis disclosed as "‘change in non-controlling interests without loss in control" in
statement of changes in shareholder's equity.

Onbasis of the decisionissued by EMRA dated 19.03.2009 and numbered 2021-5, Global Enerji; a
subsidiary of the Group has reached to 85% from 60% of share of Galata Enerji which has a production
license for fourty nine years by share transfer at the rate 25% on 3 October 2013,

This transaction has been assesed as "‘changes in non-controlling interest without loss in control”
and has been accounted under equity, TL 295.844 corresponding to 25 % of shareholders' equity

of Galata Enerjiat 31December 2012 has been deducted from non controlling interest and the
difference between acquisition cost and non controlling interest amounting to TL 1.710.353 has been
deducted from retained earnings.
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24 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group's gross profit on the basis of operations

comprised the following;

Revenue 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Natural gas revenues 54.409.289 -
Port operating revenues 143.526.022 122.390.528
Mining revenues 8.884.035 -
Real estate rent and service revenues 13.602.337 17.246.635
Other 3.795.157 3.519.678
Total 224.216.840 143.156.841
Cost of sales
Cost of natural gas sales and services (48.663.611) -
Cost of port operations (81.056.298) (71.614.860
Cost of mining operations (5.455.392) -
Cost of real estate service (9.149.837) (12.095.385)
Other (4.309.048) (2.780.979)
Total (148.634.186) (86.491.224)
Gross profit from non-finance operations 75.582.654 56.665.617
Revenues from finance operations 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Agency commissions 14905170 14.179.332
Interest received from customers 7.499.785 7.904.215
Portfolio management fees (111.031) 450.633
Gain on sale of marketable securities, net 78.751 515,195
Other revenue 759.409 161.728
Total 23.132.084 23.211.103
Cost of revenues from finance operations (-)
Commission charges (915.340) (1.054.639)
Interest charges from loans delivered to customers (2.071.783) (2.959.437)
Total (2.987.123) (4.014.076)
Gross profit from finance operations 20.144.961 19.197.027
GROSS PROFIT 95.727.615 75.862.644

(*) See Note 2.3 .e.
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25 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND MARKETING EXPENSES

25.1 Marketing expenses

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, marketing expenses comprised the following:

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)

Personnel expenses 4.028.985 27.404
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.028.020 -
Export expenses of mining operations 2167.424 -
Advertising and promotion expenses 1943411 2.050.530
Vehicle expenses 1.532.682 6.073
Repair and maintenance expenses 687.941 -
Money market settlement and custody expenses 436.848 -
Commission expenses of derivative exchange market 433.689 344.730
Consultancy expenses 377.088 192.001
Representation and traveling expenses 308.227 247.885
Stock market participation share 215166 268.920
Other 2.735.997 485,993
16.895.478 3.623.536

(*)See Note 2.3.e.

25.2 General and administrative expenses

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, general and administrative expenses comprised

the following:
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Personnel expenses 43.351.361 43.310.509
Consultancy expenses 5.549.046 3.630.591
Travelling expenses 5017.611 5.560.988
Taxes and duties 3.300.358 2.149.396
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.700.279 2.248.492
IT expenses 2.207.473 2.011.223
Communication expenses 1.608.749 1.471.500
Building management expenses 1.469.268 1.610.583
Rent expenses 1.468.455 1.324.643
Vehicle expenses 1.439.775 1178525
Representation expenses 1.109.509 807.681
Stationary expenses 493.549 282.296
Repair and maintenance expenses 373.583 396.645
Insurance expenses 304.422 277.050
Allowance for doubtful receivables 219.892 489.075
Other expenses 7.469.419 5.631.389
78.082.749 72.380.586

(*)SeeNote 2.3.e.
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26 EXPENSES BY NATURE

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the breakdown of personnel, depreciation and
amortization expenses comprised the following:

1 January- 1 January-

Personnel expenses 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Cost of sales 13.394.927 8.000.472
Marketing expenses 4.028.985 -
General administrative expenses 43.351.361 43.310.509
60.775.273 51.310.981

1 January- 1 January-

Depreciation and amortization expenses 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (%)
Cost of sales 55.186.978 41.808.260
Marketing expenses 2.028.020 -
General administrative expenses 2.700.279 2.248.492
59.915.277 44.056.753

(*) See Note 2.3 .e.
27 OTHER OPERATING INCOME / EXPENSES
27.1 Other operating income

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, other operating income comprised the following:

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)

Gain on sale of joint venture (Note 36) - 150.185.136
Bargain purchase gain (Note 3) 109.670.862 3.011.651
Dividend income (***) 1.022.476 672113
Rentalincome 365.388 614126
Foreign currency exchange gain on trade operations, net 10.168.438 -
Gain on sale of subsidiaries (**) - 1.745.775
Gain on sale of associates - 1.546.042
Gain on previously held interest (Note 3) - 9.796.310
Other income 2.351.318 311.609
Total 123.578.482 167.882.762

(*) See Note 2.3.e.
(**) Gain on sale of subsidiaries consists of the gain on sale of 60% of shares of Global Portfdy to Azimut.
(***) Dividend income from Global Menkul investment in Takasbank which is in operation scope of Global Menkul.

240 GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

27 OTHER OPERATING INCOME / EXPENSES (continued)

27.2 Other operating expenses

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, other operating expense comprised the following;

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Donations 3.003.275 257574
Project expenses 2.304.703 152537
Foreign currency exchange losses on trade - 2.052.741
operations, net
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 17) 1.587.600 -
Partial exception expenses 406.970 331.809
Provision expenses 268.833 20.236
Loss on sale of fixed assets = 19.916
Tax amnesty provision expenses 143.702 635.640
Other expenses 3.355.034 403.084
Toplam 11.070.117 3.873.537

(*) See Note 2.3 .e.
28 INCOME AND EXPENSE FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

28.1 Income from investing activities

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, income from investing activities comprised the

following:
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Investment property valuation gain (Note 15) 16.286.371 4.467.095
Gain on sale of financial assets 104.830 2.370.283
Dividend income - 261.371
Valuation differences on financial assets 489.731 145.804
Gain on sale of fixed assets 27.726 133.066
Gain on sale of real estates - 49,505
Total 16.908.658 7.427.124

(*)See Note 2.3.e.
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28 INCOME AND EXPENSE FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (continued)

28.2 Expense from investing activities

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, expense from investing activities comprised the

following:
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Valuation differences on financial assets 733.052 538.032
Other 164.272 19.916
Total 897.324 557.948

(*)See Note 2.3.e.

29 FINANCE INCOME

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, finance income of the Group comprised the

following:
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Foreign currency exchange gain 12.996.557 17.284.571
Interestincome 8.555.610 6.460.859
Change in fair value of derivatives, net 47.835 731.302
Other 553.258 851.815
Total 22.153.260 25.328.547

(*) SeeNote 2.3.e.
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30 FINANCE EXPENSES

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, finance expense of the Group comprised the
following:

Recognized in profit or loss 1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)

Foreign currency exchange loss 59.866.318 4.689.862
Interest expense on borrowings 56.301.333 206425724
Letter of guarantee provision for Baskent Dogalgaz, - 46.044.558
net (Note 19)

Letter of guarantee commissions 700.000 2125202
Commission expenses on borrowings 375178 950.897
Other 3.735.885 4.004.069
Total 120.978.714 84.240.312

(*) See Note 2.3.e.

1 January- 1 January-
Recognized in other comprehensive income 31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Losses from net investment hedges (Note 23) (12.781.205) -

(12.781.205) -

31 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Corporate tax:

Provision is made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the estimated charge
based on the each of the Group entities' results for the year.

Corporate tax is applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated from the statutory
accounting profit by adding back non-deductible expenses, and by deducting dividends received from
resident companies, other exempt income and investment incentives utilized.

In Turkey, advance tax returns are measured and accrued on a quarterly basis. The advance corporate
income tax rate for each quarter and as at 31 December 2013is 20% (31 December 2012: 20%).

Losses can be carried forward for offsetting against future taxable income for up to 5 years. Losses
cannot be carried back.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies
file their tax returns between 1-25 April following the close of the accounting year to which they
relate. Tax authorities may, however, examine such returns and the underlying accounting records and
may revise assessments within five years.
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31 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Corporate tax (continued):

The Law numbered 6111 "“Concerning the Restructuring of Certain Receivables, Social Security and
the Amendment of the General Health Law and Certain Other Laws and Decrees with the Force of
Law" has been put into effect following its promulgation in the Official Gazette on 25 February 2011.
The Group management intends to utilize the possibilities stated in the scope of the law within the
application period for some of its subsidiaries with respect to the base increase of corporate tax and
VAT tax as well as the contentious issues. According to the law, no assessment will be made related to
the taxes and periods for which the tax bases will be increased, between the years of 2006 and 2009.
The deadline for the application to take advantage of the law is 2 May 2011 and the calculations

for determining the final amounts have not been finished yet. However, within the scope of the
possibilities provided by the law, the additional tax amount scheduled to be paid within the 36-month
term has been calculated approximately as TL 7.363.205 (including interest costs due to due date
difference calculated in accordance with the law). A tax amnesty provision has been accounted for

at this amount in the financial statements as at 31 December 2011 (Note 20). In accordance with
the relevant law, for the companies that benefit from the corporate tax base increase, 50% of the
unused statutory tax losses can not be deducted from the profitsin 2010 and subsequent years.
The Group management has calculated the total amount of suchlosses as TL 28.055.376 and took
into consideration the necessary adjustments related to the deferred tax calculation in the financial
statements as at 31 December 2011. The Group has made application under this law in 2011 and
the tax amnesty obligations have become definite. Thus, the Group classified the amounts which
were recorded as tax amnesty provisions under the current and non-current debt provisions as at 31
December 2011 to the tax amnesty obligations under the other current and non-current payables as
at 31 December 2012. As at 31 December 2013, the short term tax amnesty obligations amounted
to TL 981.792(2012: TL 2.905.789) and there is no long term tax amnesty obligations (2012: TL
988.709).

Transfer pricing

The transfer pricing provisions are set out under the Article 13 of the Corporate Tax Law under

the heading of "disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing'. The General Communique on
disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing dated 18 November 2007 sets out details about

the implementation of these provisions. If a tax payer enters into transactions regarding the sale

or purchase of goods and services with related parties, where the prices are not set in accordance
with an arm's-length basis, the related profits are considered to be distributed in a disguised manner
through transfer pricing. Such disguised profit distributions through transfer pricing are not accepted
as a tax deductible for corporate income tax purposes.
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31 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Tax exemption of real estate investment trusts

Thereal estate investment trusts are exempt from corporate tax in accordance with the Corporate
Tax Law numbered 5520, 5th Article and the subparagraph (1) d. According to the 15th Article of this
law, even when the earnings of the real estate investment trusts are not distributed, they are subject
to the withholding tax of 15 %. However, in the scope of the authorization provided by the law to the
Council of Ministers, the withholding tax rate to be applied was determined to be zero with the decision
of the Council of Ministers numbered 2003/6577.

Tax exemption on maritime operations:

The Turkish International Ship Registry Law, authorized on 16 December 1999, is designed to
accelerate the development of the Turkish maritime sector and increase its contribution to the
Turkish economy. The law supports the procurement and operation of ships registered on the Turkish
International Ship Registry, and yachts registered to the inventory of tourism companies. Income
generated through the vessels covered by the law is not subject to income tax and expenses related
to these operations are considered as disallowable expenses.

Income withholding tax:

The usage of investment incentives was redesigned with the amendments to the related tax law
published in the Official Gazette dated 1 August 2010. Accordingly, to be applied onto the 2010
calendar year income, investment incentives that will be subject to the deducted amount shall not
exceed 25% of income for the year of interest, while determining the tax base.

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes on any
dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are resident companies in Turkey
and Turkish branches of foreign companies. The rate of income withholding tax is 10% starting from
24 April 2003. This rate was changed to 1 5% with the code numbered 5520 article 15 commencing
from 21 September 2006. After the resolution, declared in Official Gazette on 23 July 2006, this rate
was changed to 15% thereafter. Undistributed dividends incorporated in share capital are not subject
to income withholding taxes.

According to the Corporate Tax Law, 75% of the capital gains arising from the sale of tangible assets
and investments in equity shares owned for at least two years are exempted from corporate tax on
the condition that such gains are reflected in the equity with the intention to be utilised in a share
capitalincrease within five years from the date of the sale and the sale amount is collected within two
years following the year in which the saleis realized.
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31 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
Current tax income assets

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, current tax income assets of the Group comprised the following:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Prepaid taxes and funds 2141.787 3.108.055
2.141.787 3.108.055

Tax expenses:

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, tax income/ (expense) comprised the following;

2013 2012
Current tax charge (10.448.284) (10.354.451)
Deferred tax benefit 7.279.448 22.658.221
Total (3.168.836) 12.303.770

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, current tax liability for the period comprised the following:

2013 2012
Current tax charge (10.448.284) (10.354.451)
Taxes paid during period 12,928,671 10.775.910
Total 2.480.387 421.459
Payment of previous year tax liability 3.502.554 2571160
Change in prepaid taxes (966.268) 509.935
Income tax payable 5.016.673 3.502.554
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31 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
Tax expenses (continued):

The tax reconciliation for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

%o 2013

%o 2012

Profit/(loss) before income tax

29.668.166

104.672.364

Corporate tax using domestic rate

20,00 (5.933.633)

20,00 (20.934.473)

Disallowable expenses

21,95 (6.512.980)

0,31 (321.842)

Effect of unrecognized tax losses

8,34 (2.472.989)

(1,83) 1.914.486

Effect of tax exemption on maritime
operations

(10,44) 3.097.681

(3,05) 3.194.467

Effect of non-taxable income

(1,12) 1172551

Effect of bargain purchase gain

(7393) 21.934.172

Effect of non-taxable income from the
sale of joint venture

(9,18) 9.613.083

Tax exemption onincome from the sale
of joint venture

(16,45) 17.219.583

Investment incentive - - 0,00 (3.613)
Prior year adjustments (13.471.979) - -
Other (0,64) 190.892 (0,43) 449528

10,68 (3.168.836) (11,75) 12.303.770

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

In Turkey the tax legislation does not permit a parent company, its subsidiaries and associates to file a
consolidated tax return. Therefore, deferred tax positions of companies with deferred tax assets and
companies with deferred tax liabilities are not netted and are disclosed separately As at 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012, the deferred tax assets and liabilities reflected to the consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

2013 2012
Deferred tax assets 34.967.122 28.332.356
Deferred tax liabilities (166.092.145) (111.106.065)
Total (131.125.023) (82.773.709)
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31 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Deferred tax (continued):

For the years ending 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the movement of deferred tax
assets and liabilities is as follows:

2013

2012

Balance at the beginning of the year

(82.773.709)

(111.957.915)

Deferred tax income 7.270.418 22.734.089
Currency translation differences (12.848.995) 6.365.687
Recognizedin equity 131.692 84.430
Business combination effect (Note 3) (42.904.429) -

(131.125.023) (82.773.709)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 are
attributable to the items presented in the table below:

2013 2012

Temporary Deferred tax Temporary Deferred tax

differences assets / liabilities differences assets / liabilities
Accumulated tax losses 123.528.255 24.705.651 54.760.218 10.952.044
Receivables 17.037.947 3.407.589 13.954.050 2.790.810
Valuation differences of
marketable securities 8474462 1.694.892 2.467.232 493.446
Provisions 889.226 177.845 46.907.099 9.381.420
Provision for
employement termination
indemnity 3.488.531 697.706 2.559.451 511.890
Valuation of derivative
instruments - - 2.076.835 415.367
Property, plant and
equipment, intangible
assets and concession
intangible assets (831.100.845) (166.220.169) (554.743.008) (110.948.602)
Loans and prepaid
commissions of the loans 1.175.530 235,106 (2.648.885) (529.777)
Valuation of investment
property (16.472.501) (3.294.500) (4.467.095) (893.419)
Valuation difference - -
Other 37.354.281 7.470.857 25.265.553 5053112

(131.125.023) (82.773.709)
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31 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Deferred tax (continued):

Asat 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the breakdown of the accumulated tax losses
carried forward in terms of their final years of utilization is as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Expiry years of the tax losses carried
forward Recognized Unrecognized Recognized Unrecognized
2013 - - 374.469 250,578
2014 485.440 322,611 348026  1.702.634
2015 839.711 586.358 37.756.549  1.624.779
2016 2873177 792490 13.359.402 -
2017 12,551,241  1.217.412 2.921.772 -
2018 106.778.686 9.446.072 - -
123.528.255 12.364.943 54.760.218 3.577.991

Unrecognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

At the reporting date, the Group has statutory tax losses available for offsetting against future profits
which are shown above. Such losses carried forward expire until 2018. Deferred tax assets have

not been recognized inrespect of some portion of these items because it is not probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilize the benefits there from.

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, earnings per share are calculated by dividing
the net profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of shares

outstanding.

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2013 31 December 2012 (*)
Net profit / (loss) for the year 29.111.593 108.376.224
Net profit/(loss) from continuing operations for the year 29.111.593 108.376.224
Weighted average number of shares 225.003.687 225.003.687
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 225.003.687 225.003.687
Number of shares held by the Group (Note 23.1) (62.950.985) (60.482.404)
Weighted average number of shares 159.052.702 164.521.283
Earnings per share with par value of TL 1 (TL full) 0,1830 0,6587
Earnings per share of continuing operations with par
value of TL 1 (TL full) 0,1830 0,6587

(*) See Note 2.3.e.
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33 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the details of the Group's interest swap
agreements comprised the following:

Interest swaps:
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Nominal Amount Maturity Nominal Amount Maturity
uUsbD - - 1.000.000 25May 2013
ushD - - 1.000.000 25May 2013
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Fair value of interest swaps: - 47.835

- 47.835

34 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the various risks fromits use of financial instruments. These are credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of
capital.

The responsibility of setting up and following up of risk management processes belongs to
management of the Group.

The risk management policies of the Group were set up according to ascertaining and measuring the

risk faced, determining adequate risk limits and monitoring the fluctuations. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed to cover the operations of the Group and changes in market conditions.
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34 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)
34.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables
from customers and financial investments.

Management has a credit risk policy in place to monitor the exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis.
The Group has the ability to receive collaterals for its financial assets. Furthermore, the Group obtains
letters of guarantee or similar collaterals from third parties for specific agreements and projects, if
necessary.

Regarding the credibility of the counterparty, letters of guarantee or advance payments are received
as collaterals of trade receivables from port operations. Credit risk resulting from brokerage activities
of the Group are managed by the related companies' risk committees through the regulations on
credit sales of securities promulgated by the CMB. Within the context of credit risk policies described
in this paragraph, the Group does not have significant credit risk from port operations, natural gas
sales and financial operations which constitute major part of the Group's operations.

The Group enters into transactions with accredited parties or the parties that an agreement is
signed in financial markets. The transactions in the treasury operations are performed by conditional
exchanges through custody cash accounts.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The

maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset,
including derivatives, in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated
34 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

34.1 Credit risk (continued)

During the impairment tests of the financial assets, the Group considered the factors which show that
the amounts to be collected are not collectible.

The maturity analysis of the assets overdue but not impaired is as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Trade Receivables Trade Receivables

1 to 30 days overdue 808.087 424.869
1 to 3 months overdue 204313 74.289
3 to 12 months overdue 918.744 141916
Total 1.931.144 641.074
Portion of assets secured by guarantee etc. 118.784 148.338
34.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the Group's activities and in the management of
positions. It includes both risk of being unable to fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates and
risk of being unable to liguidate an asset at a reasonable price and in an appropriate time frame.

The Group continuously assesses liquidity risk by identifying and monitoring changes in funding
required in meeting business goals and targets set in terms of the overall Group strategy.

Current and future loan needs of the Group are supplied by continuous accessibility of sufficient
number of high quality creditors for each segment of the Group.

254 GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2013



- - - £98'G88'E £98'688'€ £98'G88'E 101295 @2ueUly Ul SUOIBJad0 03 anp SaIGel]
- 0C6'/950% /€0'G6EE 69T ¥6/0T 9¢T'/G/'S8 9¢T'/G/'S8 so|qehed Jay10
- - Tv¥'GG.TC 78T'8€L"/ €T9E6Y 6T TC9E6Y6C so|qehed opel]
SaNljigel [eIDUBUIY SAIIRALISP-UON
sieak sieak syjuow syjuowl SMO|JIN0 Yysed anjep Suifiie) saiIINIeN paydadx3
G ueyy aloW GOl T zTo€g € Uey1ssa paadxa [ej0L
- 97 E'9Y T TE 8/9'T6C9 G/6TSTY 666'0CLCY 169'9/C L€ SuoeS||go 9Seal adueUl
- - - G6/'€09°GE G6/'€09'GE G6/'€09'GE 101295 @2UeUly Ul SUOIesado 03 anp SaIGel]
- C/5S00TTC  0CSE60GE 0SCTEOY CrE0ET05C  80T'SOEVST PaNsS| SaNIINas 1qaQ
9T¥'S09'88T  ¥T//vPSTE  06T00S5/.0C Ov9vECT 096'/89°€T.  S/986E+EQ sueo| xueg
Saljl|igelT |edueuld aAIlBALIDQ-UON 10 3AIBALIRQ
sieak sieak syjuow syjuow € S)oeJjuod anjep Suifiie) S3l}IN1eA |BN1DBIIU0)
G ueyl 240N GO} T cT 01 ¢ ueyy ssa 0} 2Np SMO[JIN0

yseo |ejol

€T0C -BquRdag TE

(Panupuod) yisu Aypinbry z'pe

(Panunuod) JuswaSeuew ysi [ePuUeLl]

(PanunUod) SINIWNYLSNI TVIDONVNIH WO DNISIIY SHSII 40 TIATTANV FUNLVN P€

pa1e1s asIMJaY10 Ssajun (,71,,) BT ysiyanL Aouainn)

€TOZ J9quiada T papud Jeaj 3y} 1o} pue je se
SIUSWIdLE]S [RIDURUI{ PA]EPIOSU0) 3] 0} SO10N

salieIpIsqns s} puy S’y SUIp|oH WILIEA [eqOo]D

255



- - - v89V /L€ ¥89'7/ /'€ v89'7/ /'€ 101295 @2UeUl Ur suoielado 03 anp saljigel ]

- 6C6'700'T 8rE8EC9¢ 6/.T'650CT 9G¥'c0e'6Y 9G¥'cot6v sa|geded 12410

- - 6769’9 €98'cor'. GGEO8TET GGe98TEeT sajqeded apei|

SaNI|Iger] [ePUBUl 9AIALISP-UON

si1eak G ueyy alo\ S1eak g 01 T SYUOW ZTO1E  Syjuow SMO|JIN0 Yysed anjep Suifiied sanINIe paoadxy
€ ueYyl ssa pa10adxa |e10L

- 9C66LLY 6EY'8TOC 989G/ 169°€499°/ 6S' 1899 Su0Nes||go 9ses| sdueuld

- - - (88'G8Y'G¥ (88'G8v'ay (88'G87'ay 10129s 22Ukl Ul suolelado 01 anp saljiger

- - GE8'LY - Ge8' LY GE8'LY Solyjiqel| [edueul} oAllBALIR(Q

- 0§eTEbB'CC GELETLC - G80'Gr9'q¢C 6809796 ponss|salllunoos 1gaQd

- (S8'8.T0LT T0/'CE€'98 L6CETTIC 0§8%C9'T8¢C £8C'80/1'C9¢ Sueo| Mueg

sanyiqer

[BIDUBUI4 DAIIBALIDQ-UON 10 dAIIBALIRQ

sieak g ueyy sieak syjuowl syjuow € S)0RIU0D anjep Suifiie) S3111INJEA [BENIDBIIUOD
2o GO T ZT o€ uey) ssa 0} 9Np SMO|}IN0

yseo |e1o]

cToCIeY TE

(Panupuod) sisu Aypinbry '€

(Panunuod) JuswaSeuew sk [epueuly

(PanuRUOd) SINIWNYLSNITVIDONVNIH INOUL DNISIIV SHSIY 40 TIATT ANV FUNLVN PE

Pa31e1s 9SIMIBY10 SSa|un (,7]1,,) el ysiyanL Aouainn)

€T0Z J9quiadag TE papu3 Jeaj 9y} 1o pue je se
SIUSWIdLE]S [eIDURUI{ PA)EPIOSU0) 3] 0} SO10N

salieIpisqns s} puy S’y SUIP|OH WLIEA [eqo]D

2 56 GLOBAL INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ANNUAL REPORT 2013



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

34 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)
34.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Group's income or the value of its financial instruments. The objective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing the return.

Market risk for all subsidiaries is monitored and managed by the Company's centralized Treasury
and Fund Management Department. Treasury and Fund Management Department uses forward
transactions and option contracts to minimize possible losses from money market fluctuations.

iForeign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk through transactions (such as borrowings) in foreign currencies,
especially in USD and Euro. As the currency in which the Group presents its consolidated financial
statementsis TL, the consolidated financial statements are affected by movements in the exchange
rates against TL. For the subsidiaries, whose functional currency is USD, main foreign currency is TL.

Regarding the port operations, the Group has limited exposure to currency risk since port tariff
currency, which is the base of functional currency, and material transactions such as revenues and
loans are denominated by the same currency.

The Group uses interest swaps and options in order to limit exposure to currency risk mainly arising
from financial liablilities.
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34 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

34.3 Market risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, foreign currency risk exposures of the Group

comprised the following;

31 December 2013

TL Equivalent usD EURO GBP TL
1.Trade receivables 10.922.391 2.025.343 2123.027 11.429 325.303
2.2 Monetary financial assets 59.530.886 20.180.787 1.318.732 - 12586.575
2.bNon-monetary financial - - - - -
assets
3. Other - - - - -
4. Current assets 70.453.277 22.206.130 3.441.759 11.429 12.911.878
5.Trade receivables - - - - -
6.a. Monetary financial assets 64.228.240 29.982.700 10.446 - 205.488
6.b. Non-monetary financial - - - - -
assets
7. Other - - - - -
8.Non-current assets 64.228.240 29.982.700 10.446 - 205.488
Total Assets 134.681.517 52.188.830 3.452.205 11.429 13.117.366
10. Trade payables 9.046.251 478.730 798.183 60.853 5.466.954
11. Financial liabilities 160.714.201 65.070.806 7.418.730 - 48.479
12.a. Monetary financial liabilities 14.869.093 1.005.337 117.085 32534 12.265.342
12.b.Non-monetary financial - - - - -
liabilities
13. Short-term liabilities 184.629.545 66.554.873 8.333.998 93.387 17.780.775
14. Trade payables - - - - -
15. Financial liabilities 394.589.380 177.549.323 5.316.853 - 32922
16.a. Other monetary liabilities 45.056.190 19.000.000 - - 4.504.490
16.b. Other non-monetary - - - - -
liabilities
17.Long-term liabilities 439.645.570 196.549.323 5.316.853 - 4537.412
18. Total liabilities 624.275.115 263.104.196 13.650.851 93.387 22.318.187
Net foreign currency balance (489.593.598) (210.915.366) (10.198.646) (81.958) (9.200.821)
sheet position
Net foreign currency asset/ (489.593.598) (210.915.366) (10.198.646) (81.958) (9.200.821)
liability position
Net monetary accounts foreign
currency
asset/liability position (489.593.598) (210.915.366) (10.198.646) (81.958) (9.200.821)
Export - - - - -
Import - - - - -
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34 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

34.3 Market risk (continued)

TL foreign currency risk of subsidiaries and joint ventures whose functional currency is other than TL,
is shownin TL line in the foreign currency risk table.

31 December 2012

TL Equivalent usD EURO GBP TL
1.Trade receivables 1.344.799 123.286 198.912 1.679 652.429
2.aMonetary financial assets 43.650.124 18.005.590 481.751 - 10420425
2.bNon-monetary financial assets - - - - -
3. Other - - - - -
4. Current assets 44,994,923 18.128.876 680.663 1.679 11.072.854
5.Trade receivables - - - - -
6.a. Monetary financial assets 22718134 12.200.238 - - 969.990
6.b. Non-monetary financial assets - - - - -
7.0ther - - - - -
8.Non-current assets 22.718.134 12.200.238 - - 969.990
Total Assets 67.713.057 30.329.114 680.663 1.679 12.042.844
10. Trade payables 4.825.560 300.371 163.222 64.019 3.722.483
11. Financial liabilities 49.685.245 27.672.144 142178 - 22.520
12.a.Monetary financial liabilities 9.079.937 480.562 87.091 - 8.018.475
12.b.Non-monetary financial - - - - -
liabilities
13. Short-term liabilities 63.590.742 28.453.077 392.491 64.019 11.763.478
14. Trade payables - - - - -
15. Financial liabilities 104.392.021 58.561.663 - - -
16.a. Other monetary liabilities 4.582.548 - - - 4.582.548
16.b. Other non-monetary liabilities - - - - -
17.Long-term liabilities 108.974.569 58.561.663 - - 4.582.548
18. Total liabilities 172.565.311 87.014.740 392.491 64.019 16.346.026
Net foreign currency balance sheet  (104.852.254) (56.685.626) 288.172 (62.340) (4.303.182)
position
Net monetary accounts foreign
currency
asset/liability position (104.852.254) (56.685.626) 288.172 (62.340) (4.303.182)
Export - - - - -
Import - - - - -
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34 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

34.3 Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis — Foreign currency risk

A 10 percent strengthening or depreciation of the Turkish Lira against the following currencies as
at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 would have changed equity or profit or loss by the

amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.

31 December 2013 PROFIT/LOSS EQUITY (*)

Strengthening of Depreciation of Strengthening of Depreciation of
foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign curreny

A 10 percent change in USD against Turkish Lira:

1-Net USD asset/liability (44.095.584) 44.095.584 - -

2-Hedged portion against - - - -

USD risk (-)

3- Net effect of USD (1+2) (44.095.584) 44,095.584 - -
A 10 percent change in Euro against Turkish Lira:

4- Net Euro asset/liability (2.994.832) 2.994.832 - -

5-Hedged portion against - - - -

Euro risk (-)

6- Net effect of Euro (4+5) (2.994.832) 2.994.832 - -
A 10 percent change in other currencies against Turkish Lira:

7- Net other currencies (28.779) 28.779 - -

asset/liability

8- Hedged portion against - - - -
other currencies risk (-)

9- Net effect of other (28.779) 28.779 - -
currencies (7+8)

TOTAL (3+6+9) (47.119.195) 47.119.195 - -

(*) Profit and loss excluded.
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34 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

34.3 Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis — Foreign currency risk (continued)

31 December 2012

PROFIT/LOSS

EQUITY (*)

Strengthening of
foreign currency

Depreciation of Strengthening of

foreign currency

Depreciation of

foreign currency  foreign currency

A 10 percent change in USD against Turkish Lira:

1-Net USD asset/ (9.640.087) 9.640.087 - -
liability

2-Hedged portion - - - -
against USD risk (-)

3- Net effect of USD (9.640.087) 9.640.087 - -

(1+2)

A 10 percent change in Euro against Turkish Lira:

4- Net Euro asset/ (313.754) 313.754 - -
liability

5- Hedged portion - - - -
against Euro risk (-)

6- Net effect of Euro (313.754) 313.754 - -

(4+5)

A 10 percent change in other currencies against Turkish Lira:

7- Net other currencies
asset/liability

(17.897)

17.897

8- Hedged portion -
against other currencies
risk (-)

9- Net effect of other (17.897)

currencies (7+8)

17.897

TOTAL (3+6+9) (9.971.738)

9.971.738

(*) Profit and loss excluded.
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34 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

34.3 Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis — Foreign currency risk (continued)

ii) Interest rate risk

The Group's operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different times or in different

amounts. This risk is managed through balancing the assets and liabilities exposed to interest rate risk
and restricted use of derivative instruments.

Interest Position Table
31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Financial Instruments with fixed Interest 75.616.976 (68.809.221)
Financial Financial assets held for trading 13.491.591 4,784.791
Assets Due from related parties 13.716.860 17.316.951
Receivables from money markets 21.831.525 38.110.821
Bank deposits 53.507.795 11.383.177
Financial Loans and borrowings - (101.048.957)
Liabilities Liabilities due to operations in finance (26.930.795) (39.356.004)
sector
Financial Instruments with variable interest (639.026.449) (174.905.283)
Financial Assets  Loans granted to the key management 21.719.584 18.983.676
Financial Liabilities Loans and borrowings (660.746.033) (193.888.959)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group used interest rate derivatives (swap) to hedge interest rate risk
(Note 33).

Sensivity analysis — interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2013, had the interest rates been higher by 100 base points and all other
variables remain constant, profit before tax would have been lower by TL 6.390.265 (31 December
201.2: profit before tax lower by TL 1.749.053), the net profit attributable to the owners of the
Company would have been lower by TL 5.068.511 (31 December 2012: TL 1.399.242) and total
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company would have been lower by TL 4.576.515 (31
December 2012: TL 1.294.991). Had the interest rates been lower by 100 base points, the effect
would be the same but in reverse position.
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34 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

34.3 Market risk (continued)

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to provide the sustainability of the Group's
operations in order to bring returns and benefits to the shareholders and to reduce the cost of the
capital for maintaining an optimal capital structure.

The Group monitors the capital management by using debt / capital ratio. This ratio is calculated by
dividing the net debt to total capital. Net debt is calculated by deducting cash and cash equivalents
from total liabilities (the sum of financial liabilities). Total capitalis the sum of net debt and equity. The
Group's net debt ratio calculated with this method is 52% as of 31 December 2013 (2012: 24%).

35 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other thanin a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced by a quoted
market price.

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined using available market
information by the Group, and where it exists, using appropriate valuation methodologies. However,
judgment is necessarily required to interpret market data to determine the estimated fair value. While
the management of the Group has used available market information in estimating the fair values,
the market information may not be fully reflective of the value that could be realized in the current
circumstances.

Fair values of cash and cash equivalents and other monetary assets are assumed to approximate their
carrying amounts. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables less the related provisions for
impairment are assumed to approximate their fair values. Carrying amounts of floating rate foreign
currency liabilities, which are translated to Turkish Lira using the period-end rates, are assumed to
reflect their fair values.

263



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

35 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities are listed below:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Financial Assets Notes Value value Value value
Cashand Cash
Equivalents 7  74333.643 74.333.643 49.079.630 49.079.630

Financial Investments

8 28193317 28193317 12822661 12.822.661

Trade Receivables

10  36.873.195 36.873195 15132390 15132.390

Receivables from
Operationsin Finance
Sector

12,6 44.663.535 44.663.535 63.213.340 63.213.340

Other Receivables

11,6 95103553 95.103.553 126.452.539 126.452.539

Other Current and Non-
current assets

22 39.716.968 39.716.968 59454910 59.454.910

Total

318.884.211 318.884.211 326.155.470 326.155.470

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 9 855980474 855.980.474 294,937,916 294.937.916
Other Financial Liabilities 33 - - 47.835 47.835
Trade Payables 10  28.725.646 28.725.646 12.887.457 12.887.457

Liabilities due to
Operations in Finance
Sector

12,6 39.489.658 39.489.658 49.260.566 49.260.566

Other Payables 11,6 85.757.126 85757126 49.302.456 49.302.456
Other Liabilities 22 9.289.067 9.289.067 2.264.206 2.264.206
Total 1.019.241.971 1.019.241.971 408.700.436 408.700.436

The table below analyses the valuation method of the financial instruments carried at fair value. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Input other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e,, derived from prices);

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).
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35 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

31 December 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets held for trading 22.808.608 - - 22.808.608
Financial assets available for sale - 5.164.987 5164.987
Derivative financial liabilities - - - -

22.808.608 - 5.164.987 27.973.595
31 December 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets held for trading 9.738.924 - - 9.738.924
Financial assets available for sale - - 3.083.737 3.083.737
Derivative financial liabilities - (47.835) - (47.835)
9.738.924 (47.835) 3.083.737 12.774.826
36 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the detail of assets held for saleis as below:
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Real Estates 862.751 - 862.751 -
Galata Eneriji 15.318.725 625.774 - -
Gelis Madencilik 94.863.945 37.790.562 - -
111.045.421 38.416.336 862.751 -

Real estates

The Group's real estates held for sale amounting to TL 862.751 (31 December 2012: TL 862.751)
can be summarized as land in the BozUytik district of the Bilecik province, with a total area of 29.500
m?2 and land in the Bodrum district of the Mugla province, with a total area of 3.000 m2 whichis
owned by Global Yatirim Holding A.S.

Galata Enerji

Regarding to the Sirnak Thermal Plant Project with 2x135 (270) MW long for asphaltite which has
been planned to build via technology of fluidized bed and carried out by Global Enerji, a subsidiary of
the Group at the shareholding rate of 100%, the Group and AkkSk Sanayi Yatirm ve Gelistirme A.S.
("Akkok'") agreed on a preliminary agreement for the following;,

- Inaccordance with the decision dated 19 March 2009 and numbered 2021-5 by EMRA; 55% of
Galata Enerji (which Global Enerjihas 85% of the shares of) which has electricity production licence
for 49 years;

55% shares of Gelis Madencilik operating in Sirnak with the license numbered IR-2505 which Global
Enerjihas 85% shares of

265



Global Yatirnm Holding A.S. And its Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
as at and for the Year Ended 31 December 2013

Cuurency Turkish Lira (“TL’) unless otherwise stated

36 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

It has been reached a preliminary agreement with Akkok to transfer the aftermentioned shares to
Akkok subsequent to completion of satisfactory due diliginence and pending approvals of the EMRA
and fullfiiment the preconditions of Turkish Competition Authority. Some of the preconditions are
completed while some of them are stillin progress.

As at 31 December 2013, the detail of assets and liabilities classified to assets and liabilities held for
sale of Galata Enerjiis as follow:

Assets

31 December 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 373
Other receivables 1.281.875
Other current assets 6.539.472
Property, plant and equipment 0.723.988
Other non current assets 773.017
15.318.725

Liabilities
31 December 2013
Trade payables 149,523
Other payables 456,300
Other short-term payables 19.951
625.774
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36 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

Gelis Madencilik

As at 31 December 201 3, the detail of assets and liabilities of Gelis Madencilik classified to non

current assets and liabilities held for sale is as follow:

Assets
31 December 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 5153152
Trade and other receivables 32.620.201
Other current assets 11.376.318
Property, plant and equipment 3.914.724
Other non current assets 2455102
Goodwill 39.344.448
94.863.945
Liabilities
31 December 2013
Trade payables 37.692.077
Other payables 98.485
37.790.562
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36 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
Enerji Yatinm Holding and its Subsidiaries (2012)

The Group has signed a Share Purchase Agreement with STFA dated 25 May 201 2. EYH, the joint
venture of the Group which encompassed all the natural gas distribution and wholesale operations
(except the CNG), has transferred all of its shares held, corresponding to 50% of the share capital of
EYH to STFA who owns the remaining 50% of EYH. After the approval of EMRA, the transfer of the
shares has been took place on 10 July 2012 with a sales price of USD 75.000.000. USD 51.500.000
is collected on sale and the remaining amount will be collected in installments.

The necessary application has been made to EMRA for equal partition of the transfer of the shares

to STFA and Global Enerjiregarding the shares of Naturelgaz, an associate of Enerji Yatirim Holding,
engaged in the sales and distribution of compressed natural gas (CNG) (corresponding to 50% of the
share capital). After obtaining the necessary permission from the EMRA for the transfer of the shares,
the Group's indirect capital in Naturelgaz over from EYH comprises %25 of the shares have been
transferred to Global Enerji whose 99,99% of the shares owned by the Group.

While the income and expenses up to the date of sale have been consolidated, the assets and
liabilities have been excluded from the scope of consolidation. Since EYH does not have an available
financial statement as of 10 July 2012 and the difference of 10 days with 30 June 2012 is considered
insignificant in the consolidated financial statements, Group decided to use the financial statements of
EYH as of 30 June 2012 in order to account the sale.
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36 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

Enerji Yatinm Holding and its Subsidiaries (2012) (continued)

As at 31 December 2012 the details of the gain on the sale of EYH and its subsidiaries (except
Naturelgaz) , net cash inflow from the sale of joint venture and the net assets sold are presented

below

Sales price 136.005.000
Group's share in the net assets at the date of the sale 14.180.136
Gain on sale of joint ventures(Not 28.1) 150.185.136
Sales price 136.005.000
Cash and cash equivalents at the date of EYH's sale (4.676.450)
Net cash inflow from gain on sale of joint ventures 131.328.550
Net assets sold (30 June 2012)

Cash and cash equivalents 9.354.771
Other Trade Receivables 17.304.393
Other Receivables 6.586.761
Inventory 871.554
Other Current Assets 22.793.187
Financial Investments 1115115
Property, Plant and Equipment 3.777.453
Concession Intangible Assets 334.742.370
Intangible Assets 835.805
Deferred Tax Asset 28.832.575
Other Non-Current Assets 690.288
Financial Liabilities (134.338.050)
Trade Payables (56.284.031)
Other Payables (121.123.677)
Provisions (1.445.047)
Other Current Liabilities (23.335.215)
Provision for Employee Benefits (725.411)
Other Non-Current Liabilities (112.080.922)
Due to Related Parties (5.937.864)
Total (28.365.945)
Effective ownership rate of the Group 49,99%
Group's share in the net assets at the date of the sale (14.180.136)
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37 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

As explained in detail in Note 31, the Group benefits from investment allowance and miscellaneous tax
exemptions.

38 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i) The Board of Directors, have resolved in compliance with the CMB's resolution dated August 10
2011 and numbered 26/767;

The price of the company stock which is being traded at BIST is close to its nominal price due to

the crisis which has begun on a global scale and which continues to affect Europe; company stock
price does not reflect the true performance of the Company's operations; stakeholders' legitimate
expectations on dividend distribution which the company can not realize due to various legislation
provisions (due to the requirement of the presence of profit available for distribution in both the

legal financial statements and the financial statements which are being prepared in accordance

with the CMB regulations, company was unable to distribute any profit since there was no profit
available for distributionin its legal financial statements although the company had profit available for
distribution according to its financial statements which are being prepared in accordance with the CMB
regulations.); repurchase shares after the analysis of the current market conditions in order to reduce
share price fluctuation and to support the price of the shares which are being traded at BIST if found
necessary;

- As of the date of this Repurchasing Program, the shares with the nominal value of TL 22.500.368,
thatis 10% of the paid capital at the amount of TL 225.003.687,45 can be repurchased within 18
(eighteen) months,

- A fund at the maximum amount of TL 30.000.000 to be absorbed from the company sources and
the revenue provided form its activities can be used for repurchasing,

- For the repurchasing of the shares up to maximum rate above, the lower price limitis TL O- and the
upper price limitis TL 2,
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38 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

- The shares owned through the repurchased shares shall not be sold back and need to be cancelled at
the end of the retaining period of maximum 3 years by capital decrease,

- For these purposes, The Repurchasing Program termis 18 months since the authorization of Board
of Directors by General Assembly,

- As of 11 November 2013, based on the Repurchasing Program, The Board of Directors authorized
at the BOD meeting, numbered 791, held on 30 March 2012 and submitted on 10 May 2012 by
the General Assembly, the Repurchasing Program has been completed since the termination of 18
months period and the share of the Group has been increased to 9,24%.

As of 28 February 2014, based on the Repurchasing Program, The Board of Directors decided to
cancel repurchased shares via capital decrease with respect to the regulations in force and decrease
with a value of TL 20.791.765 of the capital of the Company to TL 204.211.922,45 from TL
225.003.687,45 and correspondingly change the clause of articles of association entitled “Capital
and Share Classes" and numbered 6 . It is unanimously decided to apply CMB and Ministry of Customs
and Trade and following that call a meeting of General Assembly and perform all related procedures for
approval of change the clause of articles of association.

(i) BPI, a joint venture of the Group, which was established by Global Liman, a fully-owned subsidiary
of the Group, and Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd ("RCCL") has won the tender initiated by Lisbon

Cruise Terminal Public Service Privilege with limited submission of tenders method. The concession
agreement will be signed when the transaction has been approved by Competition Authority and
Court of Account.

39 OTHER MATTERS THAT SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OR MAKE THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CLEAR, INTERPRETABLE AND
UNDERSTANDABLE

None.
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